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INTRODUCTION

Unless otherwise indicated, references in this ahraport to:

 “ADRY¢ are to the American depositary receipts that exideur ADSs
« “ADS¢ are to our American depositary shares, each oftwigipresents five ordinary shar
*  “China” or the"PRC" are to the People’Republic of China, excluding, for the purposehid annual report only, Taiwan &

the special administrative regions of Hong Kong ktatau;

»  “conversion efficiency”are to the ability of photovoltaic, or PV, produttsconvert sunlight into electricity, anddnversiol
efficiency rates”are commonly used in the PV industry to measureptreentage of light energy from the sun that tsialty
converted into electricity

e “cost per watt” and“price per watt” are to the method by which the cost and price ofpRducts, respectively, are commc
measured in the PV industry. A PV product is pribeaded on the number of watts of electricity it ganerate

e “GW are to gigawatt, representing 1,000,000,000 wattsit of powe-generating capacity or consumptit

e “MW” are to megawatt, representing 1,000,000 wattsjtafipowergenerating capacity or consumption. In this annepbrt
it is assumed that, based on a yield rate of 9520,000 125mm x 125mm or 280,000 156mm x 156mmoasilivafers ar
required to produce PV products capable of gemayati MW, that each 125mm x 125mm and 156mm x 156mcell
generates 2.4 W and 3.7 W of power, respectively, that each PV module contains 72 125mm x 125mmcél\é or 5:
156mm x 156mm PV cell:

e« “PV’ are to photovoltaic. The photovoltaic effect isragess by which sunlight is converted into eledtirjc
e “RME" and“Renmink” are to the legal currency of Chir
»  “series A convertible preference sh’ are to our series A convertible preference shaasyalue US$0.0001 per sha

e ‘“shares” or “ordinary shares” are to our ordinary shares, par value US$0.0001spare. For the purpose of computing
reporting our outstanding ordinary shares and asichor diluted earnings per share, the 9,019,8%3Awe issued to facilite
the convertible bond offering are not consideretstamding;

« “W’ are to watt, a unit of pow-generating capacity or consumption; i
e+ “USY and“ U.S. dollar” are to the legal currency of the United Sta

References in this annual report on FormP2t our annual manufacturing capacity assume 2dshof operation per day 1
350 days per year.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, “we,” “Uglr company”, “Hanwha SolarOne” and “ourfer to Hanwha SolarO
Co., Ltd., its predecessor entities and its codatdid subsidiaries.

We completed the initial public offering of 12,0000 ADSs, each representing five ordinary shareBesember 26, 2006. (
December 20, 2006, we listed our ADSs on the Na&labal Market, which are traded under the symbt$OL.”

On January 29, 2008, we closed an offering of U million 3.50% convertible senior notes due 204182018 convertib
bonds, to qualified institutional buyers pursuanRule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, asraaed, or the Securities Act, «
received net proceeds of US$167.9 million. Conaulyewith this convertible bond offering, we closed offering of 9,019,6
ADSs, representing 45,098,055 ordinary sharesaddithte the convertible bond offering. We did meteive any proceeds, ot
than the par value of the ADSs, from such offegfi@\DSs.

From July 17, 2008 to August 12, 2008, we issuebsaid 5,421,093 ADSs with an aggregate sale pfit¢S$73.9 million.

From September 17, 2009 to November 18, 2009, weed and sold 3,888,399 ADSs with an aggregate made o
US$23.1 million.
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In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwter Stalldings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solar, 36,455,068%inary shares for i
aggregate sale price of US$78.2 million. Concutyentth the closing of this offering, we issued 802,689 ordinary shares
Hanwha Solar at par value of the ordinary sharéssabsequently an additional 14,407,330 ordinagyeshat par value, which she
shall remain outstanding so long as and to thenexhat the 9,019,611 ADSs we issued to facilitate convertible bond offering
January 2008 remain outstanding. At the same tidewha Solar completed the acquisitions from Googrfies Il LP an
Yonghua Solar Power Investment Holding Ltd., thenpany owned by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairmaf,a total o
120,407,700 ordinary shares and 1,281,011 ADSsuptompany, representing all of the ordinary shams ADSs held by the
Hanwha Solar, a company that engages in solar éssins a whollyewned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical Corporatioleaaling
chemical producer publicly traded on the Korea Exge whose principal activities are the productidrchlor-alkali, or CA
polyethylene, or PE, and polyvinyl-chloride, or PModucts.

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 ARiSsan aggregate sale price of US$82.8 millianotder for Hanwh
Solar to maintain after this offering the same lafebeneficial ownership in our company as befitvie offering, we also issued &
sold to Hanwha Solar 45,981,604 ordinary sharearicaggregate sale price of US$82.8 million.

After Hanwha Solar became our largest shareholderchanged our name from “Solarfun Power Holdings, Ctd.” to
“Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.” on December 20, 2018 @ur ticker from “SOLF” to “HSOL"on February 15, 2011. We also char
the names of our subsidiaries. In this annual tepeference is made to the new names of our sialogid. Please see below a lis
the new names of our subsidiaries:

(1) Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc., formerly known as 8ataPower U.S.A. Inc.

(2) Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holding Ltd., formemplwn as Linyang Solar Power Investment Holding ;L
(3) Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited, formerly knovenSolarfun Power Hong Kong Limite

(4) Hanwha SolarOne (Qidong) Co., Ltd., formerly knoasmJiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Lt

(5) Hanwha SolarOne Deutschland GmbH, formerly knowBS@larfun Power Deutschland Gmk

(6) Hanwha Solar Engineering Research and Developmente€ Co., Ltd., formerly known as Jiangsu Linye®gjarfur
Engineering Research and Development Center Cab.;,

(7) Hanwha SolarOne Technology Co., Ltd., formerly knaag Jiangsu Yangguang Solar Technology Co., atul

(8) Hanwha Solar Electric Power Engineering Co., Lfstmerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solar Electrievep Engineerin
Co., Ltd.
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PART |
ITEM 1 IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT ANDADVISORS
Not applicable
ITEM 2 OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable
ITEM 3 KEY INFORMATION

A. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial datacept for “Other Operating Datatiave been derived from our aud
consolidated financial statements, which have laeslited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming, an independegistered public accounti
firm. The report of Ernst & Young Hua Ming on ownsolidated financial statements as of Decembe2329 and 2010 and for 1
years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010ligledt elsewhere in this annual report on Fori-F. The consolidated statem
of operations data for the years ended Decembe2®I5 and 2007 and the consolidated balance sheetd of December 31, 20
2007 and 2008 have been derived from our auditedatmated financial statements, which are notuidet in this annual report
Form 20F. The selected consolidated financial informafimnthose periods and as of those dates are qalify reference to thc
financial statements and the related notes, andldghm® read in conjunction with them and witlbetn 5. Operating and Financ
Review and ProspectsOur consolidated financial statements are prepanedpresented in accordance with United Statesraiy
accepted accounting principles, or U.S. GAAP. Oatohical results do not necessarily indicate asuits expected for any futi
periods.

Year Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands, except share and per share dat

Consolidated Statement o
Operations Data

Net revenue: 630,90° 2,395,13! 4,949,06! 3,778,31i 7,526,99: 1,140,45
Cost of revenue (446,53() (1,997,35) (4,905,14) (3,341,93)) (5,960,64) (903,129
Gross profit 184,37 397,78( 43,92 436,38 1,566,34! 237,32!
Operating expenst
Selling expense (11,887 (62,777 (87,919 (105,459 (178,05 (26,97¢)
General and administrative expen (52,219 (113,75¢6) (143,340 (180,989 (190,59) (28,879
Research and development exper (6,529 (27,440 (19,679 (32,025 (53,500 (8,10€)
Government grant — — — — 18,75¢ 2,84
Total operating expens (70,620 (203,979 (250,93) (318,46%) (403,399 (61,120
Operating profit (loss 113,75 193,80° (207,01) 117,91 1,162,944 176,20!
Interest expense (8,4072) (25,979 (103,14 (157,90 (161,67) (24,49)
Interest incomt 1,32¢ 16,24 10,00¢ 5,00z 6,141 93C
Exchange losse (4,346 (25,629 (35,230) (23,819 (89,277) (13,52¢)
Changes in fair value of derivative

contracts (163 — 83,09( 9,59« 77,53: 11,747
Changes in fair value of conversio

feature of convertible bonc — — — (73,887 31,62 4,791
Other income 902 1,507 15,01¢ 6,28¢ 24,35! 369(
Other expense (83€) (9,670) (25,604 (11,83% (5,909 (899
Government grant 852 2,08¢ 3,48( 7,661 9,59t 1,45¢
Income (loss) before income tax 103,09( 152,37: (259,399 (120,989 1,055,34 159,90(
Income tax benefit/(expense 3,132 (7,459 (6,519 (23,929 (297,98 (45,149

Consolidated net income (los 106,22: 144,91: (265,919 (144,919 757,35 114,75:



Net (income) loss attributable
nor-controlling interes (7,527 3,12¢ (14,577 (31]) — —

Net income (loss) attributable
shareholder 98,69: 148,03 (280,49) (145,22) 757,35 114,75:
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Net income (loss) attributable
shareholders per share Hanwh
SolarOne Co., Ltc

— Basic

— Diluted

Number of shares used
computation of net income
(loss) per shar

— Basic

— Diluted

Net income (loss) per AD

— Basic

— Diluted

Number of ADS used i
computation of net income
(loss) per ADS

— Basic

— Diluted

Other Financial Data

Gross margir

Operating margil

Net margin

Net cash (used in) provided
operating activities (in thousanc

Other Operating Data

Amount of PV modules shipped
(including PV module processin

Year Ended December 31,

Average selling price of PV moduli
(excluding PV module processir

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (USS)
(In thousands, except share and per share dat
0.9t 0.62 (1.17) (0.53) 2.4% 0.37
0.74 0.62 2.1y (0.59) 2.3€ 0.3¢€
103,631,83 240,054,68 252,659,61 274,067,76 311,263,30 311,263,30
142,108,46 240,054,68 252,659,61 274,067,76 357,272,60 357,272,60
4.7¢ 3.0¢ (5.55) (2.65) 12.17 1.84
3.72 3.0¢ (5.55) (2.65) 11.8¢ 1.7¢
20,726,36 48,010,93 50,531,92 54,813,55 62,252,66 62,252,66
28,421,69 48,010,93 50,531,92 54,813,55 71,454,52 71,454,52
Year Ended December 31
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (USS)
29.2% 16.€% 0.9% 11.5% 20.8% 20.8%
18.(% 8.1% (4.2% 3.1% 15.5% 15.5%
16.€% 6.2% (5.% 3.9% 10.1% 10.1%
(523,06)) (1,020,60) (674,04() 689,33: 268,43t 40,67
Year Ended December 31
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(MW) (MW) MW) MW) (MW)
19.C 78.4 172.¢ 313.¢ 797.¢
Year Ended December 31
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (RMB/W) (USSIW)
31.7¢ 28.2( 26.77 15.27 11.5¢ 1.7¢
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As of December 31,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US9)
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalel 1,137,79. 272,92¢ 410,90: 645,72( 1,630,77 247,08
Restricted cas 33,82: 42,25 88,131 60,53¢ 100,49( 15,22¢
Accounts receivabl— net 147,83« 430,69: 319,53 587,48 1,282,80 194,36!
Notes receivabl — — — — 10,00( 1,51¢
Inventorie—net 372,50¢ 728,48( 731,70¢ 783,97. 790,77 119,81
Advance to supplie— net 238,17¢ 640,11¢ 1,145,61. 540,14! 764,06: 115,76
Other current asse 75,52¢ 214,47¢ 481,74¢ 180,31! 255,43: 38,70:
Deferred tax asse— net 3,40( 7,79% 62,48 76,90¢ 108,37( 16,41¢
Derivative contract — — 39,66¢ 7,36( 7,48¢ 1,13¢
Amount due from related parti 15z 92C 19 12,45¢ 42,81¢ 6,48¢
Long-term prepayment — — — 439,61 394,28:. 59,74(
Fixed asset— net 207,44¢ 702,88 1,492,57! 1,586,28 2,084,02 315,76:
Intangible assei— net 12,891 94,28: 212,73¢ 208,56 205,76: 31,17¢
Long-term deferred expens — 214,38! 37,46 33,15¢ 27,27: 4,13
Goodwill — — 134,73! 134,73! 134,73! 20,41«
Total asset 2,230,43. 3,349,51 5,157,32 5,297,25! 7,839,101 1,187,74:.
Shor-term bank borrowing 379,90( 965,00: 1,098,83: 404,76 318,91¢ 48,32.
Long-term bank borrowings, curre

portion 16,00( 15,00( 30,00( 120,00( 215,00( 32,57¢
Accounts payabl 51,45: 141,70¢ 217,02t 441,76! 478,12¢ 72,44+
Notes payabli 14,02( — 39,34: 186,92: 181,26! 27,464
Accrued expenses and other

liabilities 33,61¢ 135,39! 189,02¢ 191,89! 404,82t 61,33%
Customer deposit 17 27,62¢ 9,49 59,68t 33,53¢ 5,08
Deferred tax liabilitie: — 9,03¢ 28,57 26,56¢ 25,97% 3,93¢
Unrecognized tax bene — — 27,38¢ 27,38¢ 143,47: 21,73¢
Derivative contract — — 5,792 1,14¢ 8,047 1,21¢
Amount due to related parti 24,48t 92,73¢ 39,76¢ 16,76¢ 13,18: 1,99
Long-term bank borrowing 15,00( — 170,00( 350,00( 135,00( 20,45t
Convertible bond — — 1,178,96! 658,65 687,43! 104,15
Total liabilities 542,06t 1,386,51. 3,034,20- 2,485,55I 2,644,79. 400,72t
Redeemable ordinary shai — — 55 55 55 8
Total shareholde’ equity 1,678,21! 1,862,58: 2,123,06! 2,811,65: 5,194,25: 787,00t
Total liabilities, redeemable ordina

shares and sharehold equity 2,230,43. 3,349,51 5,157,32 5,297,25! 7,839,101 1,187,74.
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Exchange Rate Information

This annual report on Form ZbD-contains translations of certain RMB amounts iot&. dollar amounts at specified ra
Unless otherwise stated, the translations of RMB i.S. dollars have been made at the exchangasatet forth on December
2010 in the H.10 statistical release of the Fedeealerve Board, which was RMB6.6000 to US$1.00.nvé&e no representation t
the RMB or U.S. dollar amounts referred to in @mual report could have been or could be convéntedU.S. dollars or RMB,
the case may be, at any particular rate or aSek “Item 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Oampany and Our Industry-
Fluctuations in exchange rates could adverselycaféeir business as well as result in foreign cuyeaexchange lossesinc
“ltem 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to DoingsBess in China —Restrictions on currency exchange may limit outitgbto
receive and use our revenue effectively” discussions of the effects of fluctuating exulpa rates and currency control on the v
of our ADSs. On May 27, 2011, the exchange ratsedsforth in the H.10 statistical release of theldfal Reserve Board w
RMB6.4920 to US$1.00.

The following table sets forth information concemmiexchange rates between the RMB and the U.Sardfwlt the perioc
indicated. These rates are provided solely for yaunvenience and are not necessarily the exchatge that we used in this anr
report or will use in the preparation of our pergkports or any other information to be providegou.

Renminbi per U.S. Dollar Noon Buying Rate(1)

Period
End Average @ Low High
2006 7.804: 7,957¢ 7.804: 8.070:
2007 7.294¢ 7.580¢ 7.294¢ 7.8127
2008 6.822¢ 6.919: 6.780( 7.294¢
2009 6.825¢ 6.829¢ 6.817¢ 6.847(
2010 6.600( 6.760: 6.600( 6.833(
November 201( 6.667( 6.653¢ 6.663( 6.689:
December 201 6.600( 6.649" 6.600( 6.674¢
January 201 6.601" 6.596¢ 6.580¢ 6.636¢
February 201: 6.571: 6.576: 6.552( 6.596¢
March 2011 6.548: 6.564¢ 6.548: 6.574:
April 2011 6.490( 6.526" 6.490( 6.547"
May 2011 (through May 27, 201 6.492( 6.496¢ 6.491: 6.507:

Notes:

(1) For periods prior to January 1, 2009, the exchaatgs reflect the noon buying rates as reporteth®dyederal Reserve Bank
New York. For periods after January 1, 2009, theharge rates reflect the exchange rates as shtifothe H.10 statistic
release of the Federal Reserve Bo

(2) Annual averages are calculated from manmb-rates. Monthly averages are calculated usiegatterage of the daily ra
during the relevant perio

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not Applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not Applicable.
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D. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Company and Our Industry
Demand for our PV products has been, and may contrto be, adversely affected by volatile market amdlistry trends.

Demand for our PV products has been affected bypajl@conomic conditions, capital markets fluctuasioand credi
disruptions. During the second half of 2008 andfitst half of 2009, many of our key markets, irgilg Germany, Spain and t
United States, and other national economies expeztka period of economic contraction or signifttaslower economic growtt
The global financial crisis, weak consumer conficlerand diminished consumer and business spending tentributed to
significant slowdown in the market demand for P\odurcts due to decreased energy requirements. lilicagdmany of ou
customers and many enders of our PV products depend on debt financindgubd the initial capital expenditure required
purchase our PV products. During the global credsis, many of our customers and many esdrs of our PV products experient
difficulties in obtaining financing, and even ifeyr were able to obtain financing, the cost of sfichncing had increased such t
they changed their decision or changed the timintp&ir decision to purchase our PV products. Ttezne be no assurance that
customers or endsers will be able to obtain financing on a time§sis or on reasonable terms, which could havegative impac
on their demand for our products. Rising interedes may make it difficult for endsers to finance the cost of PV systems
therefore reduce the demand for our PV productdoanead to a reduction in the average sellinget our PV products. Sin
2010, we have experienced an increase in demanduprPV products due to the economic recovery dral ghortage c
manufacturing capacity in the industry. However,e@anot provide assurance that such increase immkkmill continue in 2011. ,
protracted disruption in the ability of our custam& obtain financing, economic downturn or arréase in manufacturing capac
of the PV industry could lead to a significant retion in future orders for our PV products, whichturn could have a mater
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations. In addition, since \weehsubstantially increased ¢
production capacity in the past few years, the efs® in demand for our products may lead to idpaacdy. If the reduction i
demand results in significant amount of our capauitt utilized, our assets may be impaired.

The average selling price of our PV products mayntioue to decrease.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2008, the supphyPV products has increased significantly as mamanufacturers of P'
products worldwide, including our company, haveagegl in significant production capacity expansiomeicent years. As a rest
this state of ovesupply has resulted in reductions in the prevaitirayket prices of PV products as manufacturers heseced thei
average selling prices in an attempt to obtainssalbe average selling price of our PV modulesvwst decreased from RMB26.
in 2008 to RMB15.27 in 2009, and to RMB11.58 (US$)}.in 2010. Our net profit margin increased fromegative margin of 5.7¢
in 2008 to a negative margin of 3.8% in 2009, amataased to a positive margin of 10.1% in 2010. &¥erage selling prices of o
PV products may decline further, which could caosesales and/or our profit margins to decline hade a material adverse effi
on our business, financial condition, results ofrapions and prospects.

As silicon supply increases, the corresponding iease in the global supply of PV modules may advigrsdfect our ability to
increase or maintain our market share.

Silicon is an essential raw material used in thmdpction of solar cells and modules. Prior to mid&, there was an industry-
wide shortage of silicon. Increases in the pricesib€on have in the past increased our productiosts, and any significant pri
increase in the future may adversely impact ouin@ss and results of operations. Due to the hesibscarcity of silicon, suppl
chain management and financial strength were tlyebleeriers to entry. In late 2008 and 2009, howewemwly available silico
capacity has resulted in an increased supply @osi] which resulted in downward pressure on ttieepof silicon. However, w
cannot assure you that the price of silicon wilhtboue to decline or remain at its current levelspecially if the global solar pow
market regains its growth momentum. As the shortdgglicon eases, industry barriers to entry beedess significant and the F
market may become more competitive. If we fail tonpete successfully, our business may suffer andhewe lose or be unable
gain market share and our financial condition aesults of operations may be materially and adveraéflected. Such pric
reductions could have a negative impact on ourmees and net income, and materially and adver$fdgtaour business and resL
of operations.

The reduction or elimination of government subsigi@nd economic incentives for ogrid solar energy applications could have
material adverse effect on our business and progpec

We believe that the near-term growth of the mafket“on-grid” applications, where solar energy is used to supghr
customers electricity purchased from the electric utiligpends in large part on the availability and sizgovernment subsidies a
economic incentives. The airid market, the reduction or elimination of gowaent subsidies and economic incentives may hi
the growth of this market, which could decrease athfor our products and reduce our revenue.

The cost of solar energy currently exceeds the @iogbwer furnished by the electric utility grid many countries. As a rest
federal, state and local governmental bodies inyn@untries, most notably Germany, Spain, Italy tnited States, Australi
Korea, France and the Czech Republic, have pro\sdedidies and economic incentives in the formebhtes, tax credits and ott
incentives to end users, distributors, system nategs and manufacturers of PV products to prontwteuse of solar energy in on-
grid applications and to reduce dependency on dtirers of energy. Certain of these government estadncentives are set to |
reduced and may be reduced further, or elimin&edinstance, in 2009, the German government retisckar fee-in tariffs by 9%



and in July 2010, reduced feed-in tariffs for ropfinstallations, ground-mounted installations ommercial land and ground-
mounted installations on converted land by 13%, %@ 8%, respectively. Beginning in October 20lxhecategory of feeif
tariff will be reduced by a further 3%. Installat®on agricultural land are ineligible for incertsv In 2008, 2009 and 2010, Germ
accounted for 53.3%, 70.6% and 62.5% of our netmaes, respectively. In May 2011, the Italian gowegnt approved a decree
cut incentives for solar projects. The decree thiced a subsidy spending cap on large projects #0ii to 2013 and a grad

reduction on feed-in tariffs starting June 2011.
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In addition, political changes in a particular ctryncould result in significant reductions or elimations of subsidies «
economic incentives. Electric utility companiestthave significant political lobbying powers magalseek changes in the relev
legislation in their markets that may adverseleeiffthe development and commercial acceptancel@f snergy. The reduction
elimination of government subsidies and economéeiives for orgrid solar energy applications, especially thoseum targe
markets, could cause demand for our products ancheturevenues to decline, and have a materialradweffect on our busines
financial condition, results of operations and pexgs.

Our ability to adjust our raw material costs may bimited as a result of our entering into multyear supply agreements with ma
of our silicon and silicon wafer suppliers, and ihay be difficult for us to respond in a timely maanto rapidly changing marke
conditions, which could materially and adverselyfaft our cost of revenues and profitability.

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industry-wide shgetof siliconrelated materials including silicon, silicon wafersd PV cells
which resulted in significant increases in the @siof these raw materials. To secure an adequdtgraely supply of silicorrelated
materials during the earlier periods of supply e, we entered into a number of mykar supply agreements. The prices in
agreements we entered into prior to mid-2008 wereegally predetermined, but some of these agreements provateadfustment
in subsequent years to reflect changes in markeditons or through mutual agreement. Since thetlfioguarter of 2008, the mark
prices for silicon-related materials have been egsing significantly. Spot market prices of silia@ated materials have falls
below the prices we have contracted for with ongherm suppliers and continued to decline in 200% Ruthe significant decrea
in prices of silicon-related materials, we re-négfed all of our multiyear supply agreements that were in place as oémber 31
2009, except the agreement with Jiangxi LDK Solaifech Co., Ltd, or LDK. After re-negotiation, tipeicing terms of such multi-
year agreements were generally subject to revighereperiodically or upon significant changes ificgs on the spot market. T
pricing terms of each of these multi-year agreesamre adjusted to be more in line with spot magkiting at the time of the re-
negotiation. In addition, the quantity and/or tigniof deliveries were also adjusted in each caseeflect our updated purcha
requirements as a result of the changes in madgetitons and our capacity expansion. Currentlgréhis only one multyear supply
agreement we entered into in 2010 where the psiggdadetermined without any future adjustment. Whilelveee obtained reduct
prices and other concessions from our supplierscavmot assure you that we will be able to obteguced prices from all of ol
suppliers in the future. If the prices of silicaglated materials continue to decrease in the fiandewe are unable to reegotiate th
prices of our existing multyear supply agreements, we may not be able to taoljwsmaterials costs, and our cost of revenues(
be materially and adversely affected. In additide, prices of our non-silicorelated raw materials are also subject to markeef
beyond our control. If the prices of these materiatrease in the future, our non-silicatated cost of revenues could be materi
and adversely affected.

Furthermore, other PV module manufacturers maylde t purchase silicorelated materials on the spot market at lo
prices than those we have contracted for with ayapbers. We will continue to purchase a significamount of silicorrelated
materials pursuant to our multi-year supply agra@sidn the event we are unable tonegotiate or fulfill our obligations under ¢
supply agreements, we may be subject to significamntory build-up and may be required to makehierr inventory writedowns
and provision for these commitments, which couldeha material adverse effect on our business, diaarcondition, results ¢
operations and prospects. If the prices we paysfilcon+elated materials are significantly higher than freees paid by ot
competitors, our competitive cost advantage of peaty modules could decrease. Our inability to oeda key manufacturing cost
the same degree as our competitors could adveaffelst our ability to price our products competiiiy and our profit margins.

We may be subject to legal, administrative or othpceedings in connection with the muliear supply agreements we entel
into previously and such proceedings can be botlstpand time consuming and may significantly diveéhe efforts and resource
of our management personnel.

During the course of renegotiation of some of thdtiryear supply agreements we entered into previoustymay be subject 1
legal, administrative or other proceedings if muagreement cannot be reached between us and ppliess. For example, on Ju
8, 2009, Jiangxi LDK Solar Hlech Co., Ltd., or LDK, one of our silicon suppfiesubmitted an arbitration request to the Shar
Arbitration Commission alleging that we failed terfporm under the terms of a mujtear framework supply agreement, seekin
enforce our performance and claiming monetary freldeliveries of silicon under the agreement halteeéarly 2009 and have n
recommenced. We intend to continue to vigorousligmig ourselves against the claims brought by LD, an July 9, 2009, w
submitted an arbitration request to the Shanghhit/ation Commission requesting that LDK refund thestanding prepayments
RMB104 million that we made under the contractsptompensation of RMB35 million from LDK for estited losses incurred |
us as a result of the stoppage of deliveries utiderframework supply agreement. There is no assaréimat we will be able 1
successfully defend or resolve such legal or adstrative proceedings in the near future or at @lich legal and administrati
proceedings can be both costly and time consumiy raay significantly divert the efforts and resamsoof our manageme
personnel. If there are any adverse judgmentsfinancial condition, results of operations and ity could be materially an
adversely affected.
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Prepayments we have provided to our silicon anéceih wafer suppliers expose us to the credit rigiésuch suppliers and may ni
be recovered, which could in turn have a materiaheerse effect on our liquidity.

Most of our multiyear supply agreements that we entered into duhiegarlier periods of supply shortage requiretbusake
prepayments of a portion of the total contractetir our suppliers without receiving collateral soich prepayments. As of Decem
31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, we had advanced RMB1,1#8lion, RMB979.8 million and RMB1,158.3 millionS$175.5 million)
respectively, to our suppliers. In 2008, 2009 a@ti®2 we recorded a provision of RMB42.0 million, B®B4.7 million and RMBO.:
million (US$18,000), respectively, for doubtful mtion of advances to suppliers due to penformance by some of our supplie
which resulted in the prepayments we made to theppliers being categorized as unrecoverable.dretlent that we have dispu
with any of our suppliers and we are unable to hemt agreement on terms acceptable to us, we nialgenable to recover ol
prepayments made to such suppliers. Most of oimsl#or prepayments are unsecured claims, whiclogxpis to the credit risks
our suppliers in the event of their insolvency ankruptcy. Our claims against the defaulting swgspliwould rank below those
secured creditors which would undermine our chanfebtaining the return of our prepayments. Iffssappliers fail to fulfill theil
delivery obligations under the contracts or if theés any dispute between us and such suppliersjdbprdizes our ongoir
relationship, we may have to record a provisioatied to or write down prepayments made to suclpléens, which could materiall
and adversely affect our financial condition, résof operations and liquidity.

Evaluating our business and prospects may be diffidecause of our limited operating history, andiiopast results may not t
indicative of our future performance.

There is limited historical information availablbaut our company upon which you can base your atialu of our busines
and prospects. We began operations in August 2@€4shipped our first PV modules and our first PYiscn February 2005 ar
November 2005, respectively. With the rapid growtithe PV industry prior to the fourth quarter &f08, our business has gro'
and evolved at a rapid rate. As a result, our Histboperating results may not provide a meanihigésis for evaluating our busine
financial performance and prospects and we mayeaatble to achieve a similar growth rate in futpeeiods. Therefore, you shot
consider our business and prospects in light ofittkes, expenses and challenges that we will face @mpany with a relatively shi
operating history in a competitive industry seekinglevelop and manufacture new products in a hagjcbwing market, and yo
should not rely on our past results or our histoate of growth as an indication of our future periance.

Our future success substantially depends on ourlidpito manage our production effectively and todece our manufacturing
costs. Our ability to achieve such goals is subjca number of risks and uncertainties.

Our future success depends on our ability to mamageroductiorand facilities effectively and to reduce our matiiaing
costs. Our efforts to reduce our manufacturing astlude lowering our silicon and auxiliary maétricosts, improvin
manufacturing productivity and processes, and impgpproduct quality. If we are unable to achielese goals, we may be una
to decrease our costs per watt, to maintain ourpetitive position or to improve our profitabilit@ur ability to achieve such goals
subject to significant risks and uncertainties|udng:

. our ability to continue to -negotiate our existing mu-year supply agreemen

. our ability to maintain our quality level and keggce with changes in technolog

. our ability to source various raw materie

. our ability to adjust inventory levels to respondapidly changing market demar

. delays in obtaining or denial of required approaiselevant government authorities; ¢

. diversion of significant management attention atietoresources to other matte

If we are unable to establish or successfully makgrovements to our manufacturing facilities oréaluce our manufacturir
costs, or if we encounter any of the risks desdrigove, we may be unable to improve our busineptaaned.




Table of Contents

We depend on a limited number of customers and doi@s for a high percentage of our revenue and thuss of, or a significan
reduction in orders from, any of these customersamuntries, if not immediately replaced, would sifjoantly reduce our revenus
and decrease our profitability.

We currently sell a substantial portion of our Pkducts to a limited number of customers and céemtiOur five larges
customers accounted for an aggregate of 53.2%%%%u3d 51.9% of our net revenues in 2008, 2009 &id 2respectively. Ot
largest customer in 2008, 2009 and 2010 accounte?. 2%, 40.6% and 33.6% of our net revenuesefdbpective period. Most
our large customers are located in Europe, pagityuln Germany, Italy, Portugal and the Czech Rdipuln 2008, 2009 and 201
Germany accounted for 53.3%, 70.6% and 62.5% ofnetirevenues, respectively. In 2010, Germany, £himd Italy are the tc
three countries in terms of percentage contributdour net revenues. The loss of sales to anyobrieese customers or countr
would have a significant negative impact on ouriftess. Sales to our customers are mostly made ghrawnexclusive
arrangements. Due to our dependence on a limitethau of customers and countries, any one of tHeviaig events may cau:
material fluctuations or declines in our net revenand have a material adverse effect on our fiahoondition and results «
operations:

. reduction, delay or cancellation of orders from onenore of our significant custome

»  selection by one or more of our significant disitidr customers of our competit’ products;

. loss of one or more of our significant customerd aar failure to identify additional or replacemenstomers
. any adverse change in local policies toward salajepts in countries where we receive most orc

. any adverse change in the bilateral or multilateratie relationships between China and the UnitedeS o
European countries, particularly Germany;

» failure of any of our significant customers to maikeely payment for our product

We expect our operating results to continue to ddpm sales to a relatively small number of custsnoe countries for a hig
percentage of our revenue for the foreseeableduag well as the ability of these customers toPélproducts that incorporate ¢
PV products.

We enter into framework agreements with many of @stomers that set forth our customgrsitchase goals and the gen:
conditions under which our sales are to be madeveder, such framework agreements are only bindinthé extent a purcha
order for a specific amount of our products is éxbkuln addition, certain key sales terms of thenfrvork agreements may
adjusted from time to time. In addition, we havetle past had to meegotiate some of our framework agreements duédne
disagreements with our customers relating to thleiwes, delivery schedules and pricing terms costhiin such agreemen
However, it may not always be in our best interéstsenegotiate our framework agreements and disagresnwenterms ma
escalate into formal disputes that could cause experience order cancellations or harm our rejouta

Furthermore, our customer relationships have bemmldped over a short period of time. We cannotéeain that thes
customers will generate significant revenue forirushe future or if these customer relationship# wontinue to develop. If ot
relationships with customers do not continue toetigy, we may not be able to expand our customer bamaintain or increase ¢
customers and revenue.

Our dependence on a limited number of suppliers farsubstantial majority of silicorrelated materials may prevent us fro
delivering our products in a timely manner to ouustomers in the required quantities, which couldsudt in order cancellations
decreased revenue and loss of market share.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, our five largest suppléensplied in the aggregate 42.0%, 51.6% and 40.8%pectively, of our tot:
silicon and silicon wafer purchases. If we faildevelop or maintain our relationships with thesewr other suppliers and we ¢
unable to obtain these materials from alternatugrees in a timely manner or on commercially reabtmterms, we may be unal
to manufacture our products in a timely mannertaa eeasonable cost, or at all, and as a resultnese not be able to deliver o
products to our customers in the required quastité¢ competitive prices and on acceptable ternmgeldfery. Problems of this kir
could cause us to experience order cancellatioltseased manufacturing costs, decreased revenudossmidf market share.
addition, some of our suppliers have a limited afirg history and limited financial resources, #meg contracts we entered into w
these suppliers do not clearly provide for adequertgedies to us in the event any of these supp#enst able to, or otherwise dc
not, deliver, in a timely manner or at all, any erals it is contractually obligated to deliver.r8® of our major silicon wafe
suppliers failed to fully perform on their silicavafer supply commitments to us due primarily taradustrywide shortage of silico
and silicon wafers. As a result, we did not receillef the contractually agreed quantities ofcsiti wafers from these suppliers. !
cannot assure you that we will not experience similr additional shortfalls of silicorelated materials from our suppliers in
future or that, in the event of such shortfalls, wi# be able to find other silicon suppliers totisy our production needs. Ar
disruption in the supply of silicon wafers to usynaalversely affect our business, financial conditimd results of operations.
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Our failure to obtain sufficient quantities of sitionrelated materials in a timely manner could disruptir operations, prevent u
from operating at full capacity or limit our abily to expand as planned, which would reduce, anditithe growth of, our
manufacturing output and revenue.

We depend on the timely delivery by our supplidrsilicon-related materials in sufficient volumédntil mid-2008, there wa
an industry-wide shortage of silicon-related matsri While we do not believe a similar industry-wigdhortage of silicorelated
materials will reeccur in the short term because of current markeiditions and the expansion of silicon and silicwafer
manufacturing capacity in recent years, we cansstir@ you that market conditions will not againidbpchange or we will alway
be able to obtain sufficient quantities of silicalated materials in a timely manner. We may exjmee actual shortages of silicon-
related materials or late or failed delivery foe flollowing reasons:

» the terms of our silicon and silicon wafer contsaetith, or purchase orders to, our suppliers mayalbered o
cancelled as a result of our ongoin-negotiations with then

. there are a limited number of silicon and siliseafer suppliers, and many of our competitors @ischase silicon-
related materials from these suppliers and may lenger and stronger relationship with these sepplihan we dc

« some of our silicon and silicon wafer suppliers it manufacture silicon themselves, but insteadthmase the
requirements from other vendors. It is possibld thase suppliers will not be able to obtain sigfi¢ silicon o
silicon wafers to satisfy their contractual obligat to us; ani

. our purchase of silicorelated materials is subject to the business riskuo suppliers, one or more of which may
out of business for any one of a number of reabegysnd our control in the current economic envirentr

If we fail to obtain delivery of silicomelated materials in amounts and according to Sofedules that we expect, we may
forced to reduce production, which will adverseffeet our revenues. Our failure to obtain the reggiiamounts of silicorelated
materials on time and at commercially reasonabigeprcould substantially limit our ability to meadir contractual obligations
deliver PV products to our customers. Any failune Us to meet such obligations could have a materislerse effect on o
reputation, retention of customers, market shausiness and results of operations and may subgetd alaims from our custome
and other disputes.

We currently have a significant amount of debt otaeding. Our substantial indebtedness may limit ofuture financing
capabilities and could adversely affect our busieefinancial condition and results of operations.

The principal amount of our total bank borrowinggstanding was RMB668.9 million (US$101.4 millica of December 3.
2010 of which RMB318.9 million (US48.3 million) weshortterm bank borrowings. In addition, we had US$17gilion principal
amount of convertible bonds, with fair value of RB& .4 million (US$104.2 million), outstanding as @&écember 31, 2010. O
debt could have a significant impact on our futoperations and cash flow, including:

. making it more difficult for us to fulfill paymenand other obligations under our outstanding deftjuting
repayment of our long- and shaetrm credit facilities should we be unable to abtaxtensions for any such facilit
before they mature, as well as our obligations unde convertible bond:

e  triggering an event of default if we fail to comphyth any of our payment or other obligations caméd in our det
agreements, which could result in craefaults causing all or a substantial portion of aebt to becomrr
immediately due and payab

. reducing the availability of cash flow to fund worl capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions atiter gener:
corporate purposes, and adversely affecting olityatm obtain additional financing for these puses;

. potentially increasing the cost of any additionahhcing; anc

. putting pressure on our ADS price due to concefreuoinability to repay our debt and making it radifficult for
us to conduct equity financings in the capital netst

Our ability to meet our payment and other obligagionder our outstanding debt depends on ouryatiligenerate cash flow
the future or to refinance such debt. We may noalile to generate sufficient cash flow from operagito enable us to meet «
obligations under our outstanding debt and to fatieer liquidity needs. If we are not able to gereufficient cash flow to me
such obligations, we may need to refinance oruesire our debt, to sell our assets, to reducestarycour capital investments, or
seek additional equity or debt financing. We canassure you that future financing will be availableamounts or on tern
acceptable to us, if at all. In addition, the imemce of additional indebtedness would result aréased interest rate risk and d
service obligations, and could result in operatamgl financing covenants that would further restoiot operations and limit ol
ability to obtain the financing required to fundute capital expenditures and working capital. Agsult, our ability to plan for, ¢
react effectively to, changing market conditionsyrha adversely and materially affected.
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We require a significant amount of cash to fund owperations as well as meet future capital requirents. If we cannot obtai
additional capital when we need it, our growth ppects and future profitability may be materially dradversely affected.

We typically require a significant amount of cashfund our operations. We also require cash gelga@imeet future capit:
requirements, which are difficult to plan in thepidly changing PV industry. The principal amountaafr total bank borrowing
outstanding was RMB668.9 million (US$101.4 millicad of December 31, 2010. We cannot assure youtthae financing will be
available on satisfactory terms, or at all. Ouligbto obtain external financing in the futuredabject to a variety of uncertaintit
including:

. our future financial condition, results of operascand cash flow:
. general market conditions for financing activitsmanufacturers of PV and related products;
. economic, political and other conditions in the P& elsewhere in the worl

If we are unable to obtain necessary financing timeely manner or on commercially acceptable teramsat all, our growtl
prospects and future profitability may decreaseenialty.

We face risks associated with the marketing, distiion and sale of our PV products internationallygnd if we are unable ti
effectively manage these risks, our expansion maynaterially and adversely affected.

A substantial majority of our revenue has been gead by sales to customers outside of China. Téketing, distribution an
sale of our PV products overseas expose us to aewofi risks, including:

« fluctuations in currency exchange rates of the ddilar, Euro and other foreign currencies agaimstRenminbi

. difficulty in engaging and retaining distributonscaagents who are knowledgeable about, and catidareffectively
in, overseas market

. increased costs associated with maintaining manfgetnd sales activities in various countr

. difficulty and costs relating to compliance withffdient commercial and legal requirements in thesglictions ir
which we offer our product:

. inability to obtain, maintain or enforce intelleatyproperty rights; an

» trade barriers, such as export requirements, satdfes and other restrictions and expenses, vaoighi increase tt
prices of our products and make us less competitig@me countries

If we are unable to effectively manage these risks, ability to conduct or expand our business athravould be impairec
which may in turn have a material adverse effecb@nbusiness, financial condition, results of @piens and prospects.

Changes in international trade policies and intertianal barriers to trade may adversely affect oubiity to export our product:
worldwide.

As our manufacturing facility and some of our cas¢os are located in China, we and our customers lmagffected by an
claims of unfair trade practices that are brougtimst the PRC government through the impositiotaaffs, nontariff barriers tc
trade or other trade remedies. On September 9,,2080United Steel Workers filed a petition withethnited States Trac
Representative, or USTR, alleging the PRC govertirhas engaged in unfair trade policies and prastigigh respect to certa
domestic industries, including the solar power Btdy Subsequently, USTR initiated an investigatiowler Section 301 of the 19
Trade Act, which is ongoing as of the date of #risual report. Although we believe we will not beedtly affected by the results
this investigation, there can be no assuranceatiyagovernment or international trade body will mstitute adverse trade policies
remedies against exports from China in the futarg significant changes in international trade pels, practices or trade remedi
especially those instituted in our target marketsnarkets where our major customers are locatedddocrease the price of o
products compared to our competitors or decreaseusiomersdemand for our products, which may adversely affectbusines
prospects and results of operations.

If we are unable to compete in the highly compet&i PV market, our revenue and profits may decreasel we may lose mark
share.

The PV market is very competitive. We face commetifrom a number of PV manufacturers, includingnastic, foreign an
multinational corporations. We believe that thenpipal competitive factors in the markets for otoducts are:

. manufacturing capacit

. power efficiency:



product offerings and quality of produc

price;

strength of supply chain and distribution netwt
aftel-sales services; ar

brand name recognitio
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Many of our current and potential competitors hiweyer operating histories, access to larger custdrases and resources |
significantly greater economies of scale than weldgarticular, many of our competitors are depéig and manufacturing sol
energy products based on new technologies thatuttiayately have costs similar to, or lower thanr pwjected costs. In additio
our competitors may be able to respond more quitklghanging customer demands or devote more ressuo the developmel
promotion and sales of their products than we Eamthermore, competitors with more diversified prodofferings may be bett
positioned to withstand a decline in the demandFdrproducts. Some of our competitors have als@fecvertically integratec
with businesses ranging from upstream silicon wafemufacturing to solar power system integratidnis|possible that ne
competitors or alliances among existing competitonsld emerge and rapidly acquire significant maskeare, which would harm o
business. For instance, several semiconductor raenuérs have already announced their intentiocotomence production of P
cells and PV modules. If we fail to compete sucitdlys our business would suffer and we may losé@unable to gain market shi
and our financial condition and results of operagizvould be materially and adversely affected.

In addition, the PV market in general competes wither sources of renewable energy as well as coioval powel
generation. If prices for conventional and otherergable energy resources decline, or if these regswenjoy greater policy supp
than solar power, the PV market and our businedgesspects could be materially and adversely &ftec

Our profitability depends on our ability to respon rapid market changes in the PV industry, inclind by developing ne\
technologies and offering additional products andrsices.

The PV industry is characterized by rapid changethé diversity and complexity of technologies, guots and services.
particular, the ongoing evolution of technologistdndards requires products with improved featusash as more efficient al
higher power output and improved aesthetics. Assalt, we expect that we will need to develop, loam access to, advances
technologies on a continuous basis in order forousspond to competitive market conditions andamsr demands. In additio
advances in technologies typically lead to dectineverage selling prices for products using oldehhologies or make our curre
products less competitive or obsolete. As a resudt,profitability of any given product, and oureoall profitability, may decreas
over time.

In addition, we will need to invest significant dincial resources in research and development totamaiour competitivene:
and keep pace with technological advances in thene\ustry. However, commercial acceptance by custerof new products w
offer may not occur at the rate or level expected] we may not be able to successfully adapt egigiroducts to effectively ar
economically meet customer demands, thus impathiegeturn from our investments. We may also beired under the applicab
accounting standards to recognize a charge fointpairment of assets to the extent our existinglpots become uncompetitive
obsolete, or if any new products fail to achievenotercial acceptance. Any such charge may have erimaadverse effect on o
financial condition and results of operations.

Moreover, in response to the rapidly evolving ctinds in the PV industry, we started to expand lousiness downstream
provide system integration products and service®0ih0. This expansion requires significant investirand management attenti
from us, and we are likely to face intense comigetifrom companies that have extensive experiendengell-established business
and customer bases in the system integration sefer cannot assure you that we will succeed in edipg our busines
downstream. If we are not able to bring qualitydurets and services to market in a timely and effestive manner and successft
market and sell these products and services, dlitydb continue penetrating the PV market, ashaslour results of operations &
profitability, will be materially and adversely affted.

Our future success also depends on our ability t@ka strategic acquisitions and investments and &iablish and maintair
strategic alliances, and failure to do so could leaa material adverse effect on our market penetrati revenue growth an
profitability. In addition, such strategic acquisdns, alliances and investments themselves entahgicant risks that could
materially and adversely affect our business.

We are pursuing expansion into PV system integnat&rvices through our subsidiary, Shanghai Liny&olgr Technology Cao
Ltd., or Solar Shanghai, and we may pursue upst@iecon feedstock sourcing through strategic paghips and investments in 1
future. We may also establish strategic alliancik third parties in the PV industry to develop nwghnologies and to expand «
marketing channels. These types of transactionkl gequire that our management develop expertiseeim areas, make significe
investments in research and development, managebnsimess relationships and attract new types sfoawers. They may als
require significant attention from our managemaeuttich could have a material adverse effect on dilitato manage our busines
We may also experience difficulties integrating @isifions and investments into our existing businasd operations and retaini
key technical and managerial personnel of acquicedpanies.
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Strategic acquisitions, investments and alliancék third parties may be expensive to implement aadld subject us to
number of risks, including risks associated withrstg proprietary information and loss of contrbloperations that are material
our business. We may assume unknown liabilitiesottrer unanticipated events or circumstances throagfuisitions an
investments. Moreover, strategic acquisitions, stwents and alliances subject us to the risk ofpenformance by a counterpar
which may in turn lead to monetary losses that nadhg and adversely affect our business. As altesee may not be able -
successfully make such strategic acquisitions amestments or to establish strategic alliances thitld parties that will prove to &
effective or beneficial for our business. Any ditflty we face in this regard could have a mateadVerse effect on our mark
penetration, results of operations and profitailit

Problems with product quality or product performaacould result in a decrease in customers and rax@nunexpected expens
and loss of market share. In addition, product lidiby or warranty claims against us could result imdverse publicity an
potentially significant monetary damage

Our PV products are typically sold with a two teefiyear unlimited warranty for technical defectd Gayear limited warrant:
against declines of greater than 10%, and a 2G+4gedr limited warranty against declines of greatant20%, in their initial powe
generation capacity. Since our products have beersé for only a relatively short period, our asptiams regarding the durabili
and reliability of our products may not be accur&lte consider various factors when determininglitedihood of product defect:
including an evaluation of our quality controlschaical analysis, industry information on compagabbmpanies and our ov
experience. As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 28ir0accrued warranty costs for the two to fivergasarranty against technic
defects totaled RMB48.6 million, RMB73.5 million@RMB131.7 million (US$20.0 million), respectivellf.our PV modules fail t
perform to the standards of the performance guaeamwe could incur substantial expenses and suladtaash outlays to repa
replace or provide refunds for the ungerforming products, which could negatively impaat overall cash position. Any incree
in the defect rate of our products would incredmseamount of our warranty costs and we may not haeguate warranty provisi
to cover such warranty costs, which would havegatiee impact on our results of operations.

In addition, we purchase silicaelated materials and other components that waruser products from third parties. Unlil
PV modules, which are subject to certain uniforferinational standards, silicartated materials generally do not have unifi
international standards, and it is often difficidltdetermine whether product defects are causetkeficts in silicon, silicon wafers
other components of our products or caused by attasons. Even assuming that our product defeetsarsed by defects in r:
materials, we may not be able to recover our wayransts from our suppliers because the agreenveatentered into with ot
suppliers typically contain no or only limited wanties. The possibility of future product failurgsuld cause us to incur substan
expense to provide refunds or resolve disputes reiglard to warranty claims through litigation, &rdion or other means, or dame
our market reputation and cause our sales to declin

As with other PV product manufacturers, we are sgpoto risks associated with product liability elaiif the use of the P
products we sell results in injury, death or damemeroperty. We cannot predict whether produdiiliy claims will be brough
against us in the future or the effect of any résglinegative publicity on our business. See YWe have limited insurance covere
and may incur losses resulting from product ligpitlaims or business interruptions.”

If PV technology is not suitable for widespread aaton, or sufficient demand for PV products doestrievelop or takes longer
develop than we anticipated, our sales may not awn to increase or may even decline, and our reverand profitability would
be reduced.

The PV market is at a relatively early stage ofedepment and the extent to which PV products wélveidely adopted i
uncertain. Furthermore, market data in the PV itrguare not as readily available as those in othere established industries, wh
trends can be assessed more reliably from datzmgatiover a longer period of time. If PV technolomyparticular the type of P
technology that we have adopted, proves unsuitbdiewidespread adoption or if demand for PV produfdils to develo
sufficiently, we may not be able to grow our busger generate sufficient revenue to sustain oafitpbility. In addition, deman
for PV products in our targeted markets, includi®gina, may not develop or may develop to a lesgme than we anticipate
Many factors may affect the viability of widespresadbption of PV technology and demand for PV preésluacluding:

. cos-effectiveness of PV products compared to conveatiand other nc-solar energy sources and produ

. performance and reliability of PV products congghrto conventional and other nealar energy sources ¢
products;

. availability of government subsidies and incentitesupport the development of the PV industry eo energ
resource industrie:

e success of other alternative energy generatiomt#dogies, such as fuel cells, wind power and biay

. fluctuations in economic and market conditionatthffect the viability of conventional and nealar alternativ
energy sources, such as increases or decreasesprides of oil and other fossil fue

. capital expenditures by end users of PV produdts;imtend to decrease when the overall economyssttwn; anc



«  deregulation of the electric power industry andliheader energy industr
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One of our existing shareholders has substantiaflirence over our company and its interests may hetaligned with the interesi
of our other shareholders.

Hanwha Solar owns approximately 49.8% of our outiteg share capital as of April 22, 2011. Pursuanta shareholde
agreement between Hanwha Solar and our companyl &gptember 16, 2010, Hanwha Solar has the righltegignate thre
directors to our board and veto major corporat®mast Hanwha Solar has substantial influence ouebasiness, including decisio
regarding mergers, consolidations and the salellafrasubstantially all of our assets, electiondifectors and other significa
corporate actions. This concentration of ownershdy discourage, delay or prevent a change in cooftrmur company, which coul
deprive our shareholders of an opportunity to reeei premium for its shares as part of a sale ptompany and might reduce t
price of our ADSs. In addition, without the consehtHanwha Solar, we could be prevented from emggirito transactions that cot
be beneficial to us. Hanwha Solar may cause uski® actions that are opposed by other sharehdddeits interests may differ fro
those of other shareholders.

Existing regulations and policies governing the etecity utility industry, as well as changes togslations and policies affectini
PV products, may adversely affect demand for ouogucts and materially reduce our revenue and prsf

The electric utility industry is subject to exterssiregulation, and the market for PV products iavilg influenced by thes
regulations as well as the policies promulgatectlegtric utilities. These regulations and policiten affect electricity pricing ar
technical interconnection of endser power generation. As the market for solar ather alternative energy sources continu
evolve, these regulations and policies are beinglified and may continue to be modified. Customercpases of, or furthe
investment in research and development of, solar ather alternative energy sources may be sigmifizaaffected by thes
regulations and policies, which could significarmgluce demand for our products and materiallygedwr revenue and profits.

Moreover, we expect that our PV products and timsitallation will be subject to oversight and reggidn in accordance wit
national and local ordinances relating to buildougles, safety, environmental protection, utilittenconnection and metering a
related matters in various countries. We also haveomply with the requirements of individual latals and design equipment
comply with varying standards applicable in thagdictions where we conduct business. Any new guwent regulations or utilit
policies pertaining to our PV products may resaliignificant additional expenses to us, our distors and end users and,
result, could cause a significant reduction in dednéor our PV products, as well as materially adgeasely affect our financii
condition and results of operations.

The lack or inaccessibility of subsidies or finamg for off-grid solar energy applications could caa our sales to decline.

Some of our products are used for “off-grisilar energy applications in developed and devetpmiountries, where sol
energy is provided to end users independent oflectrigity transmission grid. In some countriesygmment agencies and t
private sector have, from time to time, providedbssdies or financing on preferred terms for rurc#ification programs. W
believe that the availability of financing couldvieaa significant effect on the level of sales df@rid solar energy applicatior
particularly in developing countries where usersymat have sufficient resources or credit to othisewacquire PV systems.
existing subsidies or financing programs for gffd solar energy applications are eliminated dindncing becomes inaccessible,
growth of the market for offrrid solar energy applications may be materiallg adversely affected, which may cause our sali
decline.

Our failure to protect our intellectual property ghts may undermine our competitive position, andigation to protect oul
intellectual property rights may be costly.

We rely primarily on patents, trademarks, traderetsc copyrights and other contractual restrictitmprotect our intellectu:
property. Nevertheless, these afford only limitedt@ction and the actions we take to protect otgllectual property rights may n
be adequate. In particular, implementation of PRi€lliectual propertyelated laws has historically been lacking, primyabiecaust
of ambiguities in the PRC laws and difficulties @mforcement. Accordingly, intellectual property hig and confidentialit
protections in China may not be as effective ath@United States or other countries. Policing timanzed use of our proprieta
technologies can be difficult and expensive. Initamid litigation may be necessary to enforce aueliectual property rights, prote
our trade secrets or determine the validity angbscuf the proprietary rights of others. We alsonmdrassure you that the outcome
any such litigation would be in our favor. An adsedetermination in any such litigation will impaiur intellectual property righ
and may harm our business, prospects and reput&iothermore, any such litigation may be costlg amy divert manageme
attention away from our business as well as requsréo expend other resources. We have no insuen@rage against litigatic
costs and would have to bear all costs arising fsagh litigation to the extent we are unable t@vec them from other parties. T
occurrence of any of the foregoing could have aenmgtadverse effect on our business, financiatldamn and results of operations.
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We may be exposed to infringement or misappropoaticlaims by third parties, particularly in jurisditions outside China whick
if determined adversely against us, could disrupir dusiness and subject us to significant liabilitg third parties, as well as hay
a material adverse effect on our financial conditiand results of operations.

Our success depends, in large part, on our akdityse and develop our technologies and khow- without infringing the
intellectual property rights of third parties. A€ wontinue to market and sell our products intéonatly, and as litigation becom
more common in the PRC, we face a higher risk afdothe subject of claims for intellectual propeirifringement, as well as havii
indemnification relating to other partiegtoprietary rights held to be invalid. Our curremtpotential competitors, many of whi
have substantial resources and have made subktamistments in competing technologies, may havwaay obtain patents that w
prevent, limit or interfere with our ability to makuse or sell our products in the European Urtio&,PRC or other countries. T
validity and scope of claims relating to PV teclogyl patents involve complex, scientific, legal dadtual questions and analy
and, therefore, may be highly uncertain. In additithe defense of intellectual property claimsjuding patent infringement suit
and related legal and administrative proceedingsheaboth costly and time consuming, and may saamftly divert the efforts an
resources of our technical and management persdrmehermore, an adverse determination in any §itigation or proceeding t
which we may become a party could cause us to:

. pay damage award

e seek licenses from third partie
. pay ongoing royalties

. redesign our products;

. be restricted by injunction

each of which could effectively prevent us from quing some or all of our business and result in @ustomers or potenti
customers deferring or limiting their purchase ee wf our products, which could have a materialeasty effect on our financi
condition and results of operations.

We may not be able to obtain sufficient patent mction on the technologies embodied in the PV protfuwe currently
manufacture and sell, which could reduce our comjpeeness and increase our expenses.

Although we rely primarily on trade secret laws amhtractual restrictions to protect the technaeghn the PV cells and F
modules we currently manufacture and sell, oureseand ability to compete in the future may aksmedid to a significant degree
obtaining patent protection for our proprietaryhteclogies. As of April 30, 2011, we had 20 issuatkepts and 14 pending pat
applications in the PRC. We do not have, and hatepplied for, any patents for our proprietaryhtemlogies outside the PRC. .
the protections afforded by our patents are effeatinly in the PRC, our competitors and other camgzgamay independently devel
substantially equivalent technologies or othervgam access to our proprietary technologies, ataimipatents for such technolog
in other jurisdictions, including the countriesvimich we sell our products. Moreover, our patergligations in the PRC may n
result in issued patents, and even if they do tésussued patents, the patents may not have slafithe scope we seek. In additi
any issued patents may be challenged, invalidatetbclared unenforceable. As a result, our preaedtfuture patents may provi
only limited protection for our technologies, andymot be sufficient to provide competitive advaesto us.

We depend on our key personnel, and our businesd growth may be severely disrupted if we lose thsarvices or fail to recrui
new qualified personnel.

Our future success depends substantially on théncad services of some of our directors and kegcatives. If we lose th
services of one or more of our current directord erecutive officers, we may not be able to repldean readily, if at all, witl
suitable or qualified candidates, and may incuritamthl expenses to recruit and retain new directord officers, particularly tho:
with a significant mix of both international and iG&based PV industry experience similar to our curdirgctors and officer:
which could severely disrupt our business and gnoint addition, if any of our directors or execetivjoins a competitor or forms
competing company, we may lose some of our custwmeach of these directors and executive officexrs éntered into &
employment agreement with us, which contains cemtflihlity and norcompetition provisions. However, if any disputesse
between these directors or executive officers agdtus not clear the extent to which any of thageeements could be enforc
outside of the United States, where most of thésetdrs and executive officers reside and holdesoifntheir assets, particularly
light of uncertainties associated with the PRC lleyatem. See “— Risks Related to Doing BusinesShima —Uncertainties witt
respect to the PRC legal system could have a mhgiverse effect on usPurthermore, as we expect to continue to expan(
operations and develop new products, we will neetbnhtinue attracting and retaining experiencedagament and key research i
development personnel.

Competition for personnel in the PV industry in @hiis intense, and the availability of suitable aulified candidates
limited. In particular, we compete to attract amdain qualified research and development personitél other PV technolog
companies, universities and research instituti@mnpetition for these individuals could cause usffer higher compensation a
other benefits in order to attract and retain thesmich could have a material adverse effect onfimancial condition and results
operations. We may also be unable to attract airréhe personnel necessary to achieve our busoigsstives, and any failure



this regard could severely disrupt our businessgaadith.
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Any failure to achieve and maintain effective inteal control could have a material adverse effect onr business, results ¢
operations and the market price of our ADSs.

The SEC, as required by Section 404 of the Sark@xésy Act of 2002, or the Sarban@sdey Act, adopted rules requiril
most public companies to include a management rapoisuch compang’internal control over financial reporting in @snual
report, which contains management’s assessmeihteoéffectiveness of the compasyhternal control over financial reporting.
addition, when a company meets the SE@iteria, an independent registered public acegfirm must report on the effectivene
of the company’s internal control over financigboeting.

Our management and independent registered pubticuating firm have concluded that our internal cohnbver financia
reporting as of December 31, 2010 was effectivewéi@r, we cannot assure you that in the future management or ol
independent registered public accounting firm wit identify material weaknesses during the Sectidh of the Sarbanedxley Act
audit process or for other reasons. In additiosabse of the inherent limitations of internal cohtver financial reporting, includin
the possibility of collusion or improper managemenwerride of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not t
prevented or detected on a timely basis. As atigfue fail to maintain effective internal controver financial reporting or shou
we be unable to prevent or detect material missiates due to error or fraud on a timely basis, stmes could lose confidence in t
reliability of our financial statements, which iart could harm our business, results of operatansnegatively impact the marl
price of our ADSs, and harm our reputation. Furtieme, we have incurred and expected to continueciar considerable costs a
to use significant management time and other ressuin an effort to comply with Section 404 andeothequirements of tr
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

We have limited insurance coverage and may incusdes resulting from business interruptions or praddiability claims.

We are subject to risk of explosion and fires, ahlly flammable gases, such as silane and nitrages) are generated in ¢
manufacturing processes. While we have not expeg@no date any major explosion or fire, the riaksociated with these ga:
cannot be completely eliminated. In addition, auratdisaster such as floods or earthquakes, arathanticipated catastropt
events, including power interruption, telecommutiaizs failures, equipment failures, explosionsdirbreakins, terrorist attacks ¢
acts or wars, could significantly disrupt our alilio manufacture our products and to operate aginiess. If any of our productic
facilities or material equipment were to experienog significant damage or downtime, we might bahl@& to meet our productic
targets and our business could suffer. Althoughhasee obtained business interruption insurance,aiy mot be able to fully cove
losses caused by the business interruption bechusimess interruption insurance available in Chifiers limited coverag
compared to that offered in many other countries.

We are also exposed to risks associated with ptdidddlity claims in the event that the use of ¢ products we sell results
injury, death or damage to property. Due to limitéstorical experience, we are unable to predicttivbr product liability claims wi
be brought against us in the future or the efféadny resulting adverse publicity on our businédsreover, we only have limite
product liability insurance and may not have adéguasources to satisfy a judgment in the everat sficcessful claim against |
The successful assertion of product liability claiemgainst us could result in potentially significemonetary damages and require
to make significant payments, which could mateyiathd adversely affect our business, financial @@mand results of operations.

Any environmental claims or failure to comply witany present or future environmental regulations magquire us to spen
additional funds and may materially and adverselffext our financial condition and results of operans.

We are subject to a variety of laws and regulatieteting to the use, storage, discharge and didpdéshemical by products ¢
and water used in, our manufacturing operations rasdarch and development activities, includingctoxolatile and otherwis
hazardous chemicals and wastes. We are in all mbtespects in compliance with current PRC envinental regulations to condt
our business as it is presently conducted. Althonghave not suffered material environmental claimthe past, failure to comp
with any present or future regulations could resulthe assessment of damages or imposition of fagminst us, suspension
production or a cessation of our operations. Negulagions could also require us to acquire costjyigment or to incur othe
significant expenses. Any failure by us to contt@ use of, or to adequately restrict the dischafgédazardous substances cc
subject us to potentially significant monetary dgesmand fines or suspension of our business, dsawelur financial condition ar
results of operations.
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The use of certain hazardous substances, suchads ile various products is also coming under irgiregy stringen
governmental regulation. Increased environmenfglilegion in this area could adversely impact thenafiacture and sale of sol
modules that contain lead and could require usdakenunanticipated environmental expenditures. kamgle, the European Unit
Directive 2002/96/EC on Waste Electrical and Elegir Equipment, or the WEEE Directive, requires ofanturers of certai
electrical and electronic equipmetat be financially responsible for the collectioecycling, treatment and disposal of speci
products placed on the market in the European Unioaddition, European Union Directive 2002/95/&Cthe Restriction of the u:
of Hazardous Substances in electrical and eledrequipment, or the RoHS Directive, restricts tlee wf certain hazardo
substances, including lead, in specified produ@ther jurisdictions are considering adopting simléagislation. Currently, we are n
required under the WEEE or RoHS Directives to ablleecycle or dispose any of our products. Howgtrex Directives allow fo
future amendments subjecting additional producthdéoDirectivesrequirements. If, in the future, our PV productsdmae subject t
such requirements, we may be required to applafioexemption. If we were unable to obtain an examptve would be required
redesign our PV products in order to continue ferafhem for sale within the European Union, whiebuld be impractical. Failut
to comply with the Directives could result in finesd penalties, inability to sell our PV productghie European Union, competiti
disadvantages and loss of net sales, all of whicldchave a material adverse effect on our busjrissicial condition and results
operations.

Our business benefits from certain PRC governmenténtives. Expiration of, or changes to, these intges could have .
material adverse effect on our results of operatsn

On March 16, 2007, the PRC government promulgadted_aw of the People’Republic of China on the Enterprise Income -
or the EIT, which took effect on January 1, 2008der the EIT, domestically owned enterprises ameligo invested enterprises,
FIEs, are subject to a uniform tax rate of 25%. MVihe EIT equalizes the tax rates for FIEs and ekiivally owned enterprise
preferential tax treatment continues to be grattezbmpanies in certain encouraged sectors, aiiiesrtlassified asHigh and nev
technology enterprises” are entitled to a 15% EIfE rwhether domestically owned enterprises or.FTEe EIT also provides a five-
year transition period starting from its effectidate for those enterprises which were establisieéord the promulgation date of t
EIT and which were entitled to a preferential lowaex rate or tax holiday under the then effectaselaws or regulations. The tax ri
of such enterprises is transitioning to the unifdax rate within a fiverear transition period and the tax holiday, whicisvenjoyec
by such enterprises before the effective date @&, may continue to be enjoyed until the endhef holiday. Hanwha SolarOi
(Qidong) Co., Ltd. or SolarOne Qidong, our whollyreed operating subsidiary in China, was approvduetqualified as aligh and
new technology enterprise” on October 21, 2008. “High and new technology enterpris&tatus is valid for a period of three ye
from the date of issuance of the certificate armgligject to an annual selfview process whereby a form is submitted to eatévax
authority for approval to use a beneficial incorar tate. If there are significant changes in thsifess operations, manufactur
technologies or other criteria that cause the priter to no longer meet the criteria as a “high aed technology enterprisesch
status will be terminated from the year of suchngea If SolarOne Qidong fails to qualify as a “higid new technology enterprise”
in future periods, our income tax expenses woutdeiase, which could have a material and advergetefin our net income al
results of operations.

In accordance with the former PRC Income Tax LawHuterprises with Foreign Investment and ForeigiteEprises, or th
FIE Tax Law, the EIT and the related implementiotgs, SolarOne Qidong was exempted from enterjmiseme tax in 2005 ar
2006, and was taxed at a reduced rate of 12% i7,200.5% in 2008, 12.5% in 2009 and 15% in 201Ce Tigh and nev
technology enterprise” status of SolarOne Qidonigexpire in October 2011. SolarOne Qidong haspglad for the high and nev
technology enterprisejualification and expects to receive a responga fiee government regarding the application by Augo4 1.
If SolarOne Qidong application is approved, SolarOne Qidong willtawre to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of6lin 2011,
2012 and 2013, and otherwise SolarOne Qidong ilsbbject to an income tax rate of 25% from 20112010, we recorded
provision of RMB116.1 million (US$17.6 million) farnrecognized tax benefits related to SolarOne @jdiue to the uncertainty
to whether it would meet certain requirements dfhhand new technology enterprise” status durisgaitnual selhssessment |
order to be eligible for the reduced EIT rate o¥dl3-rom 2005 until the end of 2009, SolarOne Qidwag also exempted from t
3% local income tax.

Any reduction or elimination of the preferentiak taeatments currently enjoyed by us may signifisaimcrease our income t:
expenses and materially reduce our net income,hwtield have a material adverse effect on our firdrcondition and results
operations.

Under the EIT, we may be classified as a “Residé&miterprise” of the PRC. Such classification would likely resuift negative tax
consequences to us and could result in negativedarsequences to our non-PRC shareholders and ADR&lérs.

Under the EIT, enterprises established under the laf non-PRC jurisdictions but whose “de facto agement body’is
located in the PRC are considered “resident erigargtfor PRC tax purposes and are subject to the ElTcoAting to the
Implementation Regulations for the EIT of the PR8uied by the State Council on December 6, 200&,faailo management body
defined as an establishment that exerts substanhicomprehensive management and control ovebubimess operations, ste
accounting, assets and other aspects of the eisr@ince substantially all of our managementuisently based in the PRC, a
may remain in the PRC in the foreseeable futuiis,likely that we will be regarded as a “residenterprise’on a strict application ¢
the EIT and its Implementation Regulations. As ecBmber 31, 2010, we recorded unrecognized taxitené RMB143.5 million
(US$21.7 million), RMB27.4 million (US$4.1 milliom)f which was recorded because based on our judgnvermay be deemed
a PRC tax resident pursuant to the EIT. If Hanwba®ne Co., Ltd., our holding company, or anytefrior-PRC subsidiaries



treated as a “resident enterprigef’ PRC tax purposes, Hanwha SolarOne or such diabgiwill be subject to PRC income
on worldwide income at a uniform tax rate of 25%jat would have a material adverse effect on aquarftial condition and resu
of operations.
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In addition, although the EIT provides that divideimcome payments between qualified “resident @niszs”are exempte
from the 10% withholding tax, it is still not fred doubt whether we will be considered to be aifjedl “resident enterprisefinde
the EIT. If we are considered a “non-resident gnise,” dividends paid to us by our subsidiaries in the RB@ugh our holdin
company structure), if any, may be subject to % Withholding tax. If we are deemed by the PRCaathorities to be arésiden
enterprise’and declare dividends, under the existing Impleatém Regulations of the EIT, dividends paid bytaisur shareholde
and ADS holders, which are “non-resident entergtised do not have an establishment or place of bssimethe PRC, or whit
have such an establishment or place of busineshéuelevant income is not effectively connectétththe establishment or place
business, might be subject to PRC withholding tak086 or a lower treaty rate.

Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of AD& shares by non-PRC investors, which are “nsideait enterprisesjs
also subject to PRC withholding income tax at 10% dower treaty rate if such gain is regardedra®me derived from sourc
within the PRC.

According to the Law of the PeopteRepublic of China on the Individual Income Taxtte IIT, as amended, PRC income
at the rate of 20% is applicable to dividends p&yab individual investors if such dividends argaeded as income derived fr.
sources within the PRC. Similarly, any gain realinm the transfer of ADSs or ordinary shares byviddal investors is also subijt
to PRC tax at 20% if such gain is regarded as imcaoierived from sources within the PRC. If we arended by the PRC t
authorities as a “resident enterpristé dividends we pay to our individual investorshwiespect to our ordinary shares or ADS:
the gain the individual investors may realize frdm transfer of our ordinary shares or ADSs, mightireated as income deri
from sources within the PRC and be subject to P&t 20% or a lower treaty rate.

Fluctuations in exchange rates could adversely affeur business as well as result in foreign cur@nexchange losses.

Our financial statements are expressed in, andumational currency is Renminbi. The change in eabfithe Renminbi agair
the U.S. dollar, Euro and other currencies is affdddy, among other things, changes in Chin@glitical and economic conditio
On July 21, 2005, the PRC government changed d¢adisold policy of pegging the value of the Renminbilte U.S. dollar. Und:
the new policy, the Renminbi is permitted to fludel within a narrow and managed band against aebaskcertain foreig
currencies. This change in policy has resultedppreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S. dolldre PRC government m
decide to adopt an even more flexible currencycgdh the future, which could result in a furtherdamore significant appreciati
of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar. An apmton of the Renminbi relative to other foreignreuncies could decrease the
unit revenue generated from our international sdfese increased our pricing to compensate forrd@uced purchasing power
foreign currencies, we may decrease the market etitivyeness, on a price basis, of our productss Tould result in a decreast
our international sales and materially and advgratéct our business.

A substantial portion of our sales is denominatet iS. dollars and Euros, while a substantial partf our costs and expen
is denominated in Renminbi. As a result, the readun of the Renminbi starting in July 2005 hagéased, and further revaluatir
could further increase, our costs. The value ofl any dividends payable on, our ADSs in foreignremcy terms will also t
affected. Conversely, if we decide to convert oanRinbi into U.S. dollars for the purpose of makjpayments for dividends on ¢
ordinary shares or ADSs or for other business meapoan appreciation of the U.S. dollar againsRieminbi would have a negat
effect on the U.S. dollar amount available to us.

Fluctuations in exchange rates, particularly amtmg U.S. dollar, Renminbi and Euro, also affect gusss and net pro
margins and could result in fluctuations in foreggchange and operating gains and losses. We é@ttuaet foreign currency los:
of RMB35.2 million, RMB23.8 million and RMB89.3 nlibn (US$13.5 million) in 2008, 2009 and 2010, restively. In particular,
substantial portion of our net revenues is curyeddéinominated in Euros. Since December 2009, the Eas fluctuated significant
A depreciation of the Euro may also have a negatiygact on the selling prices of our products imRebi terms. We cann
predict the impact of future exchange rate flucarst on our financial condition and results of @piens, and we may incur |
foreign currency losses in the future.

While we started to enter into economic hedgingdagetions in 2008 to minimize the impact of shertn foreign currenc
fluctuations on our revenues that are denominateal gurrency other than Renminbi, the effectivertdsbese transactions may
limited and we may not be able to successfully eegljof our exposure.

Our estimates of future revenues that are denoedniat foreign currencies may not be accurate, whakld result in foreig
exchange losses. Any default by the counterpatdi¢isese transactions could also adversely affecfinancial condition and resu
of operations. In addition, our foreign currencyleange losses may be magnified by PRC exchangeotoegulations that restri
our ability to convert Renminbi into foreign curcees.
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Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Adverse changes in political and economic policielsthe PRC government could have a material adveeftect on the overal
economic growth of China, which could reduce therdend for our products and materially and adverselffect our competitive
position.

Substantially all of our operations are conducte€hina and some of our sales are made in Chineordingly, our busines
financial condition, results of operations and pexgts are affected significantly by economic, jdit and legal developments
China. The PRC economy differs from the economieaast developed countries in many respects, inctud

» the amount of government involveme
» the level of developmen

e  the growth rate

«  the control of foreign exchange; a

» the allocation of resource

While the PRC economy has grown significantly sitite late 1970s, the growth has been uneven, bexalgrgphically an
among various sectors of the economy. The PRC gowvant has implemented various measures to encoecag®mmic growth an
guide the allocation of resources. Some of theseesmres benefit the overall PRC economy, but maytase a negative effect on
For example, our financial condition and resultsoperations may be adversely affected by governngentrol over capite
investments or changes in tax regulations thaappdicable to us.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a gldreconomy to a more markatented economy. Although the P
government has in recent years implemented measmghasizing the utilization of market forces famoromic reform, th
reduction of state ownership of productive asset$ the establishment of sound corporate governandmisiness enterprises.
substantial portion of the productive assets im@hs still owned by the PRC government. The camtihcontrol of these assets ¢
other aspects of the national economy by the PR@rgment could materially and adversely affect business. The PR
government also exercises significant control @@momic growth in China through the allocatiomexfources, controlling payme
of foreign currencydenominated obligations, setting monetary policg providing preferential treatment to particuladustries o
companies. Efforts by the PRC government to slog phce of growth of the PRC economy could resultiéareased capit
expenditure by solar energy users, which in tuuldoeduce demand for our products.

Any adverse change in the economic conditions megonent policies in China could have a materialease effect on th
overall economic growth and the level of renewadergy investments and expenditures in China, whicturn could lead to
reduction in demand for our products and consedybate a material adverse effect on our businedspeospects. In particular, t
PRC government has, in recent years, promulgatedicdaws and regulations and initiated certaimegomentsponsored progran
to encourage the utilization of new forms of eneliggluding solar energy. We cannot assure you tti@atimplementation of the:
laws, regulations and government programs will kbedficial to us. In particular, any adverse chaimgéhe PRC governmerst’
policies towards the PV industry may have a mdtedaerse effect on our operations as well as omtans to expand our busine
into downstream system integration services.

Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal systemuld have a material adverse effect on us.

We conduct substantially all of our business thtoogr operating subsidiary in the PRC, SolarOneo@g a Chinese wholl
foreign-owned enterprise. SolarOne Qidong is generallyesuithp laws and regulations applicable to foremgrestment in China an
in particular, laws applicable to wholly foreignvned enterprises. The PRC legal system is baseditien statutes, and prior col
decisions may be cited for reference but have dichiprecedential value. Since 1979, PRC legislatiod regulations ha\
significantly enhanced the protections affordedvémious forms of foreign investments in China. Hoa since these laws a
regulations are relatively new and the PRC legsatesy continues to rapidly evolve, the interpretaiof many laws, regulations a
rules are not always uniform and enforcement ofdéhlaws, regulations and rules involve uncertasntighich may limit lega
protections available to us. In addition, any &tign in China may be protracted and result in wutiml costs and diversion
resources and management attention.

Limitations on the ability of our operating subsidiy to pay dividends or other distributions to usuwid have a material advers
effect on our ability to conduct our business.

We are a holding company and conduct substantéllpf our business through our operating subsydi&olarOne Qidonc
which is a limited liability company established@ina. The payment of dividends by entities orgediin, if any, China is subje
to limitations. In particular, regulations in theR€ currently permit payment of dividends only odtazcumulated profits &
determined in accordance with PRC accounting stalsdand regulations. SolarOne Qidong is also reduio set aside at least 1(
of its annual aftetax profit based on PRC accounting standards eaah tp its general reserves until the accumulaiveunt of
such reserves reaches 50% of its registered capitaise reserves are not distributable as casketigs. In addition, SolarOi



Qidong is required to allocate a portion of iteeafex profit to its staff welfare and bonus fund la¢ discretion of its board
directors. Moreover, if SolarOne Qidong incurs datits own behalf in the future, the instrumerdseyning the debt may restrict
ability to pay dividends or make other distribuao us.
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Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our &by to receive and use our revenue effective

A portion of our revenue and a substantial portibrour expenses are denominated in Renminbi. Themirebi is currently
convertible under the “current account,” which urd¢s dividends, trade and serviedated foreign exchange transactions, but
under the “capital accountyhich includes foreign direct investment and loa@srrently, SolarOne Qidong may purchase fori
currencies for settlement of current account tretimas, including payments of dividends to us, withthe approval of the Ste
Administration of Foreign Exchange, or SAFE. Howe\tke relevant PRC government authorities maytlomieliminate our abilit
to purchase foreign currencies in the future. Simaggnificant amount of our future revenue will denominated in Renminbi, al
existing and future restrictions on currency exggamay limit our ability to utilize revenue gen&etin Renminbi to fund ot
business activities outside China that are denaehia foreign currencies.

Foreign exchange transactions by SolarOne Qidordgruthe capital account continue to be subjectigaificant foreign
exchange controls and require the approval of edre register with PRC governmental authoritiesluding SAFE. In particular,
SolarOne Qidong borrows foreign currency loans frigror other foreign lenders, these loans musegistered with SAFE, and
we finance SolarOne Qidong by means of additiomgital contributions, these capital contributionssinbe approved by certe
government authorities, including the National Depenent and Reform Commission, or the NDRC, thei#fim of Commerce ¢
their respective local counterparts. These limotai could affect the ability of SolarOne Qidongofitain foreign exchange throu
debt or equity financing.

PRC regulations relating to the establishment offsifore special purpose companies by PRC residen&y rsubject our PR(
resident shareholders to personal liability and limour ability to acquire PRC companies or to injecapital into our PRC
subsidiary, limit our PRC subsidia’s ability to distribute profits to us, or otherwésmaterially and adversely affect us.

SAFE issued a public notice in October 2005, or $#¢-E notice, requiring PRC residents, includinghblegal persons ar
natural persons, to register with the competerall@8AFE branch before establishing or controllimy @ompany outside of Chin
referred to as an “offshore special purpose com@dnoy the purpose of acquiring any assets of or ggnierest in PRC compani
and raising fund from overseas. In addition, anyCPRsident that is the shareholder of an offshpecial purpose company
required to amend its SAFE registration with thealoSAFE branch, with respect to that offshore Epeguurpose company |
connection with any increase or decrease of capitaisfer of shares, merger, division, equity simeent or creation of any secur
interest over any assets located in China. If @R Bhareholder of any offshore special purpose eomeils to make the requir
SAFE registration and amendment, the PRC subsidiaof that offshore special purpose company maypiodibited from
distributing their profits and proceeds from anguetion in capital, share transfer or liquidatianthe offshore special purpa
company. Moreover, failure to comply with the SAFEgistration and amendment requirements describegeacould result i
liability under PRC laws for evasion of applicabdeeign exchange restrictions. Our current benaficivners who are PRC reside
have registered with the local SAFE branch as redquinder the SAFE notice. The failure of theseelieial owners to amend the
SAFE registrations in a timely manner pursuanh® $AFE notice or the failure of future benefi@alners of our company who &
PRC residents to comply with the registration pduces set forth in the SAFE notice may subject swerfeficial owners to fines al
legal sanctions and may also result in a restrictio our PRC subsidiary’ability to distribute profits to us or otherwisgterially
and adversely affect our business. In addition,NIDRRC promulgated a rule in October 2004, or theRIDRule, which require
NDRC approvals for overseas investment projectsenigdPRC entities. The NDRC Rule also provides dpgiroval procedures fi
overseas investment projects of PRC individualdl §feimplemented with reference to this rule. Hoe® there exist extensi
uncertainties in terms of interpretation of the NDRule with respect to its application to a PRCvittlal’s overseas investmel
and in practice, we are not aware of any precedbatsa PRC individuad' overseas investment has been approved by the NiD
challenged by the NDRC based on the absence of NBjCoval. Our current beneficial owners who areCRRdividuals did no
apply for NDRC approval for investment in us. Wemat predict how and to what extent this will affecr business operations
future strategy. For example, the failure of ouarsholders who are PRC individuals to comply witt NDRC Rule may subje
these persons or our PRC subsidiary to certaiilitiab under PRC laws, which could adversely afi@ar business.

We face uncertainties with respect to applicatiohtbe Circular on Strengthening the Administrationf Enterprise Income Ta
for Share Transfer of No-PRC Resident Enterprises.

Pursuant to the Notice on Strengthening Adminigtrabf Enterprise Income Tax for Share TransferdNon-PRC Resider
Enterprises, or SAT Circular 698, issued by thaeStadministration of Taxation on December 10, 20@th retroactive effect fror
January 1, 2008, where a nmsident enterprise transfers its equity interests PRC resident enterprise indirectly via dispgsof
the equity interests of an overseas holding compangn Indirect Transfer, and such overseas hgldompany is located in a t
jurisdiction that (i) has an effective tax ratesldhan 12.5% or (ii) does not tax foreign incometefresidents, the foreign inves
shall report such Indirect Transfer to the compietax authority of the PRC resident enterprise. PREC tax authority will examin
the true nature of the Indirect Transfer, and & tiax authority considers that the foreign inveb@s adopted an abusive arranger
in order to avoid PRC tax, it will disregard thest&nce of the overseas holding company anchegacterize the Indirect Trans
and, as a result, gains derived from such Indifeansfer may be subject to PRC withholding taxhat tate of up to 10%. SA
Circular 698 also provides that, where a RIRC resident enterprise transfers its equity istsren a PRC resident enterprise tc
related parties at a price lower than the fair raaxalue, the relevant tax authority has the pawenake a reasonable adjustmer
the taxable gain of the transaction.
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There is uncertainty as to the application of SAfic@ar 698. The relevant PRC authority has notpremulgated any form
provisions or formally declared or stated how ttcgkate the effective tax in a foreign jurisdictiand how a foreign investor st
report to the competent tax authority an Indire@nBfer. SAT Circular 698 states that it does ppiyato purchases or sales of st
on a stock exchange. If we transfer our equityr@gein our PRC subsidiaries or when our mesident investors transfer their she
we or our norresident investors may be taxed under SAT Circt®8 and may be required to expend valuable ressuoceompl:
with SAT Circular 698 or to establish that we or oen+esident investors should not be taxed under SATuir 698, which me
have an adverse effect on our financial conditiod esults of operations or such non-resident ilve'sinvestment in us.

Labor laws in the PRC may adversely affect our réswof operations

On June 29, 2007, the PRC government promulgatd.dbor Contract Law of the PRC, or the Labor Caxttiaw, whicl
became effective on January 1, 2008. The Laborr@conLaw imposes greater liabilities on employerd aignificantly impacts tt
cost of an employes’ decision to reduce its workforce. Further, ituiegs certain terminations to be based upon séyiarid na
merit. In the event we decide to significantly charor decrease our workforce, the Labor Contraet tauld adversely affect o
ability to enact such changes in a manner thatdstradvantageous to our business or in a timelycasteffective manner, thi
materially and adversely affecting our financiahdition and results of operations.

We face risks related to health epidemics and otbatbreaks.

Adverse public health epidemics or pandemics cdiddupt business and the economics of the PRC #red oountries whe
we do business. From December 2002 to June 2008a@hd other countries experienced an outbreakhighly contagious form
atypical pneumonia now known as severe acute aspyrsyndrome, or SARS. Some Asian countriespifinly China, encounter
incidents of the H5N1 strain of bird flu, or avifln in 2007 and early 2008. In 2009, there werebmaks of swine flu, caused
H1N1 virus, in certain regions of the world, indingl China. Any future outbreak of SARS, avian fawine flu or other similz
adverse public developments may, among other thiigsificantly disrupt our business, including itiimg our ability to travel ¢
ship our products within or outside China and fogcus to temporary close our manufacturing faesitiFurthermore, an outbre
may severely restrict the level of economic agpivit affected areas, which may in turn materiaiyl adversely affect our financ
condition and results of operations. We have nopgetl any written preventive measures or continggtens to combat any futt
outbreak of swine flu, avian flu, SARS or any otepidemic.

Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares and ADSs
The market price of our ADSs may be volatile.

The market price of our ADSs experienced, and maticue to experience, significant volatility. Ftre period fror
December 20, 2006 to June 2, 2011, the trading micour ADSs on the Nasdaq Global Market has rarigem a low of US$2.:2
per ADS to a high of US$37.64 per ADS.

Numerous factors, including many over which we hagecontrol, may have a significant impact on tharket price of ot
ADSs, including, among other things:

. announcements of technological or competitive dgyekents

. regulatory developments in our target markets #ffgas, our customers or our competitc

. announcements regarding patent litigation or teeaace of patents to us or our competit

. announcements of studies and reports relatinggt@dnversion efficiencies of our products or thaseur competitors
. actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quartenperating results

. changes in financial estimates or other materiairoents by securities analysts relating to us, ourpetitors or our industry
general;

. announcements by other companies in our industigtimg to their operations, strategic initiativégancial condition ¢
financial performance or to our industry in geng

. announcements of acquisitions or consolidationslinrg industry competitors or industry supplie
. changes in the economic performance or market tiahsaof other PV technology compani
. addition or departure of our executive officers &ngl research personnel; @

» sales or perceived sales of additional ordinaryeshar ADSs



20




Table of Contents

In addition, the stock market in recent years hqepenced extreme price and trading volume flutbna that often have be:
unrelated or disproportionate to the operatinggrariince of individual companies. These broad mdtketuations may adverse
affect the price of our ADSs, regardless of ourrapleg performance.

Our articles of association contain antakeover provisions that could have a material acseeffect on the rights of holders of o
ordinary shares and ADSs.

Our amended and restated articles of associatioit the ability of others to acquire control of ctmmpany or cause us
engage in change-@bntrol transactions. These provisions could h&eeeffect of depriving our shareholders of an oppoty to
sell their shares at a premium over prevailing reagkrices by discouraging third parties from segkio obtain control of oL
company in a tender offer or similar transactioor Example, our board of directors has the authponithout further action by ot
shareholders, to issue preferred shares in oneoe series and to fix their designations, powerstegpences, privileges, and relat
participating, optional or special rights and thalifications, limitations or restrictions, includj dividend rights, conversion righ
voting rights, terms of redemption and liquidatipneferences, any or all of which may be greaten the rights associated with ¢
ordinary shares, in the form of ADS or otherwisef€rred shares could be issued quickly with tecadsulated to delay or preven
change in control of our company or make removahahagement more difficult. If our board of direstdecides to issue prefert
shares, the price of our ADSs may fall and thengtind other rights of the holders of our ordinahares and ADSs may
materially and adversely affected.

Holders of ADSs have fewer rights than shareholdersd must act through the depositary to exercisesh rights.

Holders of ADSs do not have the same rights asshareholders and may only exercise the voting sigtith respect to th
underlying ordinary shares in accordance with ttevigions of the deposit agreement. Under our amérahd restated articles
association, the minimum notice period require@¢davene an annual general meeting or any extraamdigeneral meeting callir
for the passing of a special resolution is 20 days the minimum notice period required to conveme @ther extraordinary genel
meeting is 14 days. When a general meeting is c@djeyou may not receive sufficient notice of arshalders’meeting to permi
you to withdraw your ordinary shares to allow youcast your vote with respect to any specific matfeequested in writing by u
the depositary will mail a notice of such a meetiog/ou. In addition, the depositary and its agenéy not be able to send voti
instructions to you or carry out your voting ingtions in a timely manner. We will make all readuraefforts to cause tt
depositary to extend voting rights to you in a fyn@anner, but you may not receive the voting makeiin time to ensure that y«
can instruct the depositary to vote your ADSs. reminore, the depositary and its agents will notdsponsible for any failure
carry out any instructions to vote, for the mannewhich any vote is cast or for the effect of augh vote. As a result, you may |
be able to exercise your right to vote and you taak recourse if your ADSs are not voted as yowested. In addition, in yol
capacity as an ADS holder, you will not be abledth a shareholders’ meeting.

You may be subject to limitations on transfers afuy ADSs.

Your ADSs are transferable on the books of the diggiy. However, the depositary may close its fiemsooks at any time «
from time to time when it deems expedient in comioacwith the performance of its duties. In additithe depositary may refuse
deliver, transfer or register transfers of ADSsegafly when our books or the books of the depogiéae closed, or at any time if \
or the depositary deem it advisable to do so becatiany requirement of law or of any governmengavernmental body, or und
any provision of the deposit agreement, or for @ifyer reason.

Your right to participate in any future rights offéngs may be limited, which may cause dilution toyr holdings, and you may nc
receive distributions with respect to the underlgiordinary shares if it is impractical to make theavailable to you.

We may from time to time distribute rights to otmaseholders, including rights to acquire our semsi However, we cann
make rights available to you in the United Stateless we register the rights and the securitiestizh the rights relate under t
Securities Act or an exemption from the registratiequirements is available. Also, under the degieement, the depositary v
not make rights available to you unless the distidm to ADS holders of both the rights and anyatedl securities are eith
registered under the Securities Act, or exemptechfregistration under the Securities Act. We ardenmo obligation to file
registration statement with respect to any suchtsigr securities or to endeavor to cause suchistration statement to be decla
effective. Moreover, we may not be able to esthblia exemption from registration under the Seasit\ct. Accordingly, in th
event we conduct any rights offering in the futute depositary may not make such rights availabou or may dispose of su
rights and make the net proceeds available to ygua result, you may be unable to participate in rights offerings and me
experience dilution in your holdings.

In addition, the depositary of our ADSs has agreegay to you the cash dividends or other distidng it or the custodia
receives on our ordinary shares or other depostedrities after deducting its fees and expenses.Will receive these distributiol
in proportion to the number of ordinary shares yADSs represent. However, the depositary may sadigcretion, decide that it
inequitable or impractical to make a distributioraiéable to any holders of ADSs. As a result, tepakitary may decide not to me
the distribution and you will not receive such disition.
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We are a Cayman Islands company and, because jadliprecedent regarding the rights of shareholdess more limited unde
Cayman Islands law than under U.S. law, you may kaess protection for your shareholder rights tharou would under U.S
law.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our amenaedrastated memorandum and articles of associasomay be amend:
from time to time, the Cayman Islands Companies l(asvamended) and the common law of the Caymandslarhe rights c
shareholders to take action against the direcamtions by minority shareholders and the fiduciagponsibilities of our directors
us under Cayman Islands law are to a large extewérged by the common law of the Cayman Islandg ddmmon law of th
Cayman lIslands is derived in part from comparayiviehited judicial precedent in the Cayman Islardswell as that from Englis
common law, which has persuasive, but not bindighority on a court in the Cayman Islands. Thatsgf our shareholders a
the fiduciary responsibilities of our directors endCayman Islands law are not as clearly estaldisisethey would be under statu
or judicial precedent in some jurisdictions in tbeited States. In particular, the Cayman Islands &dess developed body
securities laws than the United States. In addit@ayman Islands companies may not have standingitiate a shareholde
derivative action in a federal court of the Unit&tates.

There is also uncertainty as to whether the cafrtse Cayman Islands would:

. recognize or enforce against us or our directardginents of courts of the United States based otaikecivil liability
provisions of U.S. securities laws; a

. entertain original actions brought in the Caymadanids, based on certain civil liability provisionSU.S. securities laws that
penal in nature

There is no statutory recognition in the Caymaaridb of judgments obtained in the United Statéspagh the courts of tt
Cayman Islands will generally recognize and enfarc®npenal judgment of a foreign court of competentsdidtion without retria
on the merits.

As a result of all of the above, our public shatdbs may have more difficulty in protecting thigiterests in the face of actio
taken against management, members of the boardeztars or controlling shareholders than they wloa shareholders of a U
public company.

You may have difficulty enforcing judgments obtaid@gainst us.

We are a Cayman Islands company and substantladly aur assets are located outside of the Un8tates. Substantially all -
our current operations are conducted in the PR@dthtion, most of our directors and officers aationals and residents of countr
other than the United States. A substantial portibthe assets of these persons are located outsdenited States. As a result
may be difficult for you to effect service of prasewithin the United States upon these persommait also be difficult for you t
enforce in U.S. courts judgments obtained in U&irts based on the civil liability provisions ofettJ.S. federal securities la
against us and our officers and directors, mosttadm are not residents in the United States andubstantial majority of whos
assets are located outside of the United Statemddition, there is uncertainty as to whether therts of the Cayman Islands or 1
PRC would recognize or enforce judgments of U.8rtsabased on certain civil liability provisions GfS. securities laws.

ITEM 4 INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

We commenced operations through SolarOne Qidommedy known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Lild.August 2004
SolarOne Qidong was a 686étvned subsidiary of Jiangsu Linyang Electronics, Ctd., or Linyang Electronics, at the time of
establishment on August 27, 2004. Linyang Elect®iis one of the leading electricityeasuring instrument manufacturers in Ch
In anticipation of our initial public offering, wiecorporated Hanwha SolarOne, formerly known wals®m Power Holdings Co
Ltd., in the Cayman Islands on May 12, 2006 aslisting vehicle. To enable us to raise equity capitom investors outside
China, we established a holding company structyran@orporating Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holditdy, formerly known a:
Linyang Solar Power Investment Holding Ltd., or &@Qline BVI, in the British Virgin Islands on May 1Z006. SolarOne BVI i
wholly owned by Hanwha SolarOne. SolarOne BVI pasgd all of the equity interests in SolarOne Qidonglune 2, 2006. C
May 16, 2007, SolarOne BVI established a wholly edrsubsidiary, Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limiteatmierly known a:
Solarfun Power Hong Kong Limited, or SolarOne Hdfgng. In March 2006, April 2006 and April 2007, vestablished thre
majority-owned or wholly owned subsidiaries in China, Shamglinyang Solar Technology Co., Ltd., or Solar &ffzai, Sichual
Leshan Jiayang New Energy Co., Ltd., or Sichuayadig, and Hanwha Solar Engineering Research anél@mwent Center Cc
Ltd., formerly known as Nantong Linyang Solarfunglifreering Research and Development Center Co., brdSolar R&D,
respectively, to expand our business into new marked sectors. We acquired a 52% interest in HarSdiarOne Technology Ci
Ltd., formerly known as Jiangsu Yangguang Solarhfietogy Co., Ltd., or SolarOne Technology, in JAB07 and acquired tt
remaining 48% in August 2008. In September 2007, we
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established a wholly owned subsidiary, Hanwha &erU.S.A. Inc., formerly known as Solarfun PoweSIA. Inc., or SolarOr
U.S.A., as part of our plan to enter the Unitedtedtanarket. On November 30, 2007, SolarOne BVIsfemed all of the equi
interests in SolarOne Qidong to SolarOne Hong Kdoga consideration of US$199.0 million. In Febmua008, we establishec
wholly owned subsidiary, Hanwha SolarOne Deutsahl@mbH, formerly known as Solarfun Power Deutsathl@mbH, o
SolarOne Deutschland, in Germany to sell solar yeted in the European markets. We liquidated Sichliagang, one of o
subsidiaries which historically has had limited @i®ns, in July 2008. In November 2009, we acqlitee remaining 17% equ
interest in Solar Shanghai and Solar Shanghai becam wholly owned subsidiary after the completmnthis transaction. W
established Hanwha Solar Electric Power Engineefitwy, Ltd., formerly known as Jiangsu Linyang SoEectric Powe
Engineering Co., Ltd., or Solar Engineering, in MBA0 under SolarOne Qidong to engage in the polaer project business.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwher Stalldings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solar, 36,455,08%inary shares for i
aggregate sale price of US$78.2 million. Concutyentth the closing of this offering, we issued 802,689 ordinary shares
Hanwha Solar at par value of the ordinary sharéssabsequently an additional 14,407,330 ordinagyeshat par value, which she
shall remain outstanding so long as and to thenexiat the 9,019,611 ADSs we issued to facilitate convertible bond offering
January 2008 remain outstanding. At the same tidewha Solar completed the acquisitions from Googrfes Il LP an
Yonghua Solar Power Investment Holding Ltd., thenpany owned by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairmaf,a total o
120,407,700 ordinary shares and 1,281,011 ADSsuptompany, representing all of the ordinary shams ADSs held by the
Hanwha Solar, a company that engages in solar éssifis a whollyawned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical Corporatioleaaing
chemical producer publicly traded on the Korea Exgje whose principal activities are the productib@A, PE and PVC, product

In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 ARiBsan aggregate sale price of US$82.8 millianotder for Hanwh
Solar to maintain after this offering the same lafebeneficial ownership in our company as befitvie offering, we also issued &
sold to Hanwha Solar 45,981,604 ordinary shareafoaggregate sale price of US$82.8 million. A®sult of these transactio
Hanwha Solar owns an approximately 49.8% equitgret in our company. We changed our name fr8oidrfun Power Holding
Co., Ltd.” to “Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.” on Deceanl20, 2010 and our ticker from “SOLF” to “HSObh February 15, 2011.
April 2011, we established Nantong Hanwha ImporExport Co., Ltd., or Nantong Hanwha I&E, under $0lae Qidong to enga
in import and export of PV products and technoland Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) Co., Ltd., or Solar@®antong, und
SolarOne Hong Kong to develop, manufacture and?3élproducts.

Our principal executive offices are located at 888ang Road, Qidong, Jiangsu Province, 226200pkR&oRepublic of Chini
Our telephone number at this address is (86-513D-%88 and our fax number is (86-513) 88BB67. Our registered office in 1
Cayman Islands is at the offices of Maples Cormofrvices Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,n@r&ayman, KY11104
Cayman Islands.

Investor inquiries should be directed to us atatidress and telephone number of our principal éxecaffices set forth abov
Our website isttp://www.hanwha-solarone.cofiihe information contained on our website does woistitute a part of this anni
report. Our agent for service of process in thetéthBtates is CT Corporation System, located atEighith Avenue, New York, Ne
York 10011.

We made capital expenditures of RMB1,169.0 milliBMB324.7 million and RMB670.8 million (US$101.6limn) in 2008
2009 and 2010, respectively, all of which relateuingrily to the purchases of manufacturing equiptremd facility constructic
costs. Based on the current market conditions, xpea to incur capital expenditures of US$450.0iaril for 2011, which will b
used primarily for purchasing manufacturing equipmand building production facilities in Nantongjd@ng and Lianyungan
Jiangsu Province. We plan to fund the balance otcapital expenditure requirements for 2011 witehciom operations, additior
bank borrowings, and other forms of financing,etassary.

B. Business Overview

Overview

We are a vertically integrated manufacturer oteifi ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and PV moduhe€hina. We manufactu
a variety of silicon ingots, silicon wafers, PV lsehnd PV modules using advanced manufacturingegstechnologies that h:
helped us to rapidly increase our operational iefficy. We also provide PV module processing sesvitée sell PV cells and F
modules both directly to system integrators anduph third party distributors. In 2010, we sold puoducts to over 50 custome
mostly in Germany, ltaly, Australia, the United 88 the Czech Republic, Spain and China. We cdnaluc business in Chi
through our operating subsidiary.

As of April 30, 2010, we had 1,000 MW of annual RMdule production capacity and 700 MW of annualde\l productiol
capacity. In addition, we have achieved improvemeint process technology and product quality sinee es@mmenced o
commercial production in November 2005. Our monstljine and multicrystalline PV cells achieved wersion efficiency rates
the ranges of 17.3% to 18.3% and 15.5% to 17.0%pectively, in 2010. In addition, we had 415 MWawiual ingot productic
capacity and 500 MW of annual wire sawicgpacity as of April 30, 2010. We plan to expand BM module production capac
from 1,000 MW to 1,500 MW, PV cell production cajtgdrom 700 MW to 1,300 MW, ingot production cajgdrom 415 MW tc
1,000 MW and wire sawing capacity from 500 MW t60) MW by the end of 201.
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Our net revenues decreased from RMB4,949.1 millian 2008 to RMB3,778.3 million in 2009, but incredsdc
RMB7,527.0 million (US$1,140.5 million) in 2010. ©oonsolidated net income increased from a net d6$8MB265.9 million ir
2008 to a net loss of RMB144.9 million in 2009, ared income of RMB757.4 million (US$114.8 milliom) 2010.

Our Products and Services

Our products primarily include silicon ingots, sdn wafers, PV cells and PV modules. Since 2008stantially all of the ingot
wafers and PV cells we produced have been useduorown PV module production. We also provide PVdole processir
services.

Our Products
PV Cells

A PV cell is a semiconductor device that conveuslight into electricity by a process known as gimtovoltaic effect. Tt
following table sets forth the specifications obttypes of PV cells we currently produce:

Dimensions Conversion Thickness Maximum

PV Cell Type (mmxmm) Efficiency (%) (EM) Power (W)
Monocrystalline silicon ce 125 x 12¢& 17.3-18.3% 180- 200 2.68-2.84
156 x 15€ 17.3-18.3% 180- 200 4.13-4.37

Multicrystalline silicon cel 156 x 15€ 15.5-17.0% 180- 200 3.77-4.13

The key technical efficiency measurement of PVscillthe conversion efficiency rate. Assuming otthémngs being the san
the higher the conversion efficiency rate, the lowse production cost of PV modules per watt beeammre power can
incorporated into a given size package. Our morstalyne and multicrystalline PV cells achieved wersion efficiency rates in t
ranges of 17.3% to 18.3% and 15.5% to 17.0%, réispedg in 2010.

We are now able to process wafers as thin as 18fbns. In order to further lower our productiontspsve intend to focus i
producing PV cells with decreasing thickness levels

In 2009, we introduced “ECLIPSE& new line of PV cells and modules with reducedtlipduced degradation. This type
products reduces the impurity concentration insgéllereby reducing light induced degradation foraximately 1% from 2% to 3¢
or less than 2 W compared to approximately 4 W W for a 180 W module equipped with standard cdliés results in an incree
in electricity generation of approximately 1% to 2#er the long term when compared with standardutesd

In an effort to further improve our technologicapability, we plan to adopt selective emitter tedbgy in our existing ce
production lines with an annual production capaocftf60 MW in the second half of 2011.

PV Modules

A PV module is an assembly of PV cells that havenbalectrically interconnected and laminated iueadle and weathgyrool
package. We have been selling a wide range of PHuias, currently ranging from 5 W to 295 W in poveertput specificatiol
made primarily from the PV cells we manufacture. &¥e developing modules with higher power to mketrtsing demand for on-
grid configurations. The majority of the PV modulgs currently offer to our customers range in pobetween 185 W and 285
We sell approximately 51% of our PV modules under proprietary “Solarfun” and “SolarOnddrand names, and approxima
49%, respectively, of our PV modules under the thraemmes of our customers.
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The following table sets forth the types of PV mieduve manufacture with the specifications indidate

Dimensions Weight

PV Module Manufactured with: (mm) (Kg) Power (W)

Monocrystalline silicor 1580 x 808 x 4 14 16C-195
1494 x 1000 x 4 17 17(-225
1652 x 1000 x &£ 21 20C-255
1966 x 1000 x £ 26 25(-300

Multicrystalline silicon 1580 x 808 x 4 14 16(-195
1494 x 1000 x 4 17 17(-225
1652 x 1000 x &£ 21 200-255
1966 x 1000 x &£ 26 25(-300

We believe our PV cells and modules are competitiith other products in the PV market in terms fifceency and quality
We expect to continue improving the conversioncedficy and power, and reducing the thickness, ofsmlar products as \
continue to devote significant financial and humesources in our various research and developnmegtgms.

Ingots and Wafer

We also manufacture ingots through SolarOne Tedgyglan ingot plant that commenced operations itokir 2007. As ¢
April 30, 2011, we operated 40 monocrystalline ingduction furnaces and 52 multicrystalline ingodduction furnaces, with |
to 415 MW of annual manufacturing capacity. Theotsgmanufactured by SolarOne Technology are gdweusled for ou
manufacture of wafers.

In order to further integrate our production upatne SolarOne Qidong has purchased and installedn@8§ of wire saw
equipment, which can be used to slice ingots intdevs, and achieved annual wire sawing capacitpQif MW. The wafel
manufactured by SolarOne Qidong are generally feaur manufacture of PV cells and PV modules.

Our Services

We provide PV module processing services to corR¥rtells into PV modules on behalf of a third paRor these PV modt
processing services, we “purchase” PV cells frooustomer and at the same time agree to “sefipecified quantity of PV modu
back to the same customer. The quantity of PV mesdabld back to the customer under this processirangement is consist
with the amount of PV cells purchased from the @mustr after factoring in conversion efficiency. Weeard the amount of rever
from these processing transactions based on tharameceived for PV modules sold less the amouiadt fos the PV cells purchas
from the customer. The production costs incurrdated to providing the module processing servigesrecorded within our cost
revenues.

In response to the rapidly evolving conditions live PV industry, we started to expand our businesgndtream to provic
system integration services in 2010. Our PV systeagration services may include services suchnggneering, procurement
permits and equipment, construction managementjtororg and maintenance. We offer PV system integnaservices through o
subsidiary, Hanwha Solar Electric Power Enginee@ug Ltd., or Solar Engineering.

Raw Materials Supply Management

Manufacturing of our solar products requires rdéadupplies of various raw materials, includingcsih wafers, ethylene vin
acetate, triphenyltin, tempered glass, connectiagdb, welding bands, silica gel, aluminum alloy @mkttion boxes. We seek
diversify the supply sources of raw materials aagtehnot in the past experienced any material dignupmpf our manufacturir
process due to insufficient supply of raw materidilse aggregate costs attributable to our fivedsrgaw materials suppliers in 20
2009 and 2010 were 42.0%, 51.6% and 40.0%, respdctdf our total raw material purchases.

We maintain different inventory levels of our ravaterials, depending on the type of product andl¢hd time required
obtain additional supplies. We seek to maintairseeable inventory levels that achieve a balancedsst our efforts to reduce ¢
storage costs and optimize working capital on camedhand the need to ensure that we have accasgdoate supplies on the ot
As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, we had RB8B4million, RMB277.6 million and RMB459.5 milliofUS$69.6 million)
respectively, of raw materials in inventory.

Silicon-based Raw Materials

Among the various raw materials required for oumuofacturing process, silicon wafers are the mogoirtant for producin
PV cells. A silicon wafer is a flat piece of cryiiitee silicon that can be processed into a PV ®illicon wafers used for PV ¢
production are generally classified into two diffiet types: monocrystalline and multicrystallineiceih wafers. Compared
monocrystalline silicon wafers, multicrystallindi@n wafers have a lower conversion rate but ass kexpensive. We currently
6-inch, 6.5-inch, 7-inch and i&¢h wafers in our production. PV cells can be nfacwred on our production lines using both typk
silicon wafers with certain temporary adjustmentshte production line. We believe that the abititymanufacture using both ty;



of silicon wafers provides us with greater flexityilin procuring raw materials, especially duringripds of silicon supp
shortages.
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We purchase all of our silicon and approximatel9s46f our ingots and silicon wafers from thipasty suppliers. We purche
silicon, ingots and wafers from both domestic amdrseas suppliers, with the majority of our purésaseing made in the dome
market. We use ingots manufactured by SolarOne fi@ofy, one of our wholly owned subsidiaries, i awanufacturing proces
Currently, our principal silicon suppliers inclu&msung Corporation, Ya An Yongwang Silicon Cod.Lbr Yongwang, GC
Silicon Technology Holdings Limited, or GCL, SoRower Industries, or SPI, and Chongqging Dago NeergnCo., Ltd., or Dago.

We procure a significant portion of our silicon asiticon wafers from suppliers under mufgar supply agreements. Eacl
our existing multiyear supply agreements provides for adjustmensibsequent years to reflect changes in market tionsliol
through mutual agreement, except one agreementmiezee into in 2010 where the price is pietermined without any futu
adjustment. We procure our remaining silicon atidasi wafer supplies from short-term supply agreetaand the spot market.

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industvide shortage of silicon and silicon wafers, whielulted in significant increases
the prices of these raw materials. To secure aguade and timely supply of silicon and silicon wafduring the earlier periods
supply shortage, we have established supply armeges with a number of silicon and silicon wafepgiers, including a 1iea
supply contract with Hoku, a seven-year supply @mttwith a non-PRC supplier and supply contradth WDK and Emei. Sinci
the fourth quarter of 2008, the market prices ftiican and silicon wafers have been decreasingifsigimtly. Spot market prices
silicon and silicon wafers have fallen below thie@s we have contracted for with our lotegm suppliers and continued to declin
2009. Due to the significant decrease in pricesilafon and silicon wafers, we re-negotiated albaf multiyear supply agreemel
that were in place as of December 31, 2009, extepagreement with LDK. After re-negotiation, tleems of price of such multi-
year agreements were generally subject to revighereperiodically or upon significant changes ifces on the spot market. ¢
“Iltem 3.D. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our Campand Our Industry —Our ability to adjust our raw material costs ma
limited as a result of our entering into mutgar supply agreements with many of our silicon sitidon wafer suppliers, and it m
be difficult for us to respond in a timely mannerapidly changing market condition, which couldtemglly and adversely affect ¢
cost of revenues and profitability.”

We acquired a 52% equity interest in SolarOne Teldgy in July 2007 and acquired the remaining 48%aitg interest il
August 2008. The key raw material for our produttiof ingots is polysilicon. We purchase polysiliconmarily from GCL
Yongwang and Daqo.

Other Raw Materials

In addition to silicon and silicon wafers, we usgagiety of other raw materials for our productiés part of our continuir
cost control efforts, we source a significant pmortof these raw materials locally. We believe that policy to use primarily local
sourced raw materials and our continuing price tiatjons with our local raw material suppliers hamade a significant contributi
to our profitability since we commenced operation2004. The use of locally sourced raw materide ahortens our lead order ti
and provides us with better access to technicab#éimel support from our suppliers.

Production

We manufacture our wafers, PV cells and PV modthesugh SolarOne Qidong, our wholly owned PRC dlibgsy, witr
facilities occupying a gross floor area of 79,13@iare meters in Qidong, Jiangsu Province, China.céfamenced commerc
production on our first PV cell production line Wovember 2005 and had 1,000 MW of annual PV modafeacity and 700 MW
annual PV cell production capacity as of April 20,L0. We had 54 multicrystalline silicon wafer wi#aws and 12 monocrystall
silicon wafer wire saws, with a total annual matiieing capacity of 500 MW as of April 30, 2010. \Weduce multicrystalline ai
monocrystalline silicon wafers with a dimensionl&6 mm x 156 mm and 125 mm x 125 mm, respectivEhe thickness of ol
silicon wafers is between 180 and 220 microns.

We manufacture our silicon ingots through SolarQGrezhnology, one of our wholly owned subsidiariesthwfacilities
occupying a gross floor area of approximately 38,3§uare meters in Lianyungang, Jiangsu Provinh&aC SolarOne Technolo
commenced its operations in October 2007. As ofil 38, 2010, we operated 40 monocrystalline ingatdpction furnaces and
multicrystalline ingot production furnaces, with tgp415 MW of annual manufacturing capacity.

We were able to lower our initial investment by ghasing key equipment with more sophisticated teldgy from overse:
suppliers while procuring other equipment domelticdVe plan our production on an annual, semirual and monthly basis
accordance with anticipated demand and make weeklistments to our production schedule based arakbatders received.
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Production Proces:

The following diagram shows the general producsitages for our PV cells:

Rinsing

l

Diffusion

!

Etching

:

Secondary rinsing

l

PECVD

.

Screen printing

.

Firing

i

Testing and Sorting

Rinsing is the process duning which ultrasonic cleaning is performed on
silicon wafers, followed by chemical treatment of the wafer surface, which
reduces the cells’ reflection of sunlight and improves sunlight absorption

capacity.

Diffusion 1s the process during which certain impurities are introduced into
the silicon wafer through a thermal process to enable the formation of an
electric field within the PV cell.

Etching is the process that is applied on the border of the wafers to prevent
direct electrical shorting between the fromt and the back of each PV cell.

Secondary rinsing is the process during which the wafer surface is
chemically cleaned to remove the silicon dioxide that may have formed on
the surface of the wafer in order to improve the cell's capacity to absorb

sunlight.

PECVD is the process which produces a silicon nitride film on the wafer's
surface in the front, which improves the PV cell's capaciry to absorb
sunlight.

Through the screen-printing process, negative and positive metal contacts,
or electrodes, are printed on the front and back surfaces of the PV cell,

Silicon and metal electrodes are connected through an electrode firing
process in a conveyor belt fumnace at high temperature.

PV cells are tested to determine their electrical performance and sorted
based on their conversion rate,

The following diagram shows the production procedguor our PV modules:

Welding

.

Lamination

l

Framing

.

Testing

Multiple PV cells are interconnected based on the desired electrical
configurations through welding.

The mierconnecied cells are then laid out and laminaied in 8 vacuum
through a heating process. Through lamination, PV modules are
sealed in weatherproof packages that can withstand high levels of
ultraviolet radiation and moisture.

Assembled PV modules are packaged in protective aluminum frames
prior 1o testing.

PV modules are tested to determine their electrical performance.
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The following diagram shows the general producsitages for our ingots:

Melting i1s the process duning which we place reclmimed silicon raw

Melting malerials into a quartz crucible in a fumace, where the silicon is melied
L J
Crvstal seed Crystal seed placing is the process during which a thin crystal seed is
Naring dipped into the molten silicon to determine the crystal onentation
placing

_ Formation is the process during which the crystal seed is rotated and then
Formation slowly extracted from the molten silicon to form a single crystal as the
molten silicon and crucible cool

Y

Onee the single crystals have been grown 1o pre-determined

Completion . . ,
P specifications, they are surface-ground 1o produce ingols

Quality Control and Certifications

Our finished PV cells and PV modules are inspeeted tested according to standardized procedureaddition, we hav
established multiple inspection points at key patidun stages to identify product defects during pheduction process. Unfinish
products that are found to be below standard gained or replaced. Our quality control procedwiss include raw material qual
inspection and testing. Moreover, we provide regafaining and specific guidelines to our operattrsensure that producti
processes meet our quality inspection and othditgeantrol procedures.

We maintain several certifications for our qualigntrol procedures, which demonstrate our compdiamith international ar
domestic operating standards. We believe that oafity control procedures are enhanced by the @isophisticated productic
system designs and a high degree of automatioruinpmduction process. The certifications we cufyemaintain include ISt
9001:2000 quality system certification for the @ss of design, production and sale of our PV maglate TUV certification for o
PV modules and the UL certification. The TUV cectition is issued by an independent approval agen&ermany to certify o
PV modules are qualified for IEC 61215 and IEC @l%&afety test standards and consistent productiity inspections a
performed periodically. Maintaining this certificat has greatly enhanced our sales in EuropeantmesinWe obtained U
certification issued by Underwriters Laboratorieg.] an independent produsdfety testing and certification organization ir
United States, which will enable us to sell ourduats to customers in the United States. Furthemiorthe United States, ¢
modules have been certified by the California EpegCgmmission, the state’primary energy policy and planning agency, are
Florida Solar Energy Center, a regional energy axe$e and certification organization of the Unitetht8€s. We also obtainec
certification issued by KEMCO, an independent paeiafety testing and certification organization inré&a, which will enable us
sell our products to customers in Korea.

Capacity Expansion and Technology Upgrade Plans

As of April 30, 2010, we had 1,000 MW of annual RMdule production capacity and 700 MW of annualde\l productiol
capacity in commercial operation. We plan to expamdPV module production capacity from 1,000 MWL{600 MW by the end
2011 and our PV cell production capacity from 70&/Nb 1,300 MW by the end of 2011. We also planxpaad our annual ing
production capacity from 415 MW to 1,000 MW and aalnwire sawing capacity from 500 MW to 1,000 MW ttne end of 201
We are constructing manufacturing buildings in @igland Lianyungang, Jiangsu Province to accommaulat@lanned expansi
of production capacities. In December 2010, weredt&to an investment letter of intent with Nargdeconomic and Technologit
Development Zone to build cell and module productiacilities with an annual production capacity2fGW in Nantong, Jiang
Province. We plan to complete the first phase efdéll and module production facilities with an aahproduction capacity of 1 G
in three years. As one of our key strategies, venih to continuously improve the conversion efficie of our solar products. V
plan to adopt selective emitter technology in aisting cell production lines with an annual protioe capacity of 160 MW in tt
second half of 2011.

The expansion plans and capacities indicated ahowéndicative only of our current plans and arkjestt to change due tc
number of factors, including, among others, madcgtditions and demand for our products. Based erctirent market conditior
we expect to incur capital expenditures of US$450il0on for 2011, which will be used primarily fquurchasing manufacturi
equipment and building production facilities in N@amg, Qidong and Lianyungang, Jiangsu Province plde to fund the balance
our capital expenditure requirements for 2011 wakh from operations, additional bank borrowings ather forms of financing,
necessary.
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Sales and Distribution

We sell our PV modules through distributors aneédty to system integrators. Our customers inciaternational solar pow
system integrators and distributors. Our systeragirattor customers provide valadded services and typically design and
complete systems that use our PV modules.

Customers that accounted for a significant portbour total net revenues in 2010 included Qcelts Busol, Conergy, Isoli
Ingenieria SA, Meridian Solarpark XXXIlIl GMBH, Sché, Scatec and Nobility Solar Projects. Our fiveyést customers accoun
for an aggregate of 53.2%, 65.3% and 51.9% of etirewvenues in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectivaly l@gest customer in 20(
2009 and 2010 accounted for 22.2%, 41.4% and 38f68ar net revenues of the respective year.

We have established two wholly owned subsidiarieanely SolarOne U.S.A. and SolarOne Deutschlandnaoket ou
products and provide customer support and servidbdse markets. The following table sets forth wefr revenues by geograp
region, based on the location that our invoicessar# to, and the percentage contribution of e&these regions to our net reveni
for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Net Net Net Net
Revenue: % of Net Revenue: % of Net Revenue: Revenue: % of Net
Region (RMB) Revenue (RMB) Revenue (RMB) (US$) Revenue
(In thousands, except percentage:
Germany 2,637,43 53.%  2,668,47 70.6% 4,706,76 713,14t 62.5%
Spain 1,246,30! 25.2% 37,32¢ 1.C% 131,16t 19,87 1.7%
PRC 329,15! 6.7% 177,47¢ 4.7% 591,14: 89,56 7.%
Italy 119,27: 2.4% 4,44¢ 0.1% 572,42( 86,73( 7.€%
Australia 32,58¢ 0.€% 177,63 4.7% 407,26: 61,70¢ 5.4%
Czech Republi — — 245,81« 6.5% 165,90t 25,137 2.2%
USA 5,97¢ 0.1% 17,30¢ 0.5% 436,74° 66,17« 5.8%
Others 578,33 11.7% 449,83. 11.% 515,58: 78,11¢ 6.9%
Total 4,949,06: 100.(%  3,778,31l 100.% 7,526,99: 1,140,45. 100.(%

In 2010, we shipped our products to over 40 custsnie 2008, 2009 and 2010, customers accountingG@®% or more of o
net revenues collectively accounted for 22.2%, %ilahd 33.6% of our net revenues, respectively,sahek to our largest custor
accounted for 22.2%, 41.4% and 33.6% of our net¢mags, respectively. We seek to further diversify geographic presence ¢
customer base in order to achieve a balanced atdisable growth.

Warranty

We provide a two to five-year warranty for techmidefects and a 19ear limited warranty against declines of greatent10%
and a 20 to 2%ear limited warranty against declines of greatent20%, in the initial power generation capacitpar PV modules
After-sales services for our PV modules and solar agpgitasystems covered by warranties are providediny internationg
customer support team. We provided RMB46.6 milliBWVB33.7 million and RMB67.6 million (US$10.2 mifiin) in warranty cos
for the two to five-year warranty against technidefects in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

Our intellectual property is an essential elemdrauw business. We rely on patent, copyright, tradek, trade secret and ot
intellectual property law, as well as noampetition and confidentiality agreements with eorployees, suppliers, business par
and others, to protect our intellectual properghts.

As of April 30, 2011, we had been granted 20 patdayt the State Intellectual Property Office of Ghimnd had 14 pate
applications pending in China. Our issued patemid pending patent applications relate primarilyprocess technologies -
manufacturing PV cells.

We have registered “Solarfungur trademark for our PV cells and modules, witke Bhina Trademark Office and
International Bureau of the World Intellectual Pedy Organization, which allow us to use this tradek in China, Singapore a
the United States.

On January 10, 2011, we filed the application gigter our new trademark, “Hanwha SolarOneith the International Burei
for Intellectual Property. We started to use the tademark in May 2011.
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We rely on trade secret protection and confideitjialgreements to protect our proprietary informatand knowhow. Ou
management and each of our research and developresstnnel have entered into a standard annualogmpht contract, whic
includes confidentiality undertakings and an ackieolgement and agreement that all inventions, desiyade secrets, works
authorship, developments and other processes geddrg them on our behalf are our property, anigassto us any ownerst
rights that they may claim in those works. Our dymontracts with our customers also typically ud# confidentiality undertaking
Despite these precautions, it may be possibleHiod parties to obtain and use intellectual propénat we own or license withc
consent. Unauthorized use of our intellectual priypey third parties, and the expenses incurrgaratecting our intellectual prope
rights, may materially and adversely affect ouribess, financial condition, results of operationd @rospects. Sedtém 3.D. Risl
Factors — Risks Related to Our Company and Ourdingdu— Our failure to protect our intellectual propertghts may undermir
our competitive position, and litigation to protectr intellectual property rights may be costly.”

Competition

Due to various government incentive programs imglet®d in China, Europe, the United States, Japdro#rer countries
recent years, the global PV market has been ragidbjving and has become highly competitive. Intipalar, a large number
manufacturers have entered the solar market.

Our main overseas competitors are, among otherssublshi Electric Corporation, Sharp Corporationd aBunpowe
Corporation. Our primary competitors in China irdtduSuntech Power Holdings Co., Ltd., Trina Solat.LYingli Green Ener¢
Holdings Co., Ltd. and Canadian Solar Inc. We campmimarily on the basis of the power efficienquality, performance ai
appearance of our products, price, strength oflgughmin and distribution network, afteales service and brand image. Many o
competitors have longer operating histories andifsa@intly greater financial or technological resoes than we do and enjoy gre
brand recognition. Some of our competitors areicaty integrated and produce upstream silicon sifidon wafers, midstream P
cells and modules and downstream solar applicaystems, which provide them with greater synertfieschieve lower productit
costs. During periods when there was a supply aperof silicon and silicon wafers, we competedrisédy with our competitors
obtaining adequate supplies of silicon and silia@fers.

Moreover, many of our competitors are developingtigeneration products based on new PV technologreduding
amorphous silicon, transparent conductive oxida ftin, carbon material and namwystalline technologies, which, if success
will compete with the crystalline silicon technologve currently use in our manufacturing processgwough our resear
collaborations, we are also seeking to develop teelnologies and products. If we fail to develop/technologies and products i
timely manner, we may lose our competitive advastag

We, like other solar energy companies, also facepetition from traditional noisolar energy industries, such as the petro
and coal industries. The production cost per whtatar energy is significantly higher than othgpds of energy. As a result,
cannot assure you that solar energy will be abledmpete with other energy industries, especidlliyhére is a reduction
termination of government incentives and other ®ohsupport.

Environmental Matters

Our manufacturing processes generate noise, waater,wgaseous wastes and other industrial wastes.m@nufacturin
facilities are subject to various pollution contregulations with respect to noise and air pollutand the disposal of waste
hazardous materials. We are also subject to periadpections by local environmental protectiorhatties. We have establishe
pollution control system and installed various eguént to process and dispose of our industrialevastl hazardous materials.
believe that we have obtained all requisite envirental permits and approvals to conduct our businé&g also maintain an I¢
14001 environmental management system certificatihich is issued by International Organization ferandardization
demonstrate our compliance with international esinental standards. We have not been subject tavetgrial proceedings
fines for environmental violations.

Insurance

We maintain property insurance for our equipmemto@obiles, facilities and inventory. A significgmbrtion of our fixed asse
are covered by these insurance policies. We alsptaia business interruption insurance, produdiility insurance, product quali
guarantee insurance and export credit insuranceb®lleve our insurance coverage is customary aadatd for companies

comparable size in comparable industries in CHitmvever, our existing insurance policies may nosbfficient to insulate us fro
all losses and liabilities that we may incur.

Regulation

This section sets forth a summary of the most igmit regulations or requirements that affect business activities in Chi
or our shareholders’ right to receive dividends atiger distributions from us.

Renewable Energy Law and Other Government Direcsi

In February 2005, China’s Standing Committee ofiodetl Peoples Congress, or SCNPC, enacted the Renewable Ehavg
which has become effective on January 1, 2006. @ceBber 26, 2009, the Renewable Energy law was dedeoy SCNPC. Ti



Renewable Energy law, as amended, sets forth ti@nahpolicy to encourage and support the devekmrand use of solar a
other renewable energy and the use of on-grid g¢iner
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The law also sets forth the national policy to emage the installation and use of solar energy miaating systems, so
energy heating and cooling systems, solar photaiokystems and other solar energy utilizationesyst In addition, the le
provides financial incentives, such as nationatlifng, preferential loans and tax preferences ferdiavelopment of renewable ene
projects.

China’s Ministry of Construction also issued a directivelune 2005 that sought to expand the use of sokamgy in residenti
and commercial buildings and encouraged the ineceapplication of solar energy in different towmshiln addition, Ching' Stat
Council promulgated a directive in July 2005 thet #rth principles with regard to the conservatmfnenergy resources and
development and use of solar energy in the wegtarnof China, which has not been covered by e#gtitransmission grids al
rural areas.

In January 2006, the NDRC issued two implementingsrrelating to the Renewable Energy Law: (1)THal Measures on il
Administration over the Pricing and Cost AllocatiohRenewable Energy Power Generation and (2) miAistrative Regulatior
Relating to the Renewable Energy Power Generaltibase implementing rules, among other things, @t general policies for tl
pricing of ongrid power generated by solar and other renewabérgg. In addition, the PRC Ministry of Financeuisd thi
Provisional Measures for Administration of SpecHignds for Development of Renewable Energy in R0@6, which provides th
the PRC government will establish a fund specifjcébr the purpose of supporting the developmentthe renewable ener
industry, including the PV industry.

On March 3, 2008, the NDRC issued the “11th FivextYelan for the Development of Energy Resourcebjth announced tl
PRC government’s support for the development oéweble energy resources in China, including sabargy.

On March 23, 2009, China'Ministry of Finance promulgated the Interim Measufor Administration of Government Subs
Funds for Application of Solar Photovoltaic Tectog} in Building Construction, or the Interim Meassy to support th
demonstration and the promotion of solar photowwli@pplication in China. Local governments are emaged to issue a
implement supporting policies for the developmesaar photovoltaic technology. Under these ImeMeasures, the Ministry
Finance provides subsidies for projects with indli’l solar installations that are greater thanifsivatt-peak in size and have mi
than 16% conversion efficiency for monocrystalliR¥ products, more than 14% conversion efficiency rfalticrystalline P\
products and more than 6% conversion efficiency dororphous silicon PV products, and gives priogtypport to solar P
technology integrated into building constructiondeconnected PV building applications and some puP\cbuilding applicatior
such as schools, hospitals and offices. For 20@standard subsidy is set at RMB20 per watt ingple and the detailed standar
to be determined by factors including, but not tadi to, the level of integration of building with/Pand the technology of F
products. The Interim Measures do not apply to gutsj completed before March 23, 2009, the promigdgadate of the Interil
Measures.

On April 16, 2009, the General Offices of the PR@istry of Finance and the PRC Ministry of Housiagd UrbanRura
Development jointly issued the Guidelines for Deafimn of Demonstration Project of Solar PhotovioltBuilding Applications
These guidelines set the subsidy given out in 200gualified solar projects at no more than RMB20 watt for projects involvir
the integration of PV components into buildinguctural elements and at no more than RMB15 et for projects involving tr
installation of PV components onto building rooftand wall surfaces.

On May 27, 2010, the Ministry of Housing and Urlawmral Development issued the City lllumination Adistratior
Provisions, or the Illumination Provisions, effeetias of July 1, 2010. The lllumination Provisi@mourage the installation and
of renewable energy systems such as PV systerhs pprocess of construction and re-constructiontgfillumination projects.

On March 8, 2011, the Notice on Further PromotibBuwildings with Renewable Energy, or the Noticgsaointly released |
the PRC Ministry of Finance and the PRC MinistryHidusing and UrbaRural Development. The Notice expressly specifie
goal of promoting the application of renewable ggen buildings under the Twelfth Fivéear Plan is to substantially improve
proportion of renewable energy used in buildings|uding solar energy, shallow geothermal energy l@iomass energy, so that
consumption of renewable energy in buildings shatiount for over 15% of the total building energgnsumption by the end
2020. The Twelfth Five-Year Plan promotes the useepewable energy in buildings. The Twelfth Fivear Plan mandates tl
efforts shall be made to increase the gross floemsaof buildings serviced by renewable energytr @.5 billion square meters ¢
to use renewable energy to substitute 30 millicad by the end of 2015.

Environmental Regulations

We use, generate and discharge toxic, volatilaglmraise hazardous chemicals and wastes in ouangdsand development ¢
manufacturing activities. We are subject to a \wareé¢ governmental regulations related to the gferaise and disposal of hazarc
materials. The major environmental regulations i@pple to us include the Environmental Protecti@wLof the PRC, the Law
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Poliytionplementation Rules of the Law of PRC on thevention and Control
Water Pollution, the Law of PRC on the Preventiad &ontrol of Air Pollution, the Law of PRC on tReevention and Control
Solid Waste Pollution, and the Law of PRC on thevention and Control of Noise Pollution.
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Restriction on Foreign Businesse

The principal regulation governing foreign ownepsbif solar photovoltaic businesses in the PRC ésRbreign Investme
Industrial Guidance Catalogue (effective as of Datmer 1, 2007). Under the regulation, the solar @dtaic business falls into t
category of encouraged foreign investment industry.

Tax

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based xabka income determined under PRC accounting pliesi On March 1
2007, the National PeopkeCongress of the PRC passed the EIT, which tdekteds of January 1, 2008. In accordance wittEfig
a unified enterprise income tax rate of 25% andieshitax deduction standards are applied equallypdth domestidavester
enterprises and foreignvested enterprises, such as SolarOne QidongrEiges established prior to March 16, 2007 elgifur
preferential tax treatment in accordance with threner tax laws and administrative regulations angler the regulation of the St
Council, gradually becoming subject to the newrabe over a fiverear transition period that started on the dateffifctiveness ¢
the EIT. In accordance with the Notice of the Stateincil on the Implementation of the TransitioRa¢ferential Policies in resp
of Enterprise Income Tax, foreignvested enterprises established prior to Marci206y7 and eligible for preferential tax treatm
such as SolarOne Qidong, will continue to enjoygteferential tax treatment in the manner and dutiire period as former laws ¢
regulations provided until such period expires. Wlihe EIT equalizes the tax rates for FIEs and ekiivally owned enterpris
preferential tax treatment continues to be gratdetbmpanies in certain encouraged sectors andripanies classified asigh anc
new technology enterprisesyhich enjoy a tax rate of 15% as compared to thiform tax rate of 25%. SolarOne Qidong \
approved to be qualified as a “high and new teabmolkenterprise” on October 21, 2008. The “high aed technology enterprise”
status is valid for a period of three years from dlate of issuance of a “high and new technolodgrprise”certificate. If there is ar
significant change in the compasybusiness operations, manufacturing technologiesher areas that cause it to no longer qu
as a “high and new technology enterprise”, suctustaill be terminated from the year of such change

In accordance with the FIE Tax Law, the EIT andeottelevant tax regulations, SolarOne Qidong wasrgted from state a
local enterprise income tax in 2005 and 2006 ansl taged at a reduced rate of 12% in 2007, 12.520@8 and 12.5% in 2009 &
15% in 2010. The “high and new technology entegirigatus of SolarOne Qidong will expire in Octobel POSolarOne Qidong h
re-applied for the “high and new technology entisgsrqualification and expects to receive a responsa fiee government regardi
the application by August 2011. If SolarOne Qidangpplication is approved, SolarOne Qidong willtomre to enjoy a preferent
income tax rate of 15% in 2011, 2012 and 2013; @thérwise SolarOne Qidong will be subject to arome tax rate of 25% fro
2011. From 2005 until the end of 2009, SolarOneoQidwas also exempt from the 3% local income taiegible to foreign-
invested enterprises in Jiangsu Province. In anditinder relevant PRC tax rules and regulatioolmr&ne Qidong was entitled t
two-year income tax exemption on income generated fadditional investment in the production capacitySaflarOne Qidor
resulting from our contribution to SolarOne Qidarfgfunds we received through issuances of seriesrvertible preference sha
in a private placement in June and August 2006 veaslentitled to a reduced tax rate of 12.5% fertthiee years thereafter. In 2(
we recorded a provision of RMB116.1 million (US$ Tillion) for unrecognized tax benefits relatedSmlarOne Qidong due to
uncertainty as to whether this subsidiary would tmoegtain requirements of “high and new technolegyerprise’status during it
annual sellassessment in order to be eligible for the reduedd In addition, our subsidiaries, SolarOne Tedhgy and Sole
Shanghai, are subject to an enterprise incomeataxof 25% from 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to SAT Circular 698, issued by the Statmifistration of Taxation on December 10, 2009 wittioactive effect frol
January 1, 2008, if a namsident enterprise transfers its equity inter@gsta PRC resident indirectly via disposing of thyuigy
interests of an overseas holding company, or lotifeansfer, and such overseas holding compargceted in a tax jurisdiction tf
(i) has an effective tax rate less than 12.5% ipd@es not tax foreign income of its residentg, threign investor shall report st
Indirect Transfer to the competent tax authorityhaf PRC resident enterprise. The PRC tax authwailtyexamine the true nature
the Indirect Transfer, and if the tax authority siolers that the foreign investor has adopted asiadwarrangement in order to av
PRC tax, it will disregard the existence of the rgeas holding company and e¢karacterize the Indirect Transfer and, as a r,
gains derived from such Indirect Transfer may bigiextt to PRC withholding tax at the rate of up @6 SAT Circular 698 als
provides that, where a nd?RC resident enterprise transfers its equity istsrin a PRC resident enterprise to its relatetigzaat
price lower than the fair market value, the relévax authority has the power to make a reasoratjlestment to the taxable gair
the transaction. SAT Circular 698 states that @ésdoot apply to purchases or sales of stock oock stxchange.

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulation of Chinavatue-Added Tax and their implementing rules, all ensitend individual
that are engaged in the sale of goods, the provisiaepairs and replacement services and the itafan of goods in China &
generally required to pay value-added tax at aohte/% of the gross sales proceeds received aegsieductible valuadded ta
already paid or borne by the taxpayer. Furthermoten exporting goods, the exporter is entitled fwortion of or all the refund
valueadded tax that it has already paid or borne. Opoited raw materials that are used for manufagjuexport products and ¢
deposited in bonded warehouses are exempt fromrtraplue-added tax.
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Foreign Currency Exchange

Foreign currency exchange in China is primarilygyoed by the following regulations:
. Foreign Exchange Administration Rules (1996), asraed; an
. Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payment ofiioEexchange (1996

Under the Foreign Exchange Administration Rules, Renminbi is convertible for current account itemsluding distributiol
of dividends, payment of interest, trade and seratated foreign exchange transactions. Converdidgteaminbi for capital accou
items, such as direct investment, loan, securitiesstment and repatriation of investment, howeigestill subject to the approval
SAFE.

Under the Regulations of Settlement, Sale and PatwfeForeign Exchange, foreignvested enterprises may only buy,
and/or remit foreign currencies at those banksai#éd to conduct foreign exchange business afteviging valid commerci:
documents and, in the case of capital account itamsactions, obtaining approval from the SAFE. i@hajmnvestments by foreign-
invested enterprises outside of China are alseestlp limitations, which include approvals by t@istry of Commerce, SAFE al
the NDRC.

Dividend Distribution

The principal regulations governing distributionddfidends paid by wholly foreign-owned enterprigadude:
*  Wholly Foreigr-Owned Enterprise Law (1986), as amended;
*  Wholly Foreigr-Owned Enterprise Law Implementation Rules (1999amendec

Under these regulations, wholly foreigmned enterprises in China may pay dividends onlyad their accumulated profits,
any, determined in accordance with PRC accountemgdairds and regulations. In addition, wholly fgrebwned enterprises in Chi
are required to set aside at least 10% of thedr-&dk profit based on PRC accounting standards eaahtp its general reserves u
the accumulated amount of such reserves reacheobd%oregistered capital. These reserves aralistibutable as cash dividen
The board of directors of a foreign-invested errisgphas the discretion to allocate a portion ®hitertax profits to staff welfare ai
bonus funds, which may not be distributed to eqoityers except in the event of liquidation.
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C.

Organizational Structure

Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd., or Hanwha Solagcame our largest shareholder through a seriesaokdctions i
September 2010. Hanwha Solar, a company that esgagseolar business, is a whollyvned subsidiary of Hanwha Chem
Corporation, a leading chemical producer publichded on the Korea Exchange whose principal aetsvidre the production of C
PE, and PVC products. After Hanwha Solar becamdargest shareholder, we changed our name frSolaffun Power Holding
Co., Ltd.” to “Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.” on Decami20, 2010 and our ticker from “SOLF” to “HSObh February 15, 2011. v

also changed the names of our subsidiaries. Ttgradiabelow sets forth the entities directly or fedily controlled by us as
April 30, 2011.

1 (%

L

Our Company
(Cavman lslands)

l 100%%

Hamwha SolarOne U.S A, Inc'"

Hanwha SolarOne Investment

(United States) Holding Ltd."*
{British Virgin 1slands)
100%%
k
Hanwha SolarOne Hong
kong Limited”
{Hong Kong)
l 1 005 v 1 060%% 100"
Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) Hamwha SolarOne (Chdong) Hanwha SolarOne
Co., Ltd. Co.. Ltd™¥ Deutschland GmbH™
(PRC) (PRC) {Germany )
1P e 1 00%% ([ | O 1 0P
L 4
Shanghai Linyang Hanwha Solar

Solar Technology
Co, Lid
(PRC)

Engineenng Research
and Development
Center Co.. Lid™

(PRC)

Hanwha SolarOne
Technology Co., Ltd
(PRC)"™

Hamwha Solar
Electric Power
Engmneermg Co., Lid.
(PRC)™

Nantong Hanwha
Import & Export Co.,
Ltd.

{PRC)

Notes:
Formerly known as Solarfun Power U.S.A. Ir

Formerly known as Linyang Solar Power Investmenitdihg Ltd.;
Formerly known as Solarfun Power Hong Kong Limit
Formerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co.,;L

Formerly known as Solarfun Power Deutschland Grr

@)
)
®)
(4)
®)
(6)
@)
©)

Formerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun EngimgeResearch and Development Center Co., |

Formerly known as Jiangsu Yangguang Solar TechyaBig, Ltd.; anc
Formerly known as Jiangsu Linyang Solar Electrisv®oEngineering Co., Ltc
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D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Our corporate headquarters and manufacturing tiasilare located in the Linyang Industrial Parkdd@pig, Jiangsu Provinc
China, where we hold the land use rights for al tatea of 258,319 square meters, which expire 8953 and 2060. We oy
office and manufacturing facilities for a total gsofloor area of 79,138 square meters in Qidoramgdu Province. We leased
office of 3,600 square meters in Qidong, JiangsoviRce from Linyang Electronics, which will expien January 8, 2012. 1
facilitate our capacity expansion, we leased martufang facilities with a total gross floor area approximately 45,500 sque
meters and dormitories with a total gross flooraané approximately 39,635 square meters in Qiddrangsu Province. The leas
will expire between June 2011 and January 2013 nwhe new facilities are expected to be put inte.Us addition, SolarOn
Technology holds the land use rights for a totalhanf approximately 976,905 square meters and @ffite and manufacturin
facilities for a total gross floor area of 33,73fuare meters in Lianyungang, Jiangsu Province. Mteranewed the lease of a gr
floor area of approximately 1,500 square meteroforHanwhaSolarOne Engineering, Research and DevelopmeneC€eut, Ltd.
in Shanghai in May 2010, and the renewed lease exillire in May 2014. We entered into a contracthw@idong Huahon
Electronics Co., Ltd., a company controlled by Monghua Lu, our former chairman, to lease an offiééh a gross floor area
1,116 square meters from September 1, 2010 to Atdu013. In 2008, 2009 and 2010, our rental egpe were RMB6.3 millior
RMB9.6 million and RMB9.4 million (US$1.4 millionyespectively.

As of April 30, 2010, we had an annual PV moduledpiction capacity of 1,000 MW and an annual PV padduction capacit
of 700 MW. As of April 30, 2010, we also had 415 Maf/ annual ingot production capacity and 500 MWaahual wire sawin
capacity.

We believe that our existing facilities are adeguatd suitable to meet our present needs. We areowstructing buildings i
Qidong and Lianyungang to accommodate our planmxgaresion of production capacity. In December 2048, entered into a
investment letter of intent with Nantong EconomiudaTechnological Development Zone to build cell anddule productiol
facilities with an annual production capacity oG2V in Nantong, Jiangsu Province. We plan to coneplbé first phase of the ci
and module production facilities with an annualdarction capacity of 1 GW in three years.

ITEM 4A UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 5 OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
The following discussion should be read in conjura with the rest of this annual report, includinghe consolidated financia
statements and notes thereto contained elsewherthig annual report. The results discussed belove arot necessarily indicativ

of the results to be expected in any future periods

A. Operating Results

Overview

We are a vertically integrated manufacturer oteifi ingots, silicon wafers, PV cells and PV modite€hina. We manufactu
a variety of silicon ingots, silicon wafers, PV Isehnd PV modules using advanced manufacturingegsotechnologies that ha
helped us to rapidly increase our operational iefficy. Since 2009, substantially all of the ingetsfers and PV cells we produc
have been used for our own PV module production. al¢e provide PV module processing services. WeR¢élcells and P\
modules both directly to system integrators andugh third-party distributors.

We commenced operations on August 27, 2004 thr@gjarOne Qidong. On August 27, 2004, Linyang Etettrs, one of th
leading electricitymeasuring instrument manufacturers in China, ow68&b of the equity interests of SolarOne Qidong
anticipation of our initial public offering, we ingporated Hanwha SolarOne in the Cayman Islandslay 12, 2006 as our listir
vehicle. To enable us to raise equity capital frommestors outside of China, we established a hgldiompany structure
incorporating SolarOne BVI in the British Virginldmds on May 17, 2006. SolarOne BVI is wholly owrlgdHanwha SolarOn:
SolarOne BVI purchased all of the equity inter@stSolarOne Qidong on June 2, 2006 from Linyangttmics and the three otf
shareholders of SolarOne Qidong for aggregate derstion of US$7.3 million. This transaction wascamted for as
recapitalization. On May 16, 2007, SolarOne BVlakfished a wholly owned subsidiary, SolarOne Horapd In March 200€
April 2006 and April 2007, we established three anij-owned or wholly owned subsidiaries in China, S@aanghai, Sichue
Jiayang and Solar R&D, respectively, to expand lmusiness into new markets and sectors. We acqairg2 equity interest |
Solar Technology in July 2007 and acquired the ieimg 48% in August 2008. In September 2007, waldisthed a wholly owne
subsidiary, SolarOne U.S.A., as part of our plaeriter the United States market. On November 307 28olarOne BVI transferre
all of the equity interests in SolarOne Qidong ®WaB80ne Hong Kong for consideration of US$199.0ioml In February 2008, w
established a wholly owned subsidiary, SolarOnet&land in Germany, to sell solar products in Eheopean markets. W
liquidated Sichuan Jiayang, one of our subsidiasieh historically has had limited operations,Judy 2008. In November 2009, \
acquired the remaining 17% interest in Solar Shanghd Solar Shanghai became our wholly owned digvgiafter the completio
of this transaction. We established Hanwha Solactit Power Engineering Co., Ltd. in May 2010 un8elarOne Qidong t
engage in the solar power project busin
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We entered into a share purchase agreement on ABgA810 with Hanwha Chemical Corporation, or HaawChemical,
leading chemical producer publicly traded on thedéoExchange whose principal activities are thelpecton of CA, PE and PV
products. Under such share purchase agreement,hda@hemical agreed to purchase 36,455,089 ordsteases from us at a pr
of US$2.144 per ordinary share, which corresponds price of US$10.72 per ADS. Hanwha Chemical egbently assigned a
transferred its rights and obligations under tharstpurchase agreement to Hanwha Solar, a whollyedveubsidiary of Hanw!
Chemical and the sale and purchase of these oydshares was consummated on September 16, 20a@dition, we entered intc
share issuance and repurchase agreement on Septe3nB010 with Hanwha Solar, under which we agteddsue to Hanwha So
a total of 45,080,019 ordinary shares at par vafugS$0.0001 per ordinary share, which shares saalhin outstanding so long
and to the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSs we issoiddcilitate our convertible bond offering in d@amy 2008 remain outstandil
Pursuant to the share issuance and repurchaseregrgeve issued to Hanwha Solar 30,672,689 ordishayes on September
2010 and an additional 14,407,330 ordinary shaneSlarch 10, 2011. The total proceeds to us fronsdheansactions amountec
US$78.2 million. At the same time, Hanwha Solar ptated the acquisitions from Good Energies Il LB &onghua Solar Pow
Investment Holding Ltd. of a total of 120,407,70@linary shares and 1,281,011 ADSs of our compaggresenting all of tt
ordinary shares and ADSs held by them. In conneatiith our public offering of 9,200,000 ADSs in Nember 2010, we issued
Hanwha Solar an additional 45,981,604 ordinaryeshat a price of US$1.80 per ordinary share putdoaa shareholder agreem
we and Hanwha Solar entered into on SeptemberdB).2As a result of these transactions, Hanwhar Sul@s an approximate
49.8% equity interest in our company. We changadname from “Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd.”“tdanwha SolarOne Ci
Ltd.” on December 20, 2010 and our ticker from “FOlto “HSOL” on February 15, 2011. In April 2011, we establishaohton
Hanwha Import & Export Co., Ltd., or Nantong HanwB&, under SolarOne Qidong to engage in import exgort of PV produc
and technology and Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) Cul,, lor SolarOne Nantong, under SolarOne Hong Ktmglevelog
manufacture and sell PV products.

We shipped 172.8 MW, 313.4 MW and 797.9 MW of PVdules (including PV module processing) in 2008,2@8d 201(
respectively. The average selling price of our P¥dmes (excluding PV module processing) was RMB26RMB15.27 an
RMB11.58 (US$1.75) per watt in 2008, 2009 and 20&8pectively. In 2008, 2009 and 2010, 93.3%, 95B%92.1%, respective
of our net revenues were attributable to salesustotners outside of the PRC. Moreover, in 2008,9280d 2010, custome
accounting for more than 10% of our net revenuesatted in the aggregate for 22.2%, 41.4% and 33r6%pectively, of our n
revenues.

Our net revenues decreased from RMB4,949.1 millian 2008 to RMB3,778.3 million in 2009, but incredsdc
RMB7,527.0 million (US$1,140.5 million) in 2010. ©oonsolidated net income increased from a net d6$83MB265.9 million ir
2008 to a net loss of RMB144.9 million in 2009, ancteased to net income of RMB757.4 million (US&Blmillion) in 2010.

Limited Operating History

We have a limited operating history upon which yaum evaluate our business. You should consideriske and difficultie
frequently encountered by companies with a reltigbort operating history, such as us, in new @pidly evolving markets, su
as the PV market. Our rapid revenue growth sincstarted operations in August 2004 should not kertas indicative of the rate
revenue growth, if any, that can be expected irfih@e. In addition, our limited operating histguyovides a limited historical ba
to assess the impact that critical accounting fEsimay have on our business and our financiabpednce.

Key Factors Affecting Our Financial Performance
The most significant factors affecting our finahgiarformance are:
. industry demanc
. average selling price of our PV produc
. price and availability of silicon and silicon wade
. manufacturing capacity; ar

. process technologie
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Industry Demand

Our business and revenue growth depends on PVtimyddsmand. There has been significant growth @RV market in tr
past decade. However, beginning in the seconddia®008, many of our key markets, including Germafgain and the Unit
States, and other national economies have expedea@eriod of economic contraction or significarsiower economic growth.
particular, the current credit crisis, weak consuomfidence and diminished consumer and busirgssding have contributed t
significant slowdown in the market demand for P\@darcts due to decreased energy requirements. Mapbyrocustomers ha
experienced difficulty in obtaining financing, aeden if they have been able to obtain financing, ¢bst of such financing
increased and our customers may change their deaisichange the timing of their decision to pusshaur products. As a res
this lack of, and increase in the cost of, finagdmave lowered and may continue to lower demanadorproducts and reduced
net revenues. A protracted disruption in the gbiit our customers to obtain financing could leadxtsignificant reduction in th
future orders for our products, which in turn coblsve a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results
operations. See “Item 3.D. Risk Factors—Risks egldab Our Company and Our Industripemand for our PV products has be
and may continue to be, adversely affected by Welatarket and industry trendProm the second half of 2008 to the first hal
2009, increased manufacturing capacity in the itrigusso contributed to a decline in the sellingcerof PV products. As glok
economic condition began improving in the seconld 682009, demand for PV products began to inoeedsring 2010, whic
contributed to an increase in the selling pric@¥9fproducts in 2010 along with the decreased matwfiag capacity in 2010. Su
increase was offset by the sale of inventory acdated during the economic downturn. A large portdrour sales is denominatec
Euros. The depreciation of Euro in the first hdl2610 and the appreciation of Euro in the secaaltidf 2010 also contributed to 1
change of our average selling price per watt of@dmodules in 2010.

The average selling price per watt of our PV maoslulecreased from RMB26.77 in 2008 to RMB15.27 ia®and RMB11.5
(US$1.75) in 2010. The average selling price pett whour PV modules decreased from RMB13.3 in ltke quarter of 2009
RMB12.01 in the first quarter of 2010 and RMB11ifi%he second quarter of 2010 and rebounded to RMEland RMB11.8;
respectively, in the third and fourth quarter oi@0The change in the average selling price pet efaiur PV modules is consisti
with the industry trend.

Average Selling Price of Our PV Produc

PV products are priced based on the number of veditedectricity they can generate. Pricing of P\6durcts is principall
affected by manufacturing costs, including the sadtsilicon and silicon wafers, as well as theralledemand in the PV indust
Increased economies of scale and advancement ckggotechnologies over the past decade have astol@ reduction i
manufacturing costs and the prices of PV products.

We generally price our products based on the plieganarket price at the time our customers isaurelpase orders, taking ir
account the size of the purchase order, the stiesugd history of our relationship with each custored our capacity utilizatio
Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2008, demandRdt products decreased as a result of the globahéiial crisis, but the supply
PV products increased significantly as many marnufacs of PV products worldwide, including our caamy, engaged in significe
production capacity expansion in recent years. $tage of ovesupply has resulted in reductions in the prevaitimgrket prices «
PV products as manufacturers have reduced theiageeselling prices in an attempt to obtain salbs. average selling prices of «
products started to decline in the fourth quarfe2a®8. The average selling price per watt of odrrRodules (excluding PV modt
processing) decreased from RMB26.77 in 2008 to RMBL in 2009, and to RMB11.58 (US$1.75) in 2010e Thanges in tl
average selling prices of our PV modules primardflected the prevailing market trend. We expeet the prices of PV produs
will continue to decline over time due to increasegply of PV products, reduced manufacturing cbrst® improving technoloc
and economies of scale, and continuing decreadées iprices of silicon and silicon wafers.

Price and Availability of Silicon and Silicon Wafet

Prior to mid-2008, there was an industmide shortage of silicon and silicon wafers, whiasulted in significant pric
increases. To secure an adequate and timely swpgificon and silicon wafers during the earlieripds of supply shortage,
entered into a number of multi-year supply agreamérhe prices in the agreements we entered imbo for mid-2008 were general
pre-determined, but some of these agreements proviaeadfustments in subsequent years to reflect a@wmimgmarket conditions
through mutual agreement.

Since the fourth quarter of 2008, the market pricesilicon and silicon wafers have been decransignificantly. Spot mark
prices of silicon and silicon wafer prices havelefalbelow the price we have contracted for with targterm suppliers ar
continued to decline in 2009. The rapid declinethim prices of silicon and silicon wafers couplethvdecreases in demand for
products have hampered our ability to pass on tocagtomers the cost of our raw materials whichewgocured at higher pric
during the earlier period of supply shortage. Asresult, our writedown of inventories amounted to RMB413.8 milli
RMB282.6 million and RMB134.5 million (US$20.5 niilh) in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Due to the significant decrease in prices of siliemd silicon wafers, we re-negotiated all of owdtiryear supply agreeme
that were in place as of December 31, 2009, extepagreement with LDK. After re-negotiation, tleenhs of price of such multi-
year agreements were generally subject to revidghereiperiodically or upon significant changes irices on the spot mark
Currently, there is only one multi-year supply agnent we entered into in 2010 where the priceegdptermined without any futu
adjustment. In 2010, the amount of our w-down of inventories attributable to the differerietween spot market prices and



prices we have contracted for are not materialc@il and silicon wafers secured through such nyaléir supply agreemei
provided a significant portion of our silicon anticen wafer needs in 2009 and 2010, and we exfiexte contracts will provide
significant portion of our anticipated silicon asdicon wafer needs for 2011. If we are unable dme&gotiate the prices of ¢
existing multiyear supply agreements and the prices of silicahsilicon wafers continue to decrease in the fytwe may not k
able to adjust our materials costs, and our cost\@nues would be materially and adversely aftecte
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We have historically also acquired a portion of potysilicon and silicon wafers through shtetm supply arrangements
periods ranging from several months to one yearsaod market purchases. The prices we pay foiosiland silicon wafers pursui
to shortterm supply arrangements and spot market purchaagsaccording to the prevailing market price ambuhe time ¢
delivery, which can be subject to significant flugtions. All of our shorterm supply arrangements have expired pursuartteic
terms, and due to our expectations of market comdif we anticipate fulfilling any needs for silicand silicon wafers in excess
the volumes to be delivered under our mydtar supply agreements through purchases on tharsptiet, rather than through n
short-term supply arrangements.

Manufacturing Capacity

Capacity and capacity utilization are key factarsgrowing our net revenues and gross profit. Ineoith accommodate t
growing demand for our products, we have signifiyaexpanded our manufacturing capacity in recearg. An increase in capac
has a significant effect on our financial resulisth by allowing us to produce and sell more PVdpats and achieve higher
revenues, and by lowering our manufacturing costs i@esult of increased economies of scale.

We have been seeking to maximize the utilizationwfavailable manufacturing capacity as it comediree, so as to allow |
to spread our fixed costs over a higher productiolume, thereby reducing our per unit and per MWedi costs. As we bui
additional production facilities, our fixed costdllvincrease, and the overall utilization rate afr@roduction facility could declin
which could negatively impact our gross profit. Hoxer, regardless of the capacity of a particulanufecturing facility, ou
capacity utilization may vary greatly dependingtio@ mix of products we produce at any particulaeti

We have expanded rapidly our manufacturing capaiitye our establishment in August 2004. As a tewd produced 177

MW, 342.8 MW and 797.9 MW of PV modules in 2008020and 2010, respectively. The following table detth the productio
volume of silicon ingots, wafer PV cells and PV rates for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(MW) (MW) (MW) (MW) (MW)
Volume of ingots produce — — 48.C 154.1 360.(
Volume of wafer produce — — 23.t 164.€ 387.¢
Volume of PV cells produced
(including PV cell processing 26.21) 99.€2 191.53) 260.24 502.45)
Volume of PV modules produced
(including PV module processin 19.€ 87.2 177.: 342.¢ 758.¢
Notes:

(1) Of which 19.9 MW was used in our PV module produrtt
(2) Of which 86.9 MW was used in our PV module produrtt
(3) Of which 190.5 MW was used in our PV module proaurct
(4) Of which 240.2 MW was used in our PV module proaurct
(5) Of which 490.4 MW was used in our PV module proaurct

As of April 30, 2011, we had an annual PV moduledpiction capacity of 1,000 MW and an annual PV pelduction capaci
of 700 MW. As of April 30, 2011, we also had 415 MaW annual ingot production capacity and 500 MWaahual wire sawir
capacity.

Process Technologie

Advancements of process technologies have enhaiwedrsion efficiencies of PV products. Assuminigeotthings being tt
same, high conversion efficiencies reduce the nentufing cost per watt of PV products and couldehg contribute to increasi
gross profit margins. For this reason, solar enetgypanies, including us, are continuously develgpadvanced proce
technologies for large-scale manufacturing whitku@ng costs to maintain and improve profit margins

We have achieved improvements in process techna@agyproduct quality since we commenced our comiadguooduction il
November 2005. Our monocrystalline and multicrystal PV cells achieved conversion efficiency rateshe ranges of 17.3%
18.3% and 15.5% to 17.0%, respectively, in 2010 wedare now able to process wafers as thin as li8fbms. Our advanci
process technologies have also significantly impdowur productivity and increased the efficiencyof raw material usage, bott
which have led to the lowering of the cost per wéibur products and improved our gross profit nresg
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Net Revenues

We currently generate a substantial majority of metrrevenues from the production and sale of Pdutes. We also generat
small portion of our net revenues from the salBdfcells and raw materials to third parties.

We commenced manufacturing and selling PV modutes-é@bruary 2005, and had net revenues of RMB4,62élibn,
RMB3,375.6 million and RMB6,658.6 million (US$1,008nillion) in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

We began manufacturing PV cells in November 2005 4rily to supply our PV module production. Asesult, we only sold
small number of the total PV cells we manufacturectertain customers to maintain business relatipss Since our busine
strategy is focused on increasing our own outpu®¥fmodules on a cosffficient basis, we plan to continue to use thestadtia
majority of our PV cells in manufacturing our PV dubes and will maintain our sale of PV cells tardhparties at a relatively Ic
level. In 2008, 2009 and 2010, our net revenues ftbe sale of PV cells were RMB253.1 million, RMB&&nillion anc
RMB100.6 million (US$15.2million), respectively.

We began to provide PV module processing servizgsdduce PV modules from PV cells provided by customers in 200
We recorded the amount of net revenues on PV maaolessing transactions based on the amount estéiom a customer for F
modules sold less the amount paid for PV cellstpaged from the same customer.

In the event we pay the shipping costs on behatfunfcustomers, we include the shipping costs plasedo our customers
our net revenues.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, a portion of our net reesnuas derived from the sale of raw materials tocastomers.

We record revenue net of all valadded taxes imposed by governmental authorities cafidcted by us from custom:
concurrent with revenue-producing transactions.

We currently depend on a limited number of custanfer a high percentage of our net revenues. Customrho individuall
accounted for more than 10% of our net revenuesiented for an aggregate of 22.2%, 41.4% and 3368amnet revenues in 20(
2009 and 2010, respectively. From a geographiast@int, Europe, particularly Germany, has beenlangest market. Based on
location that our invoices are sent to, in 2008)2@nd 2010, our sales to European customers aeebéor 92.5%, 85.8% al
79.6%, respectively, of our net revenues, with Garnsustomers accounting for 53.3%, 70.6% and 62rg8%pectively, in suc
periods. Although we anticipate that our dependemca limited number of customers in a few con@att geographic regions v
continue for the foreseeable future, we are agtie@panding our customer base and geographic ogedhaough various marketi
efforts, especially in other developing PV markstssh as the United States, Spain, Italy, Austaaiig China.

Sales to our customers are typically made througiexclusive, shorterm arrangements. Before the beginning of 200¢
generally required deposits of a certain percentsgthe contract price from our customers which ngeorded under custon
deposits in our consolidated balance sheets. Qreceevenue recognition criteria are met, we theogeize these payments as
revenues. In line with market trends, this practiteequiring our customers to make deposits ishendecline. Deposits we recei
increased from 2008 to 2009 despite the currenkeddrends, primarily because we required depésita certain of our custome
based on their credit quality. As of December 3108 2009 and 2010, we had received deposits of RBBiillion, RMB59.
million and RMB33.5 million (US$5.1 million), respévely.

Cost of Revenues and Operating Expenses
Cost of Revenues

The following table sets forth our cost of revenaad operating expenses and these amounts as fagregiof our net revent
for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Amount % of Net Amount % of Net Amount % of Net
(RMB) Revenue (RMB) Revenue (RMB) (US$) Revenue
(In thousands, except percentage:
Cost of revenue (4,905,14) 99.1%  (3,341,93) 88.2%  (5,960,64) (903,129 79.2%
Operating expense
Selling expense (87,919 1.8% (105,459 2.8% (178,05 (26,97¢) 2.4%
General and administrative
expense: (143,34() 2.9% (180,989 4.8% (190,599 (28,879 2.5%

Research and development
expense: (19,679 0.4% (32,02H 0.8% (53,500 (8,10¢6) 0.7%



Government grant — —% — —% 18,75t 2,84z (0.2%

Total operating expens (250,93) 5.1% (318,46%) 8.4% (403,396 (61,120 5.4%
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Our cost of revenues includes the cost of raw naseused for our PV module and PV cell productaomd PV modul
processing, such as silicon and silicon wafers, atfeér direct raw materials and components, indgdethylene vinyl aceta
triphenyltin, tempered glass, connecting bandsdingl bands, silica gel, aluminum alloy and junctlmoxes. The costs relating
providing the PV module processing services wecended within cost of revenues. We expect the abstlicon and silicon wafer
our primary raw material for the manufacturing & pProducts, will continue to constitute a substalinpiortion of our cost of revent
in the near future.

Other items contributing to our cost of revenues @irect labor, which includes salaries and besdéit personnel direct
involved in manufacturing activities, manufacturiogerhead, which consists of utility, maintenandepooduction equipmer
shipping and handling costs for products sold, @heér support expenses associated with the manwifagtof our PV products, a
depreciation and amortization of manufacturing pment and facilities.

We expect our cost of revenues to increase as wredse our production volume. Future increasesuinsappliers’cost o
silicon wafers as well as the potential increasghipping costs for our PV products may also cbuotg to higher cost of revenues.

Silicon and silicon wafers are the most importaw materials for our products. We record the pweharice of silicon ar
silicon wafers and other raw materials initiallyiagentory in our consolidated balance sheets,thad transfer this amount to «
cost of revenues after the raw materials are cordumour manufacturing process and the finishedlyets are sold and deliver
As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, our invgntd raw materials totaled RMB488.6 million, RMB2.® million anc
RMB459.5 million (US$69.6 million), respectively,f ovhich RMB353.3 million, RMB146.8 million and RMEB.3 millior
(US$43.4 million), respectively, represented siticand silicon wafers. Silicon suppliers generadiguire prepayments from us
advance of delivery. We classify such prepaymestadvances to suppliers and record such prepayroades either nowmurren
assets or current assets in our consolidated akhmets. However, if such suppliers fail to futfieir delivery obligations under t
silicon supply agreements or if there is any disphgtween us and such suppliers that jeopardizesrmoing relationship, we m
not be able to recover such prepayments and waonilerdosses.

Operating Expenses
Our operating expenses consist of selling expegsegral and administrative expenses and reseacctievelopment expens
Selling Expenses

Our selling expenses primarily consist of warractigts, advertising and other promotional experaessalaries, commissio
traveling expenses and benefits for our sales amdketing personnel. In 2008, 2009 and 2010, odingeéxpenses were RMB8"
million, RMB105.5 million and RMB178.1 million (U¥.0 million), respectively. As we intend to pursare aggressive marketi
strategy to promote our products in different gapbic markets, we expect that our selling expensiégncrease for the immedis
future.

We provide a two to five-year warranty for techhidefects and a 19ear limited warranty against declines of greatent10%
and a 20 to 2%ear limited warranty against declines of greatent20%, in the initial power generation capacitpur PV module:
We consider various factors when determining tRelitiood of product defects, including an evaluatwf our quality control:
technical analysis, industry information on compégacompanies and our own experience. As of DeceBihe2008, 2009 and 20:
our accrued warranty costs for the two to fixgar warranty against technical defects totaled RBIB million, RMB73.5 million an
RMB131.7 million (US$20.0 million), respectively.ir8e our products have been in use for only a ivelgt short period, ot
assumptions regarding the durability and reliapitf our products may not be accurate. In 2008,9286d 2010, we provid:
RMB46.6 million, RMB33.7 million and RMB67.6 millio(US$10.2 million), respectively, in warranty cast

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative expenses primaidgsist of salaries and benefits of our administeattaff, depreciatic
charges of fixed assets used for administrativpqaes, as well as administrative office expenselsiding consumables, traveli
expenses, insurance and share compensation expéns2808, 2009 and 2010, our general and admatigtr expenses we
RMB143.3 million, RMB181.0 million and RMB190.6 ridn (US$28.9 million), respectively.
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Research and Development Exper

Our research and development expenses primarilgistoof salaries and benefits of our research @awbldpment staff, oth
expenses including depreciation, materials useddeearch and development purposes, and the texpeinses incurred by ¢
research and development staff or otherwise in ection with our research and development activitiée expense our research
development costs as incurred. In 2008, 2009 anti0,2@ur research and development expenses were BMHREiillion,
RMB32.0 million and RMB53.5 million (US$8.1 millignrespectively. We believe that research and dgweént is critical to o
strategic objectives of enhancing our technologieducing manufacturing costs and meeting the dhgngequirements of o
customers. As a result, we expect that our tosdarch and development expenses will be similarlbmcrease in the future.

Share-based Compensation Charges

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in Novemb@6 Zursuant to which we may issue up to 10,799¢d@8mary share
upon exercise of awards granted under the plarofAcember 31, 2010, options to purchase 4,910088Diary shares have be
granted and were outstanding under this plan.

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Au@@i7 which provides for the grant of options, niesdd stock, restricte
stock units, stock appreciation rights, performanoés and performance stock to our employeesctiire and consultants. T
maximum aggregate number of our ordinary shardalag be issued under the 2007 equity incentive @d.0,799,685. In additic
the plan provides for an annual increase in thebmrmof shares available for issuance on the fagtaf each fiscal year, beginn
with our 2008 fiscal year, equal to 2% of our tleeristanding ordinary shares or such lesser amauntuaboard of directors m
determine. As of December 31, 2010, options tolpase 10,724,910 ordinary shares have been grantediere outstanding unc
this plan.

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we recorded RMB34.8 miJlRWB42.7 million and RMB32.0 million (US$4.8 mitin), respectivel
as share-based compensation charges.

Taxation
PRC Enterprise Income Ta

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based xabla income determined under PRC accounting giesi On March 1
2007, the National PeopkeCongress of the PRC passed the EIT, which tdektedis of January 1, 2008. On December 6, 20@
State Council of the PRC issued Implementation Reigms regarding the EIT which took effect asafidary 1, 2008. In accordal
with the EIT and its Implementation Regulationsiréfied enterprise income tax rate of 25% and edifiax deduction standards
applied equally to both domestic-invested enteggrignd foreigrinvested enterprises such as SolarOne Qidong. [Eiges
established prior to March 16, 2007 and eligible fweferential tax treatment in accordance with fbemer tax laws ar
administrative regulations shall, under the regotet of the State Council, gradually are becominigjexct to the new tax rate ove
five-year transition period starting from the date déetiveness of the EIT. In accordance with the dtf the State Council on |
Implementation of the Transitional Preferentiali€iek in respect of Enterprise Income Tax, foreigrested enterprises establis
prior to March 16, 2007 and eligible for preferahtiax treatment, such as SolarOne Qidong, willticoe to enjoy the preferent
tax treatment in the manner and during the per®ébemer laws and administrative regulations predidintil such period expire
While the EIT equalizes the tax rates for FIEs dothestically owned enterprises, preferential taatinent continues to be grar
to companies in certain encouraged sectors andrtpanies classified as “high and new technologgrenises,”which enjoy a ta
rate of 15% as compared to the uniform tax rat@%#. SolarOne Qidong was approved to be qualifiedh dhigh and ney
technology enterprise” on October 21, 2008. Thglihand new technology enterprissatus is valid for a period of three years f
the date of issuance of a “high and new technotggrprise” certificate. If there is any signifitamange in the compars/busines
operations, manufacturing technologies or otheasatbat cause it to no longer qualify as a “higd aaw technology enterprise”
such status will be terminated from the year ohstitange.

In accordance with the FIE Tax Law, the EIT andeottelevant tax regulations, SolarOne Qidong wasrted from state a
local enterprise income tax in 2005 and 2006 ansltaged at a reduced rate of 12% in 2007, 12.520@8, 12.5% in 2009, and 1!
in 2010. The “high and new technology enterpridatus of SolarOne Qidong will expire in October 20%olarOne Qidong has re-
applied for the “high and new technology entergrigealification and expects to receive a responsa fitte government regardi
the application by August 2011. If SolarOne Qidangpplication is approved, SolarOne Qidong willtomre to enjoy a preferent
income tax rate of 15% in 2011, 2012 and 2013;retise SolarOne Qidong will be subject to an incdmerate of 25% from 201
In 2010, we recorded a provision of RMB116.1 millilJS$17.6 million) for unrecognized tax benefi¢ated to SolarOne Qido
due to the uncertainty as to whether this subsidisould meet certain requirements of “high and rieshnology enterprisestatu:
during its annual selissessment in order to be eligible for the rediddrate of 15%. From 2005 until the end of 2008[aBOn¢
Qidong was also exempt from the 3% local incomedpglicable to foreigirvested enterprises in Jiangsu Province. In amd
under relevant PRC tax rules and regulations, SelarQidong was entitled to a twear income tax exemption on income genel
from additional investment in the production capadcif SolarOne Qidong resulting from our contriloutito SolarOne Qidong
funds we received through issuances of series Aartible preference shares in a private placemedtune and August 2006, an
entitled to a reduced tax rate of 12.5% for thee¢hyears thereafter. If SolarOne Qidong no longalifies for the preferenti
enterprise income tax rate, we will consider avddaoptions under applicable law that would enaiseto qualify for alternati
preferential tax treatment. To the extent we amrbimto offset the expiration of this preferentaat treatment with other tax benel



the expiration of this preferential tax treatmenitl wause our effective tax rate to increase. Oubs&iaries, SolarOi
Technology and Solar Shanghai, are subject to srmise income tax rate of 25% from 2008 onwards.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsomformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires us to keaestimates ai
assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofngnother things, assets, liabilities, revenue exenses. We base our estim
on our own historical experience and on variougiofhctors that we believe to be relevant undercthmimstances. Actual rest
may differ from these estimates under differentiagsions or conditions. Some of our accountinggies require higher degrees
judgment than others in their application. We cdesithe policies discussed below to be criticaktaunderstanding of our financ
statements as their application places the mosifisignt demands on our management’s judgment.

Revenue Recoghnitio

Our primary business activity is to produce andl B¥I modules. We periodically, upon special reqdesn customers, sell F
cells and silicon ingots. We record revenue reldtedhe sale of PV modules, PV cells and silicogois when the criteria
Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, 605-1Revenue Recognition: Overallare met. These criteria include all of
following: persuasive evidence of an arrangemenst&xdelivery has occurred; the sales price igdior determinable; a
collectibility is reasonably assured.

More specifically, our sales arrangements are exieé by either framework sales agreements and/ocindiyidual sale
agreements for each transaction. The shipping tefnosir sales arrangements are generally “Costirémee and Freightdr CIF,
and “Free on Board,6r FOB, shipping point whereby the customer takésand assumes the risks and rewards of ownerdhipe
products upon delivery to the shipper. The custobaars all costs and risks of loss or damage t@dloels from that point. Unc
some sales arrangements, we require our customgyeepay prior to shipment. We perform going credit assessment of e
customer, including reviewing the custonsgidtest financial information and historical paymeecord and performing necessary
diligence to determine acceptable credit termsnstances where we granted longer credit termet@in customers, the timing
revenue recognition has not been impacted as we hestorically been able to collect under the aordipayment terms withc
making concessions. Other than warranty obligafieresdo not have any commitments or obligationdetfiver additional produc
or services to the customers. Based on the abogeeword revenue related to product sales upowetgliof the product to tt
shipper, provided that all other revenue recognitidteria are met at that time.

We periodically enter into processing service ageaments to process PV cells into PV modules. Fesdlservice arrangeme
we “purchase” PV cells from a customer and contampeously agree to “selll specified quantity of PV modules back to the ¢
customer. The quantity of PV modules sold backh&dustomers under these processing arrangemergrsstent with the amot
of PV cells purchased from the customer based aemruproduction conversion rates. In accordandb ASC 845-15, Accounting
for Purchases and Sales of Inventory with the S@menterparty”we record the amount of revenue on these procesisingaction
based on the amount received for PV modules sekitlee amount paid for the PV cells purchased fretustomer. These sales
subject to all of the above-noted criteria relatiogevenue recognition.

Revenue is recognized net of all vakeded taxes imposed by governmental authorities aliécted from custome
concurrent with revenuproducing transactions. We do not offer impliciteoplicit rights of return, regardless of whetheods wer
shipped to distributors or shipped directly to #mel-users, other than due to product defects.

We recognize revenue related to solar systemsratieg services using the percentageofrpletion method. We estimate
revenues by using the costdost method, whereby we derive a ratio by compatirgg costs incurred to date to the total ¢
expected to be incurred on the project. We appyréio computed in the cost-tmst analysis to the contract price to determie
estimated revenues earned in each period. A cantnay be regarded as substantially completed ifrémaining costs are r
significant in amount. When we determine that t@stimated costs will exceed total revenues undesrdract, we record a Ic
accordingly.

Fixed Assets, Net

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumutipreciation and are depreciated using the stréiightmethod over tf
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Plant and machinet 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 5 years

Computer softwar 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvemen Over the shorter of the lease term or their esthaseful lives
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Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expwimmn incurred, whereas the cost of renewals eftdrinent that exte
the useful life of fixed assets are capitalizeddditions to the related assets. Retirement, saledesposals of assets are recorde
removing the cost and accumulated depreciation anthresulting gain or loss reflected in the coidsdéd statements of operations.

Costs incurred in constructing new facilities, irdihg progress payments, interest and other celsting to the construction ¢
capitalized and transferred to fixed assets upanpdetion and depreciation commences when the &ssaailable for its intende
use.

Interest costs are capitalized if they are incudedng the acquisition, construction or productaira qualifying asset and st
costs could have been avoided if expenditureshidrassets have not been made. Capitalizationarkeisttcosts commences when
activities to prepare the asset are in progresseapdnditures and borrowing costs are being indurrgerest costs are capitali:
until the assets are ready for their intended Usterest capitalized during the years ended DeceRibe2008, 2009 and 20
amounted to RMB22.5 million, RMB4.3 million and RMB million (US$0.8 million), respectively.

Warranty Costs

We primarily provide standard warranty coverageoanPV modules sold to customers. The standardangriprovides for a
to 5-year warranty against technical defects, gddr-warranty against a decline from initial poweneration capacity of more tt
10% and a 20 to 2fear warranty against a decline from initial poweneration capacity of more than 20%. Our estimate
amount of warranty obligation is primarily based the following considerations: 1) the results ofhieical analyses, includil
simulation tests performed on our products by a@ustryrecognized external certification body as wellraterinally developed dar
heat testing procedures conducted by our engirgeeeiam, 2) our historical warranty claims exper&eng) the warranty accrt
practices of other companies in the industry thratipce PV products that are comparable in engingetésign, raw material inf
and functionality to our products, and which sebgucts to a similar class of customers, and 4)expected failure rate and fut
costs to service failed products. The results eftdthnical analyses support the future operatieffaiency of our PV modules
levels significantly above the minimum guarantemekls over the respective warranty periods. Oumesé of warranty costs will |
affected by the estimated and actual product faihates, the costs to repair or replace failed yptsdand potential service ¢
delivery costs incurred in correcting a productuf@. Based on the above considerations and mareagsmability and intention 1
provide repairs, replacements or refunds for defegiroducts, we accrue for warranty costs for Zhe 5year warranty agair
technical defects based on 1% of net revenues\famBdules. No warranty cost accrual has been recbfdr the 10rear and 20 1
25-year warranties because we determined the likefitafaclaims arising from these warranties to beanbased on internal e
external testing of our PV modules and strong tyabntrol procedures in our production processuif PV modules fail to perfor
to the standards of the performance guarantee owiel éncur substantial expenses and substantiél caays to repair, replace
provide refunds for the undgerforming products, which could negatively impactr overall cash position. The basis for
warranty accrual will be reviewed periodically basen actual experience. We do not sell extendedangr coverage that
separately priced or optional.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

We evaluate our lontived assets or asset groups, including intangilsteets with finite lives, for impairment wheneveers:
or changes in circumstances (such as a signifisdwérse change to market conditions that will inbjthe futureuse of the asse
indicate that the carrying amount of a group ofgitimed assets may not be recoverable. When thesatsweecur, we evaluate
impairment by comparing the carrying amount of @ssets to the future undiscounted net cash flowsatad to result from the t
of the assets and their eventual disposition.dfghm of the expected undiscounted cash flowssstlean the carrying amount of
assets, we would recognize an impairment loss bas¢lde excess of the carrying amount of the ageetp over its fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of the assets acquired aedidhilities assumed of t
acquired business. Goodwill is reviewed at leastuaily for impairment, or earlier if there is andication of impairment, i
accordance with ASC 350, “Goodwill and Other Inthhg Assets”.We assign and assess goodwill for impairment atréperting
unit level. As of December 31, 2010, goodwill rekato our acquisition of SolarOne Technology ity 2007 and August 2008.

The performance of the impairment test involvewa-step process. The first step of the impairmentitestives comparing tt
fair value of the reporting unit with its carryirmmount, including goodwill. Fair value is primaritietermined by computing t
future discounted cash flows expected to be geegtray the reporting unit. If the reporting usittarrying value exceeds its -
value, goodwill may be impaired. If this occurs, parform the second step of the goodwill impairntest to determine the amo
of impairment loss. The fair value of the reportingt is allocated to its assets and liabilitiessimanner similar to a purchase p
allocation in order to determine the implied fa@ue of the reporting ung’goodwill. If the implied goodwill fair value ig$s than it
carrying value, the difference is recognize an iimpant loss.
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We performed a goodwill impairment test as of Delsen81, 2010 and no impairment loss was recognized.
Financial Instruments — Currency Derivative Contras and Commodity Contracts

Our derivative instruments are principally usedrnanage currency exchange rate risk and the stabflithe purchase price 1
silver, one of the raw materials used in the préidncof PV products, and are not used for spectdatir trading purpose
Accounting for derivative instruments requires ffigant estimates and judgments relating to meaguthe fair values of tt
derivative instruments. As of December 31, 2010,had outstanding cross#rency exchange rate contracts with notional arte
of Euro125.0 million and US$190.0 million and conuiip contracts for 102,000 ounces of silver. Weordcthese derivatiy
instruments as current assets or current liatslittmeasured at fair value. We estimate the faivevalf these foreign currer
derivative instruments and commodity contracts gisinpricing model based on market observable inputéch include mark-to-
market forward rates at each balance sheet date f@eign exchange rates at each balance shestalad strike foreign exchar
rates and maturity terms of our foreign currencyvagive instruments.

Share-based Compensation

We account for the share options granted under2606 share option plan and our 2007 equity incengilan in accordan
with ASC 718-10, “Share-Based Compensation” and A88-50, ‘Accounting for Equity Instruments that Are EntetedOffer the
Employees for Acquiring, or in conjunction with Bed Goods or Services,” respectively. In accordanith ASC 71810, all grant
of share options are recognized in the financiateshents based on their grate fair values. We have elected to recoc
compensation expense using the straligigt-method for all share options granted with B@w conditions that have a graded ve:
schedule.

With the assistance of an independent third-padjuer, we have applied the Bla8choles option valuation model
determining the fair value of the options granteébbe January 1, 2008. We estimate expected vblail the date of grant based
a combination of historical and implied volatilgsidrom comparable publicly listed companies. Foufei rate is estimated basec
historical forfeiture patterns and adjusted toeetffuture change in facts and circumstances )if an

For share options and restricted stock units gdaatter January 1, 2008, the fair value of eacintgsaestimated on the date
grant using a binomial-lattice model. Similar tee tBlack-Scholes model, the binomlattice option model takes into acco
variables such as expected volatility, dividenddjiand risk-free interest rates. Rifske interest rates are based on zero coupor
risk-free rates for the terms consistent with the exguktife of the award at the time of grant. Expedifedis computed based on «
estimation of exercise patterns which we beliewerapresentative of future behavior. Expected éivitlyield is determined based
our historical dividend payout rate. Expected \bitgtis estimated based on a combination of owtdrical performance and 1
performance of comparable publicly listed companies

In addition, the binomialattice model considers the contractual term of d¢ipdon, the probability that the option will
exercised prior to the end of its contractual l#ad the probability of termination or retiremefitlee option holder in computing t
value of the option.

Accounting for Income Taxes and Uncertain Income X#&ositions

We account for income taxes in accordance with A4Q, “Accounting for Income TaxesUnder this method, deferred
assets and liabilities are determined based oditfezence between the financial reporting anddages of assets and liabilities u:
enacted tax rates that will be in effect in theiggbin which the differences are expected to rexevge record a valuation allowal
to offset deferred tax assets if, based on the weaif available evidence, it is more likely thant mlwat some portion, or all, of t
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The éffecdeferred taxes of a change in tax rates sgrézed in income in the period t
includes the enactment date.

We also apply ASC 740-10, “Accounting for Uncertgiim Income Taxes"which prescribes the recognition threshold &
position is required to meet before being recoghirethe financial statements. As of December 3N%2and 2010, we recorc
unrecognized tax benefits of RMB27.4 million and BMI3.5 million (US$21.7 million), respectively.

We have elected to classify interest and/or pergltelated to an uncertain position, if and whequired, as part ofdthe
operating expensed#i the consolidated statements of operations. Nb sumounts have been incurred or accrued througlerbee
31, 2010.

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the taxsye&uSolarOne Qidong, Solar Shanghai, SolarOne fi@oby, Solar R&C
and Solar Engineering for the years ended Deceihe2006 through 2010 remain open for examinatipthb tax authorities.
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Advance to Suppliers and Lol-term Prepayments

Advance to suppliers and long-term prepaymentsessmt interestree cash deposits paid to suppliers for futurecipases ¢
raw materials. According to the muitear framework supply agreements entered into btwes with our suppliers, we wi
required to provide deposits to our suppliers itheorto secure supply of silicon due to limited &daility. The multiyear framewor
supply agreements entered into between us andupptisrs indicated minimum quantities with assaadapricing set for the annt
periods under the agreements with deliveries tammbde over a general timeframe, subject to changedban our purchasing ne
and/or the suppliers’ product availability.

As a result of a steep decline in the spot pricesiiicon products, during 2009, we successfullynpteted renegotiating all c
our multiyyear framework supply agreements that were in péacef December 31, 2009, except the agreementlldify througt
either supplemental agreements or amended andteebstaultiyear framework supply agreements. Each of thesasesuier
agreements contains provisions which allow for seasment of the purchase price for future deligedrder the agreemer
however, the subsequent agreements generally diddjost the originally contracted purchase quistitAs such, the mulgieal
framework supply agreements, original and as annefectively represent commitments to purchaseimmim quantities. O1
suppliers have been willing to adjust the priciegrs of the original framework supply agreemenbiider to maintain longerm
business relations with us. Such renegotiation® leen common practice in the industry given thatiiby in the silicon marke
beginning in late 2008, which resulted in pricihgttwas vastly different from the levels anticightéhen the framework agreeme
were initially entered into. In addition, as sucdtice adjustments have been reflective of the thement market conditions, t
suppliers can continue to receive fair compensatibile avoiding the risks associated with seekiegvrcustomers and poten
adverse consequences to reputation in the midshajhly competitive and volatile market.

The supplemental agreements or amended and restatiéieyear framework supply agreements have also remaveldus
which was previously included in the original myléar framework supply agreements that provide uls thie right to terminate tl
multi-year framework supply agreements and to requir@aympnts of our deposits in any event of defaultsoby supplier:
Termination of our rights to recall our advances halicated that these advances will only be ream/¢hrough delivery from o
suppliers which could range from one to four ye&wcordingly, advances that can only be recoverféat @ane year are similar
long-term assets and should be classified as noe+u Accordingly, RMB439.6 million of “current ssts — advances to suppliers”
as of December 31, 2009 has been reclassifieddie-tarrent assets — long-term prepaymemgshe comparative figures consist
with the presentation as of December 31, 2010.

The risk of loss arising from ngmerformance by or bankruptcy of the suppliers meased prior to making the deposits
credit quality of the suppliers is continually essed. If there is any deterioration in the credithioess of the suppliers, we will s¢
to recover the advances from the suppliers andigeofor losses on advances which are akin to reté# in cost of revent
because of the supplieligiability to return the advances. A charge to afsevenues will be recorded in the period in whicloss i
determined to be probable and the amount can bsomebly estimated. We recorded a charge to costeeénues (
RMB42.0 million, RMB234.7 million and RMBO0.1 millio (US$18,000), for the years ended December 318,20009 and 201
respectively, to reflect the probable loss aridimmgn the suppliersfailure to perform under the contracts. In the évbat we hav
disputes with any of our suppliers and we are wnablreach an agreement on terms acceptable Wweusiay not be able to reco
our prepayments made to such suppliers.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Since all of our revenues are derived from the s&lPV products instead of the delivery of servioes presented our r
revenues and cost of revenues for all product safes combined basis in accordance with U.S. GAAR. believe that th
presentation provides sufficient information inessng our operating and financial performance. foHewing table sets forth o
summary consolidated statements of operationd@periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
(InRMB % of Net (InRMB % of Net (In RMB (INnUS$ % of Net
Thousands Revenue Thousands Revenue Thousands Thousands Revenue
Consolidated Statement of
Operations Data
Net revenue 4,949,06! 100.(% 3,778,31 100.(% 7,526,99: 1,140,45: 100.(%
Cost of revenue (4,905,14) (99.)%  (3,341,93) (88.5%  (5,960,64) (903,129 (79.29%
Gross profit 43,92 0.9% 436,38( 11.5% 1,566,34! 237,32 20.£%
Operating expenses Sellin
expense: (87,919 (1.8% (105,459 (2.9% (178,05) (26,97¢ (2.9%
General and administrative
expense: (143,340 (2.99% (180,989 (4.9% (190,59¢) (28,879 (2.5)%

Research and developmt



expense: (29,679 (0.9)% (32,029 (0.8% (53,500 (8,10¢) (0.%
Government grant — —% — —% 18,75¢ 2,84: 0.2%
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Year Ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010

(InRMB % of Net (InRMB % of Net (In RMB (InUS$ % of Net

Thousands Revenue Thousands Revenue Thousands Thousands Revenue
Total operating expens (250,93) (5.1)% (318,46¢) (8.9% (403,39¢) (61,120 (5.9%
Operating profit (loss (207,01) (4.2)% 117,91. 3.1% 1,162,94 176,20! 15.5%
Interest expense (103,149 (2.1)% (157,90) (4.2% (161,67) (24,49 (2.)%
Interest incomi 10,00« 0.2% 5,00z 0.1% 6,141 93C 0.1%
Exchange losse (35,230) (0.9% (23,819 0.6)% (89,277) (13,52¢) 1.22%

Changes in fair value of

derivative contract 83,09( 1.7% 9,59¢ 0.2% 77,53: 11,747 1.C%

Changes in fair value of
conversion feature of

convertible bond — — (73,887 (2.0 31,62 4,791 0.4%
Other income 15,01¢ 0.2% 6,28¢ 0.2% 24,35: 3,69( 0.2%
Other expense (25,60¢) (0.5% (11,83Y) (0.9% (5,907 (899 (0.2)%
Government grant 3,48( 0.1% 7,661 0.2% 9,59¢ 1,45¢ 0.1%
Income (loss) before incon

taxes (259,399 (5.2% (120,98 (3.2% 1,055,34 159,90( 14.(%
Income tax expenst (6,519 (0.1)% (23,929 (0.6)% (297,98) (45,149 (4.0%

Net income attributable 1

nor-controlling interes (14,577 (0.3% (311 — — — —
Net income (loss

attributable to Hanwha

SolarOne Co., Ltd.

shareholder (280,49) (5.7% (145,22) (3.9% 757,35 114,75: 10.1%

2010 Compared to 2009
Net Revenue

Our total net revenues increased by 99.2% to RMBZ®million (US$1,140.5 million) in 2010 from RMB&8.3 million ir
2009. Our net revenues derived from our PV modulsirtess (excluding PV module processing) increasgd97.3% ti
RMB6,658.6 million (US$1,008.9 million) in 2010 fro RMB3,375.6 million in 2009, due primarily to amcrease in o
manufacturing capacity and the corresponding irseréa sales volume of our PV modules, driven bynarease in market deme
for our products. The increase in sales volume peaiially offset by the decrease in the averagkngeprice of our PV modules
RMB11.58 (US$1.75) per watt in 2010 from RMB15.2¢ pvatt in 2009. In 2010, we derived 88.5% of atal net revenues frc
the sale of PV modules, compared to 89.3% in 2009.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Our cost of revenues increased by 78.4% to RMB5@60Ilion (US$903.1 million) in 2010 from RMB3,3&Lmillion in 2009
In particular, the costs associated with PV moguteluction increased by 75.2% to RMB5,239.6 mill{eis$793.9 million) in 201
from RMB2,990.7 million in 2009, due primarily to ancrease in sales volume but partially offsetly decrease in silicamase!
raw materials and nositicon processing cost. Cost of revenues as aeptage of our total net revenues decreased to 78 25%1(
from 88.5% in 2009.

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit emsed to RMB1,566.3 million (US$237.1 million) in01® from
RMB436.4 million in 2009. Our gross profit margimcreased to 20.8% in 2010 from 11.5% in 2009, piilpnaecause we benefit
from the decreases in unit costs of silicon-basetiather raw materials, as well as our improvementperational efficiency.

Operating Expenses and Operating Profit

Our operating expenses increased by 26.7% to RMB4@8lion (US$61.1 million) in 2010 from RMB318illion in 2009
Our operating expenses as a percentage of oumnitatvenues decreased to 5.4% in 2010 from &¥420609.
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Our selling expenses primarily consist of warractigts, marketing and promotional expenses, andesslaommissions, share-
based compensation charges, traveling expensesesadits of our sales and marketing personnel.gelling expenses increased
68.8% to RMB178.1 million (US$27.0 million) in 20fm RMB105.5 million in 2009, due primarily todreases in warranty co
and export credit insurance as a result of incieassales volume of our PV products, increaseslaries and benefits as a resul
the expansion of our sales force, and increasexhibition and advertising fees. Selling expenses @ercentage of our total |
revenues decreased to 2.4% in 2010 from 2.8% i8.200

Our general and administrative expenses primaidgsist of salaries and benefits of our administeattaff, depreciatio
charges of fixed assets used for administrativpgaes, as well as administrative office expensedding consumables, traveli
expenses, insurance and shbased compensation charges for our administragveopnel. Our general and administrative expe
increased by 5.3% to RMB190.6 million (US$28.9 oil) in 2010 from RMB181.0 million in 2009, due imrily to increases i
cash compensation paid to our administrative seaffployee training costs and administrative offig@enses, partially offset by
decrease in shatmsed compensation charges. General and admivist@tpenses as a percentage of our total net ueg
decreased to 2.5% in 2010 from 4.8% in 2009.

Our research and development expenses primarilgistoof materials used for research and developménuoses, salaries a
benefits of our research and development staffreddgtion charges, and travel expenses incurredupyesearch and developm:
staff or otherwise in connection with our reseaacid development activities. Our research and dpwadnt expenses increased
67.1% to RMB53.5 million (US$8.1 million) in 201Goin RMB32.0 million in 2009. The increase was prilyabecause w
expanded our research and development team andicdeddadditional research and development activitie2010. Research a
development expenses as a percentage of our &itedvenues decreased to 0.7% in 2010 from 0.82008.

Our operating expenses in 2010 were offset by dipgreelated government grants of RMB18.8 million (US$aillion). We
received such government grants because Solar@ten@gualified as a “high and new technology emiegf)and met certain oths
criteria established by the government in 2010.didenot receive any of such government grants 82gr 2009.

As a result of the foregoing, our operating profias RMB1,162.9 million (US$176.2 million) in 201@ompared t
RMB117.9 million in 2009. Our operating profit margncreased to 15.5% in 2010 from 3.1% in 2009.

Interest Expenses, Exchange Losses, Other Incomm@ng@s in Fair Value of Derivative Contracts, Chasgn Fair Value o
Conversion Feature of Convertible Bonds and GoveminGrants

We generated interest income of RMB6.1 million (0S$million) and at the same time incurred interegpenses ¢
RMB161.7 (US$24.5 million) million in 2010, compdreto interest income of RMB5.0 million and intereskpenses ¢
RMB157.9 million in 2009. The increase in interegpenses was due primarily to the combination ofnanease in accretion
interest expenses of our convertible bonds andedses in both interest rates and principal amdumtiobank borrowings.

We incurred exchange losses of RMB89.3 million 01@ compared to exchange losses of RMB23.8 millioi2009, dut
primarily to the fluctuation of the Euro againsé tRenminbi.

Our other income increased to RMB24.4 million (US$&iillion) in 2010 from RMB6.3 million in 2009, @uprimarily to ar
increase in our sale of scrap materials as we eguhiour operations in 2010. Our other expensesdsed to RMB5.9 millio
(US$0.9 million) in 2010 from RMB11.8 million in 29, due primarily to a decrease in bank charges.

We recorded RMB77.5 million (US$11.7 million) inahges in fair value of derivative contracts to eeflthe realized ar
unrealized net gain arising from the changes ofalue of our foreign currency derivative instrurtgein 2010.

We recorded RMB31.6 million (US$4.8 million) in aiges in fair value of convertible feature of corie bonds in 2010, du
primarily to the changes in our ADS price.

Our non-operatingelated government grants increased to RMB9.6onillUS$1.5 million) in 2010 from RMB7.7 million
2009, due primarily to an increase of subsidieimtaiest expenses for imported equipment.

Income Tax Expens:

Our income tax expenses increased to RMB298.0amil{US$45.1 million) in 2010 from RMB23.9 milliom i2009, dut
primarily to the increase in our taxable income angrovision of RMB116.1 million (US$17.6 milliomue to the uncertainty as
whether SolarOne would meet certain requirementisiglits annual seléssessment in order to be eligible for the redid@date of
15%.

Consolidated Net Income

As a result of the cumulative effect of the abowctdrs, we had consolidated net income of RMB7&ilHon
(US$114.8 million) in 2010, compared to a consdédanet loss of RMB145.0 million in 2009. Our nebfit margin increased t
10.1% in 2010 from a negative margin of 3.8% in2(
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2009 Compared to 2008
Net Revenue

Our total net revenues decreased by 23.7% to RMB337million in 2009 from RMB4,949.1 million in 2800ur net revenue
derived from our PV module business (excluding Pdaie processing) decreased by 27.0% to RMB3,378li®n in 2009 from
RMB4,626.4 million in 2008, due primarily to thealease in the average selling price of our PV mesitdt RMB15.27 per watt
2009 from RMB26.77 per watt in 2008. The decreasdhe average selling price of our PV modules (gdiclg PV module
processing) was partially offset by the increaseun PV module sales volume by 28.0% to 221.1 MVR2009 from 172.8 MW i
2008. In 2009, we derived 89.3% of our total neereies from the sale of PV modules, compared 6?8931 2008.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Our cost of revenues decreased by 31.9% to RMB3®34illion in 2009 from RMB4,905.1 million in 20081 particular, the
costs associated with PV module production dectebge34.9% to RMB2,990.7 million in 2009 from RMB22.9 million in 2008
due primarily to the decreases in unit costs atail, silicon wafers and other raw materials, amg¢duse our writelown of
inventories decreased to RMB282.6 million in 2068 RMB413.8 million in 2008. Cost of revenues gseecentage of our total n
revenues decreased to 88.5% in 2009 from 99.1%08.2

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit #esed to RMB436.4 million in 2009 from RMB43.9 ioitl in 2008. Our gros
profit margin increased to 11.5% in 2009 from 0.8%22008 primarily because we benefited from there@ses in unit costs
silicon, silicon wafers and other raw materialsyal as our improvements in operational efficiency

Operating Expenses and Operating Profit (Loss)

Our operating expenses increased by 26.9% to RMB3th8lion in 2009 from RMB250.9 million in 2008. D operating
expenses as a percentage of our total net revémeressed to 8.4% in 2009 from 5.1% in 2008.

Our selling expenses primarily consist of warractgts, marketing and promotional expenses, andeslaommissions, share-
based compensation charges, traveling expensesesadits of our sales and marketing personnel.gelling expenses increased
20.0% to RMB105.5 million in 2009 from RMB87.9 nglh in 2008, due primarily to increases in comnuesi as a result «
increases in sales volume of our PV products, arste premiums covering the collection of our acteurceivable an
transportation costs, as well as rental expensea fwarehouse in Germany, which we started to 16ag2909 and is used as ¢
distribution center in Europe. Selling expensea percentage of our total net revenues increas2do in 2009 from 1.8% in 2008.

Our general and administrative expenses primaidigsist of salaries and benefits of our administeattaff, depreciatio
charges of fixed assets used for administrativegaes, as well as administrative office expensedding consumables, traveli
expenses, insurance and shbased compensation charges for our administragveopnel. Our general and administrative expe
increased by 26.3% to RMB181.0 million in 2009 fr&iviB143.3 million in 2008, due primarily to incressin cash and nocash
compensation paid to our administrative staff, gssfonal fees and depreciation and amortizatiomgelsa attributable to tt
revaluation of the fixed assets of SolarOne Teclaynafter the completion of our acquisition of themaining 48% interest |
SolarOne Technology in August 2008. General andimidtrative expenses as a percentage of our t@blavenues increased
4.8% in 2009 from 2.9% in 2008.

Our research and development expenses primarilgistoof materials used for research and developménuoses, salaries a
benefits of our research and development staffreddgtion charges, and travel expenses incurredupyesearch and developm:
staff or otherwise in connection with our reseaacid development activities. Our research and dpwednt expenses increased
62.7% to RMB32.0 million in 2009 from RMB19.7 mdh in 2008. The increase was primarily because evelucted additione
research and development activities in 2009. Rekeamd development expenses as a percentage tftalinet revenues increas
to 0.8% in 2009 from 0.4% in 2008.

As a result of the foregoing, our operating profias RMB117.9 million in 2009, compared to an opgatatloss of
RMB207.0 million in 2008. Our operating profit margncreased to 3.1% in 2009 from a negative maofith.2% in 2008.

Interest Expenses, Exchange Losses, Other Incomm@ng@s in Fair Value of Derivative Contracts, Chasgn Fair Value o
Conversion Feature of Convertible Bonds and GoveminGrants

We generated interest income of RMB5.0 million ahthe same time incurred interest expenses of RAMBImillion in 2009
compared to interest income of RMB10.0 million anterest expenses of RMB103.1 million in 2008. Tiherease in intere:
expenses was due primarily to our increased bamowngs.

We incurred exchange losses of RMB23.8 million @2, compared to exchange losses of RMB35.2 millio2008, primarily
due to the fluctuation of the Euro against the Riabm
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Our other income decreased to RMB6.3 million in26@m RMB15.0 million in 2008 due primarily to @cdease in our sale
scrap materials in 2009. Our other expenses demtdasRMB11.8 million in 2009 from RMB25.6 millian 2008 primarily becau:
we paid guarantee fees of RMB10.1 million to Lingdfiectronics in 2008. We did not incur any guagarfees in 2009.

We recorded RMB9.6 million in changes in fair valofederivative contracts to reflect the realizedl amrealized net ga
arising from the changes of fair value of our fgrecurrency derivative instruments in 2009.

We recorded RMB73.9 million in changes in fair vakf convertible feature of our convertible bond2009 as a result of ¢
adoption of a new accounting standard on Janua2@9.

Our government grants increased to RMB7.7 millior2009 from RMB3.5 million in 2008 primarily becauSolarOne Qidor
was approved as a “high and new technology ense’pri

Income Tax Expens

Our income tax expenses increased to RMB23.9 miiliio2009 from RMB6.5 million in 2008, due primarilo the increase
our taxable income under the EIT in 2009.

Consolidated Net Loss

As a result of the cumulative effect of the aboaetdrs, we had a consolidated net loss of RMB148Blion in 2009, compare
to RMB265.9 million in 2008. Our net profit margincreased to a negative margin of 3.8% in 2009 feonegative margin of 5.4
in 2008.
Inflation

Since our inception, inflation in China has not engtly affected our results of operations. Accagdto the National Bureau
Statistics of China, changes in the consumer gridex in China were 5.9%, negative 0.7% and 3.392068, 2009 and 201
respectively.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are a holding company, and conduct substantsllpf our business through SolarOne Qidong, obplly owned PRt
operating subsidiary. The payment of dividends hfities organized in China is subject to limitasorCurrent PRC regulatic
permit our subsidiaries to pay dividends to us amly of their accumulated profits, if any, deterednin accordance with PF
accounting standards and regulations. In addigach of our subsidiaries in China is required toaséde a certain amount of
aftertax profits each year, if any, to fund certain @aty reserves. These reserves are not distritritablcash dividends. As
December 31, 2010, a total of RMB3,012.3 millionS§456.4 million) was not available for distributida us in the form ¢
dividends due to these PRC regulations.

Liquidity

From September 2010 to November 2010, we issueda@dd2,436,693 ordinary shares and 9,200,000 AldfBsan aggrega
sale price of US$243.7 million to finance our aitids in the future.

The following table sets forth a summary of ourtcisws for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010
(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (US$)
(In thousands)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi (674,04 689,33: 268,43¢ 40,67:
Net cash used in investing activit| (1,169,04) (324,72) (670,83) (101,645
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 1,981,05! (129,79) 1,387,45 210,22:
Net increase in cash and cash equival 137,97: 234,81¢ 985,05 149,25:
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activifigmarily consists of consolidated net income g)osis adjusted for narast
items such as change in fair value of the converé@ature of our convertible bonds, depreciatiod amortization, warran
provision, share compensation expenses and defexeldenefit, and the effect of changes in certgarating assets and liabilit
line items such as inventories, other assets (@ifuadvance to suppliers, lomgrm prepayments and accounts receivable), arr
due to related parties, accounts payable, custdeysits, accrued expenses and other liabilities.

Our net cash provided by operating activities wadBR68.4 million (US$40.7 million) in 2010, which waderived fror
consolidated net income of RMB757.4 million (US$BL#illion), adjusted to reflect a net increasatieg to noneash items and
net decrease relating to changes in operating sassat liabilities. The adjustments relating to mash items were primar
comprised of an increase in wriiewn of inventories of RMB134.5 million (US$20.4Ilwin) and depreciation and amortizatior
RMB187.6 million (US$28.4 million). The adjustmemtdating to changes in operating assets and iliglsil which resulted in a r
decrease of RMB1,028.8 million (US$155.9 milliongre primarily comprised of:

. an increase of RMB695.0 million (US$105.3 milliom) accounts receivable, primarily because we gthmtertain of oL
customers longer credit terms to enhance the catinpeess of our PV product

. an increase of RMB178.7 million (US$27.1 millian)advance to suppliers and loteym prepayments primarily as a resu
increased prepayments to our suppliers for purchalkoth silico-based and other materials; ¢

. an increase of RMB75.1 million (US$11.4 million) ather current assets, primarily because the isered tax recoverable
relation to the export tax rebat

Our net cash provided by operating activities wi4BR89.3 million in 2009, which was derived from ansolidated net loss
RMB144.9 million, adjusted to reflect a net increaslating to norcash items and a net decrease relating to changaseratin
assets and liabilities. The adjustments relatingaie-cash items were primarily comprised of anaase in writedown of inventorie
of RMB282.6 million, depreciation and amortizatiohRMB153.2 million and provision for doubtful celition of supplier advanc
of RMB234.7 million. The adjustments relating toaolges in operating assets and liabilities, whicdulted in a net decrease
RMB51.4 million, were primarily comprised of:

. an increase of RMB271.7 million in accounts reckiga primarily because we granted our customergdortredit terms !
enhance the competitiveness of our PV prodi

. an increase of RMB334.8 million in inventories pairfly as a result of increased purchases of silisiditon wafers and oth
raw materials in anticipation of increased operstlscale as a result of our capacity expansi@9o®;

. an increase of RMB238.8 million in accounts payaphmarily due to longer payment terms we obtaifredn our supplier:
and

. an increase of RMB301.4 million in other currensets, primarily because we were able to receivédtiaddl cash refund «
VAT tax for our export sales by December 31, 2(

Our net cash used in operating activities was RMBBTillion in 2008, which was derived from a colidated net loss «
RMB265.9 million, adjusted to reflect a net increaslating to norcash items and a net decrease relating to changaseratin
assets and liabilities. The adjustments relatingaie-cash items were primarily comprised of anaase in writedown of inventorie
of RMB413.8 million, depreciation and amortizatiohRMB67.2 million, provision for doubtful collecth of supplier advances
RMB42.0 million, share compensation expenses of R¥IBmillion and warranty provision, settlement amneversal c
RMB27.7 million, which was partially offset by umaezed loss from derivative contracts of RMB33.9liom. The adjustmen
relating to changes in operating assets and liegsiwhich resulted in a net decrease of RMB9&8illlon, were primarily comprise
of:

. an increase of RMB547.5 million in advance to sigypl| primarily due to increased prepayments tosoyppliers for purchas
of silicon and silicon wafers; ar

. an increase of RMB417.0 million in inventories pairly as a result of increased purchases of silaah silicon wafers
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our net cash used in investing activities primatibysists of cash used for the acquisition of fiaedets and the acquisition
subsidiary.

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMB8million (US$101.6 million) in 2010, primarily oasisting o
RMB634.5 million (US$96.1 million) of cash used fiire acquisition of fixed assets, primarily our mEatturing machinery ai
equipment.

Our net cash used in investing activities was RMB32nillion in 2009, primarily consisting of RMB280million of cash use



for the acquisition of fixed assets, primarily enanufacturing machinery and equipment.
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Our net cash used in investing activities was RMBQ,0 million in 2008, consisting of RMB849.5 mili of cash used for t
acquisition of fixed assets, primarily our manufaittg machinery and equipment, and RMB267.6 millmihcash used for tl
acquisition of SolarOne Technology.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our net cash generated from financing activitigmarily consists of capital contributions by sharelers and proceeds fr¢
short-term bank borrowings, as offset by paymehthort-term and long-term bank borrowings.

Our net cash provided by financing activities wadB2,387.5 million (US$210.2 million) in 2010. Thigas mainly attributab
to our proceeds from shaetfm bank borrowings of RMB1,098.9 million (US$1B@nillion), net proceeds from issuance of ordii
shares to Hanwha Solar of RMB1,059.8 million (US&8&6million) and net proceeds from our ADS offerimgNovember 2010 «
RMB521.3 million (US$79.0 million), partially offéseby payment of shoerm bank borrowings of RMB1,184.8 milli
(US$179.5 million).

Our net cash used in financing activities was RMB&2nillion in 2009. This was mainly attributabtedur payments of short-
term bank borrowings of RMB2,594.7 million, partyabffset by proceeds from shadrm bank borrowings of RMB1,900.7 milli
and proceeds from our continuous ADS offering of RIM9.0 million.

Our net cash provided by financing activities wadB3,981.1 million in 2008. This was mainly attrilable to proceeds frc
shortterm bank borrowings of RMB3,119.7 million, proceeffom our convertible bond offering of RMB1,17%@nllion anc
proceeds from our continuous ADS offering of RMB4B#nillion, partially offset by our payments of stiterm bank borrowings
RMB2,985.9 million.

Capital Resources and Capital Expenditures

We have financed our operations primarily througkhcflows from operations and also through bankdoand relategarty
loans and proceeds from our initial public offeritiye convertible bond offering in January 200&, ¢ontinuous ADS offerings frc
July 2008 to August 2008 and from September 200Bldeember 2009 and our ADS offering in November@0®/e believe ot
working capital is sufficient for our present reguments.

As of December 31, 2010, we had sherm bank borrowings from various commercial banlith an aggregate outstand
balance of RMB318.9 million (US$48.3 million). Oshortterm bank borrowings bore average interest rates88%, 4.99% ar
4.28% per annum, respectively, in 2008, 2009 arid2These shotterm bank borrowings have terms of six months te year, an
expire at various times throughout the year. Sofmeuo shortterm bank borrowings were secured by land use gight buildin
ownership. As of December 31, 2010, the aggregattganding balance of the current portion of omglerm bank borrowings w
RMB215.0 million (US$32.6 million), which is duerfeepayment from March 25, 2011 to December 29,12@hd the aggreg:
outstanding balance of the non-current portion wf longterm bank borrowings was RMB135.0 million (US$2th#Blion), which
will be due from March 29, 2012 to September 13,2@®ur longterm bank borrowings outstanding as of Decembef810 bor
an average interest rate of 5.51% per annum. Weoxp continue to rollover our bank borrowings whieey become due. To !
extent we are unable to rollover our bank borrowifay whatever reason, we will repay such borrowingth cash generated fr
operating activities or alternative funding sources

As of December 31, 2010, we had US$172.5 milliangipal amount of 2018 convertible bonds outstagdithe holders of tt
2018 convertible bonds have the right to requirgéousepurchase all or a portion of the bonds orudan15, 2015 at a repurch.
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of bleads to be repurchased, plus accrued and ungeiesn, if any.

As of December 31, 2010, we had cash and cashaquots in the amount of RMB1,630.8 million (US$24million). Our cas
and cash equivalents primarily consist of cash andhand bank deposits, which are unrestricted asittalrawal and use. O
advance to suppliers and lotgym prepayments in total decreased from RMB1,14&iion as of December 31, 2008
RMB979.8 million as of December 31, 2009, but imsed to RMB1,158.3 million (US$175.5 million) aslé¥cember 31, 2010. C
fixed assets increased from RMB1,492.6 million &®ecember 31, 2008 to RMB1,586.3 million as of Baber 31, 2009, and
RMB2.084.0 million (US$315.8 million) as of Decemb@&l, 2010. This increase was due primarily to #delitional plant ar
equipment we purchased in connection with the esiparof our production capacity.

As of December 31, 2010, we had commitments of apprately RMB426.4 million (US$64.6 million) relateto the
acquisition of machinery. The commitment for acdgige of machinery is expected to be settled with@i1.

Our capital expenditures were RMB1,169.0 millioriMB324.7 million and RMB670.8 million (US$101.6 nidh) in 2008
2009 and 2010, respectively, all of which relateuingrily to the purchases of manufacturing equiptremd facility constructic
costs. Based on the current market conditions, xpea to incur capital expenditures of US$450.0iarilfor 2011, which will b
used primarily for purchasing manufacturing equipmand building production facilities in Nantongjd@ng and Lianyungan
Jiangsu Province. We plan to fund the balance otcapital expenditure requirements for 2011 witehccom operations, additior
bank borrowings, and other forms of financing,etassary.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2010, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards Updaté&SU, 201011,
“Derivative and Hedging (Topic 815)All entities that enter into contracts containimgeanbedded credit derivative feature relate
the transfer of credit risk that is not only in tteem of subordination of one financial instruméatanother will be affected by t
amendments in ASU 201Dt because the amendments clarify that the embegtddid derivative scope exception in ASC parags
815-15-15-8 through 15-9 does not apply to suchraots. ASU 2010-11 is effective at the beginnifighe reporting entitys first
fiscal quarter beginning after June 15, 2010. Ttwipions of ASU 201@1 did not have a material effect on the finanpiadition
results of operations or cash flows of our company.

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-13, “Comsation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718).” ASU 2amprovide
amendments to ASC 718 to clarify that an employegebased payment award with an exercise price dendedria the currenc
of a market in which a substantial portion of tiitg’s equity securities trades should not be consideredntain a condition that
not a market, performance, or service conditiorer&fore, an entity would not classify such an awasd liability if it otherwis
qualifies as equity. The amendments in ASU 2Q30are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within those fiscal yea
beginning on or after December 15, 2010. The prongsof ASU 2010t3 are not expected to have a material effect erfittancia
position, results of operations or cash flows af campany.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-28afigtbles —Goodwill and Other (ASC 350): When to Perform Sepi
the Goodwill Impairment Test for Reporting UnitstiwiZero or Negative Carrying AmountsThe objective of this standard is
address questions about entities with reportingsumith zero or negative carrying amounts becaasgesentities concluded that S
1 of the test is passed in those circumstancesubedhe fair value of their reporting unit will gaally be greater than zero. 7
amendments to this standard modify Step 1 of tloelgydl impairment test for reporting units with peor negative carrying amour
For those reporting units, an entity is requiregpésform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment tesitifs more likely than not that
goodwill impairment exists. This standard is effeetfor fiscal years, and interim periods withinodle years, beginning af
December 15, 2010. Early adoption is not permitfdtk provisions of ASU 20128 are not expected to have a material effect e
financial position, results of operations or caslwé of our company.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses

The PV industry is characterized by rapidly evodvitechnology advancements. Achieving fast and naati technolog
improvements is of critical importance to maintagiour competitive advantage. Our research andlal@went efforts concentre
on lowering production costs per watt by increading conversion efficiency rate of our products aeducing silicon usage
reducing the thickness of PV cells.

We have been developing advanced technologies to wegiee conversion efficiency and reduce the thiskref our PV cell:
In 2009, we introduced “ECLIPSE,” a new line of B®Is and modules with reduced light induced deatiad. “ECLIPSE"reduce
the impurity concentration in cells, thereby redhgcthe light induced degradation to approximatély ftom 2% to 3%, or less thai
W compared to approximately 4 W to 5 W for a 180nWdule equipped with standard cells. This resaltan increase in electric
generation of approximately 1% to 2% over the ltetgn when compared with standard modules. In aortetié further improve ol
technological capability, we have successfullyddsthe application of selective emitter technoldgyour lab. We plan to adc
selective emitter technology in our existing cebguction lines with an annual production capaoit 60 MW in the second half
2011. Through our continuous efforts, we have l@#a to increase the average conversion efficieat®/of our monocrystalline a
multicrystalline PV cells. In 2008, 2009 and 20&0Qr research and development expenses were RMER1iBigh, RMB32.0 millior
and RMB53.5 million (US$8.1 million), respectively.

Our technology department works closely with ournafacturing department to lower production costsifaproving ou
production efficiency. In July 2007, we establisliiee SolarOne PV Engineering Center, formerly kn@srthe Jiangsu Engineer
for Solar Cell and PV Application. The SolarOne Exigineering Center is located near our manufagufatilities in Qidonc
Jiangsu Province, and equipped with a pilot pradadine and various characterization tools. Theteefocuses on improving ¢
conversion efficiency and expanding the applicatidrsolar cells. We are also working together withiversities and reseat
institutes to develop new technology and produtisFebruary 2006, we established the SolarOne Q@ideN Research al
Development Center with Shanghai Jiaotong Univwerdihis center, which is located at Shanghai Jiagtoniversity, focuses ¢
improving conversion efficiency rates of PV celllnder our agreement with Shanghai Jiaotong Unitygraie are jointly entitled
the intellectual property rights relating to theearch results of this center.
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D. Trend Information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this annpaktewe are not aware of any trends, uncertaintiesmiands, commitments
events since January 1, 2010 that are reasondely lio have a material adverse effect on our eeemues, income, profitabili
liquidity or capital resources, or that caused diezlosed financial information to be not necedgandicative of future operatir
results or financial conditions.

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any financial guaranteestleer commitments to guarantee the payment didigs of third partie:
We have not entered into any derivative contrawis are indexed to our shares and classified aslstlders’equity, or that are n
reflected in our consolidated financial statemeRtsthermore, we do not have any retained or cgatihinterest in assets transfe
to an unconsolidated entity that serves as criggliidity or market risk support to such entity. \We not have any variable interes
any unconsolidated entity that provides financifgyidity, market risk or credit support to us diat engages in leasing, hedgini
research and development services with us.

F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2010:

Payment Due by Perioc
Less Than More Than
Total 1 Year 1to 3 Years 3to 5 Years 5 Years
(In RMB thousands)

Purchase obligations relating to raw

materials 5,197,67 1,848,36: 1,764,28 1,585,03 —
Operating lease obligatiol 13,75¢ 9,141 4,61 — —
Long-term debt obligation 1,672,35 269,96( 218,51: 41,62¢ 1,142,25
Commitments relating to the acquisit

of equipmen 426,39: 426,39: — — —
Unrecognized tax bene 143,47: 143,47: — — —
Total 7,453,65. 2,697,33. 1,987,41 1,626,65 1,142,25i

G. Safe Harbor

This annual report on Form 20-F contains forwimaking statements that relate to future eventduiing our future operatit
results and conditions, our prospects and our éuimancial performance and condition, all of wharie largely based on our curr
expectations and projections. The forward-lookingtesnents are contained principally in the sectientitted ‘item 3.D. Risl
Factors,” “Item 4. Information on the Company” ditteém 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospédhese statements i
made under the “safe harbor” provisions of the Pi$:ate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 19%0u can identify these forward-
looking statements by terminology such as “may,llliiv“expect,” “anticipate,” “future,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“isfare likely to” or other and similar expressiof®rwardlooking statements involve inherent risks and utadeties. A number «
factors could cause actual results to differ matigrirom those contained in any forwalmbking statement, including but not limi
to the following:

. our expectations regarding the worldwide demandtFectricity and the market for solar ener

. our beliefs regarding the effects of environmenggulation, lack of infrastructure reliability dlongterm fossil fuel suppl
constraints

. our beliefs regarding the inability of traditiorfaksil fue-based generation technologies to meet the demarmdeittricity;
. our beliefs regarding the importance of environrabyfriendly power generatiot

. our expectations regarding governmental supporth@deployment of solar energ

. our beliefs regarding the acceleration of adoptibsolar technologie

. our expectations with respect to advancementsiiriemhnologies

. our beliefs regarding the competitiveness of olargoroducts
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. our expectations regarding the scaling of our mactufing capacity

. our expectations with respect to revenue growthmanfitability;

. our expectations with respect to our ability touseaaw materials, especially silicon and silicaafevs, in the future
. competition from other manufacturers of PV prodwatd conventional energy supplie

. our future business development, results of opmratand financial condition; at

«  future economic or capital market conditio

This annual report on Form 20-F also contains det@ed to the PV market worldwide and in Chinaetalirom thirdparty
reports. The PV market may not grow at the rategepted by the market data, or at all. The failofehe market to grow at t
projected rates may have a material adverse affecur business and the market price of our AD®addition, the rapidly changi
nature of the PV market subjects any projectionsstimates relating to the growth prospects orréuttondition of our market
significant uncertainties. If any one or more of t#ssumptions underlying the market data turngoooie incorrect, actual results n
differ from the projections based on these assumgptiYou should not place undue reliance on theseafd-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements made in this anmepbrt on Form 2@~ relate only to events or information as of theedar
which the statements are made in this annual regpoRorm 20F. Except as required by law, we undertake no abibig to update
revise publicly any forwardboking statements, whether as a result of newrtinéion, future events or otherwise, after the aba
which the statements are made or to reflect tharoeace of unanticipated events. You should reaahnual report on Form 2B-
completely and with the understanding that ouradiuture results may be materially different frerhat we expect.

ITEM 6 DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regagliour directors and executive officers.

Name Age Position/Title
Ki-Joon Honc 61 Director

Dong Kwan Kim 28 Director

Wook Jin Yoon 53 Director

Thomas J. To' 56 Independent Directc

Ernst A. Blitlet 67 Independent Directc

Yinzhang Gu 73 Independent Directc

David N. K. Wanc¢ 65 Independent Directc

Ping Peter Xie 48 President and Chief Executive Offic
Gareth Kunc 46 Chief Financial Officel

Sungsoo Le: 44 Chief Strategy Officer/Board Secret:
Directors

Mr. Ki-Joon Honghas served as our director since December 20, 204@ the CEO of Hanwha Chemical Corporation. t
to his current position, Ki-Joon was the CEO of Wtha Chemicak pharmaceutical and refinery businesses. Undeleadershif
Hanwha Chemical entered into solar energy and skcgrbattery businesses and also actively expaitdeaverseas operatiol
forming a joint venture in Saudi Arabia and builglia PVC factory in Ningbo, Zhejiang. He received.&. in Chemical Engineeril
from Seoul National University.

Mr. Dong Kwan Kimhas served as our director since December 20, 28&0also serves as a member of our corp
governance and nominating committee. He is the MiagaDirector, Corporate Strategy of Hanwha Corpiora His responsibilitie
include formulation and execution of the Hanwhap’s solar strategy across the entire value chain frolysilicon to downstrea
operations. Mr. Kim gained extensive leadership simdtegic development experience as an officahénRepublic of Korea A
Force. He received a B.A. in Government from HagManiversity.

Mr. Wook Jin Yoothas served as our director since December 20, 284.@s the Director of the investment managemest
at the Management & Planning headquarters of Har®roap. Before assuming his current position, he thia president of Hanw
Investment & Trust Company. He graduated from Sétailonal University with a B.A. in Economics.
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Mr. Thomas J. Toyas served as our independent director since Noee2i96. He also serves as the chairman of out
committee and corporate governance and nominabnyittee and as a member of our compensation cdeenitlis other curre
positions include director and chairman of the Hpaompensation committee chairperson, audit cotamithairperson and corpot
governance committee member of UTStarcom Inc. (BlgstdTSI) and director of several privately heldnganies. Mr. Toy is co-
founder and managing director of PacRim Venturérieas, a venture capital firm based in Menlo P@djfornia, since 1999, and
a venture partner/advisor for ICCP Ventures, awentapital firm. Formerly, he was a partner withaBtForest Ventures, a vent
capital firm based in Portland, Oregon and a pardne managing director of the Corporate Finanaasizin of Technology Fundin
a venture capital firm based in San Mateo, CalitorRrom 1979 to 1987, Mr. Toy held several posgiat Bank of America Natior
Trust and Savings Association, including vice mest. He received his bachelor's and mastatégrees from Northwest
University in the United States.

Mr. Ernst A. Bitlerhas served as our independent director since Nosegi6. He also serves as the chairman o
compensation committee and as a member of our eodimittee. Mr. Bitler has been an independentdoember/consultant sir
2005. His other current positions include board tenof Bank Frey & Co. AG, Zirich, Frey Group Haldj Zurich, ImmNeuwe
AG, Zurich, chairman of the board of Alegra Capitad., Zurich, AAPartners, Zirich and Swiss Alternative Capital Atarich,
member of the board of XBiotech Switzerland AG, Zargl member of the advisory board of XBiotech IAwstin, Texas. Frol
1999 to 2005, he was a partner of Partners Grouudn the largest independent asset manager ohatiee investments in Euroj
Mr. Bitler spent over 25 years with Credit Suised &redit Suisse First Boston, with his last assignts being managing direc
and co-head of Corporate and Investment Bankingzévi@nd. He received a bachetdegree from the School of Economics
Business Administration in Zirich and attended jgwatiuate programs at University of Massachusettisarinited States, INSEZ£
European Institute of Business Administration imi®and MIT Massachusetts Institute of Technoldggston.

Mr. Yinzhang Guhas served as our independent director since Jubie He also serves as a member of our compen
committee and corporate governance and nominatingrittee. From 1962 to 1998, Mr. Gu worked for EastChina Electricit
Administration, a government agency overseeing pau@ply in eastern China, in various roles, ingigdas deputy director a
director. Mr. Gu retired from Shanghai Electrickgministration in 1998. Mr. Gu graduated from Zhejy University in 1962.

Dr. David N.K. Wanghas served as our independent director since ApBi9. He also serves as a member of our
committee and corporate governance and nominatngnittee. Dr. Wang is currently the chairman of bloard of Ether Optroni
Inc., president and chief executive officer of Semnductor Manufacturing International Corporati®@C) and an overseas advi
to the Ministry of Science and Technology of th@le’s Republic of China. He is also an advisor to tlmea@r China Innovatic
and Entrepreneurship project of Stanford Univerisitthe United States. He was a member of the bofaditectors of Semiconduct
Equipment and Materials International (SEMI) anchioihan of its China Regional Advisory Board. Frorep&mber 2005
June 2007, Dr. Wang served as the chief executifieepo of Huahong Group and concurrently chairmdnHuahong NEC,
subsidiary of Huahong Group. Prior to joining Hua@dsroup, Dr. Wang served as executive vice presideApplied Materials ar
president of Applied Materials Asia. Dr. Wang wasponsible for Applied Materialdusiness strategy, planning and execi
throughout Asia. Dr. Wang has also been a membheshafired and helped found a variety of councitsnmittees and associatic
related to technology and Asiacific business and economy. He received his RteBree in Materials Science from the Univel
of California, Berkeley.

Executive Officers

Dr. Ping Peter Xies our president and chief executive officer. Die X¥erved as our president of China from March 2@
September 2009. He joined our company in March 2006 NeoPhotonics Corporation, a Shenzhen, Chased provider i
integrated optics products that use standard sewdicior silicon wafer technology. He most recemtlgrked as NeoPhotoni
Corporation’s global chief technology officer andngral manager of China, where he was respongbléhé company overal
operations in China and its wondde product development programs. During his sarg at NeoPhotonics Corporation, he
held various engineering, product development,ssatal business development roles. Earlier in hisecaDr. Xie acquired a bro
range of experience in both management and resaanthding working at Bookham Inc., JDS Uniphasel &0s Alamos Nation
Lab. He received a Ph.D. in Applied Physics andva8. in Physics from the University of Michigan, Amrbor and a B.S.
Electrical Engineering from Tsinghua UniversityBeijing.

Mr. Gareth Kungis our chief financial officer. Mr. Kung joined oeompany from Semiconductor Manufacturing Inteiori
Corporation where he first worked as group treasarel subsequently as group controller, primarnilycharge of treasury a
financing operations, financial reporting and plagn budget control, Sarban&sdey compliance and PRC and international
planning. Prior to that, Mr. Kung served as an streent manager at AIG Investment Corporation in ¢i&mong, where he wi
responsible for the origination, structuring aneé@xion of private equity transactions in the AB&gific region. From 1997 to 20!
Mr. Kung worked in the corporate banking and cdpriiarkets division of ABN Amro Bank N.V., where lk&ecuted debt financ
transactions for corporations based in Hong Kond @hina. Mr. Kung worked at UOB Asia Limited fron®95 to 1997 ar
executed IPO and M&A transactions for Hong Kdrased corporations. Between 1987 and 1993, Mr. Kuethg) positions as a sen
internal auditor at the Royal Bank of Canada anmdoseauditor at Pricewaterhouse. Mr. Kung earnedMBA from The Universit
of Western Ontario and a bache®degree in Accountancy from the National Univgrsit Singapore. Mr. Kung is a certified put
accountant in Hong Kong, Australia and Singaporevels as a fellow of the Association of Chartereeri@ied Accountants and
chartered financial analy:



Mr. Sungsoo Leés our chief strategy officer and board secret&wor to joining us, Mr. Lee was senior vice presit o
strategic planning and new business developmehtaatvha Group, one of Korealargest industrial conglomerates. At Han
Group, Mr. Lee led the development of new linebaginess in the renewable energy field. Prior toifg Hanwha Group, Mr. L¢
was the founder of Nemo Partners, a Kdoeaed management consulting firm. Prior to thatvag a consultant at Bain & Compe
where he advised clients on corporate strategyiness portfolio management, M&A and marketing. Mge began his career
Samsung Group, where he led various corporate oewelnt activities and Samsusgntry into the incubator and venture ca

industry in Silicon Valley. Mr. Lee earned his bafdr's degree in Business Administration from Seoul &gl University and h
MBA from Harvard Business School.
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B. Compensation

Compensation

In 2008, 2009 and 2010, we paid aggregate cash euogation of RMB9.2 million, RMB26.6 million and RMB5 million
(US$1.2 million), respectively, to our directorsdaexecutive officers. For options granted to officand directors, see “-200¢
Share Option Plan” and “— 2007 Equity IncentiverPla

The purposes of our 2006 share option plan and 2g0ity incentive plan are to attract and retam ltlest available person
for positions of substantial responsibility, proiddditional incentive to employees, directors aodsultants and promote
success of our business. Our board of directoisves that our company’s lorigkm success is dependent upon our ability toc
and retain superior individuals who, by virtue béir ability, experience and qualifications, makeportant contributions to o
business.

2006 Share Option Plan

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in NovemB@620Our 2006 share option plan provides for thengof options t
purchase our ordinary shares, subject to vesting.

Administration.Our 2006 share option plan is administered by tpensation committee of our board of directorse
committee will determine the provisions, terms andditions of each option grant, including, but lwiited to, the exercise price
the options, vesting schedule, forfeiture provisidiorm of payment of exercise price and otheriapple terms. The exercise pi
may be adjusted in the event of certain sharegbitsiissuances by our company.

Option ExerciseOur 2006 Share Option Plan requires the optionsdséed over five years in equal portions, excegt the
vesting schedule of options granted to certainwfprofessionals, independent directors and advismy be less than five year
our compensation committee deems it necessary pprb@riate. The options, once vested, are exeleisabany time befo
November 30, 2016, at which time the options widktbme null and void. The exercise prices of théooptare determined by 1
compensation committee.

Termination of AwardsOptions granted under our 2006 share option plame tspecified terms set forth in a share of
agreement. Each employee who has been grantechgtiall undertake to work for our company foreaist five years starting frc
the grant date, or for such term as is otherwiseifipd in the individual's share option agreeméntthe event that the employee’
employment with our company terminates without eatise employee shall be entitled to exercise hiseo vested options witr
three months of his or her termination, and anyested options will be forfeited to our company. Heer, if instead the employee’
employment is terminated by our company for caadlepf his or her unexercised options, whether egstr unvested, will t
forfeited to our company.

Share Split or Combinatiotn the event of a share split or combination of oxdinary shares, the options, whether exercis
not, shall be split or combined at the same ratio.

Amendment and Termination of Pl&wr compensation committee may at any time amergpend or terminate our 2006 st
option plan. Amendments to our 2006 share optian pire subject to shareholder approval, to thenexéguired by law, or by sto
exchange rules or regulations. Any amendment, sisépe or termination of our 2006 share option phaay not adversely affe
awards already granted without written consenhefrecipient of such awards.
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Our board of directors authorized the issuancepofoul0,799,685 ordinary shares upon exercise affdsvgranted under ¢
2006 share option plan. The following table setshf@ertain information regarding our outstandingji@ns under our 2006 shi

option plan as of April 22, 2011.

Ordinary
Shares
Underlying
Outstanding  Exercise
Name Option Price Grant Date Expiration Date
(US$/share
Ki-Joon Honc — — — —
Dong Kwan Kim — — — —
Wook Jin Yoon — — — —
Thomas J. To' * 1.8 November 30, 20 November 30, 201
Verena Maria Butler (wife of Ernst A. Bitle * 1.8 November 30, 20 November 30, 201
Yinzhang Gu * 1.94  August 16, 200° August 16, 201
David N.K. Wang — — — —
Ping Peter Xie — — — —
Gareth Kunc — — — —
Sungsoo Le: — — — —
Directors and executive office 480,00(
Other individuals as a grot 1,767,90 1.8 November 30, 20 November 30, 201
150,00( 2.0z August 16, 200 August 16, 201
90,00( 2.0€  October 10, 200 October 10, 201
180,00( 2.1t October 10, 200 October 10, 201
400,00( 2.5¢ October 26, 200 October 26, 201
50,00( 2.7 November 1,200 November 1, 201
245,50( 2.21 November 27, 20(
261,00( 5.31 December 13, 20( December 13, 20!
300,00( 6.01¢ January 8, 200 January 8, 201
150,00( 3.5 January 29, 200 January 29, 201
216,25( 2.1t March 6, 200¢ March 6, 201¢
300,00( 2.04  March 14, 200¢ March 14, 201¢
Total 4,590,65!

*  Upon exercise of all share options, would bendficiawvn 1% or less of our ordinary shar

— No outstanding share option was held by such pe

2007 Equity Incentive Plan

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Auq@f7. It provides for the grant of options, red&il stock, restricted stc

units, stock appreciation rights, performance uaitd performance stock to our employees, dire@odsconsultants. The maxim
aggregate number of our ordinary shares that magdoed under the 2007 equity incentive plan i§99,685. In addition, the pl
provides for an annual increase in the number afeshavailable for issuance on the first day ohdical year, beginning with o
2008 fiscal year, equal to 2% of our then outstagdirdinary shares or such lesser amount as oud loba@irectors may determine.

Administration.Different committees with respect to different goewf service providers, comprised of members oftmarc
or other individuals appointed by the board, mayniaister our 2007 equity incentive plan. The adsti@itor has the power
determine which individuals are eligible to receareaward, the terms of the awards, including #ezase price (if any), the numt
of shares subject to an award, the exercisabifith@awards and the form of consideration payaplen exercise.

Options.The exercise price of incentive stock options ningsat least equal to the fair market value of adimary shares on tl
date of grant; however, the overseas price of onrgtatutory stock options may be as determined byatiministrator. The term
an incentive stock option may not exceed ten yessept that with respect to any participant whan@w0% of the voting power
all classes of our outstanding shares as of tha giate, the term must not exceed five years am@xercise price must equal at |
110% of the fair market value on the grant datee &tiministrator determines the term of all othaioms. Upon the termination
the service of a participant, he or she may exerais or her vested options for the period of tsteged in the option agreement,
any unvested options are forfeited to our comp@wsmnerally, if termination is due to death or ditiahithe option will remail
exercisable for twelve months. In all other casles,option will generally remain exercisable forelh months. However, an opt
generally may not be exercised later than the etipin of its term.

Restricted StoclRestricted stock awards are ordinary shares ttstiveccordance with terms and conditions estatidy th



administrator and set forth in an award agreememé. administrator will determine the number of sisaof restricted sto
granted to any employee and may impose whatevatitiams to vesting it determines to be appropriate.

Stock Appreciation RightStock appreciation rights allow the recipient togige the appreciation in the fair market valuew
ordinary shares between the date of grant andxteise date. The exercise price of stock applieciaights granted under our p
may be as determined by the administrator. Stopkeagation rights expire under the same rulesdbaty to options.
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Performance Units and Performance Shaistformance units and performance shares are awatwill result in a payme
to a participant generally only if performance goaktablished by the administrator are achieved. administrator will establi
organizational or individual performance goalstgdiscretion, which, depending on the extent tictvithey are met, will determi
the number and the value of performance units anfbpnance shares to be paid out to participants.

Restricted Stock UnitRestricted stock units are similar to awards ofrieted stock, but are not settled unless the awasts
Restricted stock units may consist of restricteatlst performance share or performance unit awanad,the administrator may
forth restrictions based on the achievement ofifipgerformance goals.

Amendment and Terminatio@ur 2007 equity incentive plan will automaticalgrinate in 2017, unless we terminate it so«
Our board of directors has the authority to amaittéy, suspend or terminate the plan provided swtion does not impair the rigl
of any participant with respect to any outstandimgrds.

Our board of directors authorized the issuancepofoul0,799,685 ordinary shares upon exercise effdsvgranted under ¢
2007 equity incentive plan. The following tablessktrth certain information regarding our outstawgdoptions under our 2007 eqt
incentive plan as of April 22, 2011.

Ordinary
Shares
Underlying
Outstanding Exercise
Name Option Price Grant Date Expiration Date
(US$/share)
Ki-Joon Honc — — — —
Dong Kwan Kim — — — —
Wook Jin Yoon — — — —
Thomas J. To' — — — —
Ernst A. Bitler — — —
Yinzhang Gu — — — —
David N.K. Wang * 0.88( April 2, 2009 April 2, 2019
Peter Ping Xie * 0.61( March 17, 200¢ March 17, 201¢
* 1.01(¢ March 17, 200¢ March 17, 201¢
* 1.50¢ March 4, 201( March 4, 202(
Gareth Kunc * 1.27¢  November 27, 20C November 27, 201
Sungsoo Le: — — — —
Directors and executive office 2,050,001
Other individuals as a grot 533,33! 2.82( April 15, 2008 April 15, 2018
25,00( 25,00( May 1, 200¢ May 1, 201€
20,00( 4.37¢ May 28, 200¢ May 28, 201¢
270,00( 2.42C September 26, 200 September 26, 20
1,131,00! 1.34¢ October 16, 200 October 16, 201
180,00( 0.93¢ October 28, 200 October 28, 201
15,00( 1.13¢ November 28, 20C November 28, 201
8,00( 0.96( December 29, 20C December 29, 201
149,50( 0.99¢ January 28, 200 January 28, 201
63,00( 1.34¢ March 17, 200¢ March 17, 201¢
125,00( 0.90( April 1, 2009 April 1, 2019
20,00( 0.74: April 28, 2009 April 28, 2019
57,50( 1.45: May 27, 200¢ May 27, 201¢
43,75( 1.44(C July 28, 200¢ July 28, 201¢
770,50( 1.18¢ September 11, 201 September 11, 20
239,50( 1.01(¢ October 29, 200 October 29, 201
625,00( 1.27¢ November 27, 20C November 27, 201
1,692,05! 1.372 December 3,200 December 3, 201
400,00( 1.58¢ December 28, 20C December 28, 201
500,00( 1.48( January 27, 201 January 27, 202
275,00( 1.49¢ June 28, 201 June 28, 202
150,00( 2.48¢ September 28, 20. September 28, 20
300,00 2.04: October 29, 201 October 29, 202
150,00( 1.80C November 26, 201 November 26, 20z
250,00( 1.70¢ January 28, 201 January 28, 202



Total 10,043,13

*  Upon exercise of all share options, would bendficiawn 1% or less of our ordinary shar
— No outstanding share option was held by such pe
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The following table sets forth certain
plan as of April 22, 2011.

Name

informatioggarding our granted restricted stock units urmder2007 equity incenti

Ordinary
Shares
Underlying
Granted
Restricted
Stock Units

Grant Date

Expiration Date

Ki-Joon Honc
Dong Kwan Kim
Wook Jin Yoon
Thomas J. To'

Verena Maria Butler (wife of Ernst A Bltle

Yinzhang Gu

David N.K. Wang
Peter Ping Xie
Gareth Kunc
Sungsoo Le:

Directors and executive office
Other individuals as a grot

Total

>(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(->(-|

11,890,62
7,050,001
1,125,001

20,065,62

January 1, 200
January 1, 201
January 1, 201
January 1, 200
January 1, 201
January 1, 201
January 1, 200
January 1, 201
January 1, 201
January 1, 201
January 1, 201
February 28, 201
February 29, 201
February 28, 201
February 29, 201

February 28, 201
February 29, 201

*  Upon vesting of all restricted stock units, woukhbficially own 1% or less of our ordinary shai

No restricted stock units have been granted to pacson
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January 1, 201
January 1, 202
January 1, 202
January 1, 201
January 1, 202
January 1, 202
January 1, 201
January 1, 202
January 1, 202
January 1, 202
January 1, 202
February 28, 20z
February 29, 20z
February 28, 20z
February 29, 20z

February 28, 20z
February 29, 20z
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C. Board Practices
Committees of the Board of Directors
Audit Committet

Our audit committee consists of Mr. Thomas J. Thly, Ernst A. Bitler and Mr. David N.K. Wang, and ¢haired b
Mr. Thomas J. Toy, a director with accounting aimdificial management expertise as required by tregl&tpcorporate governal
rules, or the Nasdaqg Rules. All of the members wf audit committee all satisfy the “independencequirements of the Nasc
Rules. The audit committee will oversee our acdognand financial reporting processes and the awdithe financial statements
our company. The audit committee is responsiblggorong other things:

. selecting our independent auditors and pre-ajpgoall auditing and nomwuditing services permitted to be performed by
independent auditor

. reviewing with our independent auditors any audifylems or difficulties and managem’s response

. reviewing and approving all proposed relatedypadnsactions, as defined in Item 404 of Reguta8&K under the Securitir
Act;

. discussing the annual audited financial statemsittsmanagement and our independent audi

. reviewing major issues as to the adequacy of aernal control and any special audit steps adojptdight of material contre
deficiencies

. annually reviewing and reassessing the adequaecyradudit committee charte

« such other matters that are specifically delegttenir audit committee by our board of directomfrtime to time
. meeting separately and periodically with manageraadtour internal and independent auditors;

. reporting regularly to our board of directc

Our audit committee has established a “whistlebldweeporting system to allow individuals to make anooys
communications to the audit committee regardingrfial and accounting matters relating to our cangpa

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee consists of Mr. ErnstBétler, Mr. Thomas J. Toy and Mr. Yinzhang Gu, asdchaired b
Mr. Ernst A. Butler. All of the members of our coemsation committee satisfy the “independenmjuirements of the Nasc
Rules. Our compensation committee assists our bofdirectors in reviewing and approving the congagion structure of o
directors and executive officers, including allrfer of compensation to be provided to our directmmd executive officers. Membi
of the compensation committee are not prohibitesinfrdirect involvement in determining their own campation. Our chi
executive officer may not be present at any conemitheeting during which his compensation is deditset. The compensati
committee is responsible for, among other things:

. approving and overseeing the compensation packagrif executive officer:
. reviewing and making recommendations to our bo&directors with respect to the compensation ofditectors;

. reviewing and approving corporate goals and ohjestrelevant to the compensation of our chief etkeewfficer, evaluatin
the performance of our chief executive officeright of those goals and objectives, and settingctirapensation level of @
chief executive officer based on this evaluatiord

. reviewing periodically and making recommendatitm®ur board of directors regarding any Idegn incentive compensati
or equity plans, programs or similar arrangemearisual bonuses, employee pension and welfare betegdis.

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

Our corporate governance and nominating committesists of Mr. Thomas J. Toy, Mr. Dong Kwan Kim, .Miinzhang G
and Mr. David N.K. Wang, and is chaired by Mr. Tramm]. Toy. All of the members of our corporate goaace and nominatil
committee, except Mr. Dong Kwan Kim, satisfy thedependencefequirements of the Nasdaq Rules. The corporatergance ar
nominating committee assists our board of diredtordentifying individuals qualified to become adirectors and in determining
composition of our board of directors and its comteeis. The corporate governance and nominating ctearis responsible fc
among other things:

. identifying and recommending nominees for elector reelection to our board of directors, or for appoiatmto fill any
vacancy;



. reviewing annually with our board of directors disrrent composition in light of the characteristiésndependence, age, ski
experience and availability of service to
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. identifying and recommending to our board the doecto serve as members of committe

. advising the board periodically with respect tonffigant developments in the law and practice afooate governance as w
as our compliance with applicable laws and regofesti and making recommendations to our board etttirs on all matters
corporate governance and on any corrective actidne ttaken; an

. monitoring compliance with our code of businessdtan and ethics, including reviewing the adequauy effectiveness of o
procedures to ensure proper complial

Duties of Directors

Under Cayman Islands law, our directors have acfaty duty to act honestly, in good faith and wathiew to our best interes
Our directors also have a duty to exercise the gilaly actually possess and such care and diligdratea reasonably prudent per
would exercise in comparable circumstances. Inllialf their duty of care to us, our directors mustsure compliance with ¢
memorandum and articles of association, as amemgdestated from time to time.

Terms of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors are not subject to a term of offioel &old office until such time as they resign oe emoved from office t
ordinary resolution or the unanimous written resolu of all shareholders. A director will be remadvieEom office automatically i
among other things, the director becomes banknuptakes any arrangement or composition with hiditwes, or dies or is found |
our company to be or to have become of unsound .n@na officers are appointed by and serve at tiserdtion of our board
directors.

The service contracts of our directors do not gtevor benefits upon termination of their directops
Employment Agreement

We have entered into employment agreements witbfalur executive officers. Under these agreemesash of our executi
officers is employed for a specified time periode Wiay terminate his or her employment for causmgttime for certain acts of t
employee.

Each executive officer has agreed to hold, botlinduaind subsequent to the terms of his or her aggat in confidence and r
to use, except in pursuance of his or her dutie®imection with the employment, any of our coniiid information, technologic
secrets, commercial secrets and kriow. Our executive officers have also agreed telase to us all inventions, designs
techniques which resulted from work performed bgnth and to assign us all right, title and intemdssuch inventions, designs ¢
techniques.

Additionally, our executive officers are typicallpound by norcompetition provisions contained in their employt
agreements that prohibit them from engaging invdigs that compete with our business during andafe@ertain period after th:
employment with our company.

On June 29, 2007, China has adopted the New Emgloty@ontract Law, or the New Employment Law, whigime into effe
on January 1, 2008. The New Employment Law setb fmertain key requirements, such as the requiréfoera written employme
contract, limitations on probation period, and skgion severance pay that might marginally affeeicbst of employment in Chil
However, we do not expect the New Employment Lalvsubstantially impact our business.

D. Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had 10,241 full-timepleryees. The following table sets forth the numbégrour full-time
employees by function as of December 31, 2008, 20@°2010:

As of December 31

2008 2009 2010
Manufacturing and engineerit 3,25¢ 4,46 8,70¢
General and administratic 18z 162 24C
Quality control 22t 33¢ 794
Research and developmt 12¢€ 12t 15C
Purchasing and logisti 17¢ 192 29t
Marketing and sale 23 26 56

Total 3,98¢ 5,31( 10,24
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We offer our employees competitive compensatiorkgges and various training programs, and as atresuhave general
been able to attract and retain qualified personnel

As required by PRC regulations, we participatedariaus employee benefit plans that are organizeahlyicipal and provinci
governments, including housing, pension, medical anemployment benefit plans. We are required urRiRC law to mak
contributions to the employee benefit plans at $igecpercentages of the salaries, bonuses andigetiowances of our employe
up to a maximum amount specified by the local gowvemt from time to time. Members of the retiremplan are entitled to
pension equal to a fixed proportion of their s&ariThe total amount of contributions we made tpleyee benefit plans in 20(
2009 and 2010 was RMB18.7 million, RMB29.4 milliand RMB52.4 million (US$7.9 million), respectively.

We adopted our 2006 share option plan in NovemBe6é 2which provides an additional means to attnactivate, retain ar
reward selected directors, officers, managers, eyagls and other eligible persons. An aggregat®af9®,685 ordinary shares |
been reserved for issuance under this plan. Aseaeber 31, 2010, there were outstanding optiopsitchase 4,910,650 ordin
shares under our 2006 share option plan.

We adopted our 2007 equity incentive plan in Auq@f7. It provides for the grant of options, red&il stock, restricted stc
units, stock appreciation rights, performance uaitd performance stock to our employees, dire@odsconsultants. The maxim
aggregate number of our ordinary shares that magdoed under the 2007 equity incentive plan i§99,685. In addition, the pl
provides for an annual increase in the number afeshavailable for issuance on the first day ohdescal year, beginning with @
2008 fiscal year, equal to 2% of our then outstagdirdinary shares or such lesser amount as oud lbalirectors may determir
As of December 31, 2010, there were outstandingpto purchase 10,724,910 ordinary shares unge2@07 share option plan.

We typically enter into a standard confidentialdapd noneompetition agreement with our management and relsean
development personnel. These contracts includevanamt that prohibits these individuals from engggin any activities th.
compete with our business during, and for threesyafier, the period of their employment with oampany.

We believe we maintain a good working relationshigh our employees, and we have not experiencedsamjficant laba
disputes or any difficulty in recruiting staff faur operations. On March 9, 2010, SolarOne Qidadggesl a collective bargaini
agreement in accordance with the guidelines oPRRE labor law. The collective bargaining agreenteners all of the employees
SolarOne Qidong who are PRC citizens and is effedtom February 1, 2010 to January 31, 2011. Orca2, 2011, the collecti
bargaining agreement was renewed with an effegtarsd from March 16, 2011 to March 15, 2012.

E. Share Ownership

The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our ordinarargls as of April 22, 201
the latest practicable date, by:

. each of our directors and executive officers;

. each person known to us to own beneficially moas t5.0% of our ordinary share

Shares Beneficially

Owned 1@

Number %
Directors and Executive Officers: — —
Ki-Joon Honc — —
Dong Kwan Kim — —
Wook Jin Yoon — —
Thomas J. To' 138,75( 0.02%
Verena Maria Butler (wife of Ernst A. Bitle 367,49( 0.0¢%
Yinzhang Gu 255,00( 0.0€6%
David N.K. Wang * *0%
Ping Peter Xie * *0%
Gareth Kunc * *0%
Sungsoo Le: — —
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Grc®) 1,494,89i 0.36%
Major Shareholders:
Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lt®# 209,249,44 49.8%
WHF Investment Co., Lt®) 6,271,87! 1.4%
Notes
* The person beneficially owns less than 1% of odstanding share:

— The person does not beneficially own any ordin&are or options exercisable within 60 days of thte @f this annual repo
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(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accoawith Rule 13® of the General Rules and Regulations under therfies
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and includeagaoti investment power with respect to the se@gi

(2) The number of ordinary shares outstanding in catind the percentages for each listed person ieslube ordinary shai
underlying options exercisable by such person wish) days of the date of this annual report on Fafi. Percentage
beneficial ownership of each listed person is based19,771,847 ordinary shares outstanding aspol 22, 2011, as well i
the ordinary shares underlying share options esabié by such person within 60 days of the datdisfannual report on Fo
20+F. This number excludes: (i) the 9,019,611 ADSs cWhivere issued to facilitate our convertible borffering in
January 2008; (ii) the 45,080,019 ordinary shasssied to Hanwha Solar at par value of US$0.000lopdinary share,
connection with Hanwha Solar'purchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of ourpeom in September 2010; and (iii)
174,717 ADSs which have been reserved by our comnaamf April 22, 2011 to allow for the participatiin the ADS progra
by our employees pursuant to our equity incentite@p from time to time. We excluded those shareseagdo not believe th
they will increase the number of ordinary sharessatered outstanding for the purpose of calculabiegeficial ownership. O
total outstanding ordinary shares will be 510,8@8,6 those numbers mentioned above are to beded

(3) Includes ordinary shares held by all of our direstand senior executive officers as a group, a$ agethe ordinary shar
underlying share options held by such directorsserdor executive officers exercisable within 6§<laf the date of this anni
report on Form 2-F.

(4) Held 202,844,393 ordinary shares (excluding 45@B® ordinary shares issued to Hanwha Solar at glaewof US$0.0001 p
ordinary share, in connection with Hanwha Sagurchase of 36,455,089 ordinary shares of oumpaomin September 201
and 1,281,011 ADSs as of April 22, 2011. The addres Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Ltd. is c/o Hanw@hemica
Corporation, Hanwha Building, 1, Janggyo-dong, JgngSeoul 100497, Korea. Hanwha Solar is a wholly owned subsjdid
Hanwha Chemica

(5) WHF Investment Co., Ltd., a British Virgin Islandsmpany, is owned by the estate of Mr. Hanfei Wéwhg.Hanfei Wang, ot
former director and chief operating officer, was 8vle director of WHF Investment Co., Ltd. Theradd of WHF Investme
Co., Ltd. is P.O. Box 173, Kingston Chambers, Rdadn, Tortola, British Virgin Islands

We entered into a share purchase agreement on ABgR810 with Hanwha Chemical, under which Hanvieemical agree
to purchase 36,455,089 ordinary shares from uspaita of US$2.144 per ordinary share, which cqroesls to a price of US$10.
per ADS. Hanwha Chemical subsequently assignedrandferred its rights and obligations under tharstpurchase agreemen
Hanwha Solar, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwime@ical and the sale and purchase of these ordahames was consumma
on September 16, 2010. In addition, we enteredargbare issuance and repurchase agreement ormBeptks, 2010 with Hanw!
Solar, under which we agreed to issue to Hanwhar%ototal of 45,080,019 ordinary shares at panevaf US$0.0001 per ordin:
share, which shares shall remain outstanding sg &8 and to the extent that the 9,019,611 ADSssseed to facilitate o
convertible bond offering in January 2008 remaitstanding. Pursuant to the share issuance andctegse agreement, we issue
Hanwha Solar 30,672,689 ordinary shares on Septeh@he010 and an additional 14,407,330 ordinagret on March 10, 201
The total proceeds to us from these transactionsuated to approximately US$78.2 million. At the satime, Hanwha Sol
completed the acquisition from Good Energies Ildil Yonghua Solar Power Investment Holding Ltdadbtal of 120,407,7(
ordinary shares and 1,281,011 ADSs of our compapresenting all of the ordinary shares and AD3d bg them. In connectic
with our public offering of 9,200,000 ADSs in Novber 2010, we issued to Hanwha Solar an additiob#81,604 ordinary shai
at a price of US$1.80 per ordinary share pursuart shareholder agreement we and Hanwha Solaredniteio on September :
2010. As a result of these transactions, Hanwhar®eins an approximately 49.8% equity interestinampany.

As of April 22, 2011, approximately 61.0% of ountstanding ordinary shares, represented by 51,239ISs, were held t
50 record holders in the United States.

63




Table of Contents

ITEM 7 MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSATIONS

A. Major Shareholders

Please refer to “Item 6.E. Share Ownership.”

B. Related Party Transactions

After the completion of our initial public offeringn December 26, 2006, we adopted an audit coneratiarter, which requir
that the audit committee review all related pargnsactions on an ongoing basis and all such tttinea be approved by t
committee.

Private Placement

In September 2010, we issued in a private placeremrtggregate of 36,455,089 ordinary shares to Har®wolar at a purche
price of US$2.144 per share for an aggregate sale pf US$78.2 million. Concurrently with the clog of this offering, we issut
30,672,689 ordinary shares to Hanwha Solar at glrevof the ordinary shares and subsequently aiti@ohl 14,407,330 ordina
shares at par value, which shares shall remairtamai®ig so long as and to the extent that the %Q19ADSs we issued to facilit:
our convertible bond offering in January 2008 ranmitstanding.

In connection with our public offering of 9,200,08@Ss in November 2010, we issued in a privategrtaent to Hanwha Sol
an additional 45,981,604 ordinary shares at a priclS$1.8 per ordinary share for an aggregate pate of US$82.8 millio
pursuant to a shareholder agreement we and Hanalhaeéhtered into on September 16, 2010.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to the registration rights agreement edt@rto in connection with the private placemeangaction with Hanwt
Solar in September 2010, we granted to Hanwha $eldain registration rights, which primarily indier Pursuant to the registrat
rights agreement entered into in connection with frivate placement, dated June 27, 2006, we egattt the holders of series
convertible preference shares certain registratgis, which primarily include:

. Demand Registration. Upon request of Hanwha Solar to effect any reafisin with respect to the registrable securitteseic
then outstanding having an anticipated aggregdering price of at least US$15 million, we shalfeet registration wit
respect to such registrable securities on a folmarahan Form B (or any comparable form for a registration foradfering ir
a jurisdiction other than the United States), pdedi that we shall only be obligated to effect trseeh registration:

. Piggyback RegistrationsHanwha Solar and its permitted transferees ardleshtio “piggyback”registration rights, wherel
they may require us to register all or any parthef registrable securities that they hold at theetivhen we register any of «
ordinary shares

. Registrations orForm F-3 .We have granted Hanwha Solar and its permittecsteag@es the right to an unlimited numbe
registrations under Form F{or any comparable form for a registration inuasdiction other than the United States), f
public offering of registrable securities with asenably anticipated aggregate price to the pulolidess than US$10 million,
the extent we are eligible to use such form toraféeurities

Equity Incentive Plan
See “Item 6.B. Compensation — 2006 Share Option"Riad “Item 6.B. Compensation — 2007 Equity IncemtPlan.”
Transactions with Certain Shareholders and Affiliaed Companies

. On January 11, 2008, SolarOne Hong Kong, our 10@fitect subsidiary, entered into a shiatm loan agreement with Ha
Kong Huaerli Trading Company Limited, or Hong Koityaerli, a company controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, darmel
chairman, under which Hong Kong Huaerli agreedomlUS$9 million to SolarOne Hong Kong at an annnigrest rate «
8%. The loan was fully repaid in February 20

. On May 7, 2008, SolarOne Qidong entered into aripegent purchase agreement with Linyang Electronibereby SolarOr
Qidong purchased certain equipment from LinyangtEbaics for RMBO0.5 million

. On April 12, 2008, July 8, 2008 and October 13, 80BolarOne Qidong entered into four service agssgswith Nanton
Linyang Labor Service Company, a company controldgdMr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairman, under whigolarOn
Qidong agreed to pay an aggregate amount of RMBill®n to Nantong Linyang Labor Service Company ifts provision o
construction service:

. On September 1, 2008 and October 20, 2008, Solaf@deng entered into two service agreements withtdlag Linyan
Ecological Cultural Co., Ltd., a company controlleg Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairman, under whigolarOne Qidor
agreed to pay an aggregate amount of RMBO0.6 mililiNantong Linyang Ecological Cultural Co., Lter fits provision ¢



construction and labor service
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. On October 30, 2008, SolarOne Qidong entered imtolgsilicon purchase agreement with Ya An Yongw@&ilgcon Co., Ltd.
or Yongwang, a company controlled by Hanwha Chelnite holding company of Hanwha Solar, under wh8tilarOni
Qidong purchased certain polysilicon from YongwémgRMB8.7 million.

. On December 18, 2008, SolarOne Qidong enteredtimboservice agreements with Qidong Jiaotong EngingeCo., Ltd.
under which SolarOne Qidong agreed to pay an agtgegmount of RMBO0.6 million to Qidong Jiaotong kEmgring Co., Ltc
for its provision of construction service

. On December 25, 2008, SolarOne Qidong enteredairframework supply agreement with Linyang Electtenunder whic
SolarOne Qidong agreed to purchase raw materiais finyang Electronics in the year 20(

. On February 26, 2009, SolarOne Hong Kong, our 1d@fitect subsidiary, amended a manufacturing seragreement enter
into on December 30, 2008 with Q-Cells Internatld@ebH, or Qeells, a company controlled by Good Energies Il uRge
which SolarOne Hong Kong agreed to supply, usingcBNé supplied by Q-Cells, on a fixgudice basis no less than 100 MW
PV modules to Q-Cells in each of 2009 and 2010gaadted Q€ells International GmbH an option to extend theeagent fc
one additional year. As a result, as of DecembelB09, the amount of manufacturing service feefdum Q-ells under thi
agreement was RMB12.0 million. On December 29, 280%f the rights and obligations of Qells under this agreement w
assigned to -Cells SE.

. On January 1 and April 3, 2009, SolarOne Qidongrext into two facility lease agreements with Lingdflectronics. Unds
these agreements, SolarOne Qidong incurred rexpehses of RMB2.3 million in 200

. On November 16, 2009, SolarOne Qidong entered @toity transfer agreements with Mr. Ronggiang Quir forme
independent director, Ms. Guoyu Wang, Mr. Gugpouse and Mr. Yongliang Gu, our shareholdgoutchase from them a 1°
equity interest in Solar Shanghai for consideratiéiRMBO0.85 million. Solar Shanghai became our viholwned subsidial
after the completion of this transactic

. On December 4 and 28, 2009, SolarOne Qidong eniatedwo equipment purchase agreements with LigyBfectronic
whereby SolarOne Qidong purchased certain equipfremtLinyang Electronics for an aggregate amodrmB1.2 million.

. On June 30, July 2, 9 and 31, August 10 and Oct®Be009, Solar Shanghai entered into six purclageements wi
Linyang Electronics, under which Solar Shanghaichased certain raw materials from Linyang Electsribor an aggrege
amount of RMBO0.3 million

. On February 5, 20 and 23, and April 27 and 30, 2@&arOne Qidong entered into five polysilicon ghase agreement w
Yongwang, under which SolarOne Qidong purchasetiogpolysilicon from Yongwang for RMB88.7 millio

. On January 1, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered irfraraework purchase agreement with Linyang Electsnunder whic
SolarOne Qidong agreed to purchase raw materi@is finyang Electronics in the year 20:

. On January 3, 18 and 28, February 9 and March @¥0,2SolarOne Qidong entered into five equipmenmtipase agreemel
with Linyang Electronics whereby SolarOne Qidonggbased certain equipment from Linyang Electroficgsan aggrega
amount of RMB4.0 million

. On March 25, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered interaice agreement with Nantong Huahong Ecologicatléaing Co., Ltd
a company controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our forneiairman, under which SolarOne Qidong agreed to grapggrega
amount of RMBO0.1 million to Nantong Linyang Ecologi Gardening Co., Ltd. for its provision of constion and labc
services

. In April 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered into a leaggeement with Qidong Huahong Electronics Co.,.,L&d compan
controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, our former chairmdoy a threeyear term under which the annual rental payme
RMB1.5 million.

. On April 30, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered inteequipment purchase agreement with SMIC Energy Taoby (Shanghai
or SMIC ET, a wholly owned subsidiary of SMIC, angmany where David N.K. Wang, our independent diecterves ¢
president and chief executive officer. Under tliseement, SolarOne Qidong agreed to purchase aVEx#l line from SMIC
ET for an amount of US$4.25 million. SolarOne Qidaiso signed a human resource service agreemgémawnemonth tern
with SMIC ET in connection with the equipment puash agreement, under which SMIC ET agreed to seeomloyees 1
SolarOne Qidong to manage and operate the equipsumdtby SMIC ET and SolarOne Qidong agreed to faeythose
employeestompensation. Pursuant to the equipment purchasermagnt, SolarOne Qidong also entered into a legsemet
with SMIC (Shanghai) Corporation, or SMIC Shanghailease the premises and facilities where thépewent is located for
12-month term from May 1, 2010 to April 30, 2011. Sulehse agreement was amended on April 21, 201stéme the term «
the lease to May 21, 2011. In addition, SolarOngo®g assumed three PV cell supply contracts ofligieatered into betwet
SMIC ET Shanghai and its custome
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. On September 13, 2010, SolarOne Qidong enterechiqorchase agreement with Hanwha Chemical, thairfigpcompany ¢
Hanwha Solar, under which SolarOne Qidong purchasathin raw materials from Hanwha Chemical for @anount o
RMB1.9 million (US$0.3 million)

. On September 15, 2010, SolarOne Qidong enteredaingarchase agreement with Yongwang under whichrSole Qidon
agreed to purchase certain amounts of raw matérafs Yongwang at a price adjusted monthly basethermarket price fro
October 2010 to October 201

. On October 26, 2010, SolarOne Qidong entered igarahase agreement with Hanwha L&C Trading (Shangbo., Ltd., o
Hanwha L&C, a company affiliated with Hanwha Solander which SolarOne Qidong purchased certainmeterials fror
Hanwha L&C for an amount of RMB1.1 million (US$Mllion).

. On January 3, 2011, we entered into a consultingicee agreement with Hanwha S&C Co., Ltd., a conypaffiliated witr
Hanwha Solar, under which Hanwha S&C Co., Ltd. mies various consulting services related to infdioma strategi
planning from January 3, 2011 to March 31, 201lafoamount of RMB1.5 million (US$0.2 millior

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.
ITEM 8 FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Irdrmation

We have appended consolidated financial statenfiégedsas part of this annual report.
Export Sales

Our export sales in 2008, 2009 and 2010 were RMBX®million, RMB3,600.8 million and RMB6,935.9 fitin
(US$1,050.9 million), respectively, and accoun®dd3.3%, 95.3% and 92.1% of our total revenugeesvely.

Legal and Administrative Proceedings

Most of our multiyear supply agreements that we entered into dahiegearlier periods of supply shortage requiretbusake
prepayments of a portion of the total contractepttic our suppliers without receiving collateral frch prepayments. Due to non-
performance by some of such suppliers, we recoadpabvision of RMBO0.1 million (US$18,000) for doéldtcollection of supplie
advances in 2010. While we are filing claims agasnush suppliers to resolve these disputes, theome of such potential litigati
may not be in our favor.

On June 8, 2009, LDK, one of our suppliers of siticsubmitted an arbitration request to the Shan@tmtration Commissior
alleging that we had failed to perform under thente of a longeerm supply agreement, seeking to enforce our pedgoce an
claiming for monetary relief. Deliveries of silicamder the agreement halted in early 2009 and haveecommenced. We intenc
continue to vigorously defend ourselves againstctaens brought by LDK and, on July 9, 2009, wemiited an arbitration reque
to the Shanghai Arbitration Commission requesthnaf £ DK refund the outstanding prepayments of RMB#illion that we mac
under the contract, plus compensation of RMB35iomilfrom LDK for estimated losses incurred by usagsult of the stoppage
deliveries under the framework supply agreemenér&lis no assurance that we will be able to sufidbsslefend or resolve su
legal or administrative proceedings in the neaurkibr at all. See “ltem 3.D. Risk FactorsRisks Related to Our Company and
Industry — Our ability to adjust our raw materialsts may be limited as a result of our entering multi-year supply agreeme
with many of our silicon and silicon wafer suppieand it may be difficult for us to respond inragly manner to rapidly changi
market condition, which could materially and adedysaffect our cost of revenues and profitability.”

Other than as described above, there are no mlategal proceedings, regulatory inquiries or inigesions pending ¢

threatened against us. We may from time to timesudgect to various legal or administrative procegdiarising in the ordina
course of our business.
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Dividend Policy

We made a onéme cash dividend payment in the aggregate amofiRMB7.2 million to the holders of the series
convertible preference shares on December 31, ZBa&pt for the forgoing, we have never declaredasd any cash dividends, 1
do we have any present plan to pay any cash dig&len our capital stock in the foreseeable futwe.currently intend to retain
of our available funds and any future earningsperate and expand our business.

The holders of our ordinary shares are entitleduoh dividends as may be declared by our boardre€tdrs subject to ti
Cayman Islands Companies Law. Even if our boamirettors decides to pay dividends, the form, feggpny and amount will depe
upon our future operations and earnings, capitglirements and surplus, general financial conditmmtractual restrictions a
other factors that the board of directors may deglsvant. If we pay any dividends, we will pay ADS holders to the same ext
as holders of our ordinary shares, subject todheg of the deposit agreement, including the fedsexpenses payable thereunder.

B. Significant Changes

There have been no significant changes since Desegilh 2010, the date of the annual consolidatehfiial statements in tl
annual report.

ITEM 9 THE OFFER AND LISTING

A. Offering and Listing Details

Our ADSs, each representing five of our ordinargrel, have been listed on the Nasdaq Global Maikee December 2
2006. Our ticker symbol is “HSOL.”

In 2010, the trading price of our ADSs on the Nas@obal Market ranged from US$5.61 to US$13.4841e6.

The following table provides the high and low tragliprices for our ADSs on the Nasdaq Global Mafket(1) each year 1
2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010, (2) each quarter in 20092010 and the first quarter in 2011, and (8hed the past six months.

Share Price
High Low

Annually High and Low

2007 37.8¢ 8.22
2008 40.1¢ 2.67
2009 8.9t 2.27
2010 13.4¢ 5.61
Quarterly High and Low

First Quarter 200 6.37 2.217
Second Quarter 20( 8.9t 3.6t
Third Quarter 200! 8.3( 4.7C
Fourth Quarter 200 8.0C 4.4¢
First Quarter 201! 10.7¢ 6.0¢
Second Quarter 201 9.3¢ 5.61
Third Quarter 201 13.4¢ 6.57
Fourth Quarter 201 13.4Z 8.0¢
First Quarter 201 9.7¢ 6.9(
Monthly Highs and Lows

December 201 9.0¢ 8.17
January 201 9.7¢ 8.2t
February 201: 9.6t 8.3¢
March 2011 8.7¢ 6.9C
April 2011 7.6¢ 6.12
May 2011 6.7 4.9t
June 2011 (through June 2, 20 6.2 6.1t
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B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.
C. Markets

Our ADSs, each representing five of our ordinargreb, have been listed on the Nasdaq Global Maikee December 2
2006 and are under the symbol “HSOL.”

D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.
E. Dilution
Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.
ITEM 10 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
A. Share Capital

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

We incorporate by reference into this annual repioet description of our amended and restated mermam of associatic
contained in our F-1 registration statement (Fie 833139258), as amended, initially filed with the Coragidn on December ]
2006. Our shareholders adopted our amended arate#@shemorandum and articles of association byiapexsolutions passed
December 18, 2006. The amended and restated meduonaand articles of association became effectivBecember 26, 2006. C
shareholders adopted some further amendments t@roanded and restated memorandum and articlessotiaon by speci
resolutions passed at an extraordinary generalingeeh February 21, 2011. Such amendments includ@ame change, the incre
of our authorised share capital from US$50,000 8$100,000 and the deletion of the requirement wfr pnajority sharehold:
approval for issuance of shares in an amount équal more than 20% of all the shares issued atgtanding.

C. Material Contracts

We have not entered into any material contracterdtian in the ordinary course of business andrdtia those described
“Iltem 4. Information on the Company” or elsewherghis annual report on Form 20-F.

D. Exchange Controls

Foreign Currency Exchange

Foreign currency exchange in China is primarilygoed by the following regulations:
. Foreign Exchange Administration Rules (1996), asraed; an

. Regulations of Settlement, Sale and Payment ofiioEexchange (199¢

Under the Foreign Exchange Administration Rules,Renminbi is convertible for current account itemsluding distributio
of dividends, payment of interest, trade and seratated foreign exchange transactions. Converdidgteaminbi for capital accou
items, such as direct investment, loan, secuiitiesstment and repatriation of investment, howeigestill subject to the approval
SAFE.

Under the Regulations of Settlement, Sale and PaywfeForeign Exchange, foreignvested enterprises may only buy,
and/or remit foreign currencies at those banksai#éd to conduct foreign exchange business afteviging valid commercii
documents and, in the case of capital account itamsactions, obtaining approval from the SAFE. i@hjnvestments by foreign-
invested enterprises outside of China are alseesulp limitations, which include approvals by t@istry of Commerce, SAFE al
the NDRC.

E. Taxation

Cayman Islands Taxation



The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes oivididals or corporations based upon profits, incogens or appreciatic
and there is no taxation in the nature of inhedéatax or estate duty. No Cayman Islands stamp aillybe payable unless
instrument is executed in, brought to, or produbetbre a court of the Cayman Islands. The Caymtamds is not party to al
double tax treaties that are applicable to any matsmmade by or to our company. There are no egehaantrol regulations
currency restrictions in the Cayman Islands.
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PRC Taxation

Under the EIT, which took effect as of January QQ& enterprises established under the laws ofRR®G-jurisdictions bl
whose “de facto management body” is located inRR€ are considered “resident enterprifes’PRC tax purposes. The EIT d
not define the term “de facto managemehtdiwever, the Implementation Regulations for theelfmtise Income Tax Law of the P!
issued by the State Council on December 6, 200inetbfde facto management body as an establishinanhexerts substantial ¢
comprehensive management and control over the dmsioperations, staff, accounting, assets and aspcts of the enterpri
Since substantially all of our management is culydmased in the PRC, and may remain in the PR@énforeseeable future, it
likely that we will be regarded as a “resident emtise” on a strict application of the EIT and its Implertsgion Regulations.
Hanwha SolarOne or any of its non-PRC subsidiasi¢seated as a “resident enterpri$e®’ PRC tax purposes, Hanwha SolarOr
such subsidiary will be subject to PRC income taxworldwide income at a uniform tax rate of 25%clading the dividend incon
received from our PRC subsidiaries which shouldehasen subject to PRC income tax already.

Moreover, the EIT provides that an income tax @t@0% is normally applicable to dividends payatienonPRC investor
who are “non-resident enterprisey’the extent such dividends are derived from smuithin the PRC. We are a Cayman Isli
holding company and substantially all of our incomay be derived from dividends we receive from operating subsidiari
located in the PRC (through our holding companycstre). Thus, dividends paid to us by our subsigan China may be subject
the 10% income tax if we are considered a “nondegdi enterprise” under the EIT.

Similarly, any gain realized on the transfer of AD&@ shares by such investors is also subject% RBRC withholding incorr
tax if such gain is regarded as income derived fsomrces within the PRC. If we are considered aident enterprise’if is unclea
whether the interest or dividends we pay with respe our convertible bonds outstanding, ordindrgres or ADSs, or the gain y
may realize from the transfer of our ordinary sBase ADSs, would be treated as income derived fsonrces within the PRC a
subject to PRC tax.

If we are deemed by the PRC tax authorities agsident enterprisedind declare dividends, under the existing implesatét
rules of the EIT, dividends paid by us to our ulibe shareholders, which are “non- resident entgptiand do not have
establishment or place in the PRC, or which hawd sun establishment or place but the relevant ieci@mot effectively connect
with the establishment or place, might be subjg@®RC withholding tax at 10% or a lower treaty rate

According to the Law of the PeopteRepublic of China on the Individual Income Taxtte IIT, as amended, PRC income
at the rate of 20% is applicable to dividends p&yab individual investors if such dividends argaeded as income derived fr
sources within the PRC. Similarly, any gain realinm the transfer of ADSs or ordinary shares byviddal investors is also subijt
to PRC tax at 20% if such gain is regarded as imcaoierived from sources within the PRC. If we arended by the PRC t
authorities as a “resident enterpristé dividends we pay to our individual investorshwiespect to our ordinary shares or ADS:
the gain the individual investors may realize frime transfer of our ordinary shares or ADSs, mighttreated as income deri
from sources within the PRC and be subject to P&t 20% or a lower treaty rate.

U.S. Federal Income Taxation

The following discussion describes the material.UeBleral income tax consequences to U.S. Holddengd below) und
present law of an investment in the ADSs or ordirsrares. This summary applies only to investaoas liold the ADSs or ordina
shares as capital assets. This discussion is stttk tax laws of the United States as in effecth® date of this annual report
on U.S. Treasury regulations in effect as of thee @d this annual report, as well as judicial addhmistrative interpretations thert
available on or before such date. All of the foliegoauthorities are subject to change, which charmed apply retroactively al
could affect the tax consequences described below.

The following discussion does not deal with the¢arsequences to any particular investor or togmsrén special tax situatio
such as:

. certain financial institutions

. insurance companie

. broker dealers

. U.S. expatriates

»  traders that elect to meto-market;

* tax-exempt entities

. persons liable for alternative minimum t:

. persons whose functional currency is not the UaBlad

. persons holding an ADS or ordinary share as paatsifaddle, hedging, conversion or integratedstetion; ol



persons that actually or constructively own 10%nore of our voting stocl
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The discussion below of the U.S. federal incomecaxsequences to “U.S. Holdemsill apply if you are a beneficial owner
ADSs or ordinary shares and you are, for U.S. fddacome tax purposes:

. a citizen or resident of the United Stal

. a corporation (or other entity taxable as a corpomafor U.S. federal income tax purposes) orgashimader the laws of tl
United States, any state in the United Stateseobibtrict of Columbia

. an estate whose income is subject to U.S. fedaecahie taxation regardless of its source

. a trust that (1) is subject to the primary supéoviof a court within the United States and onenare U.S. persons have
authority to control all substantial decisions loé trust or (2) was in existence on August 20, 1986 treated as a U.S. per
under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asnded, on the previous day and has a valid eledtiosffect unde
applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated U.S. persol

If you are a partner in a partnership or othertgnéixable as a partnership for U.S. federal inctemxepurposes that holds AC
or ordinary shares, your tax treatment generallideipend on your status and the activities ofgghenership. If you are a partnel
partnership holding ADSs or ordinary shares, yaugthconsult your own tax advisors.

The discussion below assumes that the represamtatantained in the deposit agreement are trughatdhe obligations in tl
deposit agreement and any related agreement widbb®plied with in accordance with their terms. éfuyhold ADSs, you should
treated as the holder of the underlying ordinares represented by those ADSs for U.S. federahiectax purposes. Exchange
ordinary shares for ADSs and ADSs for ordinary shayenerally will not be subject to U.S. federabime tax.

Taxation of Dividends and Other Distributions on ¢hADSs or Ordinary Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment compangsrdiscussed below, the gross amount of anyildision (including
constructive dividends) to you with respect to #ieSs or ordinary shares generally will be includadyour gross income
dividend income on the date of actual or constwacteceipt by the depositary, in the case of AlRB$y you, in the case of ordini
shares, but only to the extent that the distributopaid out of our current or accumulated eamiagd profits (as determined un
U.S. federal income tax principles). The dividemdis not be eligible for the dividendseceived deduction allowed to corporation
respect of dividends received from other U.S. cafons.

With respect to certain noterporate U.S. Holders, including individual U.Solders, for taxable years beginning be
January 1, 2013, dividends may constitute “qualiféividend income”and be taxed at the lower applicable capital gaate
provided that (1) the ADSs or ordinary shares agglily tradable on an established securities mankite United States, (2) we .
not a passive foreign investment company (as déstldelow) for either our taxable year in which tiiddend was paid or tl
preceding taxable year, and (3) certain holdingoperequirements are met. Under U.S. Internal Rege®ervice authority, ording
shares, or ADSs representing such shares, aredeoedifor the purpose of clause (1) above to bdilyemadable on an establist
securities market in the United States if they lise=d on the Nasdaq, as our ADSs are. You shoattsdt your tax adviso
regarding the availability of the lower rate fovidiends paid with respect to our ADSs or ordindrgrss.

Dividends that you receive that do not constitutelifjed dividend income are not eligible for taat at the 15% maximu
rate applicable to qualified dividend income. lasteyou must include the gross amount of any siMbehd paid by us out of o
accumulated earnings and profits (as determinetl #8r federal income tax purposes) in your grosenme, and it will be subject
tax at rates applicable to ordinary income.

Dividends will constitute foreign source income 1drS. foreign tax credit limitation purposes andl wienerally constitut
“passive category income” but could, in the caseesfain U.S. Holders, constitute “general categocpme.”

Subject to certain conditions and limitations, PRithholding taxes on dividends may be treated asido taxes eligible fc
credit against your U.S. federal income tax. Ha@dsrould consult their own tax advisors regardivegdreditability of any PRC tax.

To the extent that the amount of the distributisnezds our current and accumulated earnings ardidspibwill be treated firs
as a taxfree return of your tax basis in your ADSs or oetinshares, and to the extent the amount of thaldifon exceeds your ti
basis, the excess will be taxed as capital gain.dé&/eot intend to calculate our earnings and pafitder U.S. federal income
principles. Therefore, you should expect that asjritbution we make will generally be treated ativadend.
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Taxation of Disposition of ADSs or Ordinary Shares

Subject to the passive foreign investment compaigsrdiscussed below, you will recognize taxablie ga loss on any sa
exchange or other taxable disposition of an AD®rdinary share equal to the difference betweeratheunt realized for the ADS
ordinary share and your tax basis in the ADS omany share. The gain or loss generally will beiedgain or loss. If you are a non-
corporate U.S. Holder, including an individual Ut®lder, who has held the ADS or ordinary sharenfiore than one year, you v
be eligible for reduced tax rates. The deductipibt capital losses is subject to limitations. Asych gain or loss that you recogr
will generally be treated as U.S. source incomiess for foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

If PRC withholding tax were to apply to a sale, lexege or other taxable disposition of an ADS oiray share, as descrik
above under “— PRC Taxationybu generally would only be able to claim a foretgr credit for the amount withheld to the ex
that you have foreign source income. However, i@ ¢vent that PRC tax is withheld from a sale, emgkaor other taxak
disposition of an ADS or ordinary share, a U.S.ddolthat is eligible for the benefits of the incotag treaty between the Unit
States and the PRC may be able to treat the gaim $uch a disposition as foreign source for forégncredit limitation purposes.
PRC tax is withheld, you should consult your owr &alvisor regarding your eligibility for the bersfiof the income tax tree
between the United States and the PRC and thetaiodity of any PRC tax.

Passive Foreign Investment Compa

We do not believe that we were a passive foreigedtment company, or PFIC, for U.S. federal incaenepurposes for t
taxable year that ended December 31, 2010, andowetdexpect to be a PFIC for U.S. federal incomepurposes for our curre
taxable year or the foreseeable future. Our ad®C status for the current taxable year endingebdxer 31, 2011 will not |
determinable until the close of the current taxatdlar ending December 31, 2011, and accordingdretis no guarantee that we»
not be a PFIC for the current taxable year or anyré taxable year. A nod:S. corporation is considered to be a PFIC for
taxable year if either:

. at least 75% of its gross income is passive incam

. at least 50% of the value of its assets (basedrnoavarage of the quarterly values of the assetmgla taxable year)
attributable to assets that produce or are helthisproduction of passive incon

We will be treated as owning our proportionate shaf the assets and our proportionate share ofniteme of any othi
corporation in which we own, directly or indiregtiyore than 25% (by value) of the stock.

We must make a separate determination each ydarvelsether we are a PFIC. As a result, our PFI@istmay change. If v
are a PFIC for any year during which you hold AB®rdinary shares, unless you make a “mark-to-etamdection as discuss
below, we generally will continue to be treatechdFIC for all succeeding years during which yold kDSs or ordinary shares.

If we are a PFIC for any taxable year during whyclu hold ADSs or ordinary shares, you will be sabje special tax rul
with respect to any “excess distributiaihiat you receive and any gain you realize fromla saother disposition (including a pled
of the ADSs or ordinary shares, unless you makenark-to-market’election as discussed below. Distributions you ikecén
taxable year that are greater than 125% of theageeannual distributions you received during thertel of the three precedi
taxable years or your holding period for the AD$®ulinary shares will be treated as an excesslision. Under these special
rules:

»  the excess distribution or gain will be allocatathbly over your holding period for the ADSs oriaedy shares

» the amount allocated to the current taxable yeat,aay taxable year prior to the first taxable yieavhich we became a PF
will be treated as ordinary income; &

» the amount allocated to each other year will bgesiio the highest tax rate in effect for thatryaad the interest char
generally applicable to underpayments of tax wellilmposed on the resulting tax attributable to eaath year

The tax liability for amounts allocated to year®pto the year of disposition or “excess distribnt cannot be offset by any 1
operating losses for such years, and gains (butosses) realized on the sale of the ADSs or orgishares cannot be treatec
capital, even if you hold the ADSs or ordinary @saas capital assets.

Alternatively, a U.S. Holder of “marketable stoolds defined below) in a PFIC may make a markatvket election for sus
stock of a PFIC to elect out of the tax treatmerdar the excess distribution regime. If you makaaak-tomarket election for tt
ADSs or ordinary shares, you will include in incossch year an amount equal to the excess, if drthedair market value of tl
ADSs or ordinary shares as of the close of youaliéex year over your adjusted basis in such ADSsrdinary shares. You ¢
allowed a deduction for the excess, if any, ofddgisted basis of the ADSs or ordinary shares thar fair market value as of t
close of the taxable year. However, deductionsadimvable only to the extent of any net markat@arket gains on the ADSs
ordinary shares included in your income for pratable years. Amounts included in your income urderark-tomarket election, ¢
well as gain on the actual sale or other dispasitd the ADSs or ordinary shares, are treated dmary income. Ordinary lo
treatment also applies to the deductible portiommf mark-tomarket loss on the ADSs or ordinary shares, as agelo any los
realized on the actual sale or disposition of tfESA or ordinary shares, to the extent that the atnafusuch loss does not exceed



net mark-tomarket gains previously included for such ADSs @lirary shares. Your basis in the ADSs or ordirsdrgtres wil
be adjusted to reflect any such income or loss asoThe U.S. federal income tax rules that appldistributions by corporatio
that are not PFICs would apply to distributionsuisy
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The mark-to-market election is available only fondrketable stock,” which is stock that is reguldrigded in other thade
minimisquantities on at least 15 days during each calequaiarter on a qualified exchange, including theddas or other market, :
defined in applicable U.S. Treasury regulationse BDSs are listed on the Nasdaqg, and we expectthiegt will continue to b
regularly traded on the Nasdaq. Consequently, if @ a holder of ADSs, the marki+tmarket election should be available to »
were we to be or become a PFIC.

If you hold ADSs or ordinary shares in any yeaminich we are a PFIC, you will be required to fileSUInternal Revent
Service Form 8621 (or any other form to be spetifig the U.S. Department of the Treasury) regardisgibutions received on tt
ADSs or ordinary shares, any gain realized on tepagition of the ADSs or ordinary shares and amgpdértable electioniith
respect to the ADSs or ordinary shares in accoelarith the instructions to such form. In additi@ach U.S. shareholder of a PF
is required to file such annual information aspedfied by the U.S. Treasury Department. You sth@ainsult your own tax advis
concerning the reporting requirements that woulghaf we were to be considered a PFIC for any bkdexgear.

In addition, if we are a PFIC, we do not intendotepare or provide you with the information neces$a make a ualified
electing fund” election.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding and @er Reporting Requirement

Dividend payments with respect to ADSs or ordinsingres and proceeds from the sale, exchange anptide of ADSs ol
ordinary shares may be subject to information répgrto the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and psdil.S. backup withholding
Backup withholding will not apply, however, if yaue a corporation or a U.S. Holder who furnishesraect taxpayer identificatic
number and makes any other required certificatioif you are otherwise exempt from backup withhoglilf you are a U.S. Hold:
who is required to establish exempt status, yowegdly must provide such certification on U.S. mi Revenue Service Form @/-
U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors réigg the application of the U.S. information refimg and backup withholdin
rules.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amamtithheld as backup withholding may be creditedirgt your U.S. feder:
income tax liability, and you may obtain a refurfdaoy excess amounts withheld under the backuphwitiing rules by filing the
appropriate claim for refund with the U.S. InterRa&lvenue Service and furnishing any required in&diom in a timely manner.

Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals that hotdtain foreign financial assets (which may incliude ADSs or ordinar
shares) are required to report information relatimgsuch assets, subject to certain exceptions. stmuld consult your own tz
advisor regarding the effect, if any, of these sude your ownership and disposition of the ADSerdinary shares.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts

Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

You may read and copy documents referred to inghisual report on Form 20that have been filed with the U.S. Securi
and Exchange Commission at the Commissigniblic reference room located at 100 F Stredf,,NRoom 1580, Washington, D.
20549. Please call the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0@3@irther information on the public referencemnes and their copy charges.

The Commission allows us to “incorporate by refeegrthe information we file with the Commission. Thigams that we ce
disclose important information to you by referripgu to another document filed separately with tlwn@ission. The informatio
incorporated by reference is considered to beqdattis annual report on Form 20-F.

I. Subsidiary Information

For a listing of our significant subsidiaries, skem 4.C. Organizational Structure.”
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ITEM 11 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Exchange Risk

A portion of our revenue and a significant portioh expenses are denominated in Renminbi. The Rdnnsncurrenth
convertible under the “current account,” which ud¢s dividends, trade and servietated foreign exchange transactions, bu
under the “capital accountyhich includes foreign direct investment and loaDsrrently, SolarOne Qidong may purchase for
currencies for settlement of current account tretsas, including payments of dividends to us, withthe approval of SAF
However, the relevant PRC government authoritieg fmait or eliminate our ability to purchase foreigurrencies in the futul
Since a significant amount of our future revenu# @ denominated in Renminbi, any existing andifetrestrictions on curren
exchange may limit our ability to utilize revenuengrated in Renminbi to fund our business actwitieitside China that ¢
denominated in foreign currencies.

In 2010, we entered into foreign currency derivatbontracts to manage risks associated with foreigrency fluctuations fi
our sales contracts denominated in a currency otfaer Renminbi. As of December 31, 2010, a noti@mabunt of Euro125 millic
was outstanding under these foreign currency div&vacontracts. We may enter into additional forsvaontracts or enter ir
economic hedges in the future.

Foreign exchange transactions by SolarOne Qidordpruthe capital account continue to be subjectigaificant foreigr
exchange controls and require the approval of edre register with PRC governmental authoritiesluding SAFE. In particular,
SolarOne Qidong borrows foreign currency loans frigror other foreign lenders, these loans musegistered with SAFE, and
we finance SolarOne Qidong by means of additioagital contributions, these capital contributionasinbe approved by cert
government authorities, including the NDRC, the igliry of Commerce or their respective local coundets. These limitations cot
affect the ability of SolarOne Qidong to obtainefign exchange through debt or equity financing.

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, we heldivalgunts of RMB319.5 million, RMB587.5 million a
RMB1,282.8 million (US$194.4 million) in accountgceivable, respectively, of which RMB2.3 million,MB99.4 million ant
RMB606.6 million (US$91.9 million) were denominatesh U.S. dollars and RMB315.1 million, RMB370.7 iwh anc
RMB599.4 million (US$90.8 million) were denominatiedEuro in 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Without taking into account of the effect of theeusf hedging or other derivative financial instruntse if there were a 10
appreciation of Renminbi based on the foreign emgkarate on December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, ceouats receivab
denominated in U.S. dollars as of December 31, 20089 and 2010 would have been Renminbi equivelehRMB2.1 million
RMB89.5 million and RMB545.9 million, respectivelyhese amounts represent net losses of RMBO0.2omilRMB9.9 million an
RMB60.7 million, respectively, to our accounts rigebles denominated in U.S. dollars as of Decerithte2008, 2009 and 2010.

Without taking into account of the effect of theeusf hedging or other derivative financial instruntse if there were a 10
appreciation of Renminbi based on the foreign emgkarate on December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, ceouats receivab
denominated in Euro would have been Renminbi edpmts of RMB283.6 million, RMB333.6 million and RMB9.5 million
respectively. These amounts represent net lossBM&31.5 million, RMB37.1 million and RMB59.9 mitin, respectively, to o
accounts receivable denominated in Euro as of Dbee®il, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate risks relates torésteexpenses incurred in connection with our stewrh and longermr
borrowings, as well as interest income generate@xmess cash invested in demand deposits and liguastments with origin
maturities of three months or less. As of Decen®ier2010, our total interestearing borrowings were RMB668.9 milli
(US$101.4 million), of which RMB263.9 million (US$4 million) and RMB45.0 million (US$6.8 million) eve denominated
U.S. dollars and Euro, respectively. We have nentexposed to, nor do we anticipate being expasadaterial risks due to chan
in interest rates. However, our future interestemges may increase due to changes in market intates.

ITEM 12 DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITYSECURITIES
A. Debt Securities
Not applicable.

B. Warrants and Rights

Not applicable.
C. Other Securities

Not applicable.
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D. American Depositary Shares

The Bank of New York Mellon, the depositary of ®DS program, collects its fees for depositing shamesurrendering AD!
for the purpose of withdrawal or from intermediaracting for them. The depositary collects feegraking distributions to investc
by deducting those fees from the amounts distriboteby selling a portion of distributable propettypay the fees. The deposit
may collect its annual fee for depositary servisgsieducting from cash distributions or by diredililing investors or by chargir
the book-entry system accounts of participantsgdior them. The depositary may generally refuspréwvide feeattracting service
until its fees for those services are paid.

Persons depositing or withdrawing shares must pay For:

$5.00 (or less) per 100 ADSs (or portion of 100 ADPS Issuance of ADSs, including issuances resultinmfeodistributiol
of shares or rights or other prope

Cancellation of ADSs for the purpose of withdrawadluding if
the deposit agreement termina

$0.02 (or less) per AD Any cash distribution to ADS holde

A fee equivalent to the fee that would be payabsecurities Distribution of securities distributed to holdefsdeposited
distributed to you had been shares and the shatebden securities which are distributed by the depositarDS holders
deposited for issuance of AD

$0.02 (or less) per ADSs per calendar \ Depositary service

Registration or transfer fees Transfer and registration of shares on our shayister to or from
the name of the depositary or its agent when yqosiéor
withdraw share

Expenses of the depositary Cable, telex and facsimile transmissions (whene&sgly provided
in the deposit agreemet

Converting foreign currency to U.S. doll:

Taxes and other governmental charges the depositahg As necessary
custodian have to pay on any ADS or share undeylgmADS,
for example, stock transfer taxes, stamp duty ¢thivalding taxe

Any charges incurred by the depositary or its agent As necessary
for servicing the deposited securit

The fees described above may be amended from dirtie ¢.

The depositary has agreed to reimburse us anniaallyur expenses incurred in connection with ADRgram. The amount
such reimbursements is subject to certain limis,the amount of reimbursement available to uotsrelated to the amounts of fi
the depositary collects from investors. In 2010, reeeived US$0.4 million of reimbursement from tlepositary.
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PART II
ITEM 13 DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES
None.
ITEM 14 MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEED:!
See “Item 10. Additional Information” for a desdign of the rights of securities holders, which eemunchanged.

We completed our initial public offering of 60,0000 ordinary shares, in the form of ADSs, at US$Q2per ADS o
December 26, 2006, after our ordinary shares anctrisan Depositary Receipts were registered underS@curities Act. Tt
aggregate price of the offering amount registered mold was US$150 million, of which we receivedt meoceeds ¢
US$135.9 million. The effective date of our regisibn statement on Form F-1 (File number: 333258) was December 19, 2C
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. was the sole globaldimator and bookrunner for the global offeringoof ADSs.

The net proceeds from our initial public offeringve been used as follows:
. approximately US$68.0 million to purchase or prefmyraw materials
. approximately US$40.0 million to expand our mantdéag capacity
. approximately US$17.9 million to acquire SolarOrexfinology; ant
. approximately US$10.0 million to invest in our rasegh and development activitie

On January 29, 2008, we closed an offering of US%.fillion 3.50% convertible senior notes due 20482018 convertib
bonds, to qualified institutional buyers pursuanRule 144A under the Securities Act and receivetdonoceeds of US$167.9 millic
Holders may convert the bonds into our ADSs. Comaly with this convertible bond offering, we cémban offering of 9,019,6.
ADSs, representing 45,098,055 ordinary sharesadditite the convertible bond offering. We did meteive any proceeds, ot
than the par value of the ADSs, from such offeradigADSs. The effective date of our registrationtestaent on Form B- (File
number: 333-147627) was January 23, 2008. Morganl&t & Co. Incorporated was the sole bookrunnimgager of this offering.

The net proceeds from the January 2008 convetiitnhel offering have been used as follows:
. approximately US95.6 million for wafer and polysdih pre-payments
. approximately US37.4 million for capital expendéy

. US$19.2 million to repay loans from Hong Kong Huiaer company controlled by Mr. Yonghua Lu, ourrf@r chairman, 1
SolarOne Hong Kong, our 100% indirect subsidiand

» the remainder for working capital and repaymerdauwfexisting bank borrowing

From July 17, 2008 to August 12, 2008, we issuatisid 5,421,093 ADSs with an aggregate sale fi¢éS$73.9 million, ¢
which we received net proceeds of US$71.8 millibime effective date of our registration statemenform F-3 (File number: 333-
152005) was July 16, 2008. Morgan Stanley & Cootporated acted as our sales agent. The net p®derd this offering han
been used for silicon and silicon wafer pre-paymeamnid working capital.

From September 17, 2009 to November 18, 2009, weed and sold 3,888,399 ADSs with an aggregate made o
US$23.1 million, of which we received net proceetit)S$21.8 million. The effective date of our regasion statement on Form3--
(File number: 333t52005) was July 16, 2008. Morgan Stanley & Cootporated acted as manager for the sale. The neegd
from this offering have been used for capital exfitemes, working capital and partial repayment of existing bank loans.

In September 2010, we issued and sold to Hanwhar $vla private placement 36,455,089 ordinary shaiigh an aggrega
sale price of US$78.2 million, of which we receiveet proceeds of US$76.0 million. The net procdeal® this private placeme
have been used for capital expenditures and wordpgtal.
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In November 2010, we issued and sold 9,200,000 ARiSsan aggregate sale price of US$82.8 millianwhich we receive
net proceeds of US$78.5 million. The effective diteur registration statement on Form F-3 (Filenber: 333152005) was July 1
2008. Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc andSJBecurities LLC acted as managers of the undemsrfor the sale. The t
proceeds from this offering have been used fortahpkpenditures and working capital. In order flanwha Solar to maintain af
this public offering the same level of beneficiainership in our company as before the offeringjsgeed and sold to Hanwha St
45,981,604 ordinary shares with an aggregate sale pf US$82.8 million. The net proceeds from thitvate placement have be
used for capital expenditures and general workaqgjtal purposes.

As of December 31, 2010, our cash resources ambiuat®MB1,630.8 million (US$247.1 million), compng cash on har
and demand deposits.

ITEM 15 CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE!
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our chief executiveceffiand our chief financi
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures, as such term is definddr Rule 1345(e) under tr
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Basdtiat evaluation, our chief executive officer ardef financial officer hav
concluded that our disclosure controls and proesiurere effective as of the end of the period axvéry this annual report.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaititaining adequate internal control over finahm@orting, as such tel
is defined under Rule 13E6(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended, for our company. Internal control
financial reporting is a process designed to pmevidasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitfinaincial reporting and tl
preparation of consolidated financial statementadoordance with generally accepted accountingciples and includes thc
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to thenteaince of records that, in reasonable detaiyratgly and fairly reflect tt
transactions and dispositions of a compamssets, (2) provide reasonable assurance tingaotions are recorded as necesse
permit preparation of consolidated financial stagata in accordance with generally accepted acawmgintrinciples, and that
company’s receipts and expenditures are being noatie in accordance with authorizations of a companypanagement a
directors, and (3) provide reasonable assurancardigg prevention or timely detection of unauthedzacquisition, use,
disposition of a company’s assets that could havaterial effect on the consolidated financialestaénts.

Because of its inherent limitations, a system ¢énmal control over financial reporting can proviolely reasonable assural
with respect to the preparation and presentatiaon$olidated financial statement and may not pregedetect misstatements. Al
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contmédy become inadequate becaus
changes in conditions, or that the degree of caanpé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxldyafid related rules as promulgated by the SEC¢companys manageme
assessed the effectiveness of our internal cootal financial reporting as of December 31, 20ligusriteria established in Interi
Controlintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissioasdsl on th
assessment, our compasyhanagement concluded that our internal contret éimancial reporting was effective as of Decentie
2010.

Our independent registered public accounting fiémst & Young Hua Ming, has audited the effectiv@nef internal contr
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20H)stated in its report, which is included immediateelow. Ernst & Young Hu
Ming has also audited our consolidated financiateshents for the year ended December 31, 201Gatesisn its report which
included on page F-2 in this annual report.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

We have audited Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.’s (folynknown as Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd.) (tt@ompany”)interna
control over financial reporting as of December 3@10, based on criteria established in Internait@b—Integrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohdhe Treadway Commission (the “COSO criteriaThe Companye
management is responsible for maintaining effeciiviernal control over financial reporting, and fids assessment of 1
effectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting included in the accompanying Managenwwthnual Report on Interr
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipilis to express an opinion on the Companyiternal control over financ
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@d@nited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetaadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigeinternal control ovi
financial reporting was maintained in all materiespects. Our audit included obtaining an undedstanof internal control ow
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a nateveakness exists, testing and evaluating tlségdeand operating effectivenes:



internal control based on the assessed risk, arfdrpeng such other procedures as we consideredssacy in the circumstanc
We believe that our audit provides a reasonablestb@sour opinion.
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A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiragthe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantte generally accepted account
principles. A company internal control over financial reporting inclsdéhose policies and procedures that (1) pertaith¢
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detedurately and fairly reflect the transactions digpositions of the assets of
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thagdcsions are recorded as necessary to permit ptepaof financial statements
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipies; and that receipts and expenditures of timepamy are being made only
accordance with authorizations of management anectdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonalsleurance regardi
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjion, use, or disposition of the compasig@ssets that could have a material €
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d@étmisstatements. Also, projectic
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becoradequate because of change
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whithpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. maintdina all material respects, effective internal ttohover financial reporting as
December 31, 2010, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boédnited States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of Hanwha SolarOnd_@b.as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and ttaeticonsolidated stateme
of operations, changes in shareholderglity, and cash flows for each of the three yeathe period ended December 31, 2010,
our report dated June 3, 2011 expressed an unigdadipinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming

Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China
June 3, 2011

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal control dwemcial reporting that occurred during the yeaded December 31, 20
that have materially affected, or are reasonakbjlyjito materially affect, our internal control af@ancial reporting.

ITEM 16A AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Therd. Toy qualifies as an “audit committee finaneigert” as defined i
Item 16A. of Form 20-F. Each of the members of ghalit Committee is an “independent directa$ defined in the Nasd
Marketplace Rules.

ITEM 16B CODE OF ETHICS

Our board of directors has adopted a code of etthiat applies to our directors, officers, employeesl agents. We ha
previously filed our code of business conduct atiice, and posted the code on our webisitp://www.hanwha-solarone.comne
hereby undertake to provide to any person withbarge, a copy of our code of business conduct #ndsewithin ten working da
after we receive such person’s written request.

ITEM 16C PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth the aggregate fegsdtegories specified below in connection withtaier professional servic
rendered by Ernst & Young Hua Ming, our principaieznal auditors, for the periods indicated.

2009 2010 2010

(RMB) (RMB) (US$)
Audit fees® 7,790,001 6,750,001 1,022,72
Audit-related fee: — — —
Tax fees@ 688,00( 260,00( 39,39¢

All other fees — — —

Notes:

(1) “Audit fees"means the aggregate fees billed in each of thalfigars listed for professional services rendénedur principe
auditors. In 2009 and 2010, RMB5,500,000 and RMB8,200 (US$795,454), respectively, are for the tguai our annui
consolidated financial statements and our intecoakrol over financial reporting pursuant to SectiD4(b) of the Sarbanes-



Oxley Act of 2002. The audit fees also included RMIFD0,000 and RMB1,500,000 (US$227,273) in 2009 aado
respectively, for the services rendered in connaatiith our equity offerings

(2) “Tax fee” means the aggregated fees for services rendemshirection with technical tax advice in 2009 and®!
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The policy of our audit committee is to pre-appraleaudit and noraudit services provided by Ernst & Young Hua M
including audit services and other services asribest above, other than those fitg minimusservices which are approved by
Audit Committee prior to the completion of the audi

ITEM 16D EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FORAUDIT COMMITTEES
None.

ITEM 16E PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSHR AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS
None.

ITEM 16F CHANGE IN REGISTRANTS CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANT
Not applicable.

ITEM 16G CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nasdag Marketplace Rule 5605(e)(1)(B) requires thatDirector nominees must either be selectedecommended for tl
Board'’s selection, either by: (A) independent dives constituting a majority of the Boasdindependent directors in a vote in wi
only independent directors participate, or (B) amimations committee comprised solely of independdimectors. Nasd:
Marketplace Rule 5635(a) requires shareholder amprprior to the issuance of securities in conmectivith the acquisition
another company if: (A) the common stock issuetbdre issued has voting power equal to or in exoé28% of the voting pow
outstanding before such issuance; (B) the numbshafes of common stock to be issued is or wikkdpeal to or in excess of 20%
the number of shares of common stock outstandirigréesuch issuance. Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 5638¢h)ires shareholc
approval prior to the issuance of securities whmnissuance or potential issuance will result @hange of control of the compa
Marketplace Rule 5635(d) requires shareholder agbnarior to the issuance of securities in conmectvith a transaction other tt
a public offering involving the sale, issuance otemtial issuance by the company of common stocls€ourities convertible into
exercisable common stock) equal to 20% or morén@fcommon stock or 20% or more of the voting poagstanding before tl
issuance for less than the greater of book or marédie of the stock. However, Nasdaq Marketplacke B615(a)(3) allows
foreign private issuer to follow its home countmagtice in lieu of the requirement under NasdaqHKdgolace Rule 5605(e)(1)(E
5635(a)(1), 5635(b) and 5635(d).

Except as stated above, we have followed and interdntinue to follow the applicable corporate gmance standards un
Nasdaq Marketplace Rule
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PART 1lI

ITEM 17 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have elected to provide financial statementsyaumt to Item 18.

ITEM 18 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements are filed astpair this Annual Report on Form 2ZB-together with the report of t

independent auditors:

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0D201(

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2008, 2009 and Z

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2008, 20@b201(

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

ITEM 19 EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are furnished along with aahreport or are incorporated by reference asaidd.

Exhibit
Number Description of Document

1.1 Memorandum and Articles of Association of SolarRower Holdings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by referetae
Exhibit 3.1 from our F-1 registration statemeni¢Mlo. 333-139258), as amended, initially filedwtihe
Commission on December 11, 20!

1.2 Form of Amended and Restated Memorandum and Astidlé\ssociation of Solarfun Power Holdings Cod.Lt
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 from Btit registration statement (File No. 333-139258)amended,
initially filed with the Commission on December 2PD06)

1.3 Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles obéiaton of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd., as adopied b
Special Resolution passed on December 18, 200&féextive on December 26, 2006, as amended by &peci
Resolution passed on February 21, 2

2.1 Specimen Certificate for Ordinary Shares of SolaP@wwer Holdings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by refeeio
Exhibit 4.2 from our F-1 registration statemeni¢Mlo. 333-139258), as amended, initially filediwtihe
Commission on December 11, 20t

2.2 Form of American Depositary Receipt of Solarfun Bowoldings Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 from our F-1 registration statemeni¢Mlo. 333-139258), as amended, initially filediwtihe
Commission on December 11, 20!

2.3 Form of Deposit Agreement Form of Deposit Agreemanmtong Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd., the

depositary and owners and holders of the AmericepdSitary Shares (incorporated by reference totiixhi3
from our F-1 registration statement (File No. 3&3258), as amended, initially filed with the Comsiis on
December 11, 200¢
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.1C

4.11

4.1z

2006 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated by referéadExhibit 10.1 from our F-1 registration staten@ile
No. 33:-139258), as amended, initially filed with the Corasidn on December 11, 20(

2007 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 99.2 from our Form S-8 registratiéatement
(File No. 33:-147644), as amended, initially filed with the Corasidn on November 27, 200

Form of Employment Agreement between Solarfun Pddedings Co., Ltd. and a Senior Executive Offioér
the Registrant (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi2 from our F-1 registration statement (File R83-
139258), as amended, initially filed with the Corasidn on December 11, 20(

Second and Restated Supply Agreement, dated Ma3008, between SolarOne Hong Kong Power Ltd. and
Hoku (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.39rour 20-F annual report filed with the Commission
June 27, 200€

Investment Agreement, dated November 14, 2007, dmtwiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Ltd. and Managgéme
Committee of Qidong Economic Development Zone,gkarProvince (incorporated by reference to ExHibiB5
from our F-1 registration statement (File No. 3334827), as amended, initially filed with the Comsiis on
November 27, 2007

Contract, dated October 30, 2007, between Yangg8atay and Ald Vacuum Technologies GmbH (incorpedat
by reference to Exhibit 4.41 from our-F annual report filed with the Commission on JuAgZD08)

State-owned Land Use Right Grant Contract, datadalg 28, 2005, between Lianyungang Municipal
Administration of Land and Resources and Yanggu@uwlgr Technology Co., Ltd. (incorporated by refeeto
Exhibit 4.42 from our 2-F annual report filed with the Commission on JuRgZD08)

Equity Transfer Agreement, dated June 23, 2008 ngnNantong Linyang Electric Power Investment Cad. L
Jiangsu Qitian Group Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Guangyhfietogy Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Ctd,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.43 from 804~/A amendment to annual report filed with the Cossiar
on June 30, 200¢

Equity Transfer Agreement, dated November 16, 2068yeen Ronggiang Cui and Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun
Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit4fm our 20-F annual report, as amended, injtigied with
the Commission on May 25, 201

Equity Transfer Agreement, dated November 16, 2888yeen Guoyu Wang and Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co
Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.32nfrour 20-F annual report, as amended, initialgdiwith the
Commission on May 25, 201

Equipment Sales Agreement, dated April 30, 2016yéen SMIC Energy Technology (Shanghai) and Jiangsu
Linyang Solarfun Co., Ltd. (incorporated by refererio Exhibit 4.33 from our 20-F annual reportaagended,
initially filed with the Commission on May 25, 201

Lease Agreement, dated April 3, 2009, between diahinyang Electronics Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Liryan
Solarfun Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference thiBit 4.34 from our 20-F annual report, as amendetially
filed with the Commission on May 25, 201
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document
4.1: Lease Agreement, dated April 2010, between Qidonghdng Electronics Co., Ltd. and Jiangsu Linyangr8m
Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit5f®m our 20-F annual report, as amended, injtiikd with
the Commission on May 25, 201
4,144 Toll Manufacturing Agreement for the ProductionSaflar Modules between Solarfun Power Hong Kong teohi
and Q-cells International GmbH dated December 808Zincorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.36 froun 20-
F annual report, as amended, initially filed witle Commission on May 25, 201
4.1t Shareholders Agreement between Solarfun Power kigddCo., Ltd. and Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., Lated
September 16, 2010 (incorporated by reference obix09.2 from Form 6-K submitted with the Comnigsson
November 9, 201C
4.1¢ Share Purchase Agreement between Solarfun PowdirtdslICo., Ltd. and Hanwha Chemical Corporatioteda
August 3, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exi8Bil from Form 6-K submitted with the Commissan
November 9, 201C
4.17 Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement betwesfugdPower Holdings Co., Ltd. and Hanwha Solar
Holdings Co., Ltd. dated September 16, 2010 (ino@ied by reference to Exhibit 99.3 from Form 6tmitted
with the Commission on November 9, 20
4.1¢& Purchase Agreement between Ya An Yongwang Silicon IGd. and Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Ltdedat
September 15, 201
8.1* Subsidiaries of Solarfun Power Holdings Co., |
11.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of Solarfund?dwoldings Co., Ltd.(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 from our F-1 registration statemeritg[No. 333-139258), as amended, initially filedwthe
Commission on December 11, 20t
12.1* CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
12.2* CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z
13.1 CEO and CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 90B® Sarban¢Oxley Act of 2002
23.I* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
Notes
* Filed with this Annual Report on Form -F.
# Confidential treatment has been requested. Cortfalenformation has been redacted and separaitety With the SEC
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SIGNATURE

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets athe requirements for filing on Form Z0and that it has duly caused and autho
the undersigned to sign this annual report ondtsali.

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.

/sl Ping Peter Xie

Name: Ping Peter Xie
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: June 3, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. (formerigvkm as Solarfun Pow
Holdings Co., Ltd.) (the “Company"as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the relairdotidated statements of operati
changes in shareholdemuity, and cash flows for each of the three y@atbe period ended December 31, 2010. These fiak
statements are the responsibility of the Compampanagement. Our responsibility is to express @nian on these financi
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBio/United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet éndibtain reasonable assurance about whethdintngcial statements are free
material misstatement. An audit includes examinoga test basis, evidence supporting the amoudtsiisclosures in the financ
statements. An audit also includes assessing twuating principles used and significant estimatesie by management, as we!
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@rmaWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredibove present fairly, in all material respedis, tonsolidated financial position
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. at December 31, 20102808, and the consolidated results of its operatamd its cash flows for e¢
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2(®0, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedaunting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boédnited States), tl
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2010, based on the criterabkstied in Internal Contret
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiod aur report date
June 3, 2011 expressed an ungualified opinion ¢imere

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming

Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China

June 3, 2011
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31

Note 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¢000)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel 645,72( 1,630,77 247,08
Restricted cas 60,53¢ 100,49( 15,22¢
Accounts receivabl— net 4 587,48 1,282,80 194,36!
Notes receivabl 4 — 10,00( 1,51¢
Inventories— net 5 783,97: 790,77: 119,81
Advance to supplie— net 6 540,14! 764,06: 115,76
Other current asse 7 180,31! 255,43: 38,70:
Deferred tax asse— net 24 63,11¢ 91,61: 13,88(
Derivative contract 17 7,36( 7,48¢ 1,13¢
Amount due from related parti 25 12,45¢ 27,81¢ 4,21°F
Total current asse 2,881,11. 4,961,26. 751,70¢
Non-current assets:
Long-term prepayment 6 439,61 394,28. 59,74(
Amount due from related parties, 1-current portior 25 — 15,00( 2,277
Fixed asset— net 8 1,586,28. 2,084,02 315,76:
Intangible asset— net 9 208,56: 205,76: 31,17¢
Deferred tax asse— net 24 13,78¢ 16,75¢ 2,53¢
Long-term deferred expens 11 33,15¢ 27,27: 4,13
Goodwill 10 134,73! 134,73! 20,41«
Total nor-current assel 2,416,14! 2,877,83! 436,03¢
Total assets 5,297,25! 7,839,101 1,187,74.
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Shor-term bank borrowing 12 404,76 318,91¢ 48,32.
Long-term bank borrowings, current porti 12 120,00( 215,00( 32,57¢
Accounts payabl 441,76¢ 478,12¢ 72,44¢
Notes payabli 16 186,92: 181,26! 27,46¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 13 191,89! 404,82t 61,33’
Customer deposit 15 59,68: 33,53¢ 5,08
Unrecognized tax bene 24 27,38t 143,47: 21,73¢
Derivative contract 17 1,14¢ 8,04 1,21¢
Amount due to related parti 25 16,76" 13,18 1,99
Total current liabilities 1,450,33 1,796,38 272,17¢
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term bank borrowing 12 350,00( 135,00( 20,45¢
Deferred tax liabilities 24 26,56¢ 25,977 3,93¢
Convertible bond 22 658,65. 687,43! 104,15
Total nor-current liabilities 1,035,21! 848,41. 128,54¢
Total liabilities 2,485,55I 2,644,79; 400,72t
Commitments and contingencies 28

Redeemable ordinary share(par value US$0.0001 pel
share; 45,098,055 shares issued and outstanding a
December 31, 2009 and 20 21 55 55 8



Shareholders’ equity

Ordinary shares (par value US$0.0001 per share;
500,000,000 shares authorized; 290,708,739 she
and 420,645,432 shares issued and outstanding
December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectiv

Additional paic-in capital

Statutory reserve

Retained earning

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares anc
shareholders’ equity

19

227 314 48
2,331,79 3,956,95! 599,53
69,564 170,00( 25,75%
410,06! 1,066,98 161,66!
2,811,65! 5,194,25! 787,00t
5,297,25! 7,839,101 1,187,74.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 3.

Note 2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Net revenues 4,949,06! 3,778,31 7,526,99: 1,140,45.
Cost of revenues (4,905,14) (3,341,93) (5,960,64) (903,129
Gross profit 43,92 436,38 1,566,34! 237,32!
Operating expenses:
Selling expense (87,919 (105,459 (178,05) (26,97¢)
General and administrative
expense: (143,34() (180,989 (190,59 (28,879
Research and development
expense: (19,679 (32,029 (53,500 (8,10¢)
Government grant 23 — — 18,75¢ 2,842
Total operating expens (250,939 (318,469 (403,396 (61,120
Operating (loss) profit (207,01) 117,91. 1,162,94 176,20!
Interest expens (103,146 (157,90) (161,67 (24,49
Interest incomt 10,00¢ 5,00z 6,141 93C
Exchange losse (35,230) (23,819 (89,277) (13,52¢)
Changes in fair value of derivative
contracts 17 83,09( 9,59¢ 77,53 11,747
Changes in fair value of conversion
feature of convertible bonc 22 — (73,887 31,62 4,791
Other income 15,01¢ 6,28¢ 24,35 3,69(
Other expense (25,609 (11,83Y) (5,909 (8949)
Government grant 23 3,48( 7,661 9,59¢ 1,454
(Loss) income before income taxe (259,399 (120,98 1,055,34 159,90(
Income tax expenst 24 (6,519 (23,92§) (297,98) (45,149
Consolidated net (loss) incom (265,919 (144,916 757,35’ 114,75:
Net income attributable to n-
controlling interes (14,577) (317) — —
Net (loss) income attributable to
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.
shareholders (280,49) (145,22) 757,35’ 114,75:
Net (loss) income attributable tc
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.
shareholders per share:
Basic 30 RMB (2.11) RMB (0.5%) RMB 2.4% USY 0.37
Diluted 30 RMB (1.11) RMB (0.5%) RMB 2.3¢ USY 0.3¢€
Number of shares used in
computation of net (loss) income
per share:
Basic 30 252,659,61 274,067,76 311,263,30 311,263,30
Diluted 30 252,659,61 274,067,76 357,272,60 357,272,60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statemer
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 3.
Note 2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’'000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US%000)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net (loss) incor (265,919 (144,919 757,35 114,75:
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to reshc(use!

in) provided by operating activitie

Unrealized (gain) loss from derivative contre 17 (33,879) 27,66 6,77(C 1,02¢
Changes in fair value of conversion feature of estible
bonds — 73,88 (31,627 (4,797
Loss from disposal of a subsidic 384 — — —
Loss from disposal of fixed asst — 71¢ 957 14t
Gain from disposal of intangible as: 9 (3,409 — — —
Amortization of convertible bonds discot — 50,78¢ 60,40¢ 9,15z
Depreciation and amortizatic 67,17( 153,17- 187,58 28,42
Amortization of lon-term deferred expen: 5,14t 6,67( 7,19¢ 1,09(C
Stock compensation expen: 20 34,82¢ 42,67 31,96: 4,84:
Write-down of inventorie! 5 413,78¢ 282,57: 134,48¢ 20,37:
Provision for doubtful collection of accounts recgile 4 — 3,72% — —
Reversal of doubtful debt for accounts receivi — — (27¢) (42
Provision for doubtful collection of advances tgglier 6 41,96: 234,72: 117 18
Deferred tax benef 24 (50,069 (15,797 (32,059 (4,857%)
Warranty provisior 14 46,56 33,72¢ 67,61¢ 10,24¢
Warranty settlements and revers 14 (18,887 (8,909 (9,38¢) (1,427)
Unrecognized tax bene 24 27,38t — 116,08t 17,58¢
Others 2 — — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Restricted cas (44,607) 2,011 (5,29¢) (803)
Accounts receivabl 111,15 (271,679) (695,04 (105,309
Notes receivabl — — (20,000 (1,51
Inventories (417,016 (334,839 (141,289 (21,407
Advance to suppliers and lc-term prepayment (547,459 (68,877) (178,700 (27,07¢)
Other current asse (97,277) 301,43: (75,117 (11,387
Amount due from related parti 901 (12,439 (30,367 (4,600
Accounts payabl 103,19¢ 238,80: (12,25 (1,856
Notes payabli — — (5,65€) (857)
Accrued expenses and other liabilit (27,857 33,64¢ 154,68( 23,43t
Amount due to related parti (2,039 10,36: (3,587) (543)
Customer deposit (18,139 50,19: (26,147 (3,967)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi (674,04 689,33: 268,43¢ 40,67:
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of fixed assel (849,54 (260,059 (634,50¢) (96,139
Acquisition of intangible asse (48,517 (438 (1,67¢) (259
Acquisition of a subsidiar (267,56¢) (89,819 — —
Increase in restricted ca (1,282 25,581 (34,659 (5,250
Disposal of affiliate 30C — — —
Disposal of a subsidia (9,399 — — —
Proceeds from disposal of intangible as 6,95¢ — — —
Net cash used in investing activit| (1,169,04) (324,72) (670,83) (101,64

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — CONT'D

For the year ended December 3.
Note 2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’'000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US%000)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from Share Issuance and Repurchase

Agreement with Hanwha Solar Holdings Co., L 27 — — 21 3
Capital contributed by minority interest sharehol 65,56( — — —
Net proceeds from issuance of redeemable ordinary
shares 32 — — —
Net proceeds from issuance of convertible bc 1,178,96! — — —
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares toMHz
Solar Holdings Co., Ltc 18 — — 1,059,81, 160,57¢
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares Itiq 18 489,87! 148,99 521,30: 78,98t
Dividends paid to minority shareholde — (3,400 — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 12,09: 1,102 12,16¢ 1,84:
Proceeds from sh«term borrowings 3,119,68: 1,900,67 1,098,91 166,50:.
Payment of sha-term borrowings (2,985,85) (2,594,74) (1,184,75)) (179,509
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 200,00( 300,00( — —
Payment of lon-term borrowings (15,000 (30,000 (220,000 (18,187
Utilization of notes payabl — 147,58( — —
Repayment of advances from related pai (84,299 — — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 1,981,05 (129,79) 1,387,45 210,22:
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 137,97: 234,81¢ 985,05 149,25:
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 272,92¢ 410,90: 645,72( 97,83¢
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 410,90: 645,72( 1,630,77 247,08
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati

Interest paic 102,44( 104,81 89,85¢ 13,61«

Income tax pait 51,27: 39,15¢ 160,61! 24,33¢

Realized gain from derivative contra 49,21¢ 37,25¢ 84,30 12,77:
Supplemental schedule of r-cash activities

Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountggide,

accrued expenses and other liabili 35,90« 21,84 48,61 7,36¢
Conversion of convertible bonds into ordinary shi — 17¢ — —
Transfer of unamortized debt issuance costs tayequi

upon conversion of convertible bonds into ordinar

shares — 5) — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.

Retained
earnings Total
Number of Additional paid- Statutory (accumulatec Non-controlling shareholders’
Note ordinary shares Ordinary shares in capital reserves losses) Interest equity

(RMB’000) (RMB'000)  (RMB'000] (RMB'000)  (RMB’000)  (RMB’000)

Balance as of January 1, 2C 241,954,74 19t 1,601,85: 37,54¢ 222,98° 100,42( 1,963,00:
Exercise of stock options and vesting of

restricted stock unit 20 1,040,591 1 12,09( — — — 12,09
Capital contributed by non-controlling

interest — — — — — 65,56( 65,56(
Disposal of subsidiar — — — — — (8,750 (8,750
Purchase of subsidiary shares from nor

controlling interes — — — — — (167,62() (167,62()
Settlement of stock options exercised with

shares held by depository ba (1,040,591 — — — — — —
Net proceeds from issuance of ordin

shares 27,105,46 18 489,85° — — — 489,87!
Shar«-based compensatic 20 — — 34,82t — — — 34,82
Net loss for the yee — — — — (280,49)) 14,57: (265,91
Appropriation of statutory reserv 19 — — — 10,09( (10,090 — —
Balance as of December 31, 2( 269,060,20 214 2,138,62: 47,63¢ (67,599 4,182 2,123,06!
Adjustment to retained earnings upon

adoption of ASC 81-40 — — — — 644,81: — 644,81:
Balance as of January 1, 2C 269,060,20 214 2,138,62 47,63¢ 577,21¢ 4,182 2,767,87
Exercise of stock options and vesting of

restricted stock unit 20 893,76( — 1,101 — — — 1,101
Settlement of stock options exercised w

shares held by depository ba (893,76() — — — — — —
Conversion of convertible bonds into

ordinary share 6,53¢ — 17t — — — 17t
Shar-based compensatic 20 — — 42,671 — — — 42,67
Shares issued to depository b 2,200,001 1 [€0)] — — — —
Net proceeds from issuance of ordin

shares 18 19,441,99 12 148,98. — — — 148,99
Purchase of subsidiary shares from non-

controlling interes — — 24E — — (1,099 (84¢9)
Net loss for the perio — — — — (145,22) 311 (144,916
Appropriation of statutory reserv 19 — — — 21,92¢ (21,92¢) — —
Appropriation of retained earnings to no

controlling interes — — — — — (3,400 (3,400
Balance as of December 31, 2( 290,708,73 227 2,331,79 69,56+ 410,06! — 2,811,65:
Exercise of stock options and vesting ol

restricted stock unit 20 1,762,501 — 12,16¢ — — — 12,16¢
Settlement of stock options exercised with

shares held by depository ba (1,762,501 — — — — — —
Shar-based compensatic 20 — — 31,96: — — — 31,96:
Shares issued to depository b 1,500,001 1 0] — — — —

Net proceeds from issuance of ordin
shares to Hanwha Solar Holdings Cc¢

Ltd. 18 82,436,69 565 1,059,75 — — — 1,059,81:
Net proceeds from issuance of ordin

shares to publi 18 46,000,00 31 521,27: — — — 521,30:
Net income for the perio — — — — 757,35° — 757,35°
Appropriation of statutory reserv 19 — — — 100,43t (100,43¢) — —
Balance as of December 31, 2( 420,645,43 314 3,956,95: 170,00( 1,066,98! — 5,194,25:

Balance as of December 31, 2010
US{$000 48 599,538 25,757 161,665 — 787,008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statements.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. (formerly known as SoiarPower Holdings Co., Ltd.) (the “Companytas incorporated under t
laws of the Cayman Islands on June 12, 2006 argdiitsipal activity is investment holding. The pripal activities of its subsidiari
are described in the table below. The Company kegetith its subsidiaries listed below are refert@ds the “Group” hereinafter.

Pursuant to a written resolution of Leshan Jiaysutgiard of directors dated January 1, 2008, theigestablished a working grc
for the purpose to liquidate the Compagpubsidiary, Leshan Jiayang, which was dormartt wisignificant operations and |
assets. The liquidation process was completed gitine year ended December 31, 2008.

In February 2008, the Group established HanwharSak GmbH (“SolarOne GmbH”")pfeviously known as Solarfun Pov
Deutschland GmbH). The registered capital of Sal@r@mbH is Euro100,000 of which all had been cbuated by the Group ¢
February 14, 2008. The principal activity of SolaEOGmbH is to sell PV products in the European etarkSolarOne Gmbh has
yet commenced operations as of December 31, :

On August 1, 2008, the Group acquired the remaidi®% equity interest in Hanwha SolarOne Technol@gy, Ltd. (“SolarOni
Technology”) previously known as Yangguang Solar Technology Qad.) for total cash consideration of approximg
RMB355,872,000 from Nantong Linyang Electric Powsrestment Co., Ltd. (“Nantong Linyang"Jjangsu Qitian Group Co., L
(“Qitian Group”) and Jiangsu Guangyi Technology ,Cbtd. (“Jiangsu Guangyi”).Subsequent to this acquisition, Solar
Technology became a wholly owned subsidiary ofG@benpany. The Group accounted for this transactioa lausiness combination.

Pursuant to a share transfer agreement signed éetavesubsidiary of the Group, Shanghai Linyang rSo&chnology Co., Lt
(“Solar Shanghai”), with three individual naontrolling shareholders of Solar Shanghai (i.el, Ronggiang, Gu Yongliang, Wa
Guoyu) on November 16, 2009, the three individbalrsholders agreed to transfer their interest98,15% and 2%, respectively,
Hanwha SolarOne (Qidong) Co., Ltd. (“SolarOne Qui9n(previously known as Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Cdd.)L The cas
consideration for the share transfer was RMB50Q,NIB250,000 and RMB100,000, respectively, whictswlze original paidn
capital of the three individual shareholders whera6 Shanghai was set up in 2006. Before the straresfer, Solar Shangt
distributed a dividend to each of the three indiaidshareholders of RMB3,400,000 in cash, repré@sgithe proportionate pro
attributed to the nowentrolling shareholders from the date of inceptimithe date of the share transfer. After the straresfer, Sol:
Shanghai became a wholly owned subsidiary of treufsr

In May 2010, the Group established Hanwha SolactEtePower Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Solar Enginegf) (previously known &
Jiangsu Linyang Solar Electric Power Engineering, Ctd.). The registered capital of Solar Enginegris RMB50,000,000, whit
had been contributed by the Group on May 25, 20h@. principal activity of Solar Engineering is tmpide construction services
build solar power systems in the People’s Repudjlichina (“PRC” or “China”).
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONT 'D)

As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s subsidianigsided the following entities:

Date of incorporatiol Place of Percentage ¢
establishment incorporation;  shareholding
Name of subsidiar acquisition establishmen ownershig Principal activities
Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holding Ltd. (“SolarOmesstment”) May 17, 2006 British Virgin 10C% Investment holding
(previously known as Linyang Solar Power Investnit¢oiding Ltd.) Islands
Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited (“SolarOne HKgydviously May 16, 2007 Hong Kong 10C% Investment holding and
known as Solarfun Power Hong Kong Limite international procuremel
Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc. (“SolarOne USA”) (pmawsly known as September 18, 200 United States o 10C% International sales
Solarfun USA, Inc. America
SolarOne Gmb}t February 14, 200 Deutschlanc 10C% International sale
SolarOne Qidong August 27, 2004 PRC 10C% Development, manufacturing
and sales of photovoltaic
(“PV") products to overseas
customer
Solar Shanghai March 29, 2006 PRC 10C% Sales of PV products to PRC
customer
Hanwha Solar Engineering Research and Developmemie€Co., Ltd. April 9, 2007 PRC 10C% Research and development
(“Solar R&D") (previously known as Jiangsu LinyaSglarfun
Engineering Research and Development Center Cab.),
SolarOne Technolog July 31, 2007 PRC 10C% Manufacturing of silicon ingo
Solar Engineering May 25, 2010 PRC 10C% Provide construction services
to build solar power systems
the PRC

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with U.S. generally accepted accogmiinciples (“US GAAP”).
Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of the Company and its sub#diaAll significant inter-
company transactions and balances between the Ggrapd its subsidiaries are eliminated upon codattin.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company and eachisodubsidiaries is Renminbi as determined basetherriteria of ASC 830,
Foreign Currency Translation” The reporting currency of the Company is also RebmiTransactions denominated in fore
currencies are remeasured into the functional noyrat the exchange rates prevailing on the traiosadates. Foreign currer
denominated financial assets and liabilities aree@sured at the balance sheet date exchange xatearifie gains and losses
separately reported in the consolidated statentérdperations.

Convenience Translation

Amounts in United States dollars are presentedh®iconvenience of the reader and are translatién aoon buying rate of US$1
to RMB6.6000 on December 31, 2010 in the City ofv\¥ork for cable transfers of Renminbi as certiffed customs purposes
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. No represiemtas made that the Renminbi amounts could hasenpor could b
converted into United States dollars at such rate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with US GAAP requires managetrtenrmake estimates a
assumptions that affect the reported amount oftassel liabilities and disclosures of contingerseds and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reported amountswd#nges and expenses during the periods. Actualtsesould differ from thes
estimates. Significant estimates and assumptidtected in the Grou financial statements include, but are not limitedorovisiot
for doubtful debts, provision for advance to su@rsj provision for warranty, inventory writlswn, useful lives of fixed assets i
intangible assets, impairment of fixed assetsniitdle assets and goodwill, valuation allowancesleferred tax assets, stobkse:
compensation expenses and fair values of derivatméracts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on mahdank deposits, which are unrestricted as todnatival and use.
Restricted Casl

Restricted cash represents amounts held by a ksaekaurity for letters of credit facilities, noteayable and PRC Custom depc
and therefore are not available for the Group’s Uike restriction on cash is expected to be retbagthin the next twelve months.

Accounts and Notes Receivat
Accounts and notes receivable are carried at raizadle value. An allowance for doubtful accouistgecorded in the period
which collection is determined to be not probabsdnl on historical experience, account balancegagirevailing econom

conditions and an assessment of specific evidemtieating troubled collection. A receivable is wgit off after all collection effor
have ceased.

F-10




Table of Contents

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Debt Issuance Cost

Debt issuance costs represent the incurred caststlgh attributable to the issuance of the contéetbonds. These costs, presente
non-current assets, are deferred and amortized rateiyg the effective interest method from the debuance date over the life
the convertible bonds. Upon the conversion of thieds, the related debt issuance costs will be eelvit shareholders’ equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miavialue. Cost is determined by the weighdedrage method. Raw material co:
based on purchase costs while worlpimgress and finished goods comprise direct maderdirect labor and an allocation
manufacturing overhead costs.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost and are depreciategl the straighine method over the estimated useful lives of &lssets ¢

follows:

Buildings 20 years

Plant and machinet 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 5 years

Computer softwar 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Leasehold improvemen Over the shorter of the lease term or their estichaseful live

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expérese incurred, whereas the cost of renewals attgrbeent that extend t
useful life of fixed assets are capitalized as talth to the related assets. Retirement, sale @pbshl of assets are recordec
removing the cost and accumulated depreciation anthresulting gain or loss reflected in the coidsdéd statements of operations.

Cost incurred in constructing new facilities, irailug progress payments, interest and other coksing to the construction &
capitalized and transferred to fixed assets upanpdetion and depreciation commences when the &ssaailable for its intende
use.

Interest costs are capitalized if they are incuthedng the acquisition, construction or productaira qualifying asset and such ct
could have been avoided if expenditures for thetaskave not been made. Capitalization of intectests commences when
activities to prepare the asset are in progresseapdnditures and borrowing costs are being indurrgerest costs are capitali:
until the assets are ready for their intended Tietal interest cost incurred during 2009 and 2048 approximately RMB71,067,0
and RMB88,929,000 (US$13,474,091) and Interestaia®d during 2009 and 2010 amounted to approxipaMB4,290,000 ar
RMB5,377,000 (US$814,697), respectively.

Intangible Asset:
Land use rights
Land use rights represent amounts paid for thet ighuse land in the PRC and are recorded at pseckast less accumula

amortization. Amortization is provided on a straitjhe basis over the lives of the land use righteaments, which have terms
tenure ranging from 45 to 50 years.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pier the amounts assigned to the fair value efassets acquired and
liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill is reviewed at least annually for impaimheor earlier if there is an indication of impa&nt, in accordance with ASC 3!
“Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsThe Group assigns and assesses goodwill for imgairt the reporting unit level. As
December 31, 2010, goodwill relates to the acqaisiof SolarOne Technology.

The performance of the impairment test involvewa$tep process. The first step of the impairmentitestives comparing the fe
value of the reporting unit with its carrying ameuincluding goodwill. Fair value is primarily deteined by computing the futL
discounted cash flows expected to be generateddyeporting unit. If the reporting urst'carrying value exceeds its fair va
goodwill may be impaired. If this occurs, the Grqueyforms the second step of the goodwill impairtiest to determine the amo
of impairment loss.

The fair value of the reporting unit is allocatedts assets and liabilities in a manner similaa fpurchase price allocation in orde
determine the implied fair value of the reportingtis goodwill. If the implied goodwill fair value i®$s than its carrying value,
difference is recognized an impairment loss.

The Group performed a goodwill impairment testBBe&cember 31, 2010 and no impairment loss waggrézed.
Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

The Group evaluates its loriged assets or asset groups, including intangibkets with finite lives, for impairment whenevee
or changes in circumstances (such as a signifadwerse change to market conditions that will imphe future use of the asst
indicate that the carrying amount of a group ofgiimed assets may not be recoverable. When thesetewecur, the Grol
evaluates for impairment by comparing the carnangpunt of the assets to the future undiscountedasdt flows expected to res
from the use of the assets and their eventual sispo. If the sum of the expected undiscounteddbsvs is less than the carryi
amount of the assets, the Group would recognizengairment loss based on the excess of the caringunt of the asset grc
over its fair value.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include cash and cash eqms) restricted cash, accounts and notes recejvattounts and notes paya
shortterm bank borrowings, amounts due to/from relatedtiigs and convertible bonds. The carry amountshese financit
instruments other than convertible bonds approxéntiair fair values due to the shtetim maturity of these instruments. Upon
adoption of ASC 815-40“Derivatives and Hedging: Contracts in Entity’sM® Equity,” on January 1, 2009, the conversion of
was bifurcated from the convertible bonds at itsfalue and the residual value allocated to thavedatible bonds was accreted to
redemption amount using the effective interest wkthrhe Group determined the fair value of the ewssion option with th
assistance of an independent third-party valudtion

The factors considered in the valuation model arfobows:

As of December 31

2009 2010
Underlying share pric USt 7.6  US$ 8.17
Conversion prict Us$ 19.12¢ US$ 19.12¢
Time to maturity 8.04 year 7.04 year
Risk free rate 3.55% 2.72%
Expected volatility 76.8% 71.72%
Comparable yield to maturit 5.9¢% 5.32%

Underlying share price is the Compasglosing price as listed on NASDAQ as of Decen#ief009 and 2010. The Convers
price is the initial conversion price of the cortilde bonds. Time to maturity is the remaining ye&om balance sheet date
January 15, 2018, the maturity date of the conertionds. The risk free rate is derived from timtédl States Treasury zero cou
risk free rates with the remaining terms equah®time to maturity as of December 31, 2009 and2The Company estimates
expected volatility and comparable yield to matufiased on a combination of the Companfistorical performance and

performance of comparable publicly listed companies

The long-term bank borrowings approximate their falue since they bear interest rates which apprate market interest rates.
Financial Instruments — Embedded Foreign Currencydbivatives

Certain of the Group’ sales contracts are denominated in a currenaghviginot the functional currency of either of thegties to th
contract nor the currency in which the productsgesold are routinely denominated in internatioc@inmerce. Accordingly, tl
contracts contain embedded foreign currency forveamtracts which are required to be separatelyated for in accordance w
ASC 815-10"Derivatives and Hedging: Overall."The embedded foreign currency derivatives are séggraccounted for al
measured at fair value with changes in fair valeported as “Changes in fair value of derivativet@mts” in the consolidate
statements of operations. Embedded foreign curreiecivatives are presented as current assets hilities. The Group does r
enter into derivative contracts for speculativepgmses and hedge accounting has not been applied.
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Financial Instruments — Foreign Currency Derivativ€ontracts and Commodity Contracts

The Groups primary objective for holding foreign currencyrigtative contracts and commaodity derivative contisas to manage i
foreign currency risk principally arising from saleontracts denominated in Euros and the stalafityhhe purchase price for silv
which is one of the raw materials required in thedpiction of PV products. The Group records thesévdtive instruments as curr
assets or current liabilities, measured at faingal

During the years ended December 31, 2008, 20092848, the Group entered into crasgrency exchange rate agreemen
receive RMB and sell other currencies as well asmodity agreements to purchase silver. Changesanfdir value of the:
derivative instruments are recognized in the cadatdd statements of operations. The Group hageelewot to apply hed:
accounting to these derivative instruments. As etcé&nber 31, 2010, the Group had outstanding awssncy exchange re
contracts with notional amounts of Euro125 milli@009: Euro105 million) and US$190 million (2009il)N and commaodit
contracts with a quantity of 102,000 ounces ofesil(2009: Nil). The Group estimates the fair vatifeits foreign currency ar
commodity derivatives using a pricing model basednarket observable inputs.

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Group$ primary business activity is to produce and &l modules. The Group periodically, upon speciauest fron
customers, sells PV cells and silicon ingots. Theup records revenue related to the sale of PV tesd®V cells and silicon ingc
when the criteria of ASC 605-10Revenue Recognition: Overall,are met. These criteria include all of the follogimpersuasiv
evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery hasiroed; the sales price is fixed or determinabla] aallectability is reasonak
assured.

More specifically, the Group’ sales arrangements are evidenced by framewods saireements and/or by individual s
agreements for each transaction. The shipping tesfnthe Group’s sales arrangements are generdlgst, Insurance a
Freight” (“CIF”) and “Free on Board” (“FOB”"$hipping point whereby the customer takes title asglimes the risks and reward
ownership of the products upon delivery to the gbipThe customer bears all costs and risks ofdogemage to the goods from 1
point. Under some sales arrangements, the Growgrescts customers to prepay prior to shipmene Tompany performs ongoi
credit assessment of each customer, includingwéwgethe customes latest financial information and historical payrmeecord an
performing necessary duiligence to determine acceptable credit termsndtances where longer credit terms are granteetiauir
customers, the timing of revenue recognition wasimpacted as the Company has historically beea tabtollect under the origir
payment terms without making concessions. Othen tarranty obligations, the Group does not have eognmitments ¢
obligations to deliver additional products or seed to the customers. Based on the above, the Gemgpds revenue related
product sales upon delivery of the product to thipger, assuming all other revenue recognitioreddtare met.

In the event the Group pays the shipping costdierconvenience of the customer, the shipping cagtsncluded in the amot

billed to the customer. In these cases, sales vevercludes the amount of shipping costs passetb dhe customer. The Gro
records the shipping costs incurred as cost ofmese
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HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Revenue Recognition (co'd)

The Group entered into a processing service arraageto process PV cells into PV modules. For #egisvice arrangement, 1
Group “purchases” PV cells from the customer antemporaneously agrees to “sal’specified quantity of PV modules back ta
same customer. The quantity of PV modules sold badke customers under these processing arranggenseconsistent with tl
amount of PV cells purchased from the customerdasecurrent production conversion rates. In acaocd with ASC 845-15, “
Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventorh Wie Same Counterpart” the Group records the amount of revenue on
processing transactions based on the amount rectvé®VV modules sold less the amount paid forRRecells purchased from t
customer. These sales are subject to all of theeahoted criteria relating to revenue recognition.

The Company recognizes revenue related to long-tear systems integration services on the pergers&completion methor
The Company estimates its revenues by using thieteca®st method, whereby it derives a ratio by compathe costs incurred
date to the total costs expected to be incurretherproject. The Company applies the ratio compirtietie cost-tazost analysis 1
the contract price to determine the estimated neegearned in each period. A contract may be redaad substantially complete:
remaining costs are not significant in amount. When Company determines that total estimated asstexceed total revenu
under a contract, it records a loss accordingly.

Revenue is recognized net of all valmded taxes imposed by governmental authoritiescaiidcted from customers concurr
with revenueproducing transactions. The Group does not offglitit or explicit rights of return, regardless whether goods we
shipped to the distributors or shipped directlyite end user, other than due to product defect.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes direct and indirect préidaccosts, as well as shipping and handling clastproducts sold.

Research and Development Co

Research and development costs are expensed asthcu

Advertising Expenditure:

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred aediranluded in “selling expensesAdvertising expenses were approxima

RMB1,383,500, RMB1,962,000 and RMB742,000 (US$122)4for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 201D
respectively.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Warranty Cost

The Group primarily provides standard warranty cage on PV modules sold to customers. The standarchnty provides for a
to 5-year warranty against technical defects, yddy-warranty against a decline from initial poweneration capacity of more tf
10% and a 20 to 2fear warranty against a decline from initial poweneration capacity of more than 20%. The estiroatée
amount of warranty obligation is primarily based thie following considerations: 1) the results ofhieical analyses, includi
simulation tests performed on the products by dnsiryrecognized external certification body as wellrgerinally developed dar
heat testing procedures conducted by the Compamgimeering team, 2) the Compasyiistorical warranty claims experience
the warranty accrual practices of other compamighe industry that produce PV products that aregarable in engineering desi
raw material input and functionality to the prodycand which sell products to a similar class dftemers, and 4) the expec
failure rate and future costs to service faileddpiris. The results of the technical analyses stipperfuture operational efficiency
the PV modules at levels significantly above th@aimum guaranteed levels over the respective warrpatiods. The estimate
warranty costs are affected by the estimated andhbgroduct failure rates, the costs to repaireptace failed products and poter
service and delivery costs incurred in correctingr@duct failure. Based on the above consideratioms managemerst’ability anc
intention to provide repairs, replacements or rdfufor defective products, the Group accrues faravdy costs for the 2 to geal
warranty against technical defects based on 1%\afrrue for PV modules. No warranty cost accrualbiesn recorded for the 10-
year and 20 to -year warranties because the Group determinedkbEhiood of claims arising from these warrantievéoremot
based on internal and external testing of the Pdutes and strong quality control procedures ingiteeluction process. The basis
the warranty accrual will be reviewed periodicaiigsed on actual experience. The Group does nog¢xdelhded warranty covere
that is separately priced or optional.

Government Grants

Government grants received by the Company conbishrestricted grants and subsidies. The amoustiofi government grants
determined solely at the discretion of the relevgmternment authorities and there is no assuramatettie Group will continue
receive these government grants in the future. @owent grants are recognized when all the conditettached to the grants h
been met, and the grants are received. Governmantsgthat are received on an unsolicited and wiitional basis to support t
growth of the Group and do not relate to the Grewgperating activities are classified as non-ofgggahcome upon receipt.

Accounting for Income Taxes and Uncertain Tax Pdsits

The Group accounts for income taxes in accordarntte ASC 740, “Accounting for Income TaxesUnder this method, deferred -
assets and liabilities are determined based oditfezence between the financial reporting andldages of assets and liabilities u:
enacted tax rates that will be in effect in theigebiin which the differences are expected to rexefhe Group records a valual
allowance to offset deferred tax assets if, basethe weight of available evidence, it is moredykthannot that some portion, or ¢
of the deferred tax assets will not be realizede €ffect on deferred taxes of a change in tax riatescognized in income in t
period that includes the enactment date.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Accounting for Income Taxes and Uncertain Tax Pdsits (con’d)

The Group applies ASC 740-10Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxesywhich clarifies the accounting for uncertainty
income taxes by prescribing the recognition threblzotax position is required to meet before beiagognized in the financi
statements. As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, thep3ecorded unrecognized tax benefits of appratéety RMB27,385,000 al
RMB143,473,000 (US$21,738,333), respectively. Theup has elected to classify interest and/or persatelated to an uncert
position, if and when required, as part of “othpeting expensesh the consolidated statements of operations. Nb sumount
have been incurred or accrued through Decembe2@®1) by the Group.

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the taxsye&iSolarOne Qidong, Solar Shanghai, SolarOne A@oly, Solar R&D, an
Solar Engineering for the years ended Decembe2@16 through 2010 remain open for examination leytéx authorities.

Value-Added Tax (“VAT")

In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRET is levied on the invoiced value of sales angayable by the purchaser.
Group is required to remit the VAT it collects teettax authority, but may deduct the VAT it hasdpai eligible purchases. To "
extent the Group paid more than collected, theedifice represents a net VAT recoverable balanibe dtalance sheet date.

Leases

Leases are classified at the inception date asredtitapital lease or an operating lease. Foredset, a lease is a capital lease i
of the following conditions exist: a) ownershiptiansferred to the lessee by the end of the lease b) there is a bargain purch
option; c) the lease term is at least 75% of tlaperty’s estimated remaining economic life; or d) the gnévalue of the minimu
lease payments at the beginning of the lease ®80% or more of the fair value of the leased prtypt® the lessor at the incept
date. A capital lease is accounted for as if tes an acquisition of an asset and an incurrena@ obligation at the inception of
lease. All other leases are accounted for as dpgritases wherein rental payments are expensed straightine basis over tt
periods of their respective leases. Rental expemsm® approximately RMB6,307,000, RMB9,644,000 &RMB9,400,00!
(US$1,424,242) for the years ended December 318,20009 and 2010, respectively. The Group had pdaldeases during any
the periods stated herein.

Net Income (Loss) Per Shai

Net income (loss) per share is calculated in acwd with ASC 2€-10, “ Earnings Per Shar€. Basic income (loss) per ordin:
share is computed by dividing income attributabldolders of ordinary shares by the weightedrage number of ordinary she
outstanding during the period. Diluted income (Jq&s ordinary share reflects the potential dilattbat could occur if securities
other contracts to issue ordinary shares were megtor converted into ordinary shares. Ordinagres issuable upon the conver:
of convertible bonds are included in the computatid diluted income (loss) per ordinary share orfiknonverted” basis, when tt
impact is dilutive. Dilutive ordinary equivalent afes consist of ordinary shares issuable upon xkecise of outstanding shi
options and restricted stock units. Ordinary steayaivalents are excluded from the computation hitelil income (loss) per shari
their effects would be anti-dilutive.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Stock Compensatio

Stock awards granted to employees and non-emplaymeeaccounted for under ASC 718-105Hare-Based Paymerit,and ASC
505-50, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issue®ther Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjimrc with Selling
Goods or Service$ respectively.

In accordance with ASC 71893, all grants of share options to employees aregmized in the financial statements based on
grant-date fair values. The Group has electeddogmrize compensation expense using the stréiigdhtmethod for all share optio
granted with service conditions that have a gradsting schedule.

ASC 71810 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the tohegrant and revised, if necessary, in subsegperibds if actua
forfeitures differ from initial estimates. Shabased compensation expense was recorded netrobést forfeitures such that expe
was recorded only for those share-based awardatbéatxpected to vest.

Comparative Financial Statements

The following 2009 comparative amounts in the ctidated financial statements have been reclasstfiedonform to the currel
yeal's presentation:

1) An amount of RMB438,617,000 in advances tq#aps, net has been reclassified from currenttagedongterm prepaymen
in nor-current assets (Note ¢

2)  Anamount of RMB30,000,000 in long-term bamkrbwings has been reclassified from non-currettilities to longterm banl
borrowings, current portion in current liabiliti@dote 12).

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In March 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standéhpdate (“ASU”) 2010-11;Derivative and Hedging (Topic 815).All entities
that enter into contracts containing an embeddeditcderivative feature related to the transfecmfdit risk that is not only in tt
form of subordination of one financial instrument danother will be affected by the amendments in AZ110411 because tr
amendments clarify that the embedded credit dévizaicope exception in paragraph 815-15-15-8 throlg9 does not apply t
such contracts. ASU 2010-11 is effective at theiregg of the reporting entitg’ first fiscal quarter beginning after June 15, @!
The provisions of ASU 20104 are not expected to have a material effect erfitlancial position, results of operations or ctistvs
of the Company.

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-13Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718)3U 201043 provides
amendments to ASC 718 to clarify that an employegebased payment award with an exercise price dendedria the currenc
of a market in which a substantial portion of tiitg’s equity securities trades should not be consideredntain a condition that
not a market, performance, or service conditiorergfore, an entity would not classify such an awasd liability if it otherwist
qualifies as equity. The amendments in ASU 2Q30are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within those fiscal yeai
beginning on or after December 15, 2010. The pronisf ASU 201013 are not expected to have a material effect erfittancial
position, results of operations or cash flows ef @ompany.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements (c(d)

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010“28J 2010-28"),Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (“ASC 350™When tc
Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment TestReporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amts. The objective of thi
standard is to address questions about entitids mgjporting units with zero or negative carryingoamts because some entit
concluded that Step 1 of the test is passed irethissumstances because the fair value of theartiey unit will generally be great
than zero. The amendments in this standard modép $ of the goodwill impairment test for reportingits with zero or negati.
carrying amounts. For those reporting units, aityers required to perform Step 2 of the goodwitigairment test if it is more likel
than not that a goodwill impairment exists. Thanstard is effective for fiscal years, and interienipds within those years, beginni
after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is not jéech The provisions of ASU 20128 are not expected to have a material e
on the financial position, results of operationgash flows of the Company.

Concentration of Risks
Concentration of credit risk

Assets that potentially subject the Group to sigaift concentration of credit risk are primarilyshaand cash equivalents, accol
receivable, advances made to suppliers and longeepayments.

The Group has approximately RMB477,875,000 (US$r23203) of cash and bank deposits in the PRC, wtocistitute about 29¢
of total cash and cash equivalents. Historicalgpasits in Chinese banks are secured due to tteepgilicy on protecting depositors’
interests. However, China promulgated a new Bartkyulpaw in August 2006 that came into effect oneln2007, which contains
separate article expressly stating that the Staten€ll promulgates implementation measures forldekruptcy of Chinese ban
based on the Bankruptcy Law when necessary. Uhd@endéw Bankruptcy Law, a Chinese bank can go iatkkiuptcy. In additior
since China’s concession to the World Trade Orgdian (“WTO"), foreign banks have been gradually permitted toatpan Chine
which has led to increased competition for Chineseks. Further, the global financial crisis arisinghe third quarter of 2008 h
increase the risk of bank bankruptcy in the PRGh&nevent of bankruptcy, it is uncertain whethmer Group will be able to recei
its deposits back in full since it is unlikely te lslassified as a secured creditor based on PRE& [Blne Group mitigates its risk
loss by continuing to monitor the financial stréngf the financial institutions in which it makespbsits.

Advances made to suppliers are typically unsecaretarise from deposits paid in advance for fupurehases of raw materials.
a percentage of total advances to suppliers, imodutbngterm prepayments, the top five suppliers accoufitechn aggregate ¢
41.9% and 46.1% as of December 31, 2009 and 2@&pectively. Due to the Growgptoncentration of advances made to a lir
number of suppliers and the significant prepaymémds are made to them, any negative events oridetton in financial strengt
with respect to the Group’s suppliers may causeatenal loss to the Group and have a material adveffect on the Group’
financial condition and results of operations. Tis&k with respect to advances made to suppliersifigated by credit evaluatior
that the Group performs on its suppliers prior Eking any advances and the ongoing monitoringsoduippliers’ performance.

With respect to accounts receivable, the Group gotsdperiodic credit evaluation of its customers does not require collateral
other security from its customers.

F-19




Table of Contents

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT 'D)
Concentration of Risks (cont’d)
Concentration of customers

The Group currently sells a substantial portiot®fV products to a limited number of customers.adpercentage of revenues,
top five customers accounted for an aggregate #9%365.3% and 51.9% for the years ended Decemhez(®8, 2009 and 20!
respectively. The loss of sales from any of thestamers would have a significant negative impacthe Groups business. Sales
customers are mostly made through non-exclusivert-$arm arrangements. Due to the Graugépendence on a limited numbe
customers, any negative events with respect toGitoeip’s customers may cause material fluctuationdezlines in the Group’
revenue and have a material adverse effect on thep3 financial condition and results of operasion

Concentration of suppliers

A significant portion of the Group’raw materials are sourced from its five largegipsiers who collectively accounted for
aggregate of 42.0%, 51.6% and 40.0% of the Grotptal silicon and silicon wafer purchases for ylears ended December
2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively. Failure to dgver maintain relationships with these suppliees mause the Group to be un:
to source adequate raw materials needed to manufaits PV products. Any disruption in the suppfyr@v materials to the Groi
may adversely affect the Group’s business, findrmaiadition and results of operations.

3. ACQUISITIONS

On July 31, 2007, the Group acquired a 52% equitgrést in SolarOne Technology from Nantong Linydgfigctric Powe
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Nantong Linyang”) and Liamgang Suyuan Group Co., Ltd. (“Qitian Grougty cash consideration
RMB51,251,200. Subsequently, on August 1, 2008,Gheup acquired the remaining 48% equity interasbalarOne Technolo:
for total cash consideration of approximately RMB®Y2,000 from Nantong Linyang, Qitian Group andndsu Guang
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu GuangyiThe transaction has been accounted for as a basioesbination as the acquiree m
the definition of a business. The excess purchése pver the fair value was recorded as goodwhk acquired assets and liabili
were recorded at their fair value at the date guaition. SolarOne Technology is mainly engagethias manufacturing of PV ce
and other electronic components.

4. ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Groups$ accounts receivable is net of the allowance @arbtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful acdeuactivity is a

follows:
As of December 31,
2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¢000)

Beginning balanc 2,26 4,18: 633
Provision (reversal) for doubtful de 3,72 (27¢) 42
Written-off (1,807%) (160) (24)
Ending balanc 4,18: 3,74¢ 567
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4. ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONT'D)

Notes receivable represent bank drafts that ar-interest bearing and due within six months. Suahkldrafts have been arrang
with third-party financial institutions by certain customesssettle their purchases from the Company. Theyicyramount of note
receivable approximates fair value.

5. INVENTORIES — NET
Inventories consist of the following:

As of December 31

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Raw materials 277,55: 459,48( 69,61¢
Work-in-progress 129,50( 25,11¢ 3,80¢
Finished good 376,92 306,17- 46,39(
783,97: 790,77: 119,81

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, raw materialsagfroximately RMB15,131,000 and RMB45,696,000 (US%8,636)
respectively, of the Group were held in custody difier parties for processing. The writewn of inventories amounted
RMB413,789,000, RMB282,574,000 and RMB134,489,008%20,377,121) for the years ended December 318,22009 an
2010, respectively.

6. ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS AND LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Advance to suppliers and long-term prepaymentsesgmt interesfree cash deposits paid to suppliers for futurecipases of ra
materials. These deposits are required in ordsetare supply of silicon due to limited availalilit

The multiyear supply agreements entered into between thepGrod its suppliers typically state minimum quiggiwith associate
pricing set for the annual periods under the agesgsmwith deliveries to be made over a generalftange, subject to change ba
on the Group’s purchasing needs and/or the sugpfeoduct availability. As a result of a steep deelin the spot price for silict
products, during 2009, the Group successfully cetegl re-negotiating all of its muliear framework supply agreements thrc
either supplemental agreements or amended ande@staltiyear framework supply agreements with the excemfaliangxi LDK
Solar Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. (“LDK") Note 28). Each of these subsequent agreementsroptavisions which allow for reassessmet
the purchase price for future deliveries under ageeements; however, the subsequent agreementsaljjerdéd not adjust tr
originally contracted purchase quantities.
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6. ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS AND LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS (CONT’D)

The supplemental agreements or amended and restatéd/ear framework supply agreements also removedusela the origini
multi-year framework supply agreements that prodidiee Group with the right to terminate the mykiar framework supp
agreements and to require repayment for the dejoaity event of default by the suppliers. Instehd,supplemental agreement
amended and restated myldar framework supply agreements allow the suppbegrace period to cure certain events of defaat
may occur before the Company can enforce its owmedies under the agreements. The removal of sgtitsriwill result in th
recovery of such advances only through the deliv@mproduct from its suppliers which could rangenfr one to four year
Accordingly, approximately RMB438,617,000 of “cumteassets — Advance to supplieras of December 31, 2009 has t
reclassified to “non-current assets — Long-ternppyenents” consistent with the current year’s presgem.

The risk of loss arising from ngperformance by or bankruptcy of the suppliers seased prior to making the deposits and ¢
quality of the suppliers is continually assesséthdre is deterioration in the creditworthinesshaf suppliers, the Group will seel
recover the advances from the suppliers and prdeid@sses on advances which are akin to recegaibl cost of revenue becaus
the suppliersinability to return the advances. A charge to @isevenue will be recorded in the period in whicloss is determin
to be probable and the amount can be reasonaliiyatst. The Group has recorded a charge to costw@nue amounting

approximately RMB41,962,000, RMB234,724,000 and RMIBO000 (US$17,727), for the years ended Decenthe2(®8, 2009 ar
2010, respectively, to reflect the probable lossirag from the suppliers’ failure to perform undkee contracts.

7. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of the following:

As of December 31,

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
VAT recoverable 37,68¢ 143,04 21,67:
Other receivable 13,11¢ 66,80° 10,12
Prepaid expenst 129,51« 45,58 6,90¢
180,31! 255,43. 38,70:

VAT recoverable represents the excess of VAT expdnoh purchases over the VAT collected from saléss amount can |
applied against future VAT collected from customarsnay be reimbursed by the tax authorities usdetain circumstances.

The balance of other receivables as of Decembe@19 and 2010 included amounts of approximatelyand RMB51,391,0C
(US$7,786,515), respectively, for export VAT refureteivable. The remaining balances of other red#és as of December
2009 and 2010 primarily consist of deposits progtite consumables suppliers of approximately RMB6,000 and RMB6,000,0t
(US$909,091), respectively, and deposits providedhe Bank of New York for provision of trust semes to ADS holders
approximately RMB3,083,000 and RMB3,362,000 (US$399), respectively.
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7. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (CONT'D)

Prepaid expenses mainly represent advances madami Semiconductors Material Factory (“E-mei”)thérd-party supplier, fc
silicon wafers purchases. In October and Novemibe2006, the Group entered into raw materials puseheontracts for silicc
wafers with E-mei, under which the Group committecpay advances totaling RMB220 million to E-meiréturn for a fiveyeal
exclusive procurement right to silicon wafers proell at E-mes new production facilities. The procurement rightitles the Grou
to purchase the silicon wafers at 8% below the etapkice at the time of purchase. The Group willeha first right of refusal -
purchase silicon wafers at market price after the-year period.

The RMB220 million committed advances was paid tm& according to progress of construction of the peoduction facilities
which were completed in October 2008. Amounts ply&ir future raw material purchases fronntei will be offset against tl
advances. However, for each purchase, the Groupmsroffset 30% of the amount against the purcteabances. After the Gro
has fully utilized all of the advances, the disdoom purchase will be adjusted downward to 3% todi%e market price at the tir
of purchase.

In December 2008, the Group commenced renegotidti@garrangement with Eei and a renegotiated contract was subseqt
signed in March 2009. The Group is entitled to pase the silicon wafers at a discount of 5% beloavket price at the time
purchase and can offset 55% of the amount agdiasidvances. The remaining balance of 45% of teeafaaw materials would |
settled in cash by the Group. After the Group g fitilized the advances, the Group is no longtitled to purchase silicon waf
at the above discount.

The above arrangement, comprising of a lease coemi@and a raw material supply component, is aceaufdr in accordance
ASC 840-10,'Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a legasvhich requires the advanced payments to be allddatéhe
lease and nofease components on a relative fair value basig [Ease component is accounted for as an operbdase il
accordance with ASC 840-18ccounting for Leases.’As of December 31, 2010, the Group expects theafulbunt of its advanc
payments to be utilized in the next 12 months basedn assessment of its raw material needs arekfierted available output to
received from E-mei. Accordingly, the full amourftamivanced payments is presented as a currentassaeDecember 31, 2010.

8. FIXED ASSETS — NET
Fixed assets consist of the following:

As of December 31

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)

Buildings 232,34 323,22¢ 48,97«
Plant and machinel 1,489,10:i 1,725,78 261,48:
Furniture, fixtures and office equipme 35,05¢ 44,45t 6,73¢
Computer softwar 2,20z 4,36¢ 662
Motor vehicles 8,20: 10,06( 1,524
Leasehold improvemel — 4,801 727
Constructiorin-progress 67,08t¢ 402,15! 60,93

1,834,00; 2,514,85! 381,03¢
Less: Accumulated depreciati (247,719 (430,829 (65,277)

1,586,28. 2,084,02 315,76:
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8. FIXED ASSETS — NET (CONT'D)
Depreciation expense amounted to approximately RAEE,000, RMB 149,854,000 and RMB182,490,000 (LF$&80,000) fc
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 284k atively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2010dmgk with a net book val

of RMB28,138,995 and RMB26,632,267 (US$4,035,198spectively, were pledged for shtetm bank borrowings
RMB200,000,000 and RMB92,718,000 (US$14,048,1&%pectively (Note 12).

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — NET
Intangible assets consist of the following:

As of December 31

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¢000)
Land use right:
Cost 215,06: 216,76: 32,84
Less: Accumulated amortizatic (6,499 (10,999 (1,667%)
208,56: 205,76: 31,17¢

Land use rights represent amounts paid for thegitghuse eleven parcels of land in the PRC wher&troups premises are locat
Three land use rights were acquired from Huaerénfidng) Electronics Co., Ltd., a company whose rotlittg owner was also
significant shareholder of the Company prior tot8ejber 16, 2010 (Note 25).

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, land use rigltts avnet book value of RMB6,699,211 and RMB6,598,8US$987,712) wi
pledged for short-term bank borrowings of RMB200,000 and RMB92,718,000 (US$14,048,182), respdgt{idote 12).

For each of the next five years, the estimated anamortization expense of intangible assets isamately RMB4,508,0C
(US$683,030).

10. GOODWILL

On August 1, 2008, the Group acquired the remaidid® equity interest in SolarOne Technology foaltaash consideration
approximately RMB355,872,000 from Nantong Linya@itian Group and Jiangsu Guangyi. The transactasldeen accounted
as a business combination. The fair value attribtiiethe 48% of SolarOne Technolog\equity interest amounted to approxime
RMB221,137,000 and the excess purchase price beefatr value of RMB134,735,000 (US$20,414,394) vweaorded as goodwi
No impairment loss was recognized in any of thégglsrpresentec
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11. LONG-TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES

As of December 31

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¥000)
Convertible bond issuance costs (Note 31,37¢ 25,66¢ 3,88¢
Others 1,78% 1,60¢ 244
33,15¢ 27,27 4,132

12. BANK BORROWINGS

As of December 31,

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¢000)

Total bank borrowing 874,76 668,91¢ 101,35:.
Comprised of

Shor-term 404,76« 318,91¢ 48,32:

Long-term, current portiol 120,00( 215,00( 32,57¢

524,76: 533,91¢ 80,89’

Long-term, not-current portior 350,00( 135,00( 20,45¢

874,76 668,91 101,35:

The shortterm bank borrowings outstanding as of Decembe8@9 and 2010 bore an average interest rate 82%%nd 4.276!
per annum, respectively, and were denominated mmfRei, U.S. Dollar and Euro. These borrowings welngained from financi
institutions and have terms of two months to onaryés of December 31, 2009 and 2010, skemta bank borrowings
approximately nil and RMB45,005,000 (US$6,818,9288)e obtained through the factoring of accountsiv@ble with a term of tw
months and interest rates ranging from 3.524%683%. As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, unused-sdron bank loan facilitie
amounted to approximately RMB853,000,000 and RMB®&3®,000 (US$96,376,515), respectively.

The longterm bank borrowings outstanding as of DecembeRB@9 and 2010 bore average interest rates of %%8W 5.510% p
annum, respectively, and were denominated in Renimitese borrowings were obtained from finanaistitutions and represen
the maximum amount of the facility. The current tor and non-current portion of the lotgrm bank borrowings as
December 31, 2010 will be due in installments frivtarch 25, 2011 to December 29, 2011 and March 29220 September 1
2012, respectively.

An amount of RMB30,000,000 has been reclassifiethffong-term bank borrowings, non-current to ldagn bank borrowing
current as of December 31, 2009 to reflect amodmésand paid during 2010.
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12. BANK BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Bank borrowings as of December 31, 2009 and 201@ s&cured/guaranteed by the following:

December 31, 2009

Amount Secured/guaranteed

(RMB’000)

200,00t Jointly guaranteed by (i) Hanwha SolarOne Co., htd (ii) the Group’s factory premises and land-irglets with
net book value of RMB28,138,995 and RMB6,699,2&%pectively (Notes 8 and
87,00( Guaranteed by SolarOne Technolc
280,00t Guaranteed by SolarOne Qidc
300,00t Guaranteed by Hanwha SolarOne Co.,
7,764 Guaranteed by restricted cash of RMB7,478,

874,76

December 31, 2010

Amount Secured/guaranteed
(RMB’000)
92,71¢ Jointly guaranteed by (i) Hanwha SolarOne Co., htd (ii) the Group’s factory premises and land-iglets with

net book value of RMB26,632,267 (US$4,035,192) RivB6,518,897 (US$987,712), respectively (Notes 8
and 9)

171,19° Jointly guaranteed by Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.SaidrOne Technoloc

135,00« Guaranteed by SolarOne Qidc

270,00( Guaranteed by Hanwha SolarOne Co.,

668,91

As of December 31, 2010, the maturities of theagHerm bank borrowings were as follows:

December 31

2010 2010
(RMB’000) (US$000)
Within 1 year 215,00( 32,57¢
Between 1 and 2 yea 135,00( 20,45¢
350,00( 53,03
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13. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

The components of accrued expenses and otheitlebére as follows:

Accrued warranty costs (Note 1

Accrued wages and other employee wel
Taxes payabl

Accrued professional service fe

Accrued compensation exper

Interest payable for convertible bor

Accrued insurance expen

Accrued utilities expense

Accrued freight, import and export related expe
Accrued sales commissit

Share Issuance and Repurchase Agreement with HaBiwraical (Note 27
Other accrued expenses and liabili

14. ACCRUED WARRANTY COSTS

The Group’s warranty activity is summarized below:

Beginning balanc
Warranty provisior
Warranty reverse
Warranty claims

Ending balanc

15. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

As of December 31

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)

73,45¢ 131,68¢ 19,95:
35,80( 93,12 14,11(
9,07t 78,19( 11,847
6,92¢ 27,10: 4,10¢
4,801 22,23¢ 3,36¢
19,00( 18,43« 2,79
6,201 5,56¢ 844
5,86¢ 5,47° 82¢
6,82¢ 4,462 67¢
7,64¢ 2,872 43E

— 21 3
16,29 15,65: 2,372
191,89! 404,82¢ 61,337

As of December 31
2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)

48,63¢ 73,45¢ 11,13(
33,72¢ 67,61¢ 10,24
— (1,849 (279
(8,904 (7,549 (1,149
73,45¢ 131,68 19,95:

Customer deposits represent cash payments reciradcustomers in advance of the delivery of PV mled. These deposits .
recognized as revenue when the conditions for r&eacognition have been met. The customer depamstsaonrefundable unle:

the Group fails to fulfill the terms of the salemtract.
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16. NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2010, notes payable were intamest bearing and were secured by RMB40,603(8189%$6,152,093) of tt
Group’s restricted cash. The Group did not pay any cosioniso the banks to obtain the notes payableitiasil As of December 3
2010, these notes are due for payment over theliextonths.

17. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

The Group is exposed to certain risks relatedstditsiness operations. The primary risks that ttmiseeks to manage by us
derivative instruments are fluctuations in foreggthange rates and the purchase price for silvex.@roup recognizes all derivat
instruments as either assets or liabilities atJalue in the consolidated balance sheets (see Ngtelhe Grous derivatives are n
designated and do not qualify as hedges and amstadjto fair value through current earnings.

The following table reflects the location in thensolidated statements of operations and the anmafuetlized and unrealized gains/
(losses) recognized in income for the derivativatcts not designated as hedging instrumentshioryears ended December
2008, 2009 and 2010:

Statement of operation

location Year ended December 31,
2008 2009 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$'000)

Foreign exchange derivative contracts (not

designated as hedging instruments) — Changes in fair value o

realized derivative contract 49,217 37,25t 78,96¢ 11,96¢
Foreign exchange derivative contracts (not

designated as hedging instruments) — Changes in fair value of

unrealizec derivative contract 33,87: (27,66) (9,439 (2,430
Commaodity derivative contracts (not designat: Changes in fair value o

as hedging instrument— realized derivative contract — — 5,33t 80¢
Commodity derivative contracts (not designated Changes in fair value of

as hedging instrument— unrealizec derivative contract — — 2,661 404
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17. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS (CONT'D)

The following table reflects the fair values of igatives included in the consolidated balance shastof December 31, 2009 !
2010:

Balance sheet locatio Fair value as of
December 31 December 31
2009 2010

(RMB’000) (RMB’'000, (USY000)
Derivative assets

Foreign exchange derivative contracts Current assets:

(not designated as hedging instrume Derivative contract 7,36( 4,82z 731
Commodity derivative contracts Current assets:

(not designated as hedging instrume Derivative contract — 2,661 404

Derivative liabilities:
Foreign exchange derivative contracts Current liabilities:
(not designated as hedging instrume Derivative contract 1,14¢ 8,04 1,21¢

18. ISSUANCE OF ORDINARY SHARES FROM EQUITY OFFERIN G

In 2009, the Company issued 3,888,399 ADSs, reptiesp19,441,995 of the Compasyordinary shares. Total proceeds from
equity offering was US$23,101,918 (approximately BM8 million). Net proceeds was approximately US$20,70:
(approximately RMB149 million) after deduction @fated issuance costs.

In September 2010, in connection with the Shareialsse and Repurchase Agreement with Hanwha Solddinds Co., Ltd
(“Hanwha Solar”) (Note 27), the Company issued 356,889 of the Company’s ordinary shares.

In November 2010, the Company issued in a publieriofy 9,200,000 ADSs, representing 46,000,000hef Companys ordinan

shares. In order for Hanwha Solar to maintain #raesbeneficial ownership percentage in the Compétey this public offering, t
Company issued 45,981,604 of the Company’s ordishayes at the par value per share of US$0.008Amavha Solar.
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18. ISSUANCE OF ORDINARY SHARES FROM EQUITY OFFERIN G (CONT'D)

The Company’s share issuance activities in 201G anmemarized as follows:

Number of Number of

Date Issuance t ADSs ordinary share Total proceed Net proceed
(US$'000) (RMB’000; (US$'000) (RMB’000;
September 201 Hanwha Sole * 36,455,08 78,17: 524,60¢ 76,044 510,33:
November 201( Hanwha Sole * 45,981,60 82,76: 549,48 82,767 549,48:
— 82,436,69 160,93¢ 1,074,08 158,81: 1,059,81:
November 201( Public 9,200,00! 46,000,00 82,80( 549,85¢ 78,50¢ 521,30:
9,200,00! 128,436,69 243,73t 1,623,94! 237,31t 1,581,11.

*  Not applicable since the Company directly issuetinary shares to Hanwha Sol
19. STATUTORY RESERVES

In accordance with the PRC Regulations on Entegpnigith Foreign Investment, an enterprise estaddish the PRC with foreic
investment is required to provide for certain stayireserves, namely (i) General Reserve Fundi(iterprise Expansion Fund ¢
(iii) Staff Welfare and Bonus Fund, which are agpiated from net profit as reported in the entesgisi PRC statutory accounts
wholly owned foreign enterprise (“WOFE”) is requdréo allocate at least 10% of its annual afserprofit to the General Rese
Fund until the balance of such fund has reached b0%s respective registered capital. A nwhelly owned foreign investt
enterprise is permitted to provide for the abovecaltion at the discretion of its board of direstoAppropriations to the Enterpr
Expansion Fund and Staff Welfare and Bonus Fundatatiee discretion of the board of directors fdrfateign invested enterpris:
The aforementioned reserves can only be used &mifsppurposes and are not distributable as cagtiehds.

SolarOne Qidong became a WOFE in May 2006 andeftwer, is subject to the above mandated restristandistributable profit
Prior to May 2006, although SolarOne Qidong wasna-8reign joint venture enterprise, it was requirechtiocate at least 10%
its aftertax profit to the General Reserve Fund in accordamith the joint venture agreements entered intorapthe then joir
venture partners and the appropriations to thergnse Expansion Fund and Staff Welfare and BorwsdFwere at the discretion
the board of directors.
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19. STATUTORY RESERVES (CONT'D)

For other subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, inclgdbolarOne Technology, Solar Shanghai, Solar R&® &olar Engineering, t
General Reserve Fund was appropriated based oroflAét profits as reported in each subsidiary’s BR@utory accounts.

Details of appropriation are as follows:

For the year ended December 3!

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
General Reserve Fur 10,09( 21,92¢ 100,43t 15,21¢
Enterprise Expansion Ful — — — —
Staff Welfare and Bonus Fui — — — —
10,09( 21,92¢ 100,43t 15,21¢

20. SHARE OPTION PLANS

In November 2006, the Company adopted a stock maheme (the “2006 Option Planihich allows the Company to offe
variety of incentive awards to employees, directord consultants of the Company (the “2006 Optilam PParticipants”)lUnder th
2006 Option Plan, the Company may issue optionth¢o2006 Option Plan Participants to purchase natenthan 10,799,6¢
ordinary shares. All options granted under the 20@&ion Plan would expire on November 30, 2016 gederally vest over 3
5 years.

On August 22, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directmpproved the 2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the 20%entive Plan”)The
2007 Incentive Plan permits the grant of Incenteck Options, Norstatutory Stock Options, Restricted Stock, Stockrgpiatior
Rights, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Uritstformance Shares, and other stbaked awards to employees, directors
consultants of the Group (the “Participantddnder the 2007 Incentive Plan, the Company mayeisgu to 10,799,685 ordine
shares plus an annual increase of 2% of the oulistgrordinary shares on the first day of the fispedr, or such lesser amoun
shares as determined by the Board of Directors.ZDI0& Incentive Plan will expire on August 21, 2017

By a resolution of the Board of Directors on NovemB0, 2007, 59,994 Restricted Stock Units (the URS were granted to tl
Companys existing three independent directors and 7,500R8ere authorized to be granted to each of thepeddent directo
annually from January 1, 2008. Each RSU represenés ADS of the Company, which is equal to five pedy shares. As
December 31, 2009, the 59,994 RSUs have vested7,bl0® RSUs granted on January 1, 2008 to eadheohtlependent directc
vest in batches of 2,500 RSUs each year beginmingaauary 1, 2009. The 7,500 RSUs granted respéctim January 1, 2009 &
2010 to each of the independent director vest ittHes of 1,250 RSUs each half year beginning oy JuR009 and 201
respectively.
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20. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT'D)

The following table summarized the Company’s shgotgon activity under 2006 Option Plan and 2007%&Mhttve Plan:

Weightec-
Weighted- average
average remaining
Number of exercise contractual Aggregate
options price life intrinsic value
(US9) (Years) (US$)
Outstanding, January 1, 20 11,384,80 2.3t 8.2 12,00(
Granted 7,682,301 1.17
Exercisec (175,020 0.9t 122,48
Forfeited (2,907,16) 2.5t
Expired —
Outstanding, December 31, 20 15,984,91 1.7¢ 7.41 3,147,91!
Granted 1,837,50! 1.6¢
Exercisec (1,537,501 1.17 1,324,117
Forfeited (849,35) 1.74
Expired —
Outstanding, December 31, 20 15,435,56! 1.81 6.4< 3,500,31!
Vested and expected to be vested at December 30, 15,435,56! 1.81 6.4% 3,500,31!
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 7,296,55: 2.1C 6.2¢€ 1,088,87.
Weighted-
Number of average grani
options date fair value
(US$)
Unvested, January 1, 20 10,499,79 1.04
Granted 1,837,50! 1.15
Vested (3,598,60) 1.1z
Forfeited (599,689 0.8€
Unvested, December 31, 20 8,139,00! 1.04

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table aboyeasents the total intrinsic value (the aggregé#terdnce between the Company’
closing stock price of US$1.634 per ordinary sheseof December 31, 2010 and the exercise pricénftdre-money options) th.
would have been received by the option holder# ihghe-money options had been exercised on Déezrd1, 2010.

The aggregate fair values of share options thatedesluring 2008, 2009 and 2010, were US$3,673,888$5,597,989 ar
US$4,043,806, respectively. The weighted-averagatgiate fair values of options granted during 2009 200 were US$0.79 a
US$1.13, respectively.
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20. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT'D)

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Coynpanelerated the vesting of 425,000 stock optiohsertain terminate
employees. As a result of that modification, thempany recognized additional compensation expensdRiB3,144,36!
(US$476,419) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The aggregate fair value of the share options andishg as of December 31, 2010 measured basedpectere granttate fair value
was US$20,300,287 and such amount shall be recedjaiz compensation expense using the straightnethod with graded vesti
based on service conditions. Accordingly, RMB23,899 and RMB13,775,555 (US$2,087,205) were recodedompensatic
expense in general and administrative expenses aittorresponding credit to additional paid<capital in the years end
December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, there was US$7,509,80#cognized shareased compensation cost related to share optioith g
expected to be recognized over a weiglaedrage vesting period of 3.99 years. To the extemtactual forfeiture rate is differt
from the current estimate, actual share-based cosapien related to these awards may be differemt the expectation.

The following table summarized the Company’s RStiviag under 2007 Incentive Plan:

Weighted-
Number of average grani
RSUs date fair value
(US$)

Unvested, January 1, 20 137,49t 19.7¢
Granted 52,50( 5.0¢
Vested (143,749 16.2¢
Forfeited — —
Unvested, December 31, 20 46,25( 13.9i
Granted 45,00( 8.0C
Vested (51,250) 13.2¢
Forfeited — —
Unvested, December 31, 20 40,00( 9.47

The aggregate fair value of vested RSUs for 20@92and 2010 measured based on respective gdate- fair values wi
US$800,442, US$1,637,492 and US$627,513, resplctilee aggregate fair value of the unvested RS¥JsfdDecember 31, 20
was US$378,800 based on the quoted market priteeo€ompanys ordinary shares at the respective grant datessach amoul
shall be recognized as compensation expenses tErgiraightine method with graded vesting based on servigcalitions. For th
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, RMB9,40 6y0% RMB4,589,926 (US$695,443) was recorded apensation expens
in general and administrative expenses with a spoeding credit to additional paid-in capital.

As of December 31, 2010, there was US$197,575 afaagnized sharbased compensation cost related to RSUs whichpisate

to be recognized over a weightaderage vesting period of 3.00 years. To the esttenactual forfeiture rate is different from cum
estimate, actual share-based compensation retatbdse awards may be different from the expectatio
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20. SHARE OPTION PLANS (CONT'D)

For stock options granted before January 1, 20@8Bfdir value of each share option grant was estichan the date of grant using
Black-Scholes option pricing model. For share optionsig@ after January 1, 2008, the fair value of emaghrd is estimated on 1
date of grant using a binomial-lattice option véilma model. The binomidiattice model considers characteristics of faiueabptior
pricing that are not available under the Black-$etianodel. Similar to the Black-Scholes model, biromialdattice model take
into account variables such as volatility, dividendld, and risk-free interest rate. However, imifidn, the binomialattice mode
considers the contractual term of the option, tfbdability that the option will be exercised priorthe end of its contractual life, ¢
the probability of termination or retirement of thption holder in computing the value of the optiBor these reasons, the Comg
believes that the binomial-lattice model providefia value for its sharéased compensation plans that is more represental
actual experience and future expected experierarettte value calculated using the Black-Scholesainod

The Company calculated the estimated fair valushafre options on the grant date using the binolaiate model for 2009 ai
2010, respectively, with the following assumptions:

Granted in 2009 Granted in 2010
Risk-free interest rat 1.14%- 3.81% 0.25%- 3.31%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0%
Expected volatility 80% 80%
Suk-optimal early exercise fact 4 time: 3-4 times
Fair value of ordinary shar From US$0.74 to US$1.. From US$1.39 to $2.

Risk-ree interest rate is based on a zero coupon WA hate for the terms consistent with the expelitedf the award at the tin
of grant. Expected dividend yield is determined/iew of the Company historical dividend payout rate. The Companyneste:
expected volatility at the date of grant based @ombination of historical and implied volatilitié#som comparable publicly liste
companies. Forfeiture rate of 0% is estimated basekistorical forfeiture patterns and adjustedetitect future change in facts ¢
circumstances, if any. The swolptimal early exercise factor is determined basedhe expected price multiple at which emplo!
are likely to exercise stock options.

Total compensation expense relating to share optma RSUs recognized for the years ended Decedih@008, 2009 and 201(

as follows:
For the year ended December 3!
2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)

Cost of revenue 3,82t 5,80¢ 7,89¢ 1,19i
Selling expense 3,617 2,25 4,18¢ 634
General and administrative expen 26,41« 33,25: 18,36" 2,782
Research and development exper 97C 1,35¢ 1,51¢ 23C

34,82¢ 42,67 31,96 4,84:
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21. REDEEMABLE ORDINARY SHARES

On January 29, 2008 and concurrently with the cdible bond issuance (see Note 22), the Companyedsnd sold 9,019,6:
ADSs, representing 45,098,055 of the Company’snamyi shares at the par value per share of US$0.0001

The Company is entitled to repurchase any or ahefADSs at par value on any business day aféeemitire principal amount of t
convertible bonds ceases to be outstanding. Sgbksrivill expire one month after the maturity oé tbonvertible bonds. In additic
the holders of the ADSs have the right to requastQompany to repurchase the ADSs at par valueyatirae by giving prior notice
Since the holders have the ability to require #ygurchase of the ADSs, which is outside the comtfaghe Company, the ordina
shares underlying the ADSs have been classifiethezzanine equity. The holders are entitled to wecail cash and nocash
distribution that an ordinary shareholder wouldeiee but such distributions are required to be gmdk to the Company upt
repurchase of the ADSs.

The adoption of ASU 2009-15"Accounting for OwnShare Lending Arrangements in Contemplation of @dible Debt Issuanc
or Other Financing,”on January 1, 2010 revised the Compangtcounting for the redeemable ordinary shares. Tbmpan)
evaluated the redeemable ordinary shares conclyrreith the bonds upon adoption of ASU 2009-and determined that t
redeemable ordinary shares issued qualified asvarsbare lending arrangement because the purpossuainise of the shares was
increase the availability of the Compasyshares and facilitate the ability of the holdershedge the conversion option in -
Companys convertible debt and the Company is entitlecefurchase any or all of the ADSs at par value gnbarsiness day aft
the entire principal amount of the convertible bordases to be outstanding.

Accordingly, the share-lending arrangement uporptido of ASU 200915 is measured at fair value, and recognized dssarance
cost with an offset to redeemable ordinary shaf&dJ) 200945 requires the Company to recognize the cumulafiect of the
change in accounting principle as an adjustmentht® opening balance of retained earnings. An aujeist of US$3,07
(approximately RMB22,000), which represents the ¥ailue that would have been recognized if the guig in ASU 20095 had
been applied from the issuance date on Januar@%8, was recorded on January 1, 2010 to issuaosevath an offset t
redeemable ordinary shares. The redeemable ordistzayes were recorded at a fair value of RMB55,008%$8,333) as ¢
December 31, 2010.

22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On January 29, 2008, the Company issued in aggrggatcipal amount of US$172,500,000 Convertiblai@eNotes (the “Noteg”
due January 15, 2018 to third-party investors (‘“th@ders”). The Notes bear interest at a rate of 3.5% per anmayable oi
January 15 and July 15 of each year, commencintulgnl5, 2008.

The Holder may require the Company to redeem a#l portion of the Notes on January 15, 2015, atice pequal to 100% of tt
principal amount of the Notes to be repurchased plecrued and unpaid interest. The Holder may ragaire the Company -
redeem all or a portion of the Notes at a priceaétpi 100% of principal amount of the Notes to bpurchased plus accrued ¢
unpaid interest upon the occurrence of a fundarhehtange, which is defined as a change in contral termination of trading.

In addition, the Company may redeem part or athefNotes on and after January 20, 2015, at a proal to 100% of the princip

amount of the Notes to be repurchased plus acanddunpaid interest, provided the Compan&DSs trading price meets cert.
conditions.
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22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

At the Holders’ option, the principal amount of tNetes may be converted into the CompamDSs initially at a conversion rate
52.2876 ADSs (equivalent to an initial conversioit® of approximately $19.125 per ADS) per US$1,@ddicipal amount of tt
Notes, at any time prior to maturity. The appli@bbnversion rate will be subject to adjustmergdrtain circumstance

The Notes were initially recorded at the principatount of US$172,500,000. Direct debt issuancescosRMB40,459,198 a
deferred and amortized over the life of the Notesg the effective interest method. For the yeateenDecember 31, 2010,
interest expense for the Notes was approximate\BRM,980,000 (US$18,027,273).

At the commitment date on January 29, 2008, the 2oy evaluated and determined that the redemptidnpat options do n
require bifurcation from the Notes under the regients of ASC 8180 because they are clearly and closely relatédetalebt ho:
instrument.

No beneficial conversion feature was recognizethaseffective conversion price of US$19.125 washbigthan the fair value f
ADS of the Company at the commitment date (Jan28r2008) of US$17.73.

The adoption of ASC 815-40 “Derivatives and Hedging: Contracts in Entity’swd Equity,” on January 1, 2009 revised
Companys accounting for the conversion option of the NofHse Company evaluated the conversion option ef Nlotes upa
adoption of ASC 8130 and determined that the conversion option gedlifor derivative accounting because the convarsjation
if freestanding, is not considered to be indexethéocCompany’s own stock.

Accordingly, the conversion option was bifurcateani the Notes upon adoption of ASC 84G-as a derivative liability at an init
fair value of RMB962,993,000. Changes in fair vatiighe conversion options are recognized throinghstatements of operatic
For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Compacgrded a gain of RMB31,623,000 (US$4,791,364) 9200 loss ¢
RMB73,887,000) resulting from the change in failueaof the conversion option. ASC 848-requires the Company to recognize
cumulative effect of the change in accounting pglecas an adjustment to the opening balance ained earnings. An adjustmen
RMB644,812,000, which represents the cumulativegian remeasurement that would have been recognized gufidance in AS
81540 had been applied from the Notes issuance dafammary 29, 2008, was recorded on January 1, @088cumulated defic
As of December 31, 2010, the conversion optiongciviias been combined with the Notes on the balsimeet, was recorded at a
value of RMB277,566,000 (US$42,055,455) (2009: RM®389,000).

23. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

During the years ended December 31, 2008, 200286, the Group received approximately RMB3,479,0B7,661,000 ar
RMB28,350,000 (US$4,295,455), respectively, in goweent subsidies which were approved by the rele®RC governme
authorities. Government grants included in opegaiimcome were received because the Group quakifies “high technology”
enterprise in Jiangsu Province in the PRC and ttaagain criteria such as increases in the amofioapital investment, net ass
number of employees, sales and tax payments. Goesingrants included in navperating income mainly represented subs
received as reimbursement for interest expenserriedufor imported equipment. The government subsidire not subject
adjustment and do not have any restrictions ahdouse of funds. Accordingly, the full amount oé thubsidies was recorded
“government grants” in 2008, 2009 and 2010, upceif.
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24. INCOME TAXES
Current taxation

The Company is a tasxempt company incorporated in the Cayman Islandscanducts substantially all of its business thtoiis
subsidiaries located in the PRC.

The Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRGabject to PRC enterprise income tax (“Eldf)the taxable income as repol
in their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in acaméavith relevant PRC Income Tax Laws. PursuathéoPRC Income Tax Lav
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to EE statutory rate of 25%.

In March 2005, SolarOne Qidong was granted a 5-geaholiday commencing in 2005 which entitleoigttwoyear EIT exemptia
followed by a three-year 50% reduced EIT rate (‘teliday”). During 2008, SolarOne Qidong received approval fritve PR(
taxation authorities as a “High and New Technol&gyerprise” (‘HNTE”)and obtained an HNTE certificate. In accordancé wit
PRC Income Tax Laws, an enterprise awarded wittHR€E status may enjoy a reduced EIT rate of 15%weler, in the event tr
any of the various provisions of the transitionegfprential enterprise income tax policies, the nawlaw and the implementi
regulations overlap, an enterprise may choose ths&t mdvantageous policy to apply at its sole arsblabe discretion. SolarO
Qidong has chosen to apply the tax holiday for @888 and 2009.

Solar Shanghai, SolarOne Technology, Solar Engimgeand Solar R&D, domestic companies in the P&€,subject to EIT at
rate of 25% for the years ended December 31, 20@810.

In accordance with the new PRC Enterprise Income Oawvs (the “PRC Income Tax Laws8ffective from January 1, 20(
enterprises established under the laws of foreggmiries or regions and whose “place of effectivanagementfs located within th
PRC territory are considered PRC resident enterprggd subject to the PRC income tax at the ragb#f on worldwide incom
The definition of “place of effective managemeasliall refer to an establishment that exercisesubstance, overall management
control over the production and business, perseramdounting, properties, etc. of an enterprise.oA®ecember 31, 2010,
detailed interpretation or guidance has been istudéfine “place of effective managemeridrthermore, as of December 31, 2(
the administrative practice associated with intetipg and applying the concept of “place of effeetmanagement’s unclear. Th
Group has analyzed the applicability of this lawd a&nll continue to monitor the related developmant application.

The PRC Income Tax Laws also impose a 10% withhgl@icome tax for dividends distributed by a foreigvested enterprise to
immediate holding company outside China, which wexempted under the previous income tax law andlaggns. A lowe

withholding tax rate will be applied if there istax treaty arrangement between mainland China @&durisdiction of the foreic
holding company.

(Loss)/ income before income taxes and non-coirigplhterest consists of:

For the year ended December 3.

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’ 000) (RMB’000) (RMB’ 000) (US$000)
Non-PRC 5,562 (468,90) (94,10:) (14,25¢)
PRC (264,96 347,91 1,149,44 174,15¢
(259,399 (120,98) 1,055,34 159,90
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24. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)
Current taxation (cont’d)
The income tax expense is comprised of:

For the year ended December 3!

2008 2009 2010 2010

(RMB’ 000) (RMB’ 000) (RMB’ 000) (US$000)
Current (65,940) (40,37%) (330,03 (50,006)
Deferred 59,42 16,44’ 32,05 4,857
(6,519) (23,929 (297,98) (45,149

The reconciliation of tax computed by applying 8tatutory income tax rate of 25% applicable to P&p@rations to income t
expenses is as follows:

For the year ended December 3.

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)

Income tax computed at the statutory tax rate &6 64,85( 30,247 (263,83) (39,97Y)
Non-deductible expense (2,809 (3,349 (13,56) (2,055
Tax holidays (32,539 28,12 — —
Preferential tax treatme — — 111,24 16,85¢
Research and development expe 1,104 1,92 6,16¢ 934
Tax rate difference (24,87() (53,94) (42,869 (6,495
Deferred tax benefit including change in tax | 2,13( 10,11: 37,39( 5,66¢
Tax credit 16,92: — — —
Unrecognized tax bene — — (116,089 (17,589
Changes in the valuation allowar (31,319 (37,047) (16,437) (2,490

(6,519 (23,929 (297,98)) (45,149

The benefit of the tax holiday per basic and ddutarnings per share is as follows:

For the year ended December 3!

2008 2009 2010 2010

(RMB) (RMB) (RMB) (USS)
Basic — 0.1C — —
Diluted — 0.1C — —
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24. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) reflect the téfeets of temporary differences between the cagyamounts of assets and liabili
for financial reporting purposes and the amounésidsr income tax purposes. The components of defaax assets (liabilities) ¢

as follows:

As of December 31

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Deferred tax assets

Current:

- Tax credit 7,56¢ 7,56¢ 1,143
- Warranty provisior 11,01¢ 32,92: 4,98¢
- Inventory write-off 35,08¢ 25,617 3,881
- Allowance for advance to supplie 63,17( 44,99: 6,817
- Allowance for doubtful accoun 627 93¢ 142
- Idle capacity cos 3,271 — —
- Sales ct-off 4,35¢ 12,03: 1,82:
- Other 2,44: 9,64( 1,46(
Valuation allowanct (64,430) (42,095 (6,37¢)
Net current deferred tax ass 63,11¢ 91,61: 13,88(
Non-current:

- Pre-operating expenst 75k — —
- Tax losse 3,592 42,38( 6,421
- Fixed asset 13,53: 17,25¢ 2,61
- Long-term deferred expens 194 18C 27
- Other 16 14 2
Valuation allowanct (4,307) (43,077 (6,52€)
Net nor-current deferred tax asst 13,78¢ 16,75¢ 2,53¢

Deferred tax liabilities:

Non-current:

- Land use right 26,56¢ 25,97. 3,93¢
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie 26,56¢ 25,977 3,93¢

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax @stbe Group has considered whether it is mordylikhannot that some portion
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realiZElde ultimate realization of deferred tax assetdépendent upon the generatio
future taxable income during the periods in whichse temporary differences become deductible. Tiw@srecords a valuati
allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to a netiainthat management believes is more-likely-thanef being realizable based
the weight of all available evidence.
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24. INCOME TAXES (CONT'D)

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the Group hast d4ar operating loss from its n®tRC subsidiaries of RMB14,206,000 .
RMB167,355,000, respectively which starts to expir2029.

As of December 31, 2010, the Group intends to peemtly reinvest the undistributed earnings fronfat®ign subsidiaries to fu
future operations. The amount of unrecognized defetax liabilities for temporary differences reldtto investments in forei
subsidiaries is not determined because such andieiion is not practicable.

Uncertain Tax Positions

As of December 31, 2010, the Grosipinrecognized tax benefit is RMB143,473,000 (US$&24,333). During 2010, the Grc
recorded a provision of RMB116,088,000 (US$17,588)0or an unrecognized tax benefit related to Sate Qidong due to tl
uncertainty as to whether this subsidiary would heeetain requirements during its annual ssléessment in order to be eligible
the reduced EIT rate of 15%. The remaining RMB2%,380 (US$4,149,242) of the unrecognized tax benefs related to its Hol
Kong subsidiary, which based on the facts and nistances, including, notably, the uncertainty of thterpretation of ar
administrative practices associated with the applee PRC Income Tax Law as of December 31, 201§,beaconsidered a PRC
resident.

It is possible that the amount accrued will chaimgthe next 12 months as a result of new interpeeguidance released by the F
tax authorities; however, an estimate of the rasfghe possible change cannot be made at this filme unrecognized tax benefits
ultimately recognized, will impact the effectivextate. Reconciliation of accrued unrecognizediemefits is as follows:

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Beginning balanc 27,38t 27,38t 4,14¢
Incurred during the yet — 116,08t 17,58¢
Ending balanci 27,38t 143,47: 21,73¢

Based on existing PRC tax regulations, the taxoperof SolarOne Qidong, Solar Shanghai, SolarOmd@ogy, Solar R&D, ar
Solar Engineering for the years ended DecembeRB@6 to December 31, 2010 remain open to poteexamination by the t
authorities. The tax periods for the Company’s P& subsidiariedfor the years ended December 31, 2006 to Decenihe2(R.(
also remain open to potential examination by tispeetive tax authorities.
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Name and Relationship with Related Parti

Name of related part

Relationship with the Grou

Linyang Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Linyang Electroniys

Huaerli (Nantong) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Huaerlabtong”)**

Qidong Huahong Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Qidong Huay**

Nantong Huahong Ecological Gardening Co., L“Nantong
Huahon(")*/**

Nantong Linyang Electric Power Investment Co., I(‘Nantong
Linyanc")**

Hong Kong Huaerli Trading Co., Ltd. (“Hong Kong Hark")**

Shanghai Linyang Electronics Technology Co., Ltdinfyang
Technolog”)**

Qidong Jiaotong Engineering Co., Ltd. (“JiaotongiBeering”)**

Nantong Linyang Labor Service Compar“Linyang Labor Servicef**

Q-Cells International GmbH (“QCI")**

Q-Cells SE (“Q-Cells™)**

Ya An Yongwang Silicon Co., Ltd. (“Ya An")

SMIC Energy Technology (Shanghai) Corporation (“SMET”)

Semiconductor Manufacturing International (Shang&airporation
(“SMIC Shanghai”)

Hanwha Chemical Corporation (“Hanwha Chemical”)

Hanwha L&C Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Hanwha C§

*  Previously known as Nantong Linyang Ecological Gt Co., Ltd.

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdgthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdkthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdkthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdgthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdgthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdkthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdgthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdgthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdkthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdkthe
Company

Controlling owner is also a significant shareholdgthe
Company

A wholly owned subsidiary of HongKong YongWang
Silicon Investment Co., Ltd., whose controlling awn
is Hanwha Chemics

A wholly owned subsidiary of Semiconductor
Manufacturing International Corporation (“SMIC")
where David N.K. Wang, one of the Company’s
independent directors, serves as president anél chie
executive officel

A wholly owned subsidiary of SMIC where David N.K.
Wang, one of the Company’s independent directors,
serves as president and chief executive of

Holding company of Hanwha Solar, a significant
shareholder of the Compa

A wholly owned subsidiary of Hanwha Chemical, the
holding company of Hanwha Solar, a significant
shareholder of the Compa

**  Subsequent to the completion of share transferemtegnber 16, 2010 (Note 27), these companies céadedrelated parties

the Group
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
Significant Related Party Transactior
The Group had the following significant relatedtpdransactions and balances during the periodsepted:

For the year ended December 3!

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¢000)

Advance paid to the related par

-Ya An — — 367,61 55,70(

- Hanwha Chemice — — 7,67¢ 1,162
Purchase of raw materials fro|

-Ya An 7,43¢ 9,60( 339,12 51,38:

- Linyang Electronics * 39,15¢ 33,12« 79,18" 11,99¢

-SMIC ET — — 4,60z 697

- Hanwha Chemice — — 1,88: 28t

- Hanwha L&C — — 1,14z 17z

- Nantong Huahong 58 — — —
Purchase of services frol

- SMIC Shangha — — 1,801 273

- Linyang Electronics — 2,33t 68C 10z

- Qidong Huahong — 2,80( — —

- Nantong Huahong 444 642 — _

- Linyang Labor Service 1,80: 2,20t 88¢ 13t
Purchase of fixed assets fro

-SMIC ET — — 33,66: 5,10(C

- Linyang Electronics * 2,37¢ 567 1,51(C 22¢

- Nantong Huahong 314 — 99C 15C

- Jiaotong Engineering 61F — — —
Sales of products tt

- Q-Cells * — — 442,83. 67,09¢

-QCI* — 336,48! 32,92« 4,98¢
Loans from:

- Hong Kong Huaerli *’ 64,66¢ — — —
Loan interest

- Hong Kong Huaerli *’ 1,38¢ — — —

- Nantong Linyang * 137 — — —
Expenses incurred in relation to guarantee provige:

- Linyang Electronics * 10,06 — — —
Buildings leased from

- Linyang Electronics 6,08¢ 3,93 2,85¢ 43¢

- Qidong Huahong — — 1,36¢ 207

- SMIC Shangha — — 1,22¢ 18€
Purchase of SolarOne Technology frc

- Nantong Linyang * 133,45. — — —

Disposal of an associate to the related pi



- Linyang Technology * 20C - — _

*  Subsequent to the completion of share transferemteghber 16, 2010 (Note 27), these companies céadedrelated parties
the Group. Therefore, the above transaction fo02iHly included transactions from January 1, 2@18dptember 16, 201
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
Balances with Related Partie
As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, balances witlteélparties are comprised of the following:

As of December 31

2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Amount due from related partie
-Ya An — 22,02: 3,337
- Hanwha Chemice — 5,79¢ 87¢
- Linyang Electronics * 36¢ — —
-QCl * 12,02: — —
- Linyang Labor Service 67 — —
12,45¢ 27,81¢ 4,21¢
Amount due from related parties, 1-current portion
-Ya An — 15,00( 2,27:
Amount due to related partie
-Ya An — 8,52¢ 1,29
- SMIC Shangha — 3,51¢ 532
- Hanwha L&C — 1,147 173
- Linyang Electronics * 15,87¢ — —
- Nantong Huahong 421 — —
- Linyang Labor Service 46E — —
16,76¢ 13,18: 1,99i

*  Subsequent to the completion of share transferemre®nber 16, 2010 (Note 27), these companies aseddo be related pari
to the Group. Therefore, the above balances witlta@ parties as of December 31, 2010 did not deckthe amount due from
them.

The weighted-average balances due from relategepamd due to related parties are analyzed aswvsll

For the year ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Weightec-average balance due from related par
- Q-Cells — — 58,94: 8,93(
-Ya An — — 14,30: 2,167
- QCI — 14,92° 4,62¢ 701
- Hanwha Chemice — — 1,15¢ 17€
- Linyang Labor Servic — 13 81C 122
- Linyang Electronic: 5 964 92 14
- Qidong Huahon — — 28 4
- Nantong Huahon — — 21 3
- SMIC Shangha — — 1 —
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25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)
Balances with Related Parties (ccd)
The weighted-average balances due from relatetepamd due to related parties are analyzed asvsl{cont’d):

For the year ended December 3!

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¢000)
Weightec-average balance due to related par
- Linyang Electronic: 6,107 10,07¢ 19,82¢ 3,00¢
-Ya An — — 11,48( 1,73¢
- QCI — — 5,22 791
- SMIC Shangha — — 2,25¢ 34z
-SMIC ET — — 1,61¢ 24t
- Linyang Labor Servic 192 432 1,19¢ 182
- Nantong Huahon 30t 31¢ 701 10€
- Hanwha L&C — — 22¢ 35
- Qidong Huahony — — 15¢ 24
- Nantong Linyanc¢ 15,401 6,67: — —
- Hong Kong Huaerl 14,60¢ — — —
- Jiaotong Engineerin 244 16C — —
- Others 13C — — —

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, all balances vathted parties were unsecured, mueresting bearing and repayable
demand.

26. EMPLOYEE DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Full-time employees of the Compasysubsidiaries in the PRC patrticipate in a goveninmandated defined contribution p
pursuant to which certain pension benefits, mediaa®, unemployment insurance, employee housind & other welfare benet
are provided to employees. Chinese labor regulatiequire that the PRC subsidiaries of the Compaale contributions to tl
government for these benefits based on 41% of t@ayees’ salaries on a monthly basis. The Gr®WRRC subsidiaries have
legal obligation for the benefits beyond the cdmttions made. The total amounts for such emplogeefits, which were expens
as incurred, were approximately RMB18,686,000, REIBR2,000 and RMB52,369,000 (US$7,934,697) for years ende
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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27. SHARE ISSUANCE AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENT

On August 3, 2010, a major shareholder of the Cawpp@ood Energies Investments (Jersey) Limited ¢éGBnergies”entered int
a Share Purchase Agreement (the “GE Sales AgreBmeith Hanwha Chemical, a Korean Company, pursuanvhach Goot
Energies agreed to sell its 81,772,950 ordinaryeshand 1,281,011 ADSs to Hanwha Chemical. Conetlyrevith the execution «
the GE Sales Agreement, Hanwha Chemical entered (in Share Purchase Agreement with the Compéry ‘{ssuer Sale
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell tovHanChemical 36,455,089 ordinary shares and (Bhart
Purchase Agreement with Yonghua Solar Power Investridolding Ltd. (“Yonghua”)pursuant to which Yonghua agreed to se
Hanwha Chemical 38,634,750 ordinary shares (thenfjfioa Sales Agreement’Manwha Chemical subsequently assigned
transferred to Hanwha Solar, a wholly owned subsjdof Hanwha Chemical, its rights and obligatiansder the Issuer Sa
Agreement, the GE Sales Agreement and the Yonghles &greement. In connection with the transactitemwha Solar request
the Company to issue 45,080,019 new ordinary shatrger value of US$0.0001 per share in a Shawats® and Repurchs
Agreement (“Share Issuance and Repurchase Agre&ment

Pursuant to the GE Sales Agreement and the Yon§hales Agreement, Hanwha Solar paid cash considarafi approximatel
US$202 million and US$90 million to Good EnergiesdaYonghua, respectively. Concurrently, pursuantttte Issuer Sal
Agreement, the Company received net proceeds abaippately US$76 million for the issuance of 36,489 ordinary shares. (
September 16, 2010, the respective parties to Eh&&les Agreement, the Issuer Sales Agreementhandanghua Sales Agreem
consummated the purchase and sale of the ordihargs and ADSs contemplated thereby. As a resalid@&nergies and Yongh
ceased to own any ordinary shares or ADSs of thragaay as of September 16, 2010.

The Company recorded the shares issued in the $$swance and Repurchase Agreement with Hanwha Ssla liability ir
accordance ASC 480-1DAccounting for Certain Financial Instruments wi@haracteristics of both Liabilities and Equityas ther
is an unconditional obligation that requires therpany to redeem the shares by transferring assatsl@erminable date at the
value per share of US$0.0001. As of December 3102the Company has issued 30,672,689 ordinanestarHanwha Solar a
recorded a liability of RMB20,554 (US$3,114) in ethcurrent liabilities in connection with the Shdssuance and Repurch
Agreement.

28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Acquisition of machineries

As of December 31, 2010, the Group had commitmeftapproximately RMB426,394,000 (US$64,605,152)ated to th
acquisition of machineries. The commitment for asitjon of machineries is expected to be settlehiwithe next twelve months.
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28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONT'D)
Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into leasing arrangemerasnglto office premises and other facilities the¢ classified as operating lea
Future minimum lease payments for non-cancelabdeatimg leases as of December 31, 2010 are asvillo

As of December 31, 201

(RMB’000) (US$000)
Year 2011 9,141 1,38t
Year 2012 3,61¢ 547
Year 2013 1,00( 152
Year 2014 and thereaft — —
Total 13,75¢ 2,08¢

The terms of the leases do not contain rent escalat contingent rent.
Purchase of raw material
The commitments related to framework contractsuieipase raw materials as of December 31, 2010sdalaws:

As of December 31, 201

(RMB’000) (US$000)

Year 2011 1,848,36. 280,05!
Year 2012 945,39! 143,24
Year 2013 818,89: 124,07-
Year 2014 874,08. 132,43
Year 2015 710,94¢ 107,71¢
Year 2016 and thereaft — —

5,197,67 787,52

The above listing of amounts and timing of purckam® based on managemeriiest estimate using existing terms in the framk
contracts, as amended or supplemented. To thetdakieterms of the contracts are revised througjoti@ion or agreement betwe
the Group and its suppliers, the amount or timihguschases could change.
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28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONT'D)
Arbitration with LDK

On June 8, 2009, LDK, one of the Companwiajor silicon suppliers, submitted an arbitratiequest to the Shanghai Arbitrat
Commission alleging that the Company failed andtiooes to fail to perform under the terms of a ayliar framework supp
agreement, seeking to enforce the Compamgrformance and claiming monetary relief. Dele®mof silicon under the agreem
halted in early 2009 and have not recommenced.(drapany intended to continue to vigorously defemdli against the clair
brought by LDK and, on July 9, 2009, the Companpnsitted an arbitration request to the Shanghai thation Commissio
requesting that LDK refund the outstanding prepaysef RMB104 million that the Company made undweg tontract, plt
compensation of RMB35 million from LDK for estimdtéosses incurred as a result of the stoppageliviedies under the framewc
supply agreement.

The LDK arbitration process is ongoing and it isrently not possible to determine with reasonaldgainty if an unfavorab
outcome will result. Additionally, the magnitudeandy potential loss cannot be reasonably estimated.

Arbitration with Sonnenzins

During 2010, one of the subsidiaries of the GrdamlarOne Qidong, received an arbitration complainthich one of its custome
German Sonnenzins Solar GmbH (“Sonnenziralligged that SolarOne Qidong defaulted on deliailgations and, thus, claim
for compensation of approximately Euro2,262,000cmmpensatory damages resulting from late deliv@onnenzins had, previc
to the claim, delayed payments to SolarOne Qidondvfo shipments that it had received under a eghtoetween the parties. A
result of the delayed payments, on May 3, 2010ar&bhie Qidong issued a correspondence letter to e®ams to terminate tl
contract, which Sonnenzins acknowledged. As siiehCompany believes that an unfavorable outcormeniste.

29. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group operates in a single business segmemthvid the development, manufacturing, and sal®\éfrelated products. Tl
following table summarizes the Group’s net revertmegeographic region based on the location ottleomers:

For the year ended December 31,

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Germany 2,637,43. 2,668,47 4,706,76 713,14¢
The PRC 329,15: 177,47¢ 591,14 89,567
Italy 119,27: 4,44¢ 572,42( 86,73(
Australia 32,58¢ 177,63 407,26: 61,70¢
USA 5,97¢ 17,30¢ 436,74 66,17
The Czech Republi — 245,81« 165,90¢ 25,137
Spain 1,246,30! 37,32¢ 131,16¢ 19,87«
Others 578,33¢ 449,83: 515,58: 78,11¢
Total net revenu 4,949,06! 3,778,311 7,526,99: 1,140,45.

All the long-lived assets of the Group are locatethe PRC.
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29. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT'D)

The Group has one customer that accounted for 10%oce of total net revenue as follows:

For the year ended December 3’

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’ 000) (RMB’ 000) (RMB’ 000) (US$000)
Customer A 1,099,731 1,562,88: 2,526,51; 382,80

30. INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share &mheperiod presented are calculated as followgh@usands, except per sk

amounts):
For the year ended December 3!
2008 2009 2010 2010
RMB RMB RMB uUsS$

Numerator:
Income (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders

basic (280,49) (145,22) 757,35 114,75:
Interest expense of convertible bonds and chanégrir

value of conversion feature of convertible bo — — 87,35] 13,23¢
Income (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders

diluted (280,49) (145,22) 844,71 127,98
Denominator:
Number of shares outstanding, oper 240,599,24 268,745,29 289,087,58 289,087,58
Weighted-average number of shares issued during 1

year 11,293,94 4,826,49. 21,236,34 21,236,34
Conversion of convertible bon — 4,63( — —
New ordinary shares issued in connection with gge

of options and vesting of RSl 766,42¢ 491,33t 939,37: 939,37:
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding —

basic 252,659,61 274,067,76 311,263,30 311,263,30
Stock options and RSUs granted in connection wai¢h

stock option plal — — 917,77¢ 917,77¢
Shares to be issued upon the conversion of cobleerti

bonds — — 45,091,51 45,091,51
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding —

diluted 252,659,61 274,067,76 357,272,60 357,272,60
Basic net income (loss) per shi RMB (1.17) RMB (0.5% RMB 2.42 US§ 0.37
Diluted net income (loss) per shs RMB (1.17) RMB (0.5 RMB 2.3€ US§ 0.3€

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2B0&0Zompany issued 2,200,000 and 1,500,000 ordstaaxes, respectively,
its share depository bank which have been and suifitinue to be used to settle stock option awamts uheir exercise. M
consideration was received by the Company for isssiance of ordinary shares. These ordinary shamedegally issued al
outstanding but are treated as escrowed sharexéounting purposes and, therefore, have beendsdalfrom the computation
earnings per share. Any ordinary shares not us#tkisettlement of stock option awards will be medd to the Company.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 200%ctleatial dilutive effect in relation to the stooktions, unvested RSUs ¢
convertible bonds were excluded as they have a-dilutive effect. The redeemable shares have beeluésd in both basic a



diluted net income (loss) per share as they aremiitted to the earnings of the Company.
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31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Effective January 1, 2008, the Group adopted ASG-B2 “ Fair Value Measurements,ivhich defines fair value, establishe
framework for measuring fair value and expandsldgsoes about fair value measurements. Althoughatteption of ASC 8200
did not impact the Group’s financial condition, uks of operations, or cash flows, ASC 8P0+equires additional disclosures tc
provided on fair value measurements.

ASC 820-10 establishes a three-tier fair valuednary, which prioritizes the inputs used in measyfair value as follows:
Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedgsi(unadjusted) for identical assets or liabgitireactive markets

Level 2 — Include other inputs that are directhiratirectly observable in the marketplace

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs which are supportetittle or no market activity

ASC 82040 describes three main approaches to measurinfaithealue of assets and liabilities: (1) markppeoach; (2) incon
approach; and (3) cost approach. The market aplproses prices and other relevant information geeeéritom market transactic
involving identical or comparable assets or lidigii. The income approach uses valuation technituesnvert future amounts t
single present value amount. The measurement edbais the value indicated by current market expiects about those futu
amounts. The cost approach is based on the amuatnwobuld currently be required to replace an asset

Foreign currency and commodity derivatives aresifiesl within Level 2 because they are valued usimgdels utilizing mark
observable and other inputs.

The fair value of the conversion option of convaddi bonds as of December 31, 2010 was estimateedbas the followin

assumptions:

Risk-free interest rat 2.72%
Time to maturity 7.04 year
Expected volatility 80%
Comparable yield to maturit 5.32%
Fair value of ordinary shari Us$ 1.63¢
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31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarring basis are summarized below:

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2010 usir

Quoted prices ir Significant
active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs Total fair value at
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) December 31, 201
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000;  (US$000)
Cash and cash equivalel
-Time deposi 1,630,77 — — 1,630,77 247,08
- Restricted cas 100,49( — — 100,49( 15,22¢
Foreign currency/commodity
derivatives
- Financial assel — 7,48¢ — 7,48¢ 1,13¢
- Financial liabilities — 8,04 — 8,04 1,21¢
Conversion option of convertible
bonds — — 277,56t 277,56t 42,05¢

The following is a reconciliation of the liabilisemeasured at fair value on a recurring basis usigugificant unobservable inpi
(Level 3) for the years ended December 31, 2002840.

Conversion option o
convertible bonds

(RMB’000)

Balance as of January 1, 2C 235,31
Conversion of convertible bon 9)
Realized or unrealized lo 73,88
Net purchases, issuances and settlen —
Transfers in and/or out of Level —
Balance as of December 31, 2( 309,18t
Realized or unrealized ga (31,627
Net purchases, issuances and settlenr

Transfers in and/or out of Level —
Balance as of December 31, 2( 277,56¢

The amount of realized or unrealized gain/loss@uided in the consolidated statements of opemtinrfChanges in fair value
conversion feature of convertible bonds.”

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Pursuant to the Share Issuance and Repurchasendgmeé¢Note 27), on March 10, 2011, the Companyissised the remainil
14,407,330 ordinary shares to Hanwha Solar. Acagigj an amount of RMB9,446 was recorded in otherent liabilities.

F-50




Table of Contents

HANWHA SOLARONE CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010 AND
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED DEMBER 31, 2010

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONT’D)

On April 15, 2011, the Group established two subsigls, Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) Co., Ltd. (“SOla@ Nantong”and Nanton
Hanwha Import & Export Co., Ltd. (“Nantong Hanwl&B"). The registered capital of SolarOne Nantong and diapHanwha 1&1
is US$40,000,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively. ofisApril 14, 2011, Nantong Hanwha I&E received gai capital o
RMB5,000,000 in cash. As of May 4, 2011, SolarOramtdng received paiih capital of US$8,000,000 in cash and the redtlve
paid within two years from the date of busineserige. The principal activity of SolarOne Nantongoisievelop, manufacture ¢
sell PV products to both domestic and overseamests. Nantong Hanwha I&E is mainly engaged in irhpoad export busine:
Both subsidiaries are 100% owned by the Group amd@rmant as of June 3, 2011.

33. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Under PRC laws and regulations, the CompsrBRC subsidiaries are restricted in their abilitytransfer their net assets to
Company in the form of dividend payments, loansadvances. As determined pursuant to PRC geneaattgpted accounti
principles, net assets of the Compani’RC subsidiaries (excluding subsidiaries withamtumulated losses) which are restri
from transfer amounted to RMB3,012,268,000 (US$464,242) as of December 31, 2010.

Balance Sheet

As of December 31,

Note 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalel 5,59: 27,80¢ 4,21z
Other receivable 3,187 3,46¢ 52t
Deferred expense 10€ 294 45
Amount due from subsidiarie b 2,728,94: 4,196,86. 635,88t
Derivative contract 5,87¢ — —
Total current asse 2,743,71. 4,228,42! 640,67
Non-current assets:
Long-term deferred expens c 31,39: 25,68’ 3,892
Investment in subsidiarie a 723,25 1,679,95! 254,53¢
Total nor-current asset 754,65 1,705,64 258,43
Total assets 3,498,36! 5,934,07! 899,10:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Other payable d 21,46" 20,82¢ 3,15¢
Derivative contract — 8,047 1,21¢
Amount due to subsidiarie b 6,53¢ 23,45’ 3,55¢
Total current liabilities 28,00 52,33: 7,92¢
Non-current liabilities:
Convertible bond: 658,65: 687,43! 104,15
Total nor-current liabilities 658,65! 687,43! 104,15

Total liabilities 686,65¢ 739,76 112,08t
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33. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  (CONT'D)

As of December 31

Note 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)

Redeemable ordinary share(par value US$0.0001 pel

share; 45,098,055 shares issued and outstanding a

December 31, 2009 and 20 55 55 8
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares (par value US$0.0001 per share;

500,000,000 shares authorized; 290,708,739 shac:

420,645,432 shares issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectiv 227 314 48
Additional paic-in capital 2,331,79 3,956,95: 599,53
Retained earning 479,62¢ 1,236,98! 187,42.

Total shareholde’ equity 2,811,65: 5,194,25; 787,00¢

Total liabilities, redeemable ordinary shares anc

shareholders’ equity 3,498,36! 5,934,07! 899,10:

Statements of Operatior

For the year ended December 31,

Note 2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US¢$000)

Net revenue: — — — —
Cost of revenue — — — —
Gross loss — — — —
Operating expense (11,54%) (22,969 (7,822 (1,185
Operating loss (11,549 (22,969 (7,8272) (1,18
Share of (loss) profit from subsidiari (232,41)) 21,25« 924,74( 140,11.
Interest incom 23 4 5 1
Interest expens (43,39Y) (98,06¢) (118,980() (18,027
Changes in fair value of derivative

contracts 71,67 30,50¢ 7,082 1,07:
Changes in fair value of conversion

feature of convertible bonc — (73,887) 31,62 4,791
Exchange losse (64,830) (2,069) (79,29)) (12,019)
Income (loss) before tay (280,49) (145,22) 757,35 114,75:
Income tax expens — — — —
Net loss (280,49) (145,22) 757,35 114,75:

Net income (loss) attributable to
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.
shareholders (280,49 (145,22) 757,35 114,75:
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33. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  (CONT'D)

Statements of Cash Flow

For the year ended December 3’

2008 2009 2010 2010
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (US$000)
Net cash used in operating activit (19,326 (6,407) (9,917) (1,507)
Net cash used in investing activit| (1,642,641 (134,059 (1,602,24) (242,76¢)
Net cash provided by financing activiti 1,665,48! 135,92( 1,634,37 247,63.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 3,52( (4,540 22,21¢ 3,36¢
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 6,61: 10,13 5,59: 847
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 10,13 5,59: 27,80¢ 4,21

Notes to the Financial Statements of the Comps

(a) Basis of presentation

In the Company-only financial statements, the Camjminvestment in subsidiaries is stated at cost plysty in undistribute
earnings of subsidiaries since inception or actjaisi The Companynly financial statements should be read in cortjonowith the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

The Company records its investment in its subsieBaunder the equity method of accounting as piesgrin ASC 323-10, “
Investmen-Equity Method and Joint VenturgsSuch investment is presented on the balance stasetinvestment in subsidiaries
and share of the subsidiaries’ profit or loss dsa® of (loss) profit from subsidiaries” on thetstaents of operations.

The subsidiaries did not pay any dividends to tben@any for the periods presented.

Certain information and footnote disclosures nolyniacluded in financial statements prepared inoadance with US GAAP ha
been condensed or omitted.

(b) Related party transactions and balances

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010Cdhgpany made advances to its subsidiaries amautdirapproximatel
RMB2,728,948,000 and RMB4,196,861,000 (US$635,888,0respectively. During the same period, a sudsicdbf the Compar
paid operating expenses amounting to approxim&&iB6,538,000 and RMB23,457,000 (US$3,554,091),aetyely, on behalf «
the Company.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, all balances vathted parties were unsecured, mueresting bearing and repayable
demand.
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33.ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (CO NT'D)

Notes to the Financial Statements of the Compé(cont’d)

(c) Long-term deferred expenses

The longterm deferred expenses as of December 31, 2010ynmadtuded the cost related to issuance of coiibvierbonds (Note 2.
to be amortized over 10 years using the effectiterést method. These issuance costs have beawedcas “Longerm deferre
expenses.As of December 31, 2010, the unamortized cost$el the issuance of convertible bonds amourdeapproximatel
RMB25,664,000 (US$3,888,485).

(d) Other payables

As of December 31, 2010, other payables mainlyuthetl interest payable to holders of the convertitdads of approximate
RMB18,434,000 (US$2,793,030).

(e) Commitments

The Company did not have any significant commitraentlongterm obligations, other than the convertible boradsof any of th
periods presented.

(f) Convenience translation
Amounts in United States dollars are presentedh®iconvenience of the reader and are translaténd aoon buying rate of US$1
to RMB6.6000 on December 31, 2010 in the City ofvN¥ork for cable transfers of Renminbi as certiffed customs purposes

the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. No represiemtas made that the Renminbi amounts could hasenpor could b
converted into United States dollars at such rate.
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Exhibit 1.3
Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”)

WE, on behalf of Maples Corporate Services LimitellEREBY CERTIFY THAT the following Resolutions wepassed by tt
shareholders of the Company on 21 February 2011:

The following RESOLUTION is passed as an ordina@gotution:

that the authorized share capital of the Companyndeased from US$50,000 divided into 500,000,6fbnary shares
a par value of US$0.0001 each to US$100,000 dividexl1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of a par vaiuelS$0.000
each by the creation of an additional 500,000,0@Mary shares with a par value of US$0.0001 eagdfartk part passu
all respects with the existing ordinary shares.




The following RESOLUTION is passed as a speciabligin:

that the Amended and Restated Memorandum and éstimi Association of the Company currently in effee amende
as follows:

1) references to “Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltds the name of the company shall be replaced ®remdes t
“Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd.” wherever they appeahénMemorandum and Articles of Association;

2) references to “Companies Law (2004 Revisionglishe replaced by references to “Companies Lawl@§2Revision )"
wherever they appear in the Memorandum and Artiafesssociation;

3) Clause 1 of the memorandum of Association israted to “The name of the Company is Hanwha Sola@melLtd.”;

4) Clause 2 of the Memorandum of Association is rashed to The Registered Office of the Company shall be &
offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited PBOx 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, K¥1I04, Cayman Islanc
or at such other place as the Directors may frome tio time decide.”;

5) Clause 5 of the Memorandum of Association is reoleed to The authorized share capital of the Compar
US$100,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shaf a nominal of par value of US$0.0001 each. Cbhmpany he
the power to redeem or purchase any of its shar@saincrease or reduce the said capital subgettte provisions of tt
Companies Law (2010 Revision) and the Articles skdciation and to issue any part of its capitaletiver origina
redeemed or increased with or without any prefezepdority or special privilege or subject to guystponement of riglr
or to any conditions or restrictions and so thaésmthe conditions of issue shall otherwise exgbyeteclare every issue
shares whether declared to be preference or otbeshiall be subject to the powers hereinbeforeagued.”;

6) the definition of “Company” in Article 1 of th&rticles of Association is amended to “Hanwha SOlae Co., Ltd.”;and

7) Article 3 of the Articles of Association is antrd to The authorised share capital of the Company is 088D(
divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary share of a m@hor par value of US$0.0001 each (“ORDINARY SHARE"




The following RESOLUTION is passed as a speciabligin:

that in order to facilitate the Compansyfinancing options for its growth and expansiontjdde 4 of the Articles of Associatic
be deleted in its entirety and replaced by thefaithg:

“Subject to applicable law, rules, regulations, Nesdaq Rules and the relevant provisions, if anythe Memorandum a
these Articles and to any direction that may besgitey the Company in a general meeting and witheejudice to any spec
rights previously conferred on the holders of érgstShares, the Directors may allot, issue, gratibas, rights or warrants o\
or otherwise dispose of Shares of the Companyugdicy fractions of a Share) with or without preéety deferred, qualified
other special rights or restrictions, whether wihard to dividend, voting, return of capital ohertwise and to such persons
such times and on such other terms as they thiogpr The Company shall not issue Shares in béznmat”

/sl Maples and Calder

Maples and Calder

10 March 2011

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRNE AND CORRECT COPY

SIG. /s/ Melanie E. Rivers-Woods

Melanie E. Rivers-Woods
Assistant Registrar

Date 10, March 2011




THE COMPANIES LAW (2004 REVISION)
OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
OF
SOLARFUN POWER HOLDINGS CO., LTD.
(Adopted by Special Resolution passed on 18 Deae2diBé and effective on 26 December 2006)
1. The name of the CompanySslarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd.
2. The Registered Office of the Company shall béhatoffices of M&C Corporate Services Limited, PBbx 309 GT, Uglan
House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand @ay@ayman Islands, or at such other place asitleetbrs may from time

time decide.

3. The objects for which the Company is establishredunrestricted and the Company shall have @wlgr and authority to carry ¢
any object not prohibited by the Companies Law B@vision) or as the same may be revised from tintene, or any other law
the Cayman Islands.

4. The liability of each Member is limited to thmaunt from time to time unpaid on such Member'sr8ka

5. The authorised share capital of the Company9$30,000 divided into 500,000,000 ordinary shafes wominal or par value
US$0.0001 each. The Company has the power to redegmrchase any of its shares and to increaseduce the said capi
subject to the provisions of the Companies Law f2B@vision) and the Articles of Association andssue any part of its capit
whether original, redeemed or increased with ohatit any preference, priority or special privilegesubject to any postponemen
rights or to any conditions or restrictions andtlsat unless the conditions of issue shall othengigaressly declare every issue
shares whether declared to be preference or otbeshiall be subject to the powers hereinbeforeacued.

6. The Company has the power to register by wagonitinuation as a body corporate limited by shaneder the laws of ai
jurisdiction outside the Cayman Islands and to éegistered in the Cayman Islan

7. Capitalised terms that are not defined in thiseAded and Restated Memorandum of Associationtheasame meaning as th
given in the Articles of Association of the Company

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY

SIG. /s/ D. EVADNE EBANKS

D. EVADNE EBANKS
Assistant Registrar

Date. 11th Januaury — 2007




THE COMPANIES LAW (2004 REVISION)
OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
SOLARFUN POWER HOLDINGS CO., LTD.
(Adopted by Special Resolution passed on 18 Deae2iBé and effective on 26 December 2006)

1. In these Articles Table A in the Schedule to tiaav does not apply and, unless there is sometinintpe subject or conte
inconsistent therewith,

“ ADS " means an American Depositary Share, each reptingdive Ordinary Shares.

“ affiliate ” of a specified person means a person who, directipdirectly through one or more intermediariesntcols, it
controlled by, or is under common control with, lsgpecified person.

“ Articles " means these Articles as originally framed orrasniftime to time altered by Special Resolution.
“ Audit Committee ” shall mean the audit committee established punisteaArticle 108.

“ Auditors " means the persons for the time being performimgduties of auditors of the Company (if any).
“ Board " means the Board of the Directors of the Company.

“ the Chairman " shall mean the Chairman presiding at any meatingembers or of the Board.

“ Company” means Solarfun Power Holdings Co., Ltd.

“ Compensation Committee’ means the compensation committee establishedipatso Article 108.

“

control ” (including the terms “controlled by ” and “ under common control with ”) means the possession, directl
indirectly, or as trustee or executor, of the poteedirect or cause the direction of the manageraedtpolicies of a person, whet
through the ownership of voting securities, aste@®r executor, by contract or credit arrangeroentherwise.

“ debenture” means debenture stock, mortgages, bonds and aey ©atbh securities of the Company whether constid
charge on the assets of the Company or not.




“ Directors " means the directors for the time being of the @any.
“ dividend " includes interim dividends and bonus dividends.
“ Electronic Record” has the same meaning as in the Electronic TraiosecLaw (2003 Revision).

“ Family Member " means a persog’spouse, parents, children and siblings, whethdildnd, marriage or adoption or any:
residing in such person’s home.

“ Independent Director ” shall mean a Director who is an independent direasodefined in the NASD Manual & Notices
Members as amended from time to time.

“ the Law " shall mean the Companies Law (2004 Revision) hef €Cayman Islands and any amendments thereto or re-
enactments thereof for the time being in force iactlides every other law incorporated therewitlsudostituted therefor.

“ Member " shall bear the same meaning as in the Law.

“ Memorandum " means the memorandum of association of the Comasmyiginally framed or as from time to time altd
by Special Resolution.

“ month " means calendar month.
“ Nasdaq” shall mean the Nasdaq Global Market in the Uniiakes.

“Nasdaq Rules” means the relevant code, rules and regulationajesided from time to time, applicable as a reduthe
original and continued quotation of any Shares BYSA on Nasdaq, including without limitation the NA$/anual & Notices t
Members and the Listing Rules.

“ Ordinary Resolution " means a resolution passed by a simple majorith@fMembers as, being entitled to do so, vo
person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxyirothe case of corporations, by their duly authestisepresentatives, at a gen
meeting, and includes a unanimous written resaiutio computing the majority when a poll is demahdegard shall be had to -
number of votes to which each Member is entitledHgyArticles.

“ paid-up " means paid-up and/or credited as paid-up.

“ person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, tiai partnership, limited liability company, syndiatrust
association or entity or government, political sutgion, agency or instrumentality of a government.

“ principal register " shall mean the register of members of the Compaaintained at such place within or outside
Cayman Islands as the Board shall determine froma to time.

“ Register of Members” means the register maintained in accordance withLw and includes (except where othen
stated) any duplicate Register of Members.




“ Registered Office” means the registered office for the time beinghef Company.
“ Related Party” shall mean:

(&) any Director or executive officer of the Compa

(b) any nominee for election as a Direct

(c) any holder who is known to the Company wnf record or beneficially more than 5% of angsd of the Company’
voting securities

(d) any Family Member of the foregoing persons;
(e) any person that is an affiliate of any of the ab

“ Related Party Transactions” shall mean a transaction (other than a transacfienrevenue nature in the ordinary cours
business) between the Company or any of its sudygdiand a Related Party.

“ Seal” means the common seal of the Company and incledesy duplicate seal.

“ SEC” shall mean the US Securities and Exchange Conioniss

“ Secretary” includes an Assistant Secretary and any perspoiafed to perform the duties of Secretary of tioenPany.
“ Share” and “ Shares” means a share or shares in the Company and esladraction of a share.

“ Share Premium Account” means the account of the Company which the Commamgquired by the Law to maintain,
which all premiums over nominal or par value reediby the Company in respect of issues of Shapes fime to time are credited.

“ Special Resolution” means (i) a resolution passed by a majority dfless than twdhirds of such Members as, being enti
to do so, vote in person or, where proxies arewath by proxy or, in the case of corporations, hegirt duly authorise
representatives, at a general meeting of whiclcaapecifying the intention to propose the resoiutis a special resolution has
duly given, or (ii) a resolution which has been mwed in writing by all of the Members entitled\ote at a general meeting of
company in one or more instruments each signedngyar more of the Members aforesaid, and the éffectate of the spec
resolution so adopted shall be the date on whiehrstrument or the last of such instruments, ifertban one, is executed.

“ United States” shall mean the United States of America, itsiteries, its possessions and all areas subjets jarisdiction.

“ US$” shall mean United States dollars, the lawful enay of the United States.




“ written” and“in writing " include all modes of representing or reproducingdsan visible form, including in the form of
Electronic Record.

2. Words importing the singular number include pheal number and vice-versa.
Words importing the masculine gender include tmeiféine gender.
Words importing persons include corporations.

References to provisions of any law or regulatiballsbe construed as references to those provisisrmended, modified, re-
enacted or replaced from time to time.

Any phrase introduced by the terms “including”, clinde”, “in particular” or any similar expression shall be construe
illustrative and shall not limit the sense of therds preceding those terms.

Headings are inserted for reference only and &leaijnored in construing these Articles.

References in these Articles to a document beirgceted”include references to its being executed under banshder seal
by any other method authorised by the Company.

Any words or expressions defined in the Law willnot inconsistent with the subject or context ihieh they appear) have 1
same meaning in these Articles, save that the Viamehpany” includes any body corporate.

References to a meeting will not be taken as reguimore than one person to be present if any gqonaeguirement can |
satisfied by one person.

Where these Atrticles refer to months or years dlaee all calendar months or years.

Where these Articles give any power or authoritay person, this power or authority can be usednynnumber of occasiol
unless the way in which the words are used doeallwv this meaning.

SHARE CAPITAL

3. The authorised share capital of the CompanyS$30,000 divided into 500,000,000 ordinary shafes wominal or par value
US$0.0001 each @rdinary Shares”™).

ISSUE OF SHARES

4. Subject to applicable law, rules, regulatiohg, Nasdag Rules and the relevant provisions, if anthe Memorandum and the
Articles and to any direction that may be giventbg Company in a general meeting and without pregutb any special rigr
previously conferred on the holders of existing f8bathe Directors may allot, issue, grant optiaights or warrants over
otherwise dispose of Shares of the Company (inatudliactions of a Share) with or without preferrdéferred, qualified or oth
special rights or restrictions, whether with regardlividend, voting, return of capital or otheraiand to such persons, at such ti
and on such other




terms as they think proper provided that, where iaaye of shares (which, for the avoidance of dosiball include any issue
Ordinary Shares or any shares with preferred, dederqualified or other special rights or restons, whether with regard
dividend, voting, return of capital or otherwiseRfeferred Shares”)) is proposed and such shares proposed to be issriedwzal t
or exceed 20 per cent. by par value of the parevafiall then issued shares (including Ordinaryr&hand any Preferred Shares
in the case of any Preferred Shares, where appteprihether considering such Preferred Shareséefoafter any conversion
such Preferred Shares to Ordinary Shares in acccedaith their terms), then the prior approval bydi@ary Resolution of tt
holders of the Ordinary Shares, voting togethasrasclass, shall be required. The Company shaissae Shares in bearer form.

5. Upon approval of the Directors, such number afi@ary Shares, or other shares or securitieseofCthmpany, as may be requi
for such purposes shall be reserved for issuancernnection with an option, right, warrant or otsecurity of the Company or &
other person that is exercisable for, convertibbe,i exchangeable for or otherwise issuable inaespf such Ordinary Shares
other shares or securities of the Company.

6. The holders of the Ordinary Shares shall be:
(a) entitled to dividends in accordance with tHevant provisions of these Articles;
(b) entitled to and are subject to the provisioneelation to winding up of the Company providedifothese Articles;

(c) entitled to attend general meetings of the Camypand shall be entitled to one vote for each i2ngi Share registered in
name in the Register of Members, both in accordarnttethe relevant provisions of these Articles.

7. All Ordinary Shares shall rank pari passu wibteother in all respects.
REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND SHARE CERTIFICATES

8. The Company shall maintain a register of its Mers and every person whose name is entered asrdodrién the register
Members shall be entitled without payment to reeainthin two months after allotment or lodgementrahsfer (or within such oth
period as the conditions of issue shall provided oartificate for all his Shares or several cexdifes each for one or more of
Shares upon payment of fifty cents (US$0.50) farecertificate after the first or such less sunthesDirectors shall from time
time determine provided that in respect of a Slar8hares held jointly by several persons the Cowyghall not be bound to iss<
more than one certificate and delivery of a cexdifé for a Share to one of the several joint heldall be sufficient delivery to
such holders.

9. The Board shall cause to be kept at such plattermor outside the Cayman Islands as they de¢m firincipal register of ti
Members and there shall be entered therein thecpkarts of the Members and the Shares issued to @athem and other particuli
required under applicable law, rules or regulationthe Nasdaq Rules.




10. If the Board considers it necessary or appab@rithe Company may establish and maintain a braggister or registers
Members at such location or locations within orsolg the Cayman Islands as the Board thinks fie fhincipal register and t
branch register(s) shall together be treated aeetfister for the purposes of these Articles.

11. The Board may, in its absolute discretion,rgt ttme transfer any Share upon the principal tegit any branch register or ¢
Share on any branch register to the principal teg any other branch register.

12. The Company shall as soon as practicable aradregular basis record in the principal registetransfers of Shares effected
any branch register and shall at all times mainttaénprincipal register in such manner to showllatraes the Members for the tir
being and the Shares respectively held by theml] iespects in accordance with the Law.

13. The register may be closed at such times anslfth periods as the Board may from time to timiinine, either generally or
respect of any class of Shares, provided thatdfister shall not be closed for more than 30 daysy year (or such longer perioc
the Members may by Ordinary Resolution determim&igied that such period shall not be extended ba&@ndays in any year). T
Company shall, on demand, furnish any person sge&iimspect the Register of Members or part thferdrich is closed by virtue
this Article with a certificate under the hand loétSecretary stating the period for which, and hgpse authority, it is closed.

14. Every certificate for Shares or debentureeprasenting any other form of security of the Comypmay be issued under the ¢
of the Company, which shall only be affixed witte thuthority of the Board or may be executed undediby any two directors or
may otherwise be directed by the Board. All certifes surrendered to the Company for transfer gealtancelled and no n
certificate shall be issued until the former cééfe for a like number of Shares shall have beeresdered and cancelled.

15. Every Share certificate shall specify the nundfeShares in respect of which it is issued aredamount paid thereon or the
that they are fully paid, as the case may be, aay atherwise be in such form as the Board may fiiore to time prescribe.

16. The Company shall not be bound to register rttaae four persons as joint holders of any Shdrany Shares shall stand in
names of two or more persons, the person first daime¢he register shall be deemed the sole holideredf as regards service
notices and, subject to the provisions of theséled, all or any other matters connected withGoenpany, except the transfer of
Share.

17. If a Share certificate is defaced, lost or g®d, it may be replaced on payment of such resderfee, if any, as the Board n
from time to time prescribe and on such terms amtitions, if any, as to publication of noticesjdance and indemnity, as
Board thinks fit and where it is defaced or worn, @dter delivery up of the old certificate to tGempany for cancellation.

18. All certificates surrendered to the Companytfansfer shall be cancelled and no new certifisht@l be issued until the forn
certificate for a like number of Shares shall hagen surrendered and cancelled.




TRANSFER OF SHARES

19. The instrument of transfer of any Share shalinbwriting in the usual or common form or anyeatform approved by the Boa
and shall be executed by or on behalf of the teapnsfand the transferor shall be deemed to renm&irholder of a Share until
name of the transferee is entered in the registerspect thereof.

20. (a) The Board may, in its absolute discretamd without assigning any reason, refuse to ragésteansfer of any Share whict
not fully paid up or upon which the Company hawa.|

(b) The Board may also decline to register anysfiemof any Share unless:

0

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

v)
(vi)

(Vi)

(viii)

the instrument of transfer is lodged with the Compaccompanied by the certificate for the Sharastich it relate
(which shall upon registration of the transfer lamaeelled) and such other evidence as the Board rewsonabl
require to show the right of the transferor to mtiestransfer

the instrument of transfer is in respect of onlg aiass of Share
the instrument of transfer is properly stampec{ioumstances where stamping is requir

in the case of a transfer to joint holders, the benof joint holders to which the Share is to tansferred does r
exceed four

the Shares concerned are free of any lien in fagbtlre Company

a fee of such maximum amount as the Board may fiom to time determine to be payable is paid toGoepan
in respect thereo

The Company shall not be obligated to make anysfearto an infant or to a person in respect of wkaonorder he
been made by a competent court or official on tteengds that he is or may be suffering from menisdrler or i
otherwise incapable of managing his affairs or urdleer legal disability; an

Upon every transfer of Shares the certificate Hmldthe transferor shall be given up to be canceledl sha
forthwith be cancelled accordingly, and a new Giedtie shall be issued without charge to the trenesf in respect
the Shares transferred to him, and if any of thar&hincluded in the certificate so given up shalfetained by tt
transferor, a new certificate in respect theredaflidbe issued to him without charge. The Compargll siiso retai
the instrument(s) of transfe

21. The registration of transfers may be suspeatisdch time and for such periods as the Directang from time to time determir
provided always that such registration shall not be




suspended for more than foffiye days in any year. If the Board shall refuseadgister a transfer of any Share, it shall, wittvio
months after the date on which the transfer wagdddwith the Company, send to each of the transterd the transferee notice
such refusal.

REDEEMABLE SHARES

22. (a) Subject to the provisions of the Law, tresthag Rules and the Memorandum, Shares may bel isaube terms that they &
or at the option of the Company or the holder trdye redeemed on such terms and in such mantlee &ompany, before the is:
of the Shares, may by Special Resolution determine.

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Nas&alles and the Memorandum, the Company may pugcite®wn Share
(including fractions of a Share), including anyeethable Shares, provided that the manner of pugdtas first been authorised
the Company in a general meeting by Ordinary Réisolland may make payment therefor in any manntroaised by the Law ai
the Nasdaq Rules, including out of capital.

VARIATION OF RIGHTS OF SHARES

23. If at any time the share capital of the Compiangivided into different classes of Shares, fgats attached to any class (un
otherwise provided by the terms of issue of ther&haf that class) may, whether or not the Compstneing woundip and exce|
where these Articles or the Law impose any strigigsrum, voting or procedural requirements in rdgarthe variation of righ
attached to a specific class, be varied with thesent in writing of the holders of 75% of the issi&hares of that class, or with
sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a gemesgting of the holders of the Shares of thatsclas

24. The provisions of these Articles relating tog&l meetings shall apply to every such generatimg of the holders of one cl:
of Shares except that the necessary quorum shatid@erson holding or representing by proxy aitleaethird of the issued Shai
of the class and that any holder of Shares of ldmsqresent in person or by proxy may demandla pol

25. For purposes of this provision any particuesue of Shares not carrying the same rights (whetheto rate of dividen
redemption or otherwise) as any other Shares ofiie being in issue, shall be deemed to constdugeparate class of Shares.
rights conferred upon the holders of the sharemngfclass issued with preferred or other rightdl std, unless otherwise expres
provided by the terms of issue of the shares dfdlass, be deemed to be varied by the creatidssae of further shares ranking |
passu therewith. The rights of holders of Ordin&hares shall not be deemed to be varied by theéiamear issue of Shares w
preferred or other rights which may be effectedtty Directors as provided in these Articles withaay vote or consent of t
holders of Ordinary Shares.




COMMISSION ON SALE OF SHARES

26. The Company may in so far as the Law from timdime permits pay a commission to any personansieration of h
subscribing or agreeing to subscribe whether abalglor conditionally for any Shares of the CompaSych commissions may
satisfied by the payment of cash or the lodgeméffilly or partly paidup Shares or partly in one way and partly in tHeent The
Company may also on any issue of Shares pay so&letage as may be lawful.

NON-RECOGNITION OF TRUSTS

27. The Company shall not be bound by or compebfiagcognise in any way (even when notified) anyitadple, contingent, futur
or partial interest in any Share, or (except omslysaotherwise provided by these Articles or thev)any other rights in respect of ¢
Share other than an absolute right to the entthetyeof in the registered holder.

LIEN ON SHARES

28. The Company shall have a first and paramowent ¢éin all Shares (whether fully paig- or not) registered in the name ¢
Member (whether solely or jointly with others) fall debts, liabilities or engagements to or witke thompany (whether preser
payable or not) by such Member or his estate, eighene or jointly with any other person, whetheMamber or not, but t
Directors may at any time declare any Share to bellwor in part exempt from the provisions of tiigticle. The registration of
transfer of any such Share shall operate as a wafwhe Company’s lien thereon. The Companen on a Share shall also ext
to any amount payable in respect of that Share.

29. The Company may sell, in such manner as theckirs think fit, any Shares on which the Compaay & lien, if a sum in resp
of which the lien exists is presently payable, @dot paid within fourteen days after notice hagrb given to the holder of 1
Shares or to the person entitled to it in conseceierf the death or bankruptcy of the holder, denmndayment and stating tha
the notice is not complied with the Shares maydié. s

30. To give effect to any such sale, the Directoey authorise any person to execute an instrunfanamsfer of the Shares sold
or in accordance with the directions of, the puseinaThe purchaser or his nominee shall be regitas the holder of the She
comprised in any such transfer, and he shall ndicaend to see to the application of the purchaseeyonor shall his title to tl
Shares be affected by any irregularity or invayidiit the sale or the exercise of the Company’s pawesale under these Articles.

31. The net proceeds of such sale after paymesuiai costs, shall be applied in payment of suchgfathe amount in respect
which the lien exists as is presently payable anydrasidue, shall (subject to a like lien for sumog presently payable as existed u
the Shares before the sale) be paid to the pergdled to the Shares at the date of the sale.




CALL ON SHARES

32. (a) The Directors may from time to time mak#scapon the Members in respect of any monies uhpaitheir Shares (whett
on account of the nominal value of the Shares owhy of premium or otherwise) and not by the cdodg of allotment there
made payable at fixed terms, provided that nostall be payable at less than one month from the fikeed for the payment of t
last preceding call, and each Member shall (sultgectceiving at least fourteen days notice spewfyhe time or times of payme
pay to the Company at the time or times so spektitie amount called on the Shares. A call may kbeked or postponed as
Directors may determine. A call may be made paybplmstalments.

(b) A call shall be deemed to have been made atrtteewhen the resolution of the Directors authingssuch call was passed.
(c) The joint holders of a Share shall be jointhd&everally liable to pay all calls in respectéud.

33. If a sum called in respect of a Share is nat pafore or on a day appointed for payment therthaf persons from whom the s
is due shall pay interest on the sum from the dagoeted for payment thereof to the time of actpayment at such rate 1
exceeding ten per cent per annum as the Directass determine, but the Directors shall be at libeaywaive payment of su
interest either wholly or in part.

34. Any sum which by the terms of issue of a Shereomes payable on allotment or at any fixed dabether on account of t
nominal value of the Share or by way of premiunotirerwise, shall for the purposes of these Artitlesdeemed to be a call d
made, notified and payable on the date on whicthbyterms of issue the same becomes payable, ¢hd tase of nopayment a
the relevant provisions of these Articles as torpemt of interest forfeiture or otherwise shall gppb if such sum had beco
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

35. The Directors may, on the issue of Shareserdifftiate between the holders as to the amourdlisf ar interest to be paid and
times of payment.

36. (a) The Directors may, if they think fit, reeeifrom any Member willing to advance the same,oalbny part of the moni
uncalled and unpaid upon any Shares held by hichugon all or any of the monies so advanced maiil (ilne same would but fi
such advances, become payable) pay interest atratemot exceeding (unless the Company in gemeealting shall otherwi
direct) seven per cent per annum, as may be agmsdbetween the Directors and the Member payiog sum in advance.

(b) No such sum paid in advance of calls shalltlenthe Member paying such sum to any portion dfividend declared
respect of any period prior to the date upon whkieth sum would, but for such payment, become ptiggasyable.
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FORFEITURE OF SHARES

37. (a) If a Member fails to pay any call or instaht of a call or to make any payment requiredHg/terms of issue on the ¢
appointed for payment thereof, the Directors mdyarsy time thereafter during such time as any pérthe call, instalment
payment remains unpaid, give notice requiring paymoé any part of the call, instalment or paymédrattis unpaid, together with &
interest which may have accrued and all expensashidive been incurred by the Company by reasomaf sonpayment. Suc
notice shall name a day (not earlier than the axipin of fourteen days from the date of giving o hotice) on or before which 1
payment required by the notice is to be made, &adl state that, in the event of npayment at or before the time appointec
Shares in respect of which such notice was givdirbeiliable to be forfeited.

(b) If the requirements of any such notice as &@mickare not complied with, any Share in respeettith the notice has be
given may at any time thereafter, before the paymequired by the notice has been made, be foddite a resolution of tt
Directors to that effect. Such forfeiture shalllude all dividends declared in respect of the fitefe Share and not actually p
before the forfeiture.

(c) A forfeited Share may be sold or otherwise dégul of on such terms and in such manner as tleetis think fit, and .
any time before a sale or disposition, the forfeitonay be cancelled on such terms as the Diresé&a dit.

38. A person whose Shares have been forfeited siealte to be a Member in respect of the forfeitedre®, but sha
notwithstanding, remain liable to pay to the Comypalth monies which, at the date of forfeiture, wpsgyable by him to the Compe
in respect of the Shares together with interestethrg but his liability shall cease if and when thempany shall have recei
payment in full of all monies whenever payablegrgect of the Shares.

39. A certificate in writing under the hand of ddigector or the Secretary of the Company that a&mathe Company has been ¢
forfeited on a date stated in the declaration diaitonclusive evidence of the fact therein stagedgainst all persons claiming tc
entitled to the Share. The Company may receivectimsideration given for the Share on any sale spatition thereof and m
execute a transfer of the Share in favour of thregreto whom the Share is sold or disposed of &nshlall thereupon be registere:
the holder of the Share and shall not be boun@¢as the application of the purchase money, if any shall his title to the Share
affected by any irregularity or invalidity in theqzeedings in reference to the forfeiture, saldisposal of the Share.

40. The provisions of these Articles as to forfgtahall apply in the case of npayment of any sum which, by the terms of isst
a Share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whethacoount of the nominal value of the Share or by wf premium as if the sai
had been payable by virtue of a call duly maderatdied.

REGISTRATION OF EMPOWERING INSTRUMENTS

41. The Company shall be entitled to charge a t#eerceeding one dollar (US$1.00) on the registratif every grant of proba
letter of administration, certificate of death oammage, power of attorney, or other instrument.
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TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

42. In case of the death of a Member, the survimosurvivors where the deceased was a joint holded, the legal persor
representatives of the deceased where he was haldkr, shall be the only persons recognised eyCthmpany as having any title
his interest in the Shares, but nothing hereinaioetl shall release the estate of any such decbagdst from any liability in respe
of any Shares which had been held by him solejgiatly with other persons.

43. (a) Any person becoming entitled to a Shareoimsequence of the death or bankruptcy or liquadadir dissolution of a Memk
(or in any other way than by transfer) may, upothsevidence being produced as may from time to bmeequired by the Directc
and subject as hereinafter provided, elect eithéetregistered himself as holder of the Share anake such transfer of the Shar
such other person nominated by him as the deceaseankrupt person could have made and to have peigon registered as
transferee thereof, but the Directors shall, ihegittase, have the same right to decline or susggistration as they would have |
in the case of a transfer of the Share by that Merbbfore his death or bankruptcy as the case may b

(b) If the person so becoming entitled shall etecbe registered himself as holder he shall deloresend to the Compan!
notice in writing signed by him stating that heetects.

44. A person becoming entitled to a Share by rea$dhe death or bankruptcy or liquidation or disson of the holder (or in ar
other case than by transfer) shall be entitledvéosame dividends and other advantages to whietohéd be entitled if he were t
registered holder of the Share, except that hd sbal before being registered as a Member in m&spkethe Share, be entitled
respect of it to exercise any right conferred bymbership in relation to meetings of the Companyvigled, however, that t
Directors may at any time give notice requiring augh person to elect either to be registered Hiraséo transfer the Share, an
the notice is not complied with within ninety dagise Directors may thereafter withhold payment lbflvidends, bonuses or ott
monies payable in respect of the Share until thairements of the notice have been complied with.

AMENDMENT OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION,
ALTERATION OF CAPITAL & CHANGE OF LOCATION OF REGIS TERED OFFICE

45. (a) The Company may by Ordinary Resolution:

(i) increase the share capital by such sum asebelution shall prescribe and with such rightsoniies and privilege
annexed thereto, as the Company in general memi@ygdetermine;

(i) consolidate and divide all or any of its shasgital into Shares of larger amount than itsteagsShares;
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(iii) by subdivision of its existing Shares or aafythem divide the whole or any part of its shaapital into Shares
smaller amount than is fixed by the Memorandum sddiation or into Shares without par value;

(iv) cancel any Shares that at the date of theipggd the resolution have not been taken or agtedok taken by ai
person.

(b) All new Shares created in accordance with tloipions of the preceding Article shall be subjecthe same provisions
the Articles with reference to the payment of ¢dlens, transfer, transmission, forfeiture andeottise as the Shares in the orig
share capital.

(c) Subject to the provisions of the Statue andptto@isions of these Articles as regards the matiebe dealt with by Ording
Resolution, the Company may by Special Resolution:

(i) change its name;
(i) alter or add to these Articles;
(iii) alter or add to the Memorandum with respecaty objects, powers or other matters specifieceih; and
(iv) reduce its share capital and any capital rquten reserve fund.
46. Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Conypaay by resolution of the Directors change ttoatimn of its Registered Office.
CLOSING REGISTER OF MEMBERS OR FIXING RECORD DATE

47. For the purpose of determining Members enttitedotice of or to vote at any meeting of Membarany adjournment thereof,
Members entitled to receive payment of any dividesrdn order to make a determination of Membersafioy other proper purpo:
the Directors of the Company may provide that ggister of Members shall be closed for transfersafstated period in accordal
with Article 13 above. If the register of MembetsaB be so closed for the purpose of determiningntders entitled to notice of or
vote at a meeting of Members, such register skeafidoclosed for at least ten days immediately pliagesuch meeting and the rec
date for such determination shall be the date ®ttbsure of the register of Members.

48. In lieu of or apart from closing the registéiMembers, the Directors may fix in advance or arsea date as the record date
any such determination of Members entitled to moti€ or to vote at a meeting of the Members or atdipurnment thereof and -
the purpose of determining the Members entitleceteive payment of any dividend. Such record datdl ®i0t be more than six
(60) nor less than ten (10) days before the datsuch meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days ptwmrany other action.
determination of the Members entitled to noticeoofto vote at a meeting of Members shall apply ny adjournment of sut
meeting;_provided however, that the Directors may fix a new record datetlfier adjourned meeting.
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49. If the register of Members is not so closed andecord date is fixed for the determination afrivbers entitled to notice of or
vote at a meeting of Members or Members entitlegt@ive payment of a dividend, the date on whitice of the meeting is mail
or the date on which the resolution of the Direstdeclaring such dividend is adopted, as the caselm, shall be the record date
such determination of Members. When a determinatioMembers entitled to vote at any meeting of Memsbhas been made
provided in this section, such determination sapflly to any adjournment thereof.

GENERAL MEETING
50. All general meetings other than annual genaesdtings shall be called extraordinary general imget

51. (a) The Company shall, if required by the Lather applicable law, rules or regulations or thesd\ag Rules, in each year ho
general meeting as its annual general meeting hall specify the meeting as such in the noticetingait. The annual genel
meeting for the election of directors of the Compaand for the transaction of such other businesway properly come before si
meeting, shall be held at such time and place editectors shall appoint and if no other time atace is prescribed by them
shall be held at the Registered Office on the s@drdnesday in December of each year at ten o’élote morning, providethal
the period between the date of one annual generefing of the Company and that of the next shdlbedonger than such perioc
applicable law, rules or regulations or the Nasdates permit.

(b) At these meetings the report of the Directdrany) shall be presented.

52. (a) Extraordinary general meetings of Membersahy purpose or purposes may be called by thedBafaDirectors pursuant tc
resolution duly adopted by a majority of the menshafrthe entire Board, to be held at such place dad time as shall be design:
in the notice or waiver of notice thereof.

(b) The Directors shall on a Members requisitiomtHaith proceed to convene an extraordinary generakting of th
Company.

(c) A Members requisition is a requisition of Membef the Company holding at the date of deposthefrequisition not le
than ten per cent. in par value of the capitalh&f Company as at that date carries the right ahgadt general meetings of
Company.

(d) The requisition must state the objects of tleetimg and must be signed by the requisitionistsdaposited at the Registe
Office, and may consist of several documents ie fd¢em each signed by one or more requisitionists.

(e) If the Directors do not within twentyae days from the date of the deposit of the réipisduly proceed to convene

general meeting to be held within a further tweaitye days, the requisitionists, or any of them regméing more than ontealf of the
total voting rights of all of
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them, may themselves convene a general meetingnyuineeting so convened shall not be held afeee#piration of three mont
after the expiration of the said twenty-one days.

(f) A general meeting convened as aforesaid byis@gnists shall be convened in the same manneeasdy as possible as t
in which general meetings are to be convened bgdors.

53. General meetings of the Company may be heddict place, either within or without ti@&ayman Islands, as determined by
Directors. The Board of Directors may, in its sdiscretion, determine that the meeting shall ndhdld at any place, but may inst
be held solely by means of remote communicatidiolésws:

(a) if authorised by the Directors in its sole détion, and subject to such guidelines and proe=das the Directors may ad:
Members and proxies entitled to attend and votenmttphysically present at a meeting of Members ,ntgy means of remc
communication:

() participate in a meeting of Members; ¢

(i) be deemed present in person and vote at a medtikigmbers whether such meeting is to be held atsagdate
place or solely by means of remote communica

(b) if authorised by the Directors, any vote takmn written ballot may be satisfied by a ballot sutbed by electroni
transmission, provided that any such electroniesimsission must either set forth or be submittedh wiformation from which it ce
be determined that the electronic transmissionaudisorised by the Member or proxy.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

54. At least twenty (but not more than sixty) daystice shall be given for any annual general mgedimd any extraordinary gene
meeting calling for the passing of a special retsofy and at least fourteen (14) days’ notice (bot more than sixty (60) days’
notice) shall be given of any other extraordinagperal meeting. Every notice shall be inclusivehef day on which it is given
deemed to be given and of the day for which itiveig and shall specify details as are requireddplieable law, rules or regulatic
and the Nasdaq Rules, provided that a general ngeetithe Company shall, whether or not the najpecified in this Article 54 hi
been given and whether or not the provisions ofdhgrticles regarding general meetings have beemlied with, be deemed
have been duly convened if applicable law, rulesegulations and the Nasdaq Rules so permit asdd agreed:

() in the case of an annual general meeting bthallMembers (or their proxies) entitled to attemdl vote thereat or th
proxies; and

(b) in the case of an extraordinary general mediiyng majority in number of the Members (or theimpes) having a right -

attend and vote at the meeting, being a majorigetteer holding not less than nindiye per cent in par value of the Shares gi'
that right.
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55. The notice convening an annual general meetiren extraordinary general meeting shall speti§/ meeting as such, and
notice convening a meeting to pass a special riésolghall specify the intention to propose theoheson as a special resolutis
Notice of every general meeting shall be givenlitdla@mbers other than such as, under the provisiareof or the terms of issue
the Shares they hold, are not entitled to recaieh siotice from the Company.

56. There shall appear with reasonable prominemaéry notice of general meetings of the Compastatement that a Memt
entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appaiptoxy to attend and vote instead of him andahatoxy need not be a Member of
Company.

57. The accidental omission to give notice of aggahmeeting to, or the naeceipt of notice of a meeting by any person etitc
receive notice shall not invalidate the proceedioighat meeting. In cases where instruments okyare sent out with notices,
accidental omission to send such instrument of yrtox or the norreceipt of such instrument of proxy by, any persotitied tc
receive notice shall not invalidate any resolup@ssed or any proceeding at any such meeting.

58. No business may be transacted at any genertingeother than business that is either (A) djgtin the notice of meeting (
any supplement thereto) given by or at the directd the Directors (or any duly authorised comreittbereof), (B) otherwis
properly brought before the annual general mediingr at the direction of the Directors (or anyydalthorised committee there
or (C) otherwise properly brought before the anmealeral meeting by any Member of the Company vihis & Member of recol
on both (x) the date of the giving of the noticeypded for in Article 59 and (y) the record date the determination of Membe
entitled to vote at such annual meeting and (ifhpties with the notice procedures set forth in &eti59.

59. In addition to any other applicable requirersefior business to be properly brought before amuahgeneral meeting by
Member, such Member must have given timely notiegeof in proper written form to the Secretarytaf Company.

(a) To be timely, a Membeg’notice shall be delivered to the Secretary aptheeipal executive offices of the Company not
than seven (7) days nor more than sixty (60) dayar po the first anniversary of the preceding ysaannual general meetil
provided, however, that in the event that the détidne annual general meeting is advanced by niane thirty (30) days or delay
by more than sixty (60) days from such anniversiate, notice by the Member to be timely must bévdedd not earlier than t
sixtieth (60th) day prior to such annual generaktimg and not later than the close of businessheridter of the seventh (7th) ¢
prior to such annual general meeting or the teh@ih) day following the day on which public annoemznt of the date of su
meeting is first made.

(b) To be in proper written form, a Membgmotice to the Secretary must set forth as to ezatter such Member propose:
bring before the annual general meeting (1) a lidsicription of the business desired to be brobgfdre the annual general mee
and the reasons for conducting such business artheal general meeting, (2) the name and recaddeas of such Member, ¢
(3) the class or series and number of Shares dCtimepany which are owned beneficially or of recbydsuch Member.
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(c) No business shall be conducted at the annuargkmeeting except business brought before thaarmgeneral meeting
accordance with the procedures set forth in thiscker59, provided however, that, once business has been properly brougbtd
the annual general meeting in accordance with pugbedures, nothing in this Article 59 shall berded to preclude discussion
any Member of any such business. If the Chairmaanodnnual general meeting determines that busimasshot properly broug
before the annual general meeting in accordande thé foregoing procedures, the Chairman shalladedio the meeting that
business was not properly brought before the mgeti such business shall not be transacted.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

60. For all purposes the quorum for a general mgethall be one or more Members present in persdyy @roxy or corpora
representative holding not less than133 % of the outstanding voting shares in the capitdhe Company. No business (excepl
appointment of a Chairman of the meeting) shaliraesacted at any general meeting unless the reggisorum shall be presen
the commencement of the business.

61. A person may participate at a general meetyingomference telephone or other communicationspegeint by means of which
the persons patrticipating in the meeting can concat@ with each other. Participation by a persoraigeneral meeting in tt
manner is treated as presence in person at thdingee

62. A resolution (including a Special Resolutiom)writing (in one or more counterparts) signed ByMembers for the time beit
entitled to receive notice of and to attend andevat general meetings (or, being corporations,esigoy their duly authorisi
representatives) shall be as valid and effectivié the resolution had been passed at a generadingesf the Company duly conver
and held.

63. If a quorum is not present within half an hdtam the time appointed for the meeting, the megtifi convened upon tl
requisition of Members, shall be dissolved andrig ather case it shall stand adjourned to the sdadn the next week at the se
time and place or to such other day, time or subleroplace as the Directors may determine. Mempersent at a duly called
convened meeting, at which a quorum is present, ¢oatinue to transact business until adjournmesttyithstanding the withdraw
of enough Members to leave less than a quorum.

64. The person chairing the meeting, if any, of Board of Directors shall preside as Chairman aregeneral meeting of t
Company, or if there is no such Chairman, or iEhall not be present within thirty minutes aftex thme appointed for the holding
the meeting, or is unwilling to act, the Directpresent shall elect one of their number to be @feair of the meeting.

65. If no Director is willing to act as Chairmanibno Director is present within fifteen minutefiest the time appointed for holdi
the meeting, the Members present shall choose fatheio number to be Chairman of the meeting.
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66. The Chairman may, with the consent of a meatinghich a quorum is present, (and shall if seated by the meeting), adjo!
the meeting from time to time and from place tocplabut no business shall be transacted at anymdid meeting other than -
business left unfinished at the meeting from whiehadjournment took place. When a general me&iagjourned for thirty days
more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall berga® in the case of an original meeting; othenitisball not be necessary to g
any such notice of an adjournment or of the businede transacted at an adjourned general me&tmgusiness shall be transac
at any adjourned meeting other than the businegshwhight have been transacted at the meeting futich the adjournment tor
place.

67. A resolution put to the vote of the meetinglishe decided on a show of hands unless beforendhe declaration of the result
the show of hands, the Chairman demands a polingrother Member or Members collectively presenpaénson or by proxy ai
holding at least ten per cent. in par value ofShares giving a right to attend and vote at thetimgdemand a poll.

68. Unless a poll is duly demanded, a declaratipthb Chairman that a resolution has been carodiedarried unanimously, or by
particular majority, or lost, or not carried by articular majority, an entry to that effect in thenutes of the proceedings of
meeting shall be conclusive evidence of that faithaut proof of the number or proportion of the e®trecorded in favour of
against such resolution.

69. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

70. Unless a poll is duly demanded, on the electiba Chairman or on a question of adjournmentplh hall be taken as t
Chairman directs and the result of the poll shalldeemed to be the resolution of the general ngeeatinwhich the poll we
demanded.

71. In the case of an equality of votes, whethea@how of hands or on a poll, the Chairman stalbe entitled to a second
casting vote.

72. A poll demanded on the election of a Chairmaaroa question of adjournment shall be taken faitth A poll demanded on a
other question shall be taken at such time as bar@an of the general meeting directs, and anjnbas other than that upon wh
a poll has been demanded or is contingent theregnproceed pending the taking of the poll.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

73. Except as otherwise required by law or asa¢h herein, the holder of each Share issued atelamding shall have one vote
each Share held by such holder. No Member shahbided to engage in cumulative voting.

74. In the case of joint holders of record the \aftéhe senior who tenders a vote, whether in pemsdy proxy, shall be acceptec
the exclusion of the votes of the other joint haddend for this purpose seniority shall be deteediby the order in which the nar
stand in the register of Members.
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75. A Member of unsound mind, or in respect of wrenmorder has been made by any court, having jatisd in lunacy, may vot
whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his rodtee, receiver, curator bonis, or other persotha nature of a committe
receiver or curator bonis appointed by that camt] any such committee, receiver, curator bonahogr persons may vote by proxy.

76. No Member shall be entitled to vote at any galm@eeting unless he is registered as a Membtreo€ompany on the record d
for such meeting nor unless all calls or other spmsently payable by him in respect of SharekénGompany have been paid.

77. No objection shall be raised to the qualificatof any voter except at the general meeting fuaded general meeting at wh
the vote objected to is given or tendered and evetg not disallowed at such general meeting ¢havalid for all purposes. Al
such objection made in due time shall be referpettié Chairman of the general meeting whose deciiall be final and conclusiy

78. On a poll or on a show of hands votes may bengeither personally or by proxy. A Member may@ppmore than one proxy
the same proxy under one or more instruments ématand vote at a meeting and may appoint one pmxpte both in favour
and against the same resolution in such propod®specified in the instrument appointing the prodhere a Member appoil
more than one proxy the instrument of proxy shalleswhich proxy is entitled to vote on a show affitts.

PROXIES

79. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be ittimg and shall be executed under the hand offgointor or of his attorney du
authorised in writing, or, if the appointor is aporation under the hand of an officer or attordejy authorised for that purpose
proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

80. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be d@pd at the Registered Office or at such othereples is specified for that purp
in the notice convening the meeting, or in anyrimsient of proxy sent out by the Company:

(@) not less than 48 hours before the time for ingldhe meeting or adjourned meeting at which teesgn named in tl
instrument proposes to vote; or

(b) in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hafter it is demanded, be deposited as aforesagd thie poll has been deman
and not less than 24 hours before the time appbiotethe taking of the poll; and

(c) where the poll is not taken forthwith but ikéa not more than 48 hours after it was demandetkebeered at the meeting
which the poll was demanded to the Chairman onécsecretary or to any director;
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provided that the Directors may in the notice caving the meeting, or in an instrument of proxy smntby the Company, direct tl
the instrument appointing a proxy may be deposftex later than the time for holding the meetingadjourned meeting) at t
Registered Office or at such other place as isipédor that purpose in the notice convening theeting, or in any instrument
proxy sent out by the Company. The Chairman maninevent at his discretion direct that an instnood proxy shall be deemed
have been duly deposited. An instrument of prox ith not deposited in the manner permitted sheaihbalid.

81. The instrument appointing a proxy may be in asyal or common form and may be expressed toibe farticular meeting
any adjournment thereof or generally until revokéd. instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemedntlude the power
demand or join or concur in demanding a poll.

82. Votes given in accordance with the terms ahatrument of proxy shall be valid notwithstandihg previous death or insanity
the principal or revocation of the proxy or of #uathority under which the proxy was executed, erttansfer of the Share in resy
of which the proxy is given unless notice in writiof such death, insanity, revocation or transfas weceived by the Company at
Registered Office before the commencement of tineige meeting, or adjourned meeting at which siogght to use the proxy.

83. Any corporation or other namatural person which is a Member may in accordavitie its constitutional documents, or in
absence of such provision by resolution of its aives or other governing body, authorise such peesoit thinks fit to act as
representative at any meeting of the Company @ngfclass of Members, and the person so authosisaltl be entitled to exerci
the same powers on behalf of the corporation whihepresents as the corporation could exerciseére an individual Member.
person entitled to more than one vote on a polime use all his votes or cast all the votes les irsthe same way.

84. Shares in the Company that are beneficiallyeivoy the Company shall not be voted, directlynadiirectly, at any meeting a
shall not be counted in determining the total nuntdeutstanding Shares at any given time.

CORPORATE REPRESENTATIVES

85. Any corporation which is a Member of the Compamay, by resolution of its directors or other gaweg body or by power
attorney, authorise such person as it thinks fédbas its representative at any meeting of thegamy or of members of any clas:
Shares of the Company and the person so authasfeddbe entitled to exercise the same powers balbef the corporation whic
be represents as that corporation could exercisiewere an individual member of the Company andcergha corporation is
represented, it shall be treated as being presamyameeting in person.

CLEARING HOUSES

86. If a clearing house (or its nominee) is a manafehe Company it may, by resolution of its diars or other governing body
by power of attorney, authorise such person orqmsras it
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thinks fit to act as its representative or représeres at any general meeting of the Company angtgeneral meeting of any clas
members of the Company provided that, if more tha@ person is so authorised, the authorisation spatify the number and cl:
of Shares in respect of which each such persoo @uthorised. A person so authorised pursuantisgptiovision shall be entitled
exercise the same powers on behalf of the cledminge (or its nominee) which he represents asctbating house (or its nomine
could exercise if it were an individual memberlod Company holding the number and class of Shaessfied in such authorisatic

DIRECTORS

87. The number of Directors shall be eight or satther number as shall be fixed from time to timethg Directors; provided
however, that so long as Shares or ADSs of the Companygaoted on Nasdaq, the Directors shall include suaeimber ¢
Independent Directors as applicable law, rulesgulations or the Nasdaq Rules require.

88. Directors shall be elected at each annual géneeting, and shall hold office until such tinsethey are removed from office
Ordinary Resolution or the unanimous written cons#nall the shareholders. If for any cause, theeBtors shall not have be
elected at an annual general meeting, they maydoted as soon thereafter as convenient at anogglirary general meeting of i
Members called for that purpose in the manner plexviin these Articles.

89. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of idlg 88, each Director shall serve until his susoess duly elected and qualifi
or until his death, resignation or removal. No @éase in the number of Directors constituting tharBcshall shorten the term of ¢
incumbent Director.

90. Subject to Article 108, the remuneration toplaéd to the Directors shall be such remuneratiothasirectors shall determit
Such remuneration shall be deemed to accrue frgntadday. The Directors shall also be entitled égolid their travelling, hotel a
other expenses properly incurred by them in goingittending and returning from meetings of theeBtiors, or any committee of 1
Directors, or general meetings of the Company,tbemvise in connection with the business of the Gany, or to receive a fix
allowance in respect thereof as may be determigeatiéoDirectors from time to time, or a combinatpmartly of one such method ¢
partly the other.

91. Subject to Article 108, the Directors may bgalation award special remuneration to any Direcfothe Company undertaki
any special work or services for, or undertaking sipecial mission on behalf of, the Company othanthis ordinary routine work
a Director. Any fees paid to a Director who is atsmunsel or solicitor to the Company, or otherwsseves it in a professior
capacity shall be in addition to his remuneratismdirector.

92. Payment to any Director or past Director of amyn by way of compensation for loss of office ercansideration for or

connection with his retirement from office (not figia payment to which the Director is contractuathitled) must first be approv
by the Company in general meeting.
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93. A Director or alternate Director may hold ariier office or place of profit under the Companthé than the office of Audito
in conjunction with his office of Director for sugkeriod and on such terms as to remuneration amehwise as the Directors m
determine.

94. A Director or alternate Director may act by ketf or his firm in a professional capacity for tiempany and he or his firm sh
be entitled to remuneration for professional sawias if he were not a Director or alternate Dinect

95. A shareholding qualification for Directors magt be fixed by the Company in general meeting.

96. The Company shall keep at its Registered Officgegister of Directors and officers containingittmames and addresses
occupations and other particulars required by the Bnd shall send to the Registrar of CompanigheofCayman Islands a copy
such register and shall from time to time notifythe Registrar of Companies of the Cayman Islamyschange that takes place
relation to such Directors and officers as requbgdpplicable law, rules or regulations or the ddasRules.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

97. A Director who expects to be unable to attericed@ors’ Meetings because of absence, illness or otherwise appoint an
person to be an alternate Director to act in hesdtand such appointee whilst he holds office aalt@nnate Director shall, in tt
event of absence therefrom of his appointor, biletto attend meetings of the Directors and ttewbereat and to do, in the ple
and stead of his appointor, any other act or tiihgh his appointor is permitted or required toljovirtue of his being a Director
if the alternate Director were the appointor, ottiemn appointment of an alternate to himself, aadlmall ipso facto vacate office
and when his appointor ceases to be a Directoerapves the appointee from office. Any appointmentamoval under this Articl
shall be effected by notice in writing under thedhaf the Director making the same.

98. The appointment of an alternate Director stietermine on the happening of any event which, vaera Director, would cau:
him to vacate such office or if his appointor cesagebe a Director.

99. An alternate Director shall be entitled to reeeand waive (in lieu of his appointor) noticesnoéetings of the Directors and st
be entitled to attend and vote as a Director andooated in the quorum at any such meeting at wtietDirector appointing him
not personally present and generally at such mgeétiperform all the functions of his appointoraaBirector and for the purposes
the proceedings at such meeting the provisionbede Articles shall apply as if he (instead ofdppointor) were a Director. If
shall be himself a Director or shall attend anyhsoteeting as an alternate for more than one Direbie voting rights shall b
cumulative and he need not use all his votes dratbthe votes to uses in the same way. To sutdnéxas the Board may from tir
to time determine in relation to any committeetaf Board, the foregoing provisions of this Artisleall also applynutatis mutandi
to any meeting of any such committee
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of which his appointor is a member. An alternateeBlior shall not, save as aforesaid, have powactas a Director nor shall he
deemed to be a Director for the purposes of thetelds.

100. An alternate Director shall be entitled to tcact and be interested in and benefit from cotgraarrangements or transactic
and to be repaid expenses and to be indemnifigdetsame extermhutatis mutandiss if he were a Director, but he shall not
entitled to receive from the Company in respechisfappointment as alternate Director any remuigeraxcept only such part |
any) of the remuneration otherwise payable to pgo@tor as such appointor may by notice in writtaghe Company from time
time direct. The alternate Director, as well as Eheector appointing such alternate Director, sl responsible for the alterni
Director’s own acts and defaults.

101. In addition to the foregoing provisions ofsttirticle, a Director may be represented at anytimgeof the Board (or of an
committee of the Board) by a proxy appointed by ,hisnwhich event the presence or vote of the preixgll for all purposes t
deemed to be that of the Director. A proxy needhiaiself be a Director and the provisions of AgEI79 to 84 shall appiynutatis
mutandisto the appointment of proxies by Directors save #rainstrument appointing a proxy shall not becanwalid after the
expiration of twelve months from its date of exémutbut shall remain valid for such period as th&fiument shall provide or, if r
such provision is made in the instrument, untilolead in writing and save also that a Director mpgaint any number of proxie
although only one such proxy may attend in hiscsetaneetings of the Board).

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

102. Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Mesndum and the Articles and to any directions gigrSpecial Resolution, tf
business of the Company shall be managed by thecils who may exercise all the powers of the Camppblo alteration of th
Memorandum or Articles and no such direction shalthlidate any prior act of the Directors which Wainave been valid if th:
alteration had not been made or that direction f@tcbeen given. A duly convened meeting of the &ors at which a quorum
present may exercise all powers exercisable bipttextors.

103. The Directors may from time to time and at #ime by power of attorney or otherwise appoint @oynpany, firm, person «
body of persons, whether nominated directly orriectly by the Directors, to be the attorney or atiged signatory of the Compa
for such purpose and with such powers, authordies discretions (not exceeding those vested inxercesable by the Directo
under these Articles) and for such period and suitigesuch conditions as they may think fit, ang auch powers of attorney or ott
appointment may contain such provisions for theqmtion and convenience of persons dealing withsamh attorneys or authoris
signatories as the Directors may think fit and rakp authorise any such attorney or authorisechtigy to delegate all or any of t
powers, authorities and discretions vested in him.

104. All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bifl@xchange and other negotiable instruments ancedlipts for monies paid to t
Company shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed

-23-




otherwise executed as the case may be in such mastiee Directors shall from time to time by resioin determine.
105. The Directors shall cause minutes to be madedoks provided for the purpose:
(a) of all appointments of officers made by theedtors;

(b) of the names of the Directors (including thosgresented thereat by an alternate or by proxggemt at each meeting of
Directors and of any committee of the Directors;

(c) of all resolutions and proceedings at all meagtiof the Company and of the Directors and of cdteas of Directors.

106. The Directors on behalf of the Company may gayatuity or pension or allowance on retiremerdarty Director who has he
any other salaried office or place of profit wittetCompany or to his widow or dependants and mdgeroantributions to any fui
and pay premiums for the purchase or provisiomgfsauch gratuity, pension or allowance.

107. The Directors may exercise all the powerhefGompany to borrow money and to mortgage or ehigsgundertaking, prope!
and uncalled capital or any part thereof and toestebentures, debenture stock and other secwitiether outright or as security
any debt, liability or obligation of the Companyadrany third party.

MANAGEMENT

108. (a) The Directors may from time to time pravidr the management of the affairs of the Comparguch manner as they st
think fit and the provisions contained in the nfottowing paragraphs shall be without prejudicetie general powers conferred
this paragraph.

(b) The Directors from time to time and at any timay establish any committees, local boards or @gerior managing any
the affairs of the Company and may appoint anyger$o be members of such committees or local saardny managers or age
and may fix their remuneration.

(c) The Directors from time to time and at any timay delegate to any such committee, local boaethager or agent any
the powers, authorities and discretions for theetbming vested in the Directors and may authohieartembers for the time being
any such local board, or any of them to fill up asagancies therein and to act notwithstanding veiearand any such appointmen
delegation may be made on such terms and subjsactoconditions as the Directors may think fit #mel Directors may at any tir
remove any person so appointed and may annul grarar such delegation, but no person dealing irddaith and without notice
any such annulment or variation shall be affechedeby.

(d) Any such delegates as aforesaid may be audublig the Directors to subdelegate all or any efgbwers, authorities, a
discretions for the time being vested in them.
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(e) Without prejudice to the freedom of the Direstt establish any other committees, for so lontha#ADSs of the Compa
are listed or quoted on Nasdagq, it shall estalaisth maintain an Audit Committee as a committeéheftioard, the composition ¢
responsibilities of which shall comply with applita law, rules or regulations and the Nasdaq Rules.

(f) The Board shall adopt a formal written audituittee charter and review and assess the adeadatye formal writtel
charter on an annual basis. The charter shall comiph applicable law, rules or regulations and Hesdaq Rules.

(g) Without prejudice to the freedom of the Diragstto establish any other committees, the Board establish a Compensat
Committee to assist the board in reviewing and @ppg the compensation structure for the compsualfectors and officers. For
long as the ADSs of the Company are listed or guate Nasdaqg, the composition and responsibilititshe Compensatic
Committee shall comply with applicable law, rulesegulations and the Nasdaqg Rules.

(h) The Board shall adopt a formal written compéinsacommittee charter and review and assess thgquadty of the form
written charter on an annual basis. The chartdl sbaply with applicable law, rules or regulatioasd the Nasdaq Rules.

(i) Without prejudice to the freedom of the Direstdo establish any other committees, the Board esdgblish a Corpore
Governance and Nomination Committee to assist tedbin identifying qualified individuals to beconb®ard members and
determining the composition of the board and itmeittees. For so long as the ADSs of the Compaayisted or quoted on Nasd
the composition and responsibilities of the Corpoaovernance and Nomination Committee shall corlly applicable law, rule
or regulations and the Nasdaq Rules.

(j) If the Board chooses to establish a CorporateegBhance and Nomination Committee, the Board sttdpt a formal writte
governance and nomination committee charter anéweand assess the adequacy of the formal writhanter on an annual ba:
The charter shall comply with applicable law, rubesegulations and the Nasdaq Rules.

INTERESTED DIRECTORS

109. (i) No Director or proposed Director shall disqualified by his office from contracting withelCompany either as venc
purchaser or otherwise, (ii) nor shall any suchti@at or any contract or arrangement entered igtorbon behalf of the Compa
with any person, company or partnership of or iriclwtany Director shall be a member or otherwisergdgted be capable on 1
account of being voidable or voided, (iii) nor stealy such contract or arrangement be voidableoaed solely because the Direc
is present at or participates in the meeting of Directors or committee thereof which authorizes tontract or arrangement,
solely because the Directongdtes are counted for such purpose, and (iv) nall siny Director so contracting or being any mer
or so interested be liable to account to the Companany profit so realised by any such contrachwangement by reason only
such Director holding that office or the
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fiduciary relationship, thereby established, preddthat in each such case (a) such Director shaflisifinterest in such contract
arrangement is material, declare the nature ohtasest at the earliest meeting of the Board atkh is practicable for him to do ¢
either specifically or by way of a general notitatieg that, by reason of the facts specified ia tiotice, he is to be regardec
interested in any contracts of a specified desonpivhich may subsequently be made by the Compady(l) if such contract
arrangement is a Related Party Transaction, sutdtdRieParty Transaction has been approved in aanoedwith applicable law
rules, regulations and the Nasdaq Rules.

110. Any Director may continue to be or becomeraaior, managing director, joint managing directitgputy managing direct
executive director, manager or other officer or memof any other company in which the Company maynterested and (unle
otherwise agreed between the Company and the Dijawd such Director shall be liable to accountht® Company or the memb
for any remuneration or other benefits receivechby as a director, managing director, joint manggiirector, deputy managi
director, executive director, manager or otherceffior member of any such other company. The Qireanay exercise the voti
powers conferred by the shares in any other compaty or owned by the Company, or exercisable leynttas directors of su
other company in such manner in all respects astthiak fit (including the exercise thereof in fawoof any resolution appointi
themselves or any of them directors, managing ttirecjoint managing directors; deputy managingaiors, executive directo
managers or other officers of such company) andGimctor may vote in favour of the exercise oflswoting rights in the mann
aforesaid notwithstanding that he may be, or isuabm be, appointed a director, managing diregnt managing director, dept
managing director, executive director, managertioeroofficer of such a company, and that as sucis be may become interestec
the exercise of such voting rights in the manneresfaid.

111. A Director may hold any other office or plaxfeprofit with the Company (except that of Auditam)conjunction with his offic
of Director for such period and upon such termghasBoard may determine, and may be paid such egtraineration theref
(whether by way of salary, commission, participatio profit or otherwise) as the Board may deteemend such extra remunera
shall be in addition to any remuneration providedidy or pursuant to any other Article.

112. A general notice or disclosure to the Dirextor otherwise contained in the minutes of a Mgetina written resolution of tl
Directors or any committee thereof that a Directoalternate Director is a shareholder of any $petfirm or company and is to
regarded as interested in any transaction with $mchor company shall be sufficient disclosure endvrticle 109 and after su
general notice it shall not be necessary to gieeigp notice relating to any particular transaction

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS
113. Except as otherwise provided by these Artjcthe Directors shall meet together for the degpatic business, convenir

adjourning and otherwise regulating their meetiagshey think fit. Questions arising at any meetihgll be decided by a majority
votes of the Directors and
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alternate Directors present at a meeting at whiehetis a quorum, the vote of an alternate Direntdbeing counted if his appoin
be present at such meeting.

114. The Chairman of the Board or any two Directoesy, and the Secretary on the requisition of quetsons, shall, at any til
summon a meeting of the Directors by notice to eBalector and alternate Director by telephone, ifads, electronic emai
telegraph or telex, during normal business hourgast twentyfour (24) hours before the date and time of thetmggor by sendin
notice in writing to each Director and alternatedotor by first class mail, charges prepaid, astiéao (2) days before the date of
meeting, which notice shall set forth the genegalire of the business to be considered unlessenistiwaived by all the Directors |
their alternates) either at, before or after theting is held and provided further if notice is@ivin person, by telephone, facsirn
electronic email, telegraph or telex the same sbhalldeemed to have been given on the day it iwvateli to the Directors
transmitting organisation as the case may be. Thalental omission to give notice of a meeting fed Directors to, or the non-
receipt of notice of a meeting by any person etitb receive notice shall not invalidate the peadliegs of that meeting.

115. The quorum necessary for the transaction ebtisiness of the Directors shall be establishednifajority of the Directors &
present in person or by proxy. A meeting at whiduarum is initially present may continue to trastdausiness notwithstanding
withdrawal of Directors, if any action taken is apyed by at least a majority of the required quoriomthat meeting. For tl
purposes of this Article an alternate Director myXy appointed by a Director shall be counted guarum at a meeting at which
Director appointing him is not present.

116. The continuing Directors may act notwithstagdiny vacancy in their body, but if and so londghesr number is reduced bel
the number fixed by or pursuant to these Articleshee necessary quorum of Directors, the continimgctors or Director may &
for the purpose of increasing the number of Directo that number, or of summoning a general mgetfrthe Company, but for |
other purpose.

117. The Directors may elect a Chairman of theiafloand determine the period for which he is tadhaffice; but if no suc
Chairman is elected, or if at any meeting the Chair is not present within five minutes after thediappointed for holding t
same, the Directors present may choose one ofrthaiber to be Chairman of the meeting.

118. All acts done by any meeting of the Directorsof a committee of Directors (including any persacting as an altern:
Director) shall, notwithstanding that it be afterds discovered that there was some defect in tpeiapnent of any Director
alternate Director, or that they or any of them evdisqualified, be as valid as if every such persad been duly appointed ¢
qualified to be a Director or alternate Directoltlas case may be.

119. Members of the Directors or of any committeeréof may participate in a meeting of the Diregtor of such committee
means of conference telephone or similar communitsitequipment by means of which all persons pp#imng in the meeting ci
hear each other and participation in a meetingyauntsto this provision shall constitute presenceenmson at such meeting. Unl
otherwise determined by the Directors the meethgl e deemed to be held at the place where tlar@an is at the start of t
meeting. A resolution in writing (in one or more
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counterparts), signed by all the Directors for tinge being or all the members of a committee ofBiirectors (an alternate Direc
being entitled to sign such resolution on behalfisfappointor) shall be as valid and effectuaf #shad been passed at a meetin
the Directors or committee as the case may beahryened and held.

120. A Director but not an alternate Director mayrbpresented at any meetings of the Directors oy appointed in writing k
him. The proxy shall count towards the quorum drewote of the proxy shall for all purposes be degto be that of the appointi
Director.

VACATION OF OFFICE OF DIRECTOR
121. The office of a Director shall be vacated:
(a) if he gives notice in writing to the Compangtie resigns the office of Director; or

(b) if all of the Directors (other than the onebi® removed) pass a resolution or sign a noticetiffg the removal of such o
Director from his office as such; or

(c) if he is prohibited from being a Director undey applicable law, rules or regulations and thedaq Rules; or

(d) if he absents himself (without being represeritg proxy or an alternate Director appointed by)hirom three consecuti
meetings of the Board of Directors without spetéglve of absence from the Directors, and they passsolution that he has
reason of such absence vacated office; or

(e) if he dies, becomes bankrupt or makes any geraent or composition with his creditors generaily;
() if he is found to be or becomes of unsound mind
APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

122. The Company may by Ordinary Resolution appaint person to be a Director and may by OrdinargoRgion remove ar
Director and may by Ordinary Resolution appointtaaroperson in his stead.

123. The Directors shall have power at any time famch time to time to appoint any person to be eeEtor, either to fill a cast
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Direcbursso that the total amount of Directors (exalasif alternate Directors) shall |
at any time exceed the number fixed in accordanitie these Articles. Any Director appointed in aatamce with the precedi
sentence shall hold office only until the next daing annual general meeting of the Company andl #ien be eligible for re-
election at that meeting.
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124. Nothing in these Articles should be taken agriding a Director removed under any provisionstioése Articles ¢
compensation or damages payable to him in resgebedermination of his appointment as Directorobany other appointment
office as a result of the termination of his appwiant as Director or derived from any power to reena Director which may ex
apart from the provisions of these Articles.

PRESUMPTION OF ASSENT

125. A Director of the Company who is present ateeting of the Board of Directors at which actionany Company matter
taken shall be presumed to have assented to tioe &gken unless his dissent shall be enteredeiiviimutes of the meeting or unli
he shall file his written dissent from such actiwith the person acting as the Chairman or Secratlrhe meeting before t
adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissgntdgistered post to such person immediately #fieadjournment of the meeti
Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Direetbio voted in favour of such action.

SEAL

126. (a) The Company may, if the Directors so aeiee, have a Seal. The Seal shall only be usetidwauthority of the Directors
of a committee of the Directors authorised by thee@ors. Every instrument to which the Seal haanbaffixed shall be signed by
least one person who shall be either a Direct@oate officer or other person appointed by the Binscfor the purpose.

(b) The Company may have for use in any place acqd outside the Cayman Islands a duplicate Sea¢als each of whi
shall be a facsimile of the Common Seal of the Camypand, if the Directors so determine, with thditoin on its face of the nar
of every place where it is to be used.

(c) A Director or officer, representative or atteynmay without further authority of the Directorffixathe Seal over h
signature alone to any document of the Companyimedjto be authenticated by him under Seal or téiled with the Registrar
Companies in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere wheves.

OFFICERS

127. The officers of the Company shall be the Ghair of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, Ghiancial Officer and tt
Secretary and may include one or more Vice Pretsdmmd one or more Assistant Secretaries and oneg Assistant Treasure
Any two or more offices may be held by the sameqer
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128. All officers shall have such authority andfpan such duties in the management of the Companyay be provided in the
Articles or, to the extent not so provided, by teton of the Board.

129. Each officer shall be appointed by the Boaudl ghall hold office for such term as may be deteech by the Board. Each offic
shall hold office until his successor has been ayped and qualified or his earlier death or restgmaor removal in the manr
hereinafter provided. The Board may require aniceffto give security for the faithful performanafhis duties.

130. Any officer may resign at any time by givingitten notice to the Board, the Chairman, the Cligécutive Officer or tr
Secretary. Such resignation shall take effectatithe specified in such notice or, if the timenme specified, upon receipt thereol
the Board, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Offioe the Secretary, as the case may be. Unlesswotiee specified therei
acceptance of such resignation shall not be negessaake it effective.

131. All officers and agents appointed by the Badrdll be subject to removal, with or without caueteany time by the Board or
the action of the holders of record of a majorityhee shares entitled to vote thereon.

132. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the Gmany, for any reason, shall be filled by actiontltod Board. Unless earl
removed pursuant to Article 131 hereof, any offiggpointed by the Board to fill any such vacancglisterve only until such time
the unexpired term of his predecessor expires sméggppointed by the Board.

DIVIDENDS, DISTRIBUTIONS AND RESERVE

133. Subject to the Law, the Directors may frometito time declare dividends (including interim diends) and distributions
Shares of the Company outstanding and authorise@atyof the same out of the funds of the Compawfuldy available therefor.

134. The Directors may, before declaring any dinate or distributions, set aside such sums as thiek proper as a reserve
reserves which shall at the discretion of the Does; be applicable for any purpose of the Compamy pending such applicati
may, at the like discretion, be employed in theitess of the Company.

135. No dividend or distribution shall be payaleept out of the profits of the Company, realisediorealised, or out of the Sh
Premium Account or as otherwise permitted by the.La

136. Subject to the rights of persons, if any, tlmttito Shares with special rights as to dividendglistributions, if dividends
distributions are to be declared on a class of &htirey shall be declared and paid according t@atheunts paid or credited as f
on the Shares of such class outstanding on thedeataie for such dividend or distribution as deteed in accordance with the
Articles but no amount paid or credited as paiga@hare in advance of calls shall be treated fptirpose of this Article as paid
the Share.
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137. The Directors may deduct from any dividendistribution payable to any Member all sums of mo(ieany) presently payak
by him to the Company on account of calls or othgew

138. The Board may, with the sanction of the Meraliergeneral meeting, direct that any dividend ditesed wholly or in part k
the distribution of specific assets of any kind amgbarticular of paid up shares, debentures orams to subscribe securities of
other company, or in any one or more of such wagd, where any difficulty arises in regard to thetrifbution the Board may sel
the same as it thinks expedient, and in partiomlay disregard fractional entitlements, round theesap or down or provide that
same shall accrue to the benefit of the Comparny naay fix the value for distribution of such spéc#ssets, or any part thereof,
may determine that cash payments shall be madeyt&ambers upon the footing of the value so fixedider to adjust the rights
all parties and may vest any such specific asgettustees as may seem expedient to the Board agdappoint any person to s
any requisite instruments of transfer and otheuduwmnts on behalf of the persons entitled to theddind and such appointment s
be effective. Where required, a contract shallileel fin accordance with the provisions of the Coniga Law and the Board m
appoint any person to sign such contract on betfidlfe persons entitled to the dividend and sugoegment shall be effective.

139. Unless otherwise directed by the Board, amigdend, interest or other sum payable in cashholder of Shares may be paid
cheque or warrant sent through the post to thestergid address of the member entitled, or, in #se ©f joint holders, to t
registered address of the person whose name dfiestdis the register in respect of the joint holgior to such person and to s
address as the holder or joint holders may in mgitiirect. Every cheque or warrant so sent shathde payable to the order of
holder or, in the case of joint holders, to theeordf the holder whose name stands first on thistegin respect of such shares
shall be sent at his or their risk, and the payneérstny such cheque or warrant by the bank on whichdrawn shall operate a
good discharge to the Company in respect of thieleind and/or bonus represented thereby, notwitdstgrihat it may subsequer
appear that the same has been stolen or than doysement thereon has been forged.

140. The Company may cease sending such chequedividend entitlements or dividend warrants by pidstuch cheques
warrants have been left uncashed on two consecatiasions. However, the Company may exerciseoitgep to cease sendi
cheques for dividend entitlements or dividend watsaafter the first occasion on which such a cheguevarrant is returne
undelivered.

141. All dividends or bonuses unclaimed for oneryadter having been declared may be invested aerotise made use of by |
Board for the exclusive benefit of the Company luriiimed and the Company shall not be constitatédistee in respect thereo
be required to account for any money earned ther&brdividends or bonuses unclaimed for six yeafter having been declai
may be forfeited by the Board and shall reverthis €ompany and after such forfeiture no membertoergperson shall have ¢
right to or claim in respect of such dividends onbses.

142. No dividend or distribution shall bear intéragainst the Company.
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UNTRACEABLE SHAREHOLDERS

143. (a) The Company shall be entitled to sell ahgres of a member or the shares to which a péssentitled by virtue ¢
transmission on death or bankruptcy or operatidawfif and provided that:

(i) all cheques or warrants, not being less thaeethn number, for any sums payable in cash tdtdtéer of such shar
have remained uncashed for a period of 12 years;

(il) the Company has not during that time or befibve expiry of the three month period referrednt@aragraph (iv) belo
received any indication of the whereabouts or eris¢ of the member or person entitled to such shayedeath, bankruptcy
operation of law;

(iii) during the 12year period, at least three dividends in respedhefshares in question have become payable &
dividend during that period has been claimed byntlkeenber; and

(iv) upon expiry of the 13ear period, the Company has caused an advertisgmbe published in the newspapers ¢
electronic communication in the manner in whichicex may be served by the Company by electronionmea herein provide
giving notice of its intention to sell such sharasd a period of three months have elapsed sirateadvertisement.

The net proceeds of any such sale shall belonggdCompany and upon receipt by the Company of setlproceeds
shall become indebted to the former member fomaoumt equal to such net proceeds.

(b) To give effect to any sale contemplated by gaxph (a) the Company may appoint any person touteeas transferor
instrument of transfer of the said shares and stitér documents as are necessary to effect theféraimand such documents shal
as effective as if it had been executed by thesteggd holder of or person entitled by transmisstosuch shares and the title of
transferee shall not be affected by any irregylanit invalidity in the proceedings relating therelde net proceeds of sale s
belong to the Company which shall be obliged toaat to the former member or other person previoestitled as aforesaid for
amount equal to such proceeds and shall enteraime rof such former member or other person in tlekdof the Company as
creditor for such amount. No trust shall be create@spect of the debt, and no interest shalldyaple in respect of the same anc
Company shall not be required to account for anpegcearned on the net proceeds, which may be eeglioythe business of t
Company or invested in such investments (other diianes or other securities in or of the Compariysdrolding company if any)
as the Board may from time to time think fit.

CAPITALISATION

144. Upon the recommendation of the Directors,Gbenpany may by Ordinary Resolution authorise thedors to capitalise a
sum standing to the credit of any of the Compangserve accounts (including Share Premium Accaudt capital redemptit
reserve fund) or any sum standing to the credjprofit and loss account or otherwise availabledistribution and to approprie
such sum to Members in the proportions in whicthssiem would have been divisible
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amongst them had the same been a distributionofitgby way of dividend and to apply such sum legirt behalf in paying up in fu
unissued Shares for allotment and distribution iteddas fully paid up to and amongst them in th@pprtion aforesaid. In such ev
the Directors shall do all acts and things requiedive effect to such capitalisation, with futhyer to the Directors to make s
provisions as they think fit for the case of Shdsesoming distributable in fractions (including pisions whereby the benefit
fractional entittements accrue to the Company rathan to the Members concerned). The Directors mahorise any person
enter on behalf of all of the Members interestdd #in agreement with the Company providing for scapitalisation and matte
incidental thereto and any agreement made undérautbority shall be effective and binding on ahcerned.

BOOKS OF ACCOUNT
145. The Directors shall cause proper books of aticto be kept with respect to:

(a) all sums of money received and expended byCibrmpany and the matters in respect of which theipe®r expenditul
takes place;

(b) all sales and purchases of goods by the Com ey
(c) the assets and liabilities of the Company.

Proper books shall not be deemed to be kept iether not kept such books of account as are negdesgive a true and fair view
the state of the Company’s affairs and to explaitransactions.

146. The Directors shall from time to time detereniwhether and to what extent and at what times @ades and under wt
conditions or regulations the accounts and bookh@fCompany or any of them shall be open to thpdntion of Members not bei

Directors and no Member (not being a Director) Ishave any right of inspecting any account or booklocument of the Compa
except as conferred by Law or authorised by theddars or by the Company in general meeting.

147. The Directors may from time to time caused@lepared and to be laid before the Company iergémeeting profit and lo
accounts, balance sheets, group accounts (if amy¥ach other reports and accounts as may be eeljoyrlaw.

ANNUAL RETURNS AND FILINGS

148. The Board shall make the requisite annuatmetand any other requisite filings in accordanié the Law.
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AUDIT

149. The Directors may appoint an Auditor of ther(any who shall hold office until removed from o#iby a resolution of tl
Directors and may fix his or their remuneration.tiithstanding the above, for so long as the ADSghef Company are listed
quoted on Nasdaq, the Audit Committee is direcflgponsible for the appointment, remuneration, séd@nand oversight of tl
Company’s Auditors.

150. Every Auditor of the Company shall have atrighaccess at all times to the books and accaamdsvouchers of the Compe
and shall be entitled to require from the Directansl Officers of the Company such information axplanation as may be neces:
for the performance of the duties of the auditors.

151. Auditors shall, if so required by the Direstomake a report on the accounts of the Comparipgitheir tenure of office at tl
next annual general meeting following their appoi@nt in the case of a company which is registeriél tve Registrar of Compan
as an ordinary company, and at the next extraorgigeneral meeting following their appointmentfire tcase of a company whict
registered with the Registrar of Companies as amgxed company, and at any time during their tefwfface, upon request of tl
Directors or any general meeting of the Members.

NOTICES

152. Notices shall be in writing and may be giventhe Company to any Member in accordance with iagple law, rules ¢
regulations and the Nasdaq Rules.

153. In the event that no such law, rules and adguis referred to in the above Article appliegjgeto any Member shall be giv
either personally or by sending it by post, catdéex, fax or email to him or to his address as shown in the tegisf Members (¢
where the notice is given by e-mail by sendingithe email address provided by such Member). Any notitppsted from on
country to another, is to be sent airmail.

154. (a) Where a notice is sent by post, servicth®motice shall be deemed to be effected by pippeldressing, preaying an
posting a letter containing the notice, and shaltbemed to have been received on the fifth dayifetuding Saturdays or Sund:
or public holidays) following the day on which thetice was posted.

155. (b) Where a notice is sent by cable, telexaxy service of the notice shall be deemed toffexed by properly addressing, «
sending such notice and shall be deemed to haverbeeived on the same day that it was transmitted.

156. (c) Where a natice is given by e-mail sensgball be deemed to be effected by transmittingettmeail to the enail addres

provided by the intended recipient and shall bentmkto have been received on the same day thasitsent, and it shall not
necessary for the receipt of the e-mail to be askexged by the recipient.
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157. A notice may be given by the Company to thrsqre or persons which the Company has been adaisedntitled to a Share
Shares in consequence of the death or bankruptayMémber in the same manner as other notices veriehmequired to be giv
under these Articles and shall be addressed to themame, or by the title of representatives of deeeased, or trustee of
bankrupt, or by any like description at the addsegsplied for that purpose by the persons claiminge so entitled, or at the opt
of the Company by giving the notice in any manmehich the same might have been given if the deathankruptcy had n
occurred.

158. Notice of every general meeting shall be gimeany manner hereinbefore authorised to:

(a) every person shown as a Member in the regidtdtembers on the record date for such meetingpxitet in the case
joint holders the notice shall be sufficient if givto the joint holder first named in the registetMembers

(b) every person upon whom the ownership of a Stlavelves by reason of his being a legal pers@amksentative or a trus
in bankruptcy of a Member of record where the Memdfeecord but for his death or bankruptcy woukddntitled to receive noti
of the meeting;

(c) the Auditors;

(d) each Director and alternate Director; and

(e) Nasdaq.

No other person shall be entitled to receive netimfegeneral meetings.
INFORMATION

159. No Member shall be entitled to require disegwad or any information in respect of any detdiltlle Companys trading or an
which is or may be in the nature of a trade semretecret process which may relate to the conduttteobusiness of the Comps
and which in the opinion of the Board would notitbéhe interests of the Members of the Companyotoraunicate to the public.

160. The Board shall be entitled to release ofakscany information in its possession, custodgamtrol regarding the Company
its affairs to any of its Members including, withdimitation, information contained in the registfrMembers and transfer books
the Company.

WINDING UP

161. Subject to Article 136, if the Company shadlwound up the liquidator may, with the sanctioradbpecial Resolution of t
Company and any other sanction required by the Idawidle amongst the Members in kind the whole or part of the assets of 1
Company (whether they shall consist of propertyhef same kind or not) and may for that purposeevaluy assets and detern
how the division shall be carried out as betweenMiembers or different classes of
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Members. The liquidator may, with the like sanctieast the whole or any part of such assets irtdessupon such trusts for
benefit of the Members as the liquidator, with like sanction, shall think fit, but so that no Meentshall be compelled to accept
asset upon which there is a liability.

162. If the Company shall be wound up, and thetasaailable for distribution amongst the Membéhallsbe insufficient to rep:
the whole of the share capital, such assets sbalidtributed so that, as nearly as may be, treefoshall be borne by the Membel
proportion to the par value of the Shares heldhgyrt If in a winding up the assets available fatribution amongst the Memb:
shall be more than sufficient to repay the wholghaf share capital at the commencement of the windp, the surplus shall

distributed amongst the Members in proportion ®® plar value of the Shares held by them at the coroemeent of the winding 1
subject to a deduction from those Shares in resgfeshich there are monies due, of all monies peyatthe Company for unpe
calls or otherwise. This Article is without prejadito the rights of the holders of Shares issuexh gjpecial terms and conditions.

INDEMNITY

163. (a) The Company shall indemnify each Direenod officer of the Company against any lossesmdaidamages, liabilitie
judgments, fines, obligations, expenses and ligsliof any kind or nature whatsoever (includinguty investigative, legal and ot
expenses incurred in connection with, and any ansopaid in settlement of, any pending or threatdegdl action or proceedini
that such director and officer may at any time Ibeesubject to or liable for in connection with ofai brought against any of them
behalf of the Company or by a third party in contimecwith any of their status as a director or ¢gfi of the Company or any of th
service to or on behalf of the Company to the maxmextent permitted under applicable law.

(b) The Company may indemnify any person who was arparty or is threatened to be made a paryyathreatened, pendi
or completed action, suit or proceeding, whetheit,griminal, administrative or investigative (@&hthan an action by or in the rii
of the Company) by reason of the fact that thegreis or was a director, officer, employee or ag#fnthe Company, or is or w
serving at the request of the Company as a direatficer, employee or agent of another Companytneaship, joint venture, trust
other enterprise, against expenses (includingradja’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in sedttéractually and reasona
incurred by the person in connection with suchomctsuit or proceeding if the person acted in gfatth, in a manner the pers
reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed te,hibst interests of the Company, in a manner tlaast mot willfully or grossl
negligent, and, with respect to any criminal actmmproceeding, had no reasonable cause to beffevgersors conduct we
unlawful. The termination of any action, suit oopeeding by judgment, order, settlement, convigtimnupon a plea of nc
contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itset€ate a presumption that the person did notragbod faith, in a manner which -
person reasonably believed to be in or not opptsdtie best interests of the Company, in a marmarwas willfully or grossl
negligent, and, with respect to any criminal act@mnproceeding, had reasonable cause to believetltbapersors conduct we
unlawful.
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(c) The Company may indemnify any person who was arparty or is threatened to be made a partpydtaeatened, pendi
or completed action or suit by or in the right loé tCompany to procure a judgment in its favor lasom of the fact that the perso
or was a director, officer, employee or agent ef @ompany, or is or was serving at the requesiofompany as a director, offic
employee or agent of another Company, partner$biigt, venture, trust or other enterprise againgiesses (including attorneys’
fees) actually and reasonably incurred by the pems@onnection with the defense or settlementuchsaction or suit if the pers
acted in good faith, in a manner the person reddpieelieved to be in or not opposed to the berésts of the Company and i
manner that was not willfully or grossly negligeekcept that no indemnification shall be made ispeet of any claim, issue
matter as to which such person shall have beerdgeéglito be liable to the Company unless and ontd¢oextent that the court
which such action or suit was brought shall deteemipon application that, despite the adjudicatbliability but in view of all th
circumstances of the case, such person is faiidyraasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenshich such court shall de:
proper.

(d) To the extent that a present or former directoofficer of the Company has been successfuhennterits or otherwise
defense of any action, suit or proceeding refetoeid Article 163(a) or (b) above, or in defenseaal claim, issue or matter there
such person shall be indemnified against experisekiding attorneysfees) actually and reasonably incurred by suchopeis
connection therewith.

(e) Any indemnification under Article 163(a) or @ove (unless ordered by a court) shall be madidyCompany only |
authorised in the specific case upon a determindtiat indemnification of the present or formeredior, officer, employee or ag
is proper in the circumstances, including whettremai the person has met the applicable standacdraduct set forth in Article 163
(&) or (b) above. Such determination shall be madth respect to a person who is a director orceffiat the time of su
determination, (i) by a majority vote of the direct who are not parties to such action, suit oceeding, even though less the
quorum, or (ii) by a committee of such directorsigeated by majority vote of such directors, eveough less than a quorum,
(iii) if there are no such directors, or if sucheditors so direct, by independent legal counsed inritten opinion or (iv) by tt
Members of the Company.

(f) Expenses (including attorneyfes) incurred by an officer or director in defergliany civil, criminal, administrative
investigative action, suit or proceeding may bedpay the Company in advance of the final dispositad such action, suit
proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by obehalf of such director or officer to repay suchoamt if it shall ultimately b
determined that such person is not entitled tonblemnified by the Company pursuant to this Artid3. Such expenses (includ
attorneys’fees) incurred by former directors and officersother employees and agents may be so paid upon tsutis an
conditions, if any, as the Company deems apprapriat

(9) The indemnification and advancement of expepsesgided by, or granted pursuant to, this Artit&3 shall not be deem
exclusive of any other rights to which those segkitdemnification or advancement of expenses magritidded under any law, by-
law, agreement, vote of Members or disinteresteekcthrs or otherwise, both as to action in suclsqes official capacity and as
action in another capacity while holding such affic
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(h) For purposes of this Article 163, referencesatber enterprises” shall include employee bergfins; references to “fines”
shall include any excise taxes assessed on a pergorespect to an employee benefit plan; andregiges to Serving at the reque
of the Company’shall include any service as a director, officenptoyee or agent of the Company which imposes sdudig o
involves service by, such director, officer, em@eyor agent with respect to an employee benefih, pis participants, «
beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good ,faitha manner such person reasonably believed tin libe interest of tf
participants and beneficiaries of an employee bepkfn and in a manner that was not willfully aogsly negligent shall be deen
to have acted in a manner “not opposed to theibesests of the Company” as referred to in thisole 163.

() The indemnification and advancement of expengesvided by, or granted pursuant to, this Artit&8 shall, unles
otherwise provided when authorised or ratified tcare as to a person who has ceased to be a diretfioer, employee or agent ¢
shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executord administrators of such a person.

164. The Board may, notwithstanding any interestef Directors in such action, authorize the Comypanpurchase and maint
insurance on behalf of any person described irabiuere Article, against any liability asserted agahlim and incurred by him in a
such capacity, or arising out of his status as swtlether or not the Company would have the powendemnify him against su
liability under the provisions of the above Article

FINANCIAL YEAR

165. Unless the Directors otherwise prescribe fittencial year of the Company shall end on 31stdbauer in each year and sl
begin on 1st January in each year.

PENSION AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

166. The Board may establish and maintain or pethie establishment and maintenance of any cotdrpwr noneontributory
pension or provident or superannuation funds oth(ttie sanction of an ordinary resolution) emplopeeexecutive share opti
schemes for the benefit of, or give or procuregiving of donations, gratuities, pensions, allowssmor emoluments to any pers
who are or were at any time in the employment orise of the Company, or of any company which subsidiary of the Compar
or is allied or associated with the Company or waitly such subsidiary company, or who are or weemgttime directors or office
of the Company or of any such other company asa#&id, and holding or who have held any salariedl@ment or office in th
Company or such other company, and the wives, wsgéamilies and dependents of any such personsBohed may also establi
and subsidise or subscribe to any institutiong@atons, clubs or funds calculated to be forlibaefit of or to advance the intere
and wellbeing of the Company or of any such other compangfaresaid, and may make payments for or towérelsnisurance
any such persons as aforesaid, and subscribe cargea money for charitable or benevolent object®nany exhibition or for ar
public, general or useful object. The Board maydy of the matters aforesaid, either alone or mjuszction with any
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such other company as aforesaid. Any Director hgldiny such employment or office shall be entitte@articipate in and retain 1
his own benefit any such donation, gratuity, pemsadlowance or emolument.

167. For so long as the ADSs of the Company ar¢eguar listed on Nasdag, a sanction of an ordinasglution by the sharehold
shall be obtained prior to any issuance of anytgaui material amendment to any equity compensatian as required by applica
rules of the NASD Manual and Notices to Membergragnded from time to time.

AMENDMENTS OF ARTICLES

168. Subject to the Law and to any quorum, votingprocedural requirements expressly imposed byetieticles in regard to tl
variation of rights attached to a specific classSbhres of the Company, the Company may at any dindefrom time to time t
Special Resolution change the name of the Compaaitey or amend these Articles or the Comparemorandum of Associatic
in whole or in part.

TRANSFER BY WAY OF CONTINUATION

169. If the Company is exempted as defined in the,Lit shall, subject to the provisions of the Lamd with the approval of
Special Resolution, have the power to register By wf continuation as a body corporate under thes laf any jurisdiction outsic
the Cayman Islands and to be deregistered in then@a Islands.

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY

SIG. /s/ D. EVADNE EBANKS
D. EVADNE EBANKS
Assistant Registrar

Date. 11th Januaury — 2007
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Exhibit 4.1¢

Purchase and Sale Contract

Contract Reference No.: YWG(Xie-201(-57-1004
Place of Execution: Qidor
Date of Execution: September 15, 2(

Seller: Ya An Yongwang Silicon Co., Ltd. Buyer: Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Ltd.

Address: Ya'an Industrial Park, Mingshan Address: 888 Linyang Road, Qidong City,

County, YZan City, Sichuan Provinc Jiangsu Provinc

Tel/Fax: 083-3228897 Tel/Fax: 051-83606228/8360622

Opening Bank: Y'an Branch, Construction Bank of Chi Opening Bank: Qidong Operating Outlet, Bank of Gt
Account No.: 510017786050590807 Account No.: 6470321598080910

Tax ldentification No. Tax ldentification No.: 326817651407

Atfter friendly consultations between them, pursutarthe Contract Law of the People’s Republic oimahthe Parties agree to enter
into the following contract terms with respecthe purchase of the product set forth below for mludlbservance and performance.

1. Name and Quality Requirements of the Product
1.1 Name of the Product: solar-grade polycrystalBiticon (the “Products”);

1.2 Quality Requirements: quality criteria and t@chl parameters: solar-grade; N-shaped Resistiu - cm or P-shaped
Resistivity> 10@ - cm; N-shaped minority carrier lifetime>50ps.

2. Quantity and Specifications:

Aggregate
Item Measuremel Unit Price Price
No. Name Unit Quantity (RMB/KG) (RMB) Remarks
1 Crude KG 720,000 To be agreed between To be determined on The delivery for each
polycrystalline the parties through the basis of the price  month from
silicon negotiations on a actually adopted October 2010 to
monthly basis (see note October 2012 shall t
below) no less than thirty

(30) tons

2 Total contract pric To be determined on the basis of the actual ptiwegelling price is inclusive of a 17% VA




Noted: the parties shall negotiate the unit prazestach month based on the then prevailing pubditket price. In view of the lo-
term partnership between the parties, Party A giralit Party B an appropriate discount by referéadbe then prevailing public
market price, which discount shall be in no eveghér than RMB10/KG. Where the parties fail to @&goa the unit price for the
following month after negotiations, the unit priceapply to the Buyer for the following month shadl equal to (i) the average of the
prices for the sale of the polycrystalline silidmnthe Seller to the other customers for the foll@ymonth as specified in one or
more contracts entered into with such other custerag provided by the Seller to the Buyer, le3RMB10/KG.

3. Methods of Settlement and Term of Payment:

3.1 Prior to the fifth (81) day of each month, the Buyer shall remit in thé total purchase price agreed for such monthian
account designated by the Seller. Within two (2Jkelays as from its receipt in full of the total pbase price so remitted, the Seller
shall dispatch the Products to the Buyer in acawrdavith the dispatch schedule for such month eseaigoetween the Parties;
provided, however, that, the date for the firspdish shall be after the fifth {%) date of the month; and provided, further, thadmpr
to its receipt in full of the total purchase prfoe the current month, the Seller shall have tigatrio cease the dispatch to the Buyer
until the receipt in full of the total purchasega in which case, the date of dispatch may beppastd accordingly.

3.2 Within five (5) workdays as of the date of effeeness of this Contract (the “Effective Datdig tBuyer shall pay the Seller a
performance guarantee (the “Performance Guaranire@f) amount of RMB20,000,000 (in words: Twentylidh Renminbi Yuan
Only). Within two (2) months as of its receipt inllfof the Performance Guarantee, and in consiateralf that the Seller shall issue
to the Buyer a letter of guarantee in the same atm®&eginning from the date falling one year after performance of this Contract
commences, the Performance Guarantee may be saaiffst the purchase price payable by the Buyeuheer during the period
from October 2011 to September 2012. Under sudetififig, the Seller may directly deduct any amatithe purchase price
payable by the Buyer from the Performance Guaramtkeh purchase price shall be calculated at aprige of RMB55.56/KG
(Fifty-five point five fix Renminbi Yuan). Notwithanding the foregoing provisions, in case priothi® commencement of or in the
course of the proposed offsetting against the Radoce Guarantee, the aggregate quantity of théuet® purchased by the Buyer
during a given period is less than the agreed @yasftpurchase for such period set forth hereie, $eller shall have the right to
refuse to do the offsetting until the date on whadly quantity shortfall accrued previously is magdeby the Buyer in the
performance of its purchase obligations for thesegient months.




4. Methods and Place of Delivery:
4.1 Time of Delivery: to be agreed between theigagach month prior to the dispatch of the shigrf@arsuch month.
4.2 Place and Methods: to be delivered to the Bsiyearehouse by the Seller.

4.3 The Seller shall bear any and all the lossdsdamages that may occur to any Products pridraalelivery of such Products to
the Buyer's warehouse.

5. Quality Inspection and Objections:

5.1 Within five (5) workdayss from its receipt of any shipment of the Produtis Buyer shall conduct the acceptance inspectix
such shipment as to the quantity, model no., sjgatidns, and quality, and shall give a writtenic®bf objection to the Seller with
two (2) daydollowing the date of inspection, in which case Beller may conduct a reinspection. Where theeRanave a dispute
with respect to the result of the inspection, @ifharty may submit such dispute to an independhérat party acceptable to both
Parties. In case the Buyer fails to conduct thejpiance inspection within seven (7) workdagdrom its receipt of a shipment of the
Products, the Buyer shall be deemed to have natidajeto such shipment.

6. Default Liabilities:

6.1 In case within the period of quality inspectiany of the model no., specifications, techni@bmeters of any Products delive
by the Seller are confirmed by the Parties tottadonform to the requirements set forth hereia,Rarties shall after negotiations,
elect to refund the payment for such nonconforningducts, replace such nonconforming Products edgtiiorming ones or have t
Buyer accept such nonconforming Products at a diged price.

6.2 In case after the Buyer completes the advaagment contemplated hereunder and the total pueghrése for any given month,
the Seller fails to dispatch the agreed Products@ordance with the dispatch schedule agreed battie Parties, the Seller shall
pay the Buyer liquidated damages on the valueehtin-dispatched Products at a rate of 0.5%/dagé&oh day during which such
failure continues. In case the non-dispatched Ritsdemain overdue for more than thirty (30) dalys,Buyer shall have the right to
terminate this Contract and the Seller shall refumnthe Buyer any amount of the Performance Gueealeft after the offset.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in case Buyer has any delay in any payment or makedlyenpnt later than the agre
time of dispatch, the Seller shall not be heldléabr any default liabilities for the failure taspatch the relevant Products at the
agreed time of dispatch, and the Buyer shall neétihe right to terminate this Contract.

6.3 In case the Buyer fails to pay the purchassegdar any given month on time in accordance withdgreed payment schedule, the
Buyer pay the Seller liqguidated damages on thedmeepurchase price at a rate of 0.5%/day for eagtddring which such overdue
purchase price remains unpaid. In case any ovqrdighase price remains overdue for more than t{@@y days, the Seller shall
have the right to terminate this Contract and stedilind to the Buyer any amount of the PerformaBuoarantee left after the offset.




7. Force Majeure:

In case either the Buyer or the Seller is rendereable to perform any of its obligations hereurtler to the occurrence of a force
majeure event, the Party affected by the force unajevent shall give a written notice to the otfRarty within seven (7) days as of
the occurrence of such event and provide the dhety with written evidence issued by the releygmternmental authority within
fifteen (15) days after the force majeure evente®to an end. To the extent of the effect of thedanajeure event, the affected
Party shall be released completely or partiallyrfriie liability for the failure to perform the affied obligations hereunder; provid
however, that, the affected Party shall not beassdd from the liability for such failure where fioece majeure occurs after the
performance of the relevant obligations are delayed

8. Dispute Resolution:

Any dispute between the Parties arising from tHelitg, performance or interpretation of this Cat shall first be resolved throu
friendly consultations between the Parties. Whesedispute fails to be resolved through such cdasohs, such dispute shall be
submitted to the jurisdiction of the court of filmstance located in the place where the Party bvimgs an action. Any expenses
incurred in the action shall be borne by the logiagy, including attorney fees, travelling expensarsidence collection fees,
notarization fees, and legal costs.

9. Effectiveness and Miscellaneous:

9.1 This Contract shall take effect upon being etgand stamped by both parties. The contents oprihieout copy of this Contract
shall have the conclusive force. Any amendmenhigo@ontract hereafter shall be set forth in thetgut copy and signed off by
both Parties for confirmation. Where this Contiadbnger than one page, the edge of each padesofbntract shall be stamped.

9.2 This Contract shall be executed in two (2) terparts with equal force and effect, with eaclthef Buyer and the Seller to hold

one. Each of the Buyer and the Seller shall deliveroriginal of one counterpart of this Contract@uted by it to the other Party by
mail within three (3) workdays after the date oextion. This Contract may be executed by fax trassion, and each counterpart
executed by fax transmission shall constitute agiraal.

9.3 Any matters not covered hereunder shall béosit in supplementary agreements to be enteredoyptand between the Parties
after negotiations, which supplementary agreemsrali have the equal legal force as this Contract.

Seller: Ya An Yongwang Silicon Co., Ltd. Buyer: Jiangsu Linyang Solarfun Co., Ltd.
(affixed with Company Seal) (affixed with Company Seal)

Authorized Representativ Authorized Representativ

Dated: Dated:



Exhibit 8.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc. (US.
Hanwha SolarOne Investment Holding Ltd. (B’
Hanwha SolarOne Hong Kong Limited (Hong Ko
Hanwha SolarOne (Nantong) Co., Ltd. (PF

1.

2

3

4

5. Hanwha SolarOne (Qidong) Co., Ltd. (PF

6. Hanwha SolarOne Deutschland GmbH (Germ:

7. Shanghai Linyang Solar Technology Co., Ltd. (PI

8. Hanwha Solar Engineering Research and DevelopmemieCCo., Ltd. (PRC
9. Hanwha SolarOne Technology Co., Ltd. (PF

10. Hanwha Solar Electric Power Engineering Co., LRRC)

11. Nantong Hanwha Import & Export Co., Ltd. (PR



Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Ping Peter Xie, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-F of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Lt

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordaain untrue statement of a material fact or omistate a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteoircumstances under which such statements mack, not misleadit
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aarat,for, the periods presen
in this report;

The companyg' other certifying officer(s) and | are responsilite establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstranc
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}#nd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas define
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedurks ttesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the company, including its consolahsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahcegporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenassurance regarding the reliability of finanaiborting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyisclosure controls and procedures and presentettiis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discesontrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in toenpanys internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
period covered by the annual report that has nadligaffected, or is reasonably likely to matewadiffect, the company’
internal control over financial reporting; a

The company other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob ove!
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors dné audit committee of comparsyboard of directors (or persons perforn
the equivalent functions

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tloenpanys$ ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesimagement or other employees who have a significgatin the
compan'’s internal control over financial reportir

/sl Ping Peter Xie

Ping Peter Xie

President and Chief Executive Officer
June 3, 2011




Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gareth Kung, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-F of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Lt

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cordaain untrue statement of a material fact or omistate a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteoircumstances under which such statements mack, not misleadit
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,ather financial information included in this repdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aarat,for, the periods presen
in this annual repor

The companyg' other certifying officer(s) and | are responsilite establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstranc
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}#nd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas define
in Exchange Act Rules 1-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the company and hay

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedurks ttesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the company, including its consolahsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isiige prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahcegporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenassurance regarding the reliability of finanaiborting and tt
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the companyisclosure controls and procedures and presentettiis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discesontrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in toenpanys internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
period covered by the annual report that has nadligaffected, or is reasonably likely to matewadiffect, the company’
internal control over financial reporting; a

The company other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob ove!
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors dné audit committee of comparsyboard of directors (or persons perforn
the equivalent functions

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controtiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tloenpanys$ ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; anc

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesimagement or other employees who have a significgatin the
compan'’s internal control over financial reportir

/sl Gareth Kung
Gareth Kung

Chief Financial Officer
June 3, 2011




Exhibit 13.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of setti350, chapter 63 of title :
United States Code), each of the undersigned offio Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. (theCompany "), hereby certifies, to su
officers’ knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year endeddinber 31, 2010 (the “Reporti the Company containing the finan:
statements fully complies with the requirementsextion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 and that informati
contained in the Report fairly presents, in all enial respects, the financial condition and resofitgperations of the Company.

Date: June 3, 201 /sl Ping Peter Xii

Ping Peter Xie
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: June 3, 201 /sl Gareth Kun

Gareth Kung
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1476dg amended, pertaining to the
2007 Equity Incentive Plan and the 2006 Share @fian of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. of our repdated June 3, 2011, with
respect to the consolidated financial statementsansfwha SolarOne Co., Ltd. and the effectivenesgstefnal control over financial
reporting of Hanwha SolarOne Co., Ltd., includedhis Annual Report (Form 20-F) for the year enBedember 31, 2010.

/sl Ernst & Young Hua Ming
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China
June 3, 2011



